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Preface

About This Edition of Accounting Trends & Techniques

Accounting Trends & Techniques (Trends) compiles annual reporting and disclosure data and examples
from a survey of the annual reports of publicly traded entities. Trends provides accounting professionals
with an invaluable resource for incorporating new and existing accounting and reporting guidance into
financial statements using presentation techniques adopted by some of the most recognized entities
headquartered in the United States. This 2010 edition of Trends surveyed annual reports of 500 carefully
selected industrial, merchandising, technology, and service entities for fiscal periods ending between
January and December 2009.

To provide you with the most useful and comprehensive look at current financial reporting techniques
and methods, Trends is organized by financial statement disclosure and offers guidance about reporting
requirements, statistical tables that track reporting trends, excerpts from the surveyed annual reports
showing reporting techniques, and detailed indexes.

Guidance

Trends offers thorough discussions of the significant U.S. generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP) financial statement reporting requirements for each type of disclosure. This guidance also pro-
vides the related authoritative sources for each requirement.

Trend Tables

Statistical tables that follow the guidance track significant disclosure and reporting trends, providing a
comparison of current survey findings with those of prior years. These tables show trends in such diverse
reporting matters as financial statement format and terminology and the treatment of transactions and
events reflected in the financial statements. Note that some prior-year comparisons might be affected
by the change in sample size to 500 entities from 600 entities in the previous edition.

Excerpts Showing Technique

Trends presents carefully selected excerpts from the annual reports of the survey entities to illustrate
current reporting techniques and various presentation practices already subjected to the audit require-
ments mandated by the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (PCAOB). Every edition of Trends
includes all new annual report excerpts that were chosen to be particularly relevant and useful to financial
statement preparers in illustrating current reporting practices.

Indexes

Indexes in this edition include the “Appendix of 500 Entities,” which alphabetically lists each of the
500 survey entities included in the current edition and notes where in the text excerpts from their
annual reports can be found; the “Pronouncement Index,” which provides for easy cross-referencing of
pronouncements to the applicable descriptive narratives; and a detailed “Subject Index,” which is fully
cross-referenced to all significant topics included throughout the narratives.
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FASB Accounting Standards Codification™

Because Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification™ (ASC) is
the source of authoritative U.S. GAAP for nongovernmental entities, in addition to guidance issued by
the SEC, the guidance within Trends refers only to the appropriate FASB ASC reference for all standards
and other authoritative guidance codified therein. This edition of Trends includes a number of financial
statement reporting examples that do not reference FASB ASC either because it was not effective as of
the end of the annual reporting period of the respective survey entity from which the examples were
derived or because the survey entity chose not to include FASB ASC references.

Recent Guidance

Note that the effective dates of recently released guidance affect the timing of its inclusion in the
financial statements of the survey entities, thereby affecting the availability of illustrative excerpts for
potential inclusion in each edition of Trends. This 2010 edition of Trends includes survey entities having
fiscal years ending within calendar year 2009. Recently issued technical guidance for which this edi-
tion supplies illustrative annual report excerpts include SFAS No. 141R, Business Combinations (FASB
ASC 805, Business Combinations), SFAS No. 165, Subsequent Events (FASB ASC 855, Subsequent
Events), SFAS No. 161, Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities—an amend-
ment of FASB Statement No. 133 (FASB ASC 815, Derivatives and Hedging), and SFAS No. 160, Non-
controlling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements—an amendment of ARB No. 51 (FASB ASC
810, Consolidation), among other recently issued guidance.

Related Publications

Trends presents and analyzes financial reporting information for public, non-regulated entities across the
industrial, merchandising, technology, and service sectors. To see a similar presentation and analysis
for International Financial Reporting Standards, employee benefit plans, not-for-profit entities, and state
and local governments, please see the related publications in AICPA's Accounting Trends & Techniques
series:

IFRS Accounting Trends & Techniques
Employee Benefit Plans Accounting Trends & Techniques
Not-for-Profit Entities Accounting Trends & Techniques

State and Local Governments Accounting Trends & Techniques

Feedback

We hope that you find this year’s edition of Trends to be informative and useful. Please let us know!
What features do you like? What do you think can be improved or added? We encourage you to give us
your comments and questions about all aspects of Trends. Please direct your feedback to David Cohen,
using the following contact information. All feedback is greatly appreciated and kept strictly confidential.

David Cohen—Professional Publications
AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
220 Leigh Farm Road
Durham, NC 27707-8110
Telephone: 919-402-4030
E-mail: dcohen@aicpa.org

You can also contact the Accounting and Auditing Publications team of the AICPA directly via e-mail:

A&Apublications@aicpa.org
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ENTITIES SELECTED FOR SURVEY

1.01 This section is concerned with general information
about the 500 entities selected for the survey and with certain
accounting information usually disclosed in notes accompa-
nying the basic financial statements. In years prior to fiscal
2008, 600 entities were used in the survey. All tables of sig-
nificant accounting trends will be based on a survey of 500
entities for the current and preceding year and 600 entities
for the years prior to fiscal year 2008.

1.02 All 500 entities included in the survey are registered
with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC). Many
of the survey entities have securities traded on one of the
major stock exchanges—81% on the New York and less than
1% on the American. The remaining entities were traded on
NASDAQ or the “over-the-counter” exchanges.

1.03 Each year, entities are selected from the latest For-
tune 1000 listing to replace those entities that were deleted
from the survey (see the Appendix of 500 Entities for a com-
prehensive listing of the 500 entities as well as those that
were added and removed in this edition). Generally, entities
are deleted from the survey when they have either been ac-
quired, become privately held (and are, therefore, no longer
registered with the SEC), failed to timely issue a report, or
ceased operations.
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1.04
TABLE 1-1: INDUSTRY CLASSIFICATIONS OF SURVEY
ENTITIES

2009 2008
Advertising, Marketing..........coc.vevveeveenneneeneenennnns 4 4
ABTOSPACE. .....vvevveereesreressssessssssessessssessssssesnssssenas 14 14
ADPATEL. ..o 12 10
BEVEragES......vveveireeeiisieese et 8 8
Building materials, glass............ccveriinieniirerireiinens 9 8
CREMICAIS ... 25 25
Computer peripherals..........cccooveveeereincsreresnennns b 5
Computer SOftWAre .........oevvervreeeeeeeieieesesisseseiens 11 10
Computers, office equipment...........ccocevvvrcrrerrnnne. 9 8
Diversified outSOUrCiNg SEIVICES..........cevvrevvivrreenens 11 11
Electronics, electrical equipment...........ccccoevirevennee 28 28
Engineering, construction...........c.coc.euveievenieniens 9 9
Entertainment ..o 10 10
FOOU.... e 22 21
Food and drug Stores.........ccoeveveeerierieinieereisiennens 13 14
FOOd SEIVICES .....couviiieiee e 10 9
Forest and paper products..........ccccoeuveieieriniinnenns 11 10
FUMNITUFE ... 9 9
General merchandiSers...........cvwereieeeeneeneerenenens 11 11
Health Care.........ccovivininciceceene 6 11
HOMEDUIIETS.........ceeeicc e 9 9
Hotels, casinos, reSoms..........occcvvvvciecereerieieeneennns 5 5|
Household and personal products.............cccceuueee 8 8
Industrial and farm equipment............ccoccvevrerrneieens 26 26
Information technology services..........ccccocveerienncne. 12 12
Mail, package and freight delivery...........c.cccocevune.. 2 2
Medical products and equipment...........cccccovuerrennc. 11 10
Metal ProductS ...........ocuuevmeeieirerirersese s 8 9
MELAIS ..o 12 12
Mining, crude-oil production..............c.cccccueveienienienee 12 12
MISCEllANEOUS ... 2 1
Motor vehicles and parts...........cccoeeveereieereeirennns 13 15
Network communiCations...............cveeernieeeeienneens 5 4
Packaging, Containers...........c.cocveureerereineneenieneene 8 8
Petroleum refining ..o 12 12
PharmaceutiCals............coeueeerierirrerreiieiesesenieene 8 10
Publishing, printing..........coooevrerrirsiisisinscncsciee 12 12
Rubber and plastic products..............cococevieienienenn. 4 4
Scientific, photographic, and control equipment...... 15 13
SEMICONAUCIONS.......ovvreiriiree e 11 11
Soaps, cosmetics 6 5
Specialty retailers 19 20
TelecommunICatioNS.........c.ceeeeeerieriererreiereriseineenes 9 10
Temporary Relp.........ccveeeeeireinsseeeenenens 4 &
TEXHIES. ... 2 2
TODACCO ... s 4 4
Toys, SpOrting goOaS........c.eueurereeerrirnireereisireieirnens 2 2
Transportation equipment...........ccoeevverrerrcerieninens 4 4
Trucking, truck 1€asing..........c.vevveeieeieireeirerineinnnnns 4 4
Waste management... et 2 2
WhOIESAIETS ... 12 12
Total Entities 500 500
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1.05 Table 1-2 indicates the relative size of the survey en-
tities as measured by dollar amount of revenue.

1.06
TABLE 1-2: SIZE OF SURVEY ENTITIES BY AMOUNT
OF REVENUE
2009 2008 2007 2006

Less than $100,000,000.............. 3 3 12 17
Between $100,000,000 and

$500,000,000........c0cvererrereene 13 10 30 30
Between $500,000,000 and

$1,000,000,000..........ccocerrveeee 19 8 29 33
Between $1,000,000,000 and

$2,000,000,000..........cccrvvreeee. 75 53 81 82
Between $2,000,000,000 and

$3,000,000,000..........ccrrerrene. 67 65 90 86
Between $3,000,000,000 and

$4,000,000,000..........overernees 44 53 42 55
Between $4,000,000,000 and

$5,000,000,000............crvvuveee. 42 37 42 34
Between $5,000,000,000 and

$10,000,000,000...................... 93 105 116 108
More than $10,000,000,000........ 144 166 158 155
Total Entities.......ccovererererenrenens 500 500 600 600

2008-2009 based on 500 entities surveyed; 2006-2007 based on
600 entities surveyed.

INFORMATION REQUIRED BY RULE 14a-3
TO BE INCLUDED IN ANNUAL REPORTS
TO STOCKHOLDERS

1.07 Rule 14a-3, Information to Be Furnished to Security
Holders, of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, states that
annual reports furnished to stockholders in connection with
the annual meetings of stockholders should include audited
financial statements—balance sheets as of the 2 most recent
fiscal years, and statements of income and of cash flows for
each of the 3 most recent fiscal years. Rule 14a-3 also states
that the following information, as specified in Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC) Regulation S-K, Standard In-
structions for Filing Forms Under the Securities Act of 1933,
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and Energy Policy and Con-
servation Act of 1975, should be included in the annual report
to stockholders:

1. Selected quarterly financial data.
2. Disagreements with accountants on accounting and
financial disclosure.

3. Summary of selected financial data for the last 5
years.

. Description of business activities.

. Segment information.

. Listing of company directors and executive officers.

. Market price of company’s common stock for each
quarterly period within the two most recent fiscal
years.

~NOo O
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8. Management’s discussion and analysis of financial
condition and results of operations.

9. Quantitative and qualitative disclosures about
market risk.

1.08 Examples of items 1, 3, 8, and 9 follow. Included with
the item 8 examples are excerpts from management’s dis-
cussion and analysis as to forward looking information, lig-
uidity and capital resources, new accounting standards, and
critical accounting policies.

1.09 Examples of segment information disclosures are pre-
sented under “Segment Information” in this section.
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Quarterly Financial Data
1.10
CVS CAREMARK CORPORATION (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15. Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited)

First Second Third Fourth Fiscal

(In millions, except per share amounts) Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year
2009:
Net revenues $ 23,394 $ 24,871 $ 24,642 $ 25,822 $ 98,729
Gross profit 4,748 5,052 5,012 5,568 20,380
Operating profit 1,377 1,600 1,566 1,895 6,438
Income from continuing operations 743 889 1,023 1,053 3,708
Loss from discontinued operations, net of income tax benefit (5) (3) (2) (2) (12)
Net income 738 886 1,021 1,051 3,696
Earnings per share from continuing operations, basic $ 051 $ 061 $ 072 $ 075 $§ 259
Loss per common share from discontinued operations — — (0.01) — (0.01)
Net earnings per common share, basic $ 051 $ 061 $ 071 $ 075 § 258
Earnings per common share from continuing operations,

diluted $ 051 $ 060 $ 071 $ 074 $§ 256
Loss per common share from discontinued operations (0.01) — — — (0.01)
Net earnings per common share, diluted $ 050 $ 060 $ 071 $ 074 § 255
Dividends per common share $0.07625 $0.07625 $0.07625 $0.07625 $0.30500
Stock price: (New York Stock Exchange)
High $ 3047 $ 3422 $ 37.75 $ 3827 § 3827
Low $ 2374 $ 27.08 $ 30.58 $ 27.38 § 23.74
2008
Net revenues $ 21,326 $ 21,140 $ 20,863 $ 24,143 $ 87,472
Gross profit 4,293 4,373 4,401 5,223 18,290
Operating profit 1,370 1,478 1,466 1,732 6,046
Income from continuing operations 749 824 819 952 3,344
Loss from discontinued operations, net of income tax benefit — (49) (83) — (132)
Net income 749 775 736 952 3,212
Earnings per share from continuing operations, basic $ 052 $ 057 $ 057 $ 066 § 232
Loss per common share from discontinued operations — (0.03) (0.06) — (0.09)
Net earnings per common share, basic $ 052 $ 054 $ 051 $ 066 § 223
Earnings per common share from continuing operations,

diluted $ 051 $ 056 $ 056 $ 065 § 227
Loss per common share from discontinued operations — (0.03) (0.06) — (0.09)
Net earnings per common share, diluted $ 051 $ 053 $ 050 $ 065 $§ 218
Dividends per common share $0.06000 $0.06000 $0.06900 $0.06900 $0.25800
Stock price: (New York Stock Exchange)
High $ 4153 $ 4429 $ 40.14 $ 34.90 $§ 44.29
Low $ 3491 $ 39.02 $ 31.81 $ 2319 $§ 2319

() On December 23, 2008, our Board of Directors approved a change in our fiscal year-end from the Saturday nearest December 31 of each
year to December 31 of each year to better reflect our position in the health care, rather than the retail, industry. The fiscal year change was
effective beginning with the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008.

AICPA Accounting Trends & Techniques ATT-SEC 1.10
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1.11
MERCK & CO., INC. (DEC)
SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Selected quarterly financial data for 2009 and 2008 are con-
tained in the Condensed Interim Financial Data table below.

Condensed Interim Financial Data (Unaudited)

(§ in millions except per share amounts) 4th Q@) 3rd Q-4 2nd Q¥ 1st Q©-©)
2009
Sales $10,093.5 $6,049.7 $5,899.9 $5,385.2
Materials and production costs 4,900.8 1,430.3 1,353.9 1,333.8
Marketing and administrative expenses 3,455.2 1,725.5 1,729.5 1,632.9
Research and development expenses 1,9715 1,254.0 1,395.3 1,224.2
Restructuring costs 1,489.8 424 374 64.3
Equity income from affiliates (373.8) (688.2) (587.1) (585.8)
Other (income) expense, net (7,814.8) (2,791.1) 3.6 (67.2)
Income before taxes 6,464.8 5,076.8 1,967.3 1,783.
Net income available to common shareholders 6,493.6 3,424.3 1,556.3 1,425.0
Basic earnings per common share available to common

shareholders $ 2.36 $ 162 $ 074 $ 067
Earnings per common share assuming dilution available to

common shareholders $ 2.35 $ 1.6 $ 074 $ 067
2008
Sales $ 6,032.4 $5,943.9 $6,051.8 $5,822.1
Materials and production costs 1,470.0 1,477.9 1,396.5 1,238.1
Marketing and administrative expenses 1,862.1 1,730.3 1,930.2 1,854.4
Research and development expenses 1,386.6 1,171.1 1,169.3 1,078.3
Restructuring costs 103.1 757.5 102.2 69.7
Equity income from affiliates (720.0) (665.6) (523.0) (652.1)
Other (income) expense, net (26.8) 30.6 (112.8) (2,209.2)
Income before taxes 1,957. 1,4421 2,089.4 44429
Net income available to common shareholders 1,644.8 1,092.7 1,768.3 3,302.6
Basic earnings per common share available to common

shareholders $ 0.78 $ 051 $ 082 $ 152
Earnings per common share assuming dilution available to

common shareholders $ 0.78 $ 051 $ 082 $ 152

=

Amounts for 2009 include a gain on the fair value adjustment to Merck’s previously held interest in the MSP Partnership.

The fourth quarter 2008 tax provision reflects the favorable impact of foreign exchange rate changes and a benefit relating to the U.S.
research and development tax credit.

Amounts for third and fourth quarter 2009 and fourth quarter 2008 include the impact of additional Vioxx legal defense reserves. Amounts
for third quarter and second quarter 2009 and first quarter 2008 include the impact of additional Fosamax legal defense reserves.
Amounts for 2009 include a gain on the sale of Old Merck’s interest in Merial Limited.

Amounts for 2008 reflect the favorable impact of tax settlements.

Amounts for 2008 include a gain on distribution from AstraZeneca LP, a gain related to the sale of the remaining worldwide rights to Aggrastat,
the realization of foreign tax credits and an expense for a contribution to the Merck Company Foundation.

Amounts for 2009 include the impacts of the Merger, including amortization of intangible assets and merger-related costs. Amounts for 2009
and 2008 include the impact of restructuring actions.

g T B
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Selected Information for Five Years
1.12

INTERNATIONAL FLAVORS & FRAGRANCES INC.
(DEC)

FIVE-YEAR SUMMARY

(Dollars in thousands except per share amounts) 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
Consolidated statement of income data
Net sales $2,326,158 $2,389,372 $2,276,638 $2,095,390 $1,993,393
Cost of goods sold® 1,391,032 1,418,738 1,324,424 1,211,259 1,168,992
Research and development expenses®(©) 193,843 209,295 196,893 183,512 179,812
Selling and administrative expenses® 376,541 381,841 375,287 351,923 339,323
Amortization of intangibles 6,153 6,153 12,878 14,843 15,071
Curtailment loss — — 5,943 — —
Restructuring and other charges, net® 18,301 18,212 — 2,680 23,319
Interest expense 61,818 74,008 41,535 25,549 23,956
Other (income) expense, net 1,921 (2,797) (11,136) (9,838) (3,268)
2,049,609 2,105,450 1,945,824 1,779,928 1,747,205

Income before taxes 276,549 283,922 330,814 315,462 246,188
Taxes on income9 81,023 54,294 83,686 88,962 53,122
Net income $ 195,526 $ 229,628 $ 247,128 $ 226,500 $ 193,066
Percentage of net sales 8.4 9.6 10.9 10.8 9.7
Percentage of average shareholders’ equity 28.9 38.0 32.0 24.6 20.9
Net income per share—basic $ 248 $ 2.89 $ 2.84 $ 2.50 $ 2.06
Net income per share—diluted $ 2.46 $ 2.86 $ 2.81 $ 248 $ 2.04
Average number of shares (thousands) 78,403 79,032 86,541 90,443 93,584
Consolidated balance sheet data
Cash and cash equivalents $ 80,135 $ 178,467 $ 151,471 $ 114,508 $ 272,545
Receivables, net 444 265 400,971 400,527 357,155 304,823
Inventories 444 977 479,567 484,222 446,606 430,794
Property, plant and equipment, net 501,293 496,856 508,820 495,124 499,145
Goodwill and intangible assets, net 720,530 726,683 732,836 745,716 772,651
Total assets® 2,644,774 2,749,913 2,726,314 2,478,904 2,638,196
Bank borrowings, overdrafts and current portion of long-term

debt 76,780 101,982 152,473 15,897 819,392
Long-term debt 934,749 1,153,672 1,060,168 791,443 131,281
Total Shareholders’ equity® © @ @ 771,910 580,642 626,359 916,056 925,808
Other data
Current ratio®® 23 26 2.1 24 1.0
Gross additions to property, plant and equipment $ 66,819 $ 85,39 $ 65614 $ 58,282 $ 93433
Depreciation and amortization expense 78,525 75,986 82,788 89,733 91,928
Cash dividends declared 78,962 75,902 76,465 68,956 68,397
Per share $ 1.00 $ 0.96 $ 0.88 $ 0.765 $ 0.73
Number of shareholders of record at year-end 3,004 3,167 3,248 3,393 3,207
Number of employees at year-end 5,377 5,338 5,315 5,087 5,160

(a)

KoaKes

The 2007 amounts reflect adoption of ASC 740 “Income Taxes.”
Current ratio is equal to current assets divided by current liabilities.
Includes noncontrolling interests for all periods presented.

o

as a reduction of tax expense.

AICPA Accounting Trends & Techniques

Restructuring and other charges ($14,763 after tax) in 2009, ($12,583 after tax) in 2008, ($1,982 after tax) in 2006, and ($15,857 after tax) in
2005, were the result of various restructuring and reorganization programs of the Company.

2006-2009 amounts include equity compensation expense in accordance with ASC 718 “Compensation—Stock Compensation.”

The 2006 amounts reflect adoption of ASC 715 “Compensation—Retirement Benefits.”

The 2005-2008 periods have been revised to properly recognize R&D expense, net of R&D credits. Previously, these credits were reflected

ATT-SEC 1.12
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NIKE, INC. (MAY)

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Accounting Trends & Techniques

Financial History

(In millions, except per share data and financial ratios)" 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
Year ended May 31,

Revenues $19,176.1 $18,627.0 $16,325.9 $14,954.9 $13,739.7
Gross margin 8,604.4 8,387.4 7,160.5 6,587.0 6,115.4
Gross margin % 44.9% 45.0% 43.9% 44.0% 44.5%
Restructuring charges 195.0 — — — —
Goodwill impairment 199.3 — — — —
Intangible and other asset impairment 202.0 — — — —
Net income 1,486.7 1,883.4 1,491.5 1,392.0 1,211.6
Basic earnings per common share 3.07 3.80 2.96 2.69 2.31
Diluted earnings per common share 3.03 3.74 2.93 2.64 2.24
Weighted average common shares outstanding 484.9 495.6 503.8 518.0 525.2
Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding 490.7 504.1 509.9 527.6 540.6
Cash dividends declared per common share 0.98 0.875 0.71 0.59 0.475
Cash flow from operations 1,736.1 1,936.3 1,878.7 1,667.9 1,570.7
Price range of common stock

High 70.28 70.60 57.12 4577 46.22
Low 38.24 51.50 37.76 38.27 34.31
At May 31,

Cash and equivalents $ 2,291.1 $ 2,133.9 $ 1,856.7 $ 9542 $ 1,388.1
Short-term investments 1,164.0 642.2 990.3 1,348.8 436.6
Inventories 2,357.0 2,438.4 21219 2,076.7 1,811.1
Working capital 6,457.0 5517.8 5,492.5 4,733.6 4,339.7
Total assets 13,249.6 12,442.7 10,688.3 9,869.6 8,793.6
Long-term debt 437.2 4411 409.9 410.7 687.3
Redeemable preferred stock 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3
Shareholders’ equity 8,693.1 7,825.3 7,025.4 6,285.2 5,644.2
Year-end stock price 57.05 68.37 56.75 40.16 41.10
Market capitalization 27,697.8 33,576.5 28,472.3 20,564.5 21,462.3
Financial ratios:

Return on equity 18.0% 25.4% 22.4% 23.3% 23.2%
Return on assets 11.6% 16.3% 14.5% 14.9% 14.5%
Inventory turns 4.4 45 4.4 43 44
Current ratio at May 31 3.0 2.7 3.1 2.8 3.2
Price/earnings ratio at May 31 18.8 18.3 19.4 15.2 18.3

(" All share and per share information has been restated to reflect a two-for-one stock split affected in the form of a 100% common stock

dividend distributed on April 2, 2007.

ATT-SEC 1.13
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations

1.14
ALBERTO-CULVER COMPANY (SEP)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

Description of Business

Alberto Culver Company (the company or New Alberto
Culver) develops, manufactures, distributes and markets
beauty care products as well as food and household prod-
ucts in the United States and more than 100 other coun-
tries. The company is organized into two reportable business
segments—United States and International.

Overview

Discontinued Operations

Unless otherwise noted, all financial information in the ac-
companying consolidated financial statements and related
notes, as well as all discussion in Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Opera-
tions (MD&A), reflects only continuing operations.

Cederroth International

Prior to July 31, 2008, the company also owned and operated
the Cederroth International (Cederroth) business which man-
ufactured, marketed and distributed beauty, health care and
household products throughout Scandinavia and in certain
other parts of Europe. On May 18, 2008, the company entered
into an agreement to sell its Cederroth business to CapMan,
a Nordic based private equity firm. Pursuant to the transac-
tion agreement, on July 31, 2008 Cederroth Intressenter AB,
a company owned by two funds controlled by CapMan, pur-
chased all of the issued and outstanding shares of Cederroth
International AB in exchange for 159.5 million Euros, from Al-
berto Culver AB, a wholly-owned Swedish subsidiary of the
company. The Euros were immediately converted into $243.8
million based on the deal contingent Euro forward contract
entered into by the company in connection with the trans-
action. The purchase price was adjusted in fiscal year 2009,
resulting in cash payments of $1.5 million from Alberto Culver
AB to CapMan. These adjustments resulted from differences
between the final, agreed-upon balances of cash, debt and
working capital as of the July 31, 2008 closing date and the
estimates assumed in the transaction agreement.

In accordance with the provisions of the Financial Account-
ing Standards Board’s (FASB) Accounting Standards Codi-
fication (ASC) Subtopic 205-20, “Discontinued Operations,”
the results of operations and cash flows related to the Ced-
erroth business are reported as discontinued operations for
all periods presented.

As noted above, the company entered into a deal contin-
gent forward contract to sell the Euros it expected to receive
in exchange for U.S. dollars. In connection with the closing
of the transaction on July 31, 2008, the company recognized
a pre-tax loss of $5.1 million related to the settlement of the
forward contract which partially offset the gain on the sale of
Cederroth in 2008. Additionally, the company incurred trans-

AICPA Accounting Trends & Techniques

action costs (primarily investment banking, legal and other
professional service fees) of $8.4 million during fiscal years
2009 and 2008, most of which are not expected to give rise
to an income tax benefit. These costs were expensed in the
periods incurred and recorded as part of the gain (loss) on
the sale of Cederroth.

In fiscal year 2008, Cederroth’s discontinued operations
results include special pre-tax charges of $1.5 million rec-
ognized in the fourth quarter in connection with the sale
transaction, primarily related to compensation for key em-
ployees of the Cederroth business. During fiscal year 2007,
Cederroth recognized pre-tax charges of $1.5 million that
were previously classified as “restructuring and other” in the
consolidated statement of earnings. These charges include
$731,000 of severance and other exit costs related to the
company’s reorganization following the Separation. In ad-
dition, Cederroth’s discontinued operations results include
an $815,000 non-cash charge related to the acceleration of
vesting of stock options and restricted shares that occurred
in connection with the Separation (as more fully described in
the Sally Holdings, Inc. section below). This charge reflects
the amount of future compensation expense as of November
16, 2006, the closing date of the Separation, that would have
been recognized in subsequent periods as the stock options
and restricted shares for Cederroth employees vested over
the original vesting periods.

Sally Holdings, Inc.

Prior to November 16, 2006, the company also operated
a beauty supply distribution business which included two
segments: (1) Sally Beauty Supply, a domestic and interna-
tional chain of cash-and-carry stores offering professional
beauty supplies to both salon professionals and retail con-
sumers, and (2) Beauty Systems Group, a full-service beauty
supply distributor offering professional brands directly to sa-
lons through its own sales force and professional-only stores
in exclusive geographical territories in North America and
Europe. These two segments comprised Sally Holdings, Inc.
(Sally Holdings), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the company.
On June 19, 2006, the company announced a plan to split
Sally Holdings from the consumer products business. Pur-
suant to an Investment Agreement, on November 16, 2006:
e The company separated into two publicly-traded com-
panies: New Alberto Culver, which owns and oper-
ates the consumer products business, and Sally Beauty
Holdings, Inc. (New Sally), which owns and operates
Sally Holdings’ beauty supply distribution business;
e CDRS Acquisition LLC (Investor), a limited liability com-
pany organized by Clayton, Dubilier & Rice Fund VII,
L.P, invested $575 million in New Sally in exchange for
an equity interest representing approximately 47.55%
of New Sally common stock on a fully diluted basis,
and Sally Holdings incurred approximately $1.85 billion
of indebtedness; and
e The company’s shareholders received, for each share
of common stock then owned, (i) one share of common
stock of New Alberto Culver, (ii) one share of common
stock of New Sally and (i) a $25.00 per share special
cash dividend.
To accomplish the results described above, the parties en-
gaged in a number of transactions including:
¢ A holding company merger, after which the company
was a direct, wholly-owned subsidiary of New Sally and
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each share of the company’s common stock converted
into one share of New Sally common stock.

e New Sally, using a substantial portion of the proceeds
of the investment by Investor and the debt incurrence,
paid a $25.00 per share special cash dividend to New
Sally shareholders (formerly the company’s sharehold-
ers) other than Investor. New Sally then contributed the
company to New Alberto Culver and proceeded to spin
off New Alberto Culver by distributing one share of New
Alberto Culver common stock for each share of New
Sally common stock.

Notwithstanding the legal form of the November 16, 2006
transactions, because of the substance of the transactions,
New Alberto Culver was considered the divesting entity and
treated as the “accounting successor” to the company, and
New Sally was considered the “accounting spinnee” for fi-
nancial reporting purposes.

The separation of the company into New Alberto Culver
and New Sally involving Clayton, Dubilier & Rice (CD&R) is
referred to herein as the “Separation.” For purposes of de-
scribing the events related to the Separation, as well as other
events, transactions and financial results of Alberto Culver
Company related to periods prior to November 16, 2006, the
term “the company” refers to New Alberto Culver’s account-
ing predecessor, or Old Alberto Culver.

In accordance with the provisions of the FASB ASC
Subtopic 205-20, the results of operations and cash flows
related to Sally Holdings’ beauty supply distribution busi-
ness are reported as discontinued operations for all periods
presented.

In accordance with the Investment Agreement, upon the
closing of the Separation, New Sally paid (i) all of Investor’s
transaction expenses and a transaction fee in the amount
of $30 million to CD&R, (i) $20 million to the company cov-
ering certain of the combined transaction expenses of Sally
Holdings and the company and (jii) certain other expenses
of the company. The transaction expenses that New Sally
paid on behalf of Investor and the transaction fee paid to
CD&R, along with other costs incurred by New Sally directly
related to its issuance of new equity and debt in connection
with the Separation, were capitalized as equity and debt is-
suance costs on New Sally’s balance sheet. The transaction
expenses of the company, including Sally Holdings’ portion,
were expensed by the company as incurred through the date
of completion of the Separation and are included in discon-
tinued operations. Approximately $18.7 million of transaction
expenses were incurred in fiscal year 2007.

The company treated the Separation as though it consti-
tuted a change in control for purposes of the company’s stock
option and restricted stock plans. As a result, in accordance
with the terms of these plans, all outstanding stock options
and restricted shares of the company became fully vested
upon completion of the Separation on November 16, 2006.
Included in Sally Holdings’ discontinued operations in fiscal
year 2007 is a $5.3 million charge which reflects the amount
of future compensation expense that would have been rec-
ognized in subsequent periods as the stock options and re-
stricted shares for Sally Holdings employees vested over the
original vesting periods.

In connection with the Separation, Michael H. Renzulli, the
former Chairman of Sally Holdings, terminated his employ-
ment with the company and received certain contractual ben-
efits totaling $4.0 million, which is included in discontinued
operations in fiscal year 2007.

ATT-SEC 1.14

Non-GAAP Financial Measure

To supplement the company’s financial results presented in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting princi-
ples (GAAP), the company discloses “organic sales growth”
which measures the growth in net sales excluding the ef-
fects of foreign currency fluctuations, acquisitions and di-
vestitures. This measure is a “non-GAAP financial measure”
as defined by Regulation G of the Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC). This non-GAAP financial measure is not
intended to be, and should not be, considered separately
from or as an alternative to the most directly comparable
GAAP financial measure of “net sales growth.” This specific
non-GAAP financial measure is presented in MD&A with the
intent of providing greater transparency to supplemental fi-
nancial information used by management and the company’s
board of directors in their financial and operational decision-
making. This non-GAAP financial measure is among the pri-
mary indicators that management and the board of directors
use as a basis for budgeting, making operating and strate-
gic decisions and evaluating performance of the company
and management as it provides meaningful supplemental in-
formation regarding the normal ongoing operations of the
company and its core businesses. This amount is disclosed
so that the reader has the same financial data that manage-
ment uses with the belief that it will assist investors and other
readers in making comparisons to the company’s historical
operating results and analyzing the underlying performance
of the company’s normal ongoing operations for the periods
presented. Management believes that the presentation of
this non-GAAP financial measure, when considered along
with the company’s GAAP financial measure and the recon-
ciliation to the corresponding GAAP financial measure, pro-
vides the reader with a more complete understanding of the
factors and trends affecting the company than could be ob-
tained absent this disclosure. It is important for the reader
to note that the non-GAAP financial measure used by the
company may be calculated differently from, and therefore
may not be comparable to, a similarly titled measure used by
other companies. A reconciliation of this measure to its most
directly comparable GAAP financial measure is provided in
the “Reconciliation of Non-GAAP Financial Measure” section
of MD&A and should be carefully evaluated by the reader.
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Restructuring and Other

Restructuring and other expenses during the fiscal years
ended September 30, 2009, 2008 and 2007 consist of the
following:

(In thousands) 2009 2008 2007
Severance and other exit costs $3,146 $ 6,196 $15,825
Impairment and other property, plant and equipment charges 3,552 6,265 500
Gain on sale of assets (73) (1,808) (5,894)
Non-cash charges related to the acceleration of vesting of stock options and restricted

shares in connection with the Separation — — 11,383
Contractual termination benefits for the former President and Chief Executive Officer

in connection with the Separation — — 9,888
Non-cash charges for the recognition of foreign currency translation losses in connection

with the liquidation of foreign legal entities 37 324 1,355
Legal fees and other expenses incurred to assign the company’s trademarks following

the closing of the Separation 114 208 42

$6,776 $11,185 $33,099

Severance and Other Exit Costs

In November 2006, the company committed to a plan to ter-
minate employees as part of a reorganization following the
Separation. In connection with this reorganization plan, on
December 1, 2006 the company announced that it was go-
ing to close its manufacturing facility in Dallas, Texas. The
company’s worldwide workforce has been reduced by ap-
proximately 215 employees as a result of the reorganization
plan, including 125 employees from the Dallas, Texas manu-
facturing facility. Through September 30, 2009, the company
has recorded cumulative charges related to this plan of $15.0
million for severance, $254,000 for contract termination costs
and $1.4 million for other exit costs.

In October 2007, the company committed to a plan pri-
marily related to the closure of its manufacturing facility in
Toronto, Canada. As part of the plan, the company’s work-
force has been reduced by approximately 125 employees.
Through September 30, 2009, the company has recorded
cumulative charges related to this plan of $2.5 million for
severance and $425,000 for other exit costs.

In May 2008, the company committed to a plan to close
its manufacturing facility, reduce its headcount and relocate
to a smaller commercial office in Puerto Rico. As part of the
plan, the company’s workforce has been reduced by approx-
imately 100 employees. Through September 30, 2009, the
company has recorded cumulative charges related to this
plan of $1.7 million for severance, $8,000 for contract termi-
nation costs and $1.2 million for other exit costs.

The following table reflects the activity related to the three
aforementioned restructuring plans during the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2009:

Liability at New Charges & Cash Liability at

(In thousands) September 30, 2008 Adjustments Payments & Other September 30, 2009
Severance $1,008 $(126) $ (554) $328
Contract termination costs 13 (13) —
Other 407 (888) 70
$1,559 $ 294+ $(1,455) $398

AICPA Accounting Trends & Techniques
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In June 2009, the company committed to a plan primarily
related to the downsizing of its manufacturing facility and
the consolidation of its warehouse and office facilities in
Chatsworth, California. As noted in the “Subsequent Event”
section below, in November 2009 the company committed to
a plan to cease all manufacturing activities at the Chatsworth
facility. As part of the initial downsizing plan, the company’s
workforce will be reduced by approximately 160 employees.
The following table reflects the activity related to this restruc-
turing plan during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2009:

Cash
Initial Payments & Liability at
(In thousands) Charges Other September 30, 2009
Severance $2,107 $(144) $1,963
Other 745 (313) 432
$2,852* $(457) $2,395

* The sum of these amounts from the tables above represents the $3.1 million of total charges for severance and other exit costs recorded

during fiscal year 2009.

Cash payments related to these plans are expected to be
substantially completed by the third quarter of fiscal year
2010.

Impairment and Other Property, Plant
and Equipment Charges

During fiscal year 2009, the company recorded fixed asset
charges of $3.6 million, primarily related to the write-off of cer-
tain manufacturing equipment in connection with the down-
sizing of the company’s manufacturing facility in Chatsworth,
California. During fiscal year 2008, the company recorded
total impairment and other fixed asset charges of $6.3 mil-
lion. This amount includes impairments of $648,000 related
to the building and certain manufacturing equipment in con-
nection with the closure of the Dallas, Texas manufacturing
facility, $1.3 million related to manufacturing equipment in
connection with the closure of the Toronto, Canada manu-
facturing facility and $1.6 million related to the building and
certain manufacturing equipment in connection with the clo-
sure of the Puerto Rico manufacturing facility. In each case,
the fair value of the assets was determined using prices for
similar assets in the respective markets as determined by
management using data from external sources. In addition
to the impairments, the company recognized $2.8 million of
other fixed asset charges related to the closure of the Dallas,
Texas, Toronto, Canada and Puerto Rico manufacturing fa-
cilities during fiscal year 2008.

Gain on Sale of Assets—Including Related
Party Transactions

The company closed on the sale of its manufacturing facility
in Puerto Rico on December 19, 2008. The company received
net cash proceeds of $722,000 and recognized a pre-tax gain
of $73,000 in fiscal year 2009 as a result of the sale. The
company closed on the sale of its manufacturing facility in
Toronto, Canada on May 30, 2008. The company received
net cash proceeds of $7.5 million and recognized a pre-tax
gain of $2.0 million in fiscal year 2008 as a result of the sale.
The company closed on the sale of its manufacturing facility
in Dallas, Texas on March 26, 2008. The company received
net cash proceeds of $3.1 million and recognized a pre-tax
loss of $226,000 in fiscal year 2008 as a result of the sale.
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On December 21, 2006, the company entered into an
agreement with 18000 LLC, a limited liability company con-
trolled by Howard B. Bernick, NJI Sales, Inc., NetJets Inter-
national, Inc. and NetJets Services, Inc. to assign 50% of the
company’s 1/8th interest in a fractional-ownership airplane to
18000 LLC in exchange for $1.2 million. Mr. Bernick, a former
director and the former President and Chief Executive Offi-
cer of the company, was the husband of Carol Lavin Bernick,
Executive Chairman of the Board of Directors of the com-
pany. The company recognized a pre-tax gain of $386,000
as a result of the sale, which closed on December 22, 2006.
This transaction was approved by the audit committee of the
board of directors of the company, consisting solely of inde-
pendent directors.

On January 10, 2007, the Leonard H. Lavin Trust u/a/d
12/18/87, a trust for the benefit of Leonard H. Lavin (the
Lavin Trust), purchased all of the membership units of Eigh-
teen, LLC, an Oregon limited liability company and subsidiary
of the company, pursuant to a Membership Interest Pur-
chase Agreement dated January 10, 2007 among the Lavin
Trust, Eighteen, LLC and the company. The trustees of the
Lavin Trust are Leonard H. Lavin, a director of the company,
and Ms. Bernick. The primary asset of Eighteen, LLC was a
Gulfstream IV-SP airplane. The purchase price for the mem-
bership interests of Eighteen, LLC was $25.0 million and was
paid on January 10, 2007. The company recognized a pre-tax
gain of $5.1 million as aresult of the sale. This transaction was
approved by the audit committee of the board of directors of
the company, consisting solely of independent directors.

On January 30, 2007, the company entered into an agree-
ment with NJI Sales, Inc., NetJets International, Inc. and Net-
Jets Services, Inc. to sell the remaining 50% of its 1/8th inter-
est in a fractional-ownership airplane back to NetJets for $1.2
million. The company recognized a pre-tax gain of $389,000
as a result of the sale.

Acceleration of Vesting of Stock Options
and Restricted Shares

As previously discussed, the company treated the Separa-
tion as though it constituted a change in control for pur-
poses of the company’s stock option and restricted stock
plans. As a result, in accordance with the terms of these
plans, all outstanding stock options and restricted shares of
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the company became fully vested upon completion of the
Separation on November 16, 2006. The $11.4 million charge
recorded by the company in fiscal year 2007 is equal to the
amount of future compensation expense that would have
been recognized in subsequent periods as the stock options
and restricted shares vested over the original vesting periods.

Contractual Termination Benefits

In connection with the Separation, Howard B. Bernick, the
former President and Chief Executive Officer of the company,
terminated his employment with the company and received
certain contractual benefits primarily consisting of a lump
sum cash payment of $9.7 million plus applicable employer
payroll taxes.

Foreign Currency Translation Loss

The company substantially completed the liquidation of two
foreign legal entities in connection with its reorganization plan
and is therefore recognizing in restructuring and other ex-
penses the accumulated foreign currency translation losses
related to the entities which resulted in charges of $37,000,
$324,000 and $1.4 million during fiscal years 2009, 2008 and
2007, respectively.

Trademark Legal Fees and Other Expenses

Due to the series of transactions affecting the company’s
legal structure as part of the closing of the Separation, the
company completed a process to assign many of its existing
trademarks in various countries around the world. In con-
nection with this effort, the company incurred legal fees and
other expenses of $114,000, $208,000 and $42,000 in fiscal
years 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Subsequent Event

In November 2009, the company committed to a plan primar-
ily related to ceasing all manufacturing activities at its facility
in Chatsworth, California. This plan is in addition to the com-
pany’s initial plan to downsize the Chatsworth manufacturing
facility, which was announced in June 2009. As part of this
new plan, the company’s workforce will be further reduced by
approximately 110 employees. The company estimates that
additional pre-tax restructuring and other related charges of
approximately $8.0 million will be recognized during fiscal
year 2010 related to this new plan, with approximately $5.0
million of the additional amount expected to be recognized
in the first quarter.

Expected Savings

The company’s first three reorganization and restructuring
plans have been fully implemented as of September 30, 2009,
and the reported financial results reflect the savings realized
during those periods. As a result of the newest restructuring
plans announced in June 2009 and November 2009 primar-
ily related to the Chatsworth, California facilities, the com-
pany expects to recognize additional cost savings of approx-
imately $12 million on an annualized basis. The additional
cost savings will affect advertising, marketing, selling and
administrative expense and gross profit on the consolidated
statement of earnings.

AICPA Accounting Trends & Techniques

Auction Rate Securities

Prior to the second quarter of fiscal year 2008, the company
regularly invested in auction rate securities (ARS) which typ-
ically are bonds with long-term maturities that have interest
rates which reset at intervals of up to 35 days through an auc-
tion process. These investments are considered available for
sale in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 320, “Debt and Eqg-
uity Securities.” All of the company’s remaining investments
in ARS at September 30, 2009 represent interests in pools of
student loans and have AAA/Aaa credit ratings. In addition,
all of these securities carry an indirect guarantee by the U.S.
federal government of at least 97% of the par value through
the Federal Family Education Loan Program (FFELP). Based
on these factors and the credit worthiness of the underlying
assets, the company does not believe that it has significant
principal risk with regard to these investments.

Historically, the periodic auctions for these ARS invest-
ments have provided a liquid market for these securities. As
a result, the company carried its investments at par value,
which approximated fair value, and classified them as short-
term in the consolidated balance sheets. Starting in the sec-
ond quarter of fiscal year 2008, each of the company’s re-
maining ARS investments has experienced multiple failed
auctions, meaning that there have been insufficient bidders to
match the supply of securities submitted for sale. During fis-
cal year 2009, the company did not redeem any ARS invest-
ments as a result of successful auctions as all auctions for
the company’s remaining ARS investments continued to fail
during the period. In addition, the company did not recognize
any realized gains or losses from the sale of ARS investments
in its statement of earnings. During the fourth quarter of fiscal
year 2009, one security matured and the company received
the full par value of $8.5 million. The company continues to
earn interest on its investments at the maximum contractual
rate and continues to collect the interest in accordance with
the stated terms of the securities. At September 30, 2009, the
company’s outstanding ARS investments carried a weighted
average tax exempt interest rate of 0.7%.

At September 30, 2009, the company has ARS invest-
ments with a total par value of $61.3 million. The company
has recorded these investments on its consolidated balance
sheet at an estimated fair value of $58.4 million and recorded
an unrealized loss of $2.9 million in accumulated other com-
prehensive income (loss), reflecting the decline in the es-
timated fair value. The unrealized loss has been recorded
in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) and not
the statement of earnings as the company has concluded
at September 30, 2009 that no other-than-temporary impair-
ment losses have occurred because its investments continue
to be of high credit quality and the company does not have
the intent to sell these investments, nor is it more likely than
not that the company will be required to sell these invest-
ments until the anticipated recovery in market value occurs.
The company will continue to analyze its ARS in future peri-
ods for impairment and may be required to record a charge
in its statement of earnings in future periods if the decline
in fair value is determined to be other-than-temporary. The
fair value of these securities has been estimated by manage-
ment using unobservable input data from external sources.
Because there is no active market for these securities, man-
agement utilized a discounted cash flow valuation model to
estimate the fair value of each individual security, with the key
assumptions in the model being the expected holding pe-
riod for the ARS, the expected coupon rate over the holding
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period and the required rate of return by market participants
(discount rate), adjusted to reflect the current illiquidity in
the market. For each of the company’s existing securities,
the model calculates an expected periodic coupon rate us-
ing regression analysis and a market required rate of return
that includes a risk-free interest rate and a credit spread.
At September 30, 2009, the estimated required rate of re-
turn was adjusted by a spread of 150 basis points to reflect
the illiquidity in the market. The model then discounts the
expected coupon rate at the adjusted discount rate to ar-
rive at the fair value price. At September 30, 2009, the as-
sumed holding period for the ARS was three years and the
weighted average expected coupon rate and adjusted dis-
count rate used in the valuation model were 5.1% and 3.2%,
respectively.

All of the company’s outstanding ARS investments have
been classified as long-term on the September 30, 2009 bal-
ance sheet as the company cannot be certain that they will
settle within the next twelve months. The company’s out-
standing ARS investments have scheduled maturities rang-
ing from 2029 to 2042. It is management’s intent to hold these
investments until the company is able to recover the full par
value, either through issuer calls, refinancings or other re-
funding initiatives, the recovery of the auction market or the
emergence of a new secondary market. Management’s as-
sumption used in the current fair value estimates is that this
will occur within the next three years.

Results of Operations

Comparison of the Years Ended September 30, 2009
and 2008

Net sales for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2009 were
$1.43 billion, a decrease of 0.7% compared to the prior year.
Organic sales, which exclude the effect of foreign currency
fluctuations (an adverse impact of 8.1%), the net sales of
Noxzema products in fiscal year 2009 (a positive impact of
2.5%) and the divestiture of the BDM Grange distribution
business in New Zealand (an adverse impact of 0.1%), grew
5.0% during fiscal year 2009.

Earnings from continuing operations were $117.8 million
for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2009 versus $106.0
million in the prior year. Diluted earnings per share from con-
tinuing operations were $1.19 in fiscal year 2009 compared
to $1.05 in fiscal year 2008. In fiscal year 2009, the com-
pany recognized income tax expense related to discrete tax
items which reduced earnings from continuing operations by
$6.8 million and diluted earnings per share from continuing
operations by 7 cents. In addition, restructuring and other ex-
penses in fiscal year 2009 reduced earnings from continuing
operations by $4.2 million and diluted earnings per share from
continuing operations by 4 cents and the company incurred
costs related to a dispute with a supplier which reduced earn-
ings from continuing operations by $1.9 million and diluted
earnings per share from continuing operations by 2 cents. In
fiscal year 2008, discrete tax items decreased earnings from
continuing operations by $8.5 million and diluted earnings
per share from continuing operations by 8 cents, while re-
structuring and other expenses reduced earnings from con-
tinuing operations by $7.2 million and diluted earnings per
share from continuing operations by 8 cents. In addition, in
fiscal year 2008 the company benefited from the reversal of a
contingent liability which increased earnings from continuing
operations by $2.6 million and diluted earnings per share for
continuing operations by 3 cents.
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Net sales for the United States segment in fiscal year 2009
increased 6.3% to $917.0 million from $863.0 million in 2008.
The 2009 sales increase was principally due to higher sales
of TRESemmeé hair care products (3.6%) and Nexxus prod-
ucts (1.1%). In addition, the acquisition of Noxzema in Octo-
ber 2008 added approximately 3.8% to sales for fiscal year
2009. These increases were partially offset by lower sales
from other brands including Alberto VOS5 and St. lves, as well
as certain multicultural brands.

Net sales for the International segment decreased to
$517.0 million in fiscal year 2009 compared to $580.5 mil-
lion in fiscal year 2008. This sales decrease of 10.9% was
attributable to the effect of foreign currency fluctuations
(20.0%), partially offset by higher sales of TRESemmé hair
care products (5.7%) including the effect of the launch in
Spain in the third quarter of 2008 and the Nordic region of
Europe in the fourth quarter of 2009, as well as St. lves (1.2%).
The launch of Nexxus in Canada also contributed to the seg-
ment’s organic growth during the period.

Gross profit decreased $22.1 million or 2.9% to $735.2
million in fiscal year 2009 compared to the prior year. Gross
profit, as a percentage of net sales, was 51.3% for fiscal year
2009 compared to 52.5% for fiscal year 2008. Gross profit in
the United States in fiscal year 2009 increased $15.5 million
or 3.4% from the prior year.

As a percentage of net sales, United States’ gross profit
was 51.3% during fiscal year 2009 compared to 52.7% in
the prior year. The decrease in gross profit margin in the
United States was primarily attributable to higher raw ma-
terial costs due to cost pressures resulting from higher oil
prices, as well as higher prices for other materials such as
tin plate and chemicals, partially offset by favorable product
mix and decreased use of special packaging for promotions.
Gross profit for the International segment decreased $37.6
million or 12.4% in fiscal year 2009 versus the prior year.
As a percentage of net sales, International’s gross profit was
51.2% in fiscal year 2009 compared to 52.1% in the prior
year. The gross profit margin for International was also af-
fected by higher raw material costs, as noted above, as well
as negative effects from foreign currency fluctuations in cer-
tain markets where significant raw material purchases are
made in U.S. dollars. In the International segment, these ef-
fects were partially offset by favorable product mix, driven by
the TRESemmeé launch in Spain in the third quarter of 2008,
decreased use of special packaging for promotions and im-
proved manufacturing efficiencies.

Advertising, marketing, selling and administrative ex-
penses in fiscal year 2009 decreased $39.6 million or 6.8%
compared to the prior year. This overall decrease consists of
lower advertising and marketing expenses (4.4%) and selling
and administrative expenses (2.4%).

Advertising and marketing expenditures decreased 9.6%
to $239.5 million (16.7% of net sales) in fiscal year 2009
compared to $265.0 million (18.4% of net sales) in the
prior year primarily due to the effect of foreign exchange
rates, which accounted for 6.7 percentage points of the de-
crease, the timing of certain brand initiatives, media effi-
ciencies in several markets and a shift to higher trade pro-
motion spending. Advertising and marketing expenditures
in the United States decreased 10.4% in fiscal year 2009
compared to the prior year. The decrease was primarily
due to lower advertising and marketing expenditures for St.
Ives (9.6%) and Alberto VO5 (7.2%) as a result of signifi-
cant expenditures in fiscal year 2008 to support the Ele-
ments and Extreme Styling launches, respectively, partially
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offset by higher advertising and marketing expenditures for
TRESemmeé (3.2%) and Nexxus (1.9%), as well as expendi-
tures in 2009 related to Noxzema (2.7%). Advertising and
marketing expenditures for the International segment de-
creased 8.3% in fiscal year 2009 compared to the prior year,
primarily due to the effect of foreign currency fluctuations
(18.0%), partially offset by higher advertising and market-
ing expenditures for Nexxus (6.4%) to support the launch in
Canada and TRESemmé (6.3%) due in part to the launches
in Spain in the third quarter of 2008 and the Nordic region of
Europe in the fourth quarter of 2009.

Selling and administrative expenses decreased 4.4% to
$305.8 million in fiscal year 2009 from $319.9 million in fiscal
year 2008. Selling and administrative expenses, as a percent-
age of net sales, decreased to 21.3% in fiscal year 2009 from
22.2% in the prior year. Selling and administrative expenses
in the United States increased 0.9% for fiscal year 2009 com-
pared to the prior year. This increase was primarily due to the
effects of the $2.9 million of costs incurred in fiscal year 2009
related to a dispute with a supplier and the $3.9 million of ben-
efit from the reversal of a contingent liability in the prior year.
These increases in selling and administrative expenses were
partially offset by lower selling and freight costs in 2009. In-
ternational’s selling and administrative expenses decreased
12.8% in fiscal year 2009 compared to the prior year primar-
ily due to the effect of foreign currency fluctuations. Selling
and administrative expenses for both reportable segments
were also positively impacted by cost savings initiatives im-
plemented by the company. Stock option expense, which
is included in selling and administrative expenses but is not
allocated to the company’s reportable segments, was $7.8
million in fiscal year 2009 compared to $4.6 million in fiscal
year 2008.

The company recorded net interest income of $2.7 million
in fiscal year 2009 and $9.6 million in the prior year. Interest
income was $3.3 million in fiscal year 2009 and $15.0 million
in fiscal year 2008. The decrease in interest income was prin-
cipally due to significantly lower interest rates in fiscal year
2009 compared to last year. Interest expense was $660,000
and $5.4 million in fiscal years 2009 and 2008, respectively.
The decrease in interest expense is primarily due to the re-
payment of the company’s $120 million of debentures in June
2008.

The provision for income taxes as a percentage of earn-
ings from continuing operations before income taxes was
36.6% and 37.9% in fiscal years 2009 and 2008, respec-
tively. The provision for income taxes in fiscal years 2009
and 2008 includes net expense of $6.8 million and $8.5 mil-
lion, respectively, from discrete tax items. The net discrete tax
items include taxes of approximately $7.1 million and $11.0
million, respectively, related to local currency gains on U.S.
dollar denominated cash equivalents held by Alberto Culver
AB in Sweden following the sale of Cederroth. On October 31,
2008, the remaining proceeds from the Cederroth sale were
transferred to a newly formed, wholly-owned subsidiary in
the Netherlands, and further exchange rate changes with re-
spect to these proceeds are not expected to result in taxable
income for the company. In addition, the effective tax rates
in both 2009 and 2008 reflect discrete tax items related to
reductions in tax contingency reserves for certain foreign en-
tities due to the expiration of statutes of limitations and bene-
fits from changes in certain estimates related to the previous
years’ tax provisions. The net discrete tax items resulted in
3.7 and 5.0 percentage point increases in the effective tax
rates in fiscal years 2009 and 2008, respectively.

AICPA Accounting Trends & Techniques

Comparison of the Years Ended September 30, 2008
and 2007

Net sales for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2008 were
$1.44 billion, an increase of 9.7% over the prior year. Or-
ganic sales, which exclude the effects of foreign currency
fluctuations (a positive impact of 1.0%), grew 8.7% in fiscal
year 2008. Organic sales growth includes the effect of net
sales to Sally Holdings after the November 16, 2006 closing
of the Separation (0.4%). In fiscal year 2007, all transactions
with Sally Holdings prior to November 16, 2006 were consid-
ered intercompany and the elimination of these intercompany
sales is classified as part of continuing operations.

Earnings from continuing operations of $106.0 million in-
creased 46.1% from the prior year’s earnings from contin-
uing operations of $72.6 million. Diluted earnings per share
from continuing operations were $1.05 in fiscal year 2008 and
74 cents in fiscal year 2007. In fiscal year 2008, discrete tax
items decreased earnings from continuing operations by $8.5
million and diluted earnings per share from continuing oper-
ations by 8 cents, while restructuring and other expenses
reduced earnings from continuing operations by $7.2 mil-
lion and diluted earnings per share from continuing opera-
tions by 8 cents. In addition, in fiscal year 2008 the company
benefited from the reversal of a contingent liability which in-
creased earnings from continuing operations by $2.6 million
and diluted earnings per share from continuing operations by
3 cents. In fiscal year 2007, restructuring and other expenses
reduced earnings from continuing operations by $21.8 million
and diluted earnings per share from continuing operations by
22 cents, while discrete tax items increased earnings from
continuing operations by $4.9 million and diluted earnings
per share from continuing operations by 5 cents.

Net sales for the United States segment in fiscal year 2008
increased 5.0% to $863.0 million from $821.6 million in 2007.
The 2008 sales increase was principally due to higher sales
of TRESemmé hair care products (4.3%) and multicultural
brands (0.7 %).

Net sales for the International segment increased to $580.5
million in fiscal year 2008 compared to $498.1 million in
2007. This sales increase of 16.5% was primarily attributable
to higher sales of TRESemmé hair care products (11.0%),
St. Ives products (0.9%) and the effect of foreign currency
fluctuations (2.8%).

Gross profitincreased $84.0 million or 12.5% to $757.3 mil-
lion in fiscal year 2008 compared to fiscal year 2007. Gross
profit, as a percentage of net sales, was 52.5% for fiscal
year 2008 compared to 51.2% for continuing operations in
the prior year. Gross profit in the United States in fiscal year
2008 increased $28.7 million or 6.7% from the prior year. As
a percentage of net sales, United States’ gross profit was
52.7% during fiscal year 2008 compared to 51.9% in 2007.
The gross profit margin improvement in the United States
was primarily attributable to more effective inventory man-
agement and manufacturing efficiencies, partially offset by
higher raw material and other input costs. Gross profit for
the International segment increased $55.3 million or 22.4%
in fiscal year 2008 versus fiscal year 2007. As a percentage
of net sales, International’s gross profit was 52.1% in fiscal
year 2008 compared to 49.6% in the prior year. The increase
in gross profit margin for the International segment was also
due to more effective inventory management and improved
manufacturing efficiencies, partially due to the closures of the
Toronto, Canada and Puerto Rico manufacturing facilities.
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Advertising, marketing, selling and administrative ex-
penses in fiscal year 2008 increased $41.6 million or 7.6%.
This overall increase consists of higher advertising and mar-
keting expenses (3.1%) and selling and administrative ex-
penses (4.5%).

Advertising and marketing expenditures increased 6.9%
to $265.0 million (18.4% of net sales) in 2008 compared to
$247.8 million (18.8% of net sales) in 2007. Advertising and
marketing expenditures in the United States increased 2.1%
in fiscal year 2008 compared to 2007. The increase was pri-
marily due to higher advertising and marketing expenditures
for TRESemmé (8.2%), partially offset by decreased adver-
tising and marketing expenditures for Nexxus (5.1%). Adver-
tising and marketing expenditures for the International seg-
ment increased 16.2% in fiscal year 2008 compared to the
prior year, primarily due to higher advertising and market-
ing expenditures for TRESemmé (14.2%) due in part to the
launch in Spain in the third quarter of 2008, and the effect of
foreign exchange rates (2.5%).

Selling and administrative expenses increased 8.3% to
$319.9 million from $295.5 million in the prior year. Selling
and administrative expenses, as a percentage of net sales,
decreased to 22.2% in fiscal year 2008 from 22.5% in 2007.
Selling and administrative expenses in the United States in-
creased 6.2% for fiscal year 2008 compared to 2007. Interna-
tional’s selling and administrative expenses increased 10.1%
in fiscal year 2008 compared to the prior year. Each of these
increases was primarily due to higher incentive compensa-
tion costs, higher expenditures related to the implementation
of a new worldwide ERP system and costs associated with
the start-up of the company’s Jonesboro, Arkansas manufac-
turing facility. The increase in the United States was partially
offset by the reversal of a $3.9 million contingent liability that
was favorably settled in 2008. Stock option expense, which
is included in selling and administrative expenses but is not
allocated to the company’s reportable segments, was $4.6
million in fiscal year 2008 compared to $3.5 million in 2007.

The company recorded net interest income of $9.6 million
in fiscal year 2008 and $3.9 million in 2007. Interest income
was $15.0 million in fiscal year 2008 and $12.3 million in fiscal
year 2007. The increase in interest income was principally
due to higher cash and investment balances in fiscal year
2008. Interest expense was $5.4 million in fiscal year 2008
and $8.4 million for fiscal year 2007. The decrease in interest
expense is primarily due to the repayment of the company’s
$120 million of debentures in June 2008 and higher interest
capitalization in 2008.

The provision for income taxes as a percentage of earnings
from continuing operations before income taxes was 37.9%
and 28.0% in fiscal years 2008 and 2007, respectively. The
provision for income taxes in fiscal year 2008 includes a net
expense of $8.5 million from discrete tax items, while the
2007 provision is partially offset by a net income tax benefit
of $4.9 million from discrete tax items. In fiscal year 2008, the
net discrete tax items include taxes of approximately $11.0
million related to the local currency gain on U.S. dollar de-
nominated cash held by Alberto Culver AB in Sweden follow-
ing the sale of Cederroth. The effective tax rates in both 2008
and 2007 reflect discrete tax items related to reductions in
income tax accruals for certain foreign entities following the
expiration of various statutes of limitations and benefits from
changes in certain estimates related to previous years’ tax
provisions, as well as other discrete tax items recognized in
each period. The net discrete tax items resulted in a 5.0 per-
centage point increase in the 2008 effective tax rate and a
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4.9 percentage point decrease in the 2007 effective tax rate.
For both fiscal year periods, the effective tax rates were also
affected by the varying tax rates in the jurisdictions in which
the company’s restructuring charges were recorded.

Financial Condition

Working capital at September 30, 2009 was $589.8 million,
a decrease of $8.6 million from working capital of $598.4
million at September 30, 2008. The September 30, 2009 ratio
of current assets to current liabilities of 3.14 to 1.00 increased
from last year end’s ratio of 3.10 to 1.00.

Cash, cash equivalents and investments, including short-
term and long-term, increased $17.0 million to $528.2 million
compared to last fiscal year end, primarily due to cash flows
provided by operating activities ($208.1 million), partially off-
set by payments for acquisitions including the Noxzema busi-
ness ($98.2 million), capital expenditures ($65.2 million) and
cash dividends ($28.5 million). Total investments, including
short-term and long-term, were $58.4 million at September
30, 2009 compared to $65.8 million at September 30, 2008.

Receivables, less allowance for doubtful accounts, de-
creased 6.3% to $229.0 million from $244.3 million at
September 30, 2008 primarily due to the effect of foreign
currency fluctuations and the sale of the company’s sub-
sidiaries in New Zealand, including the BDM Grange distri-
bution business.

Inventories decreased $22.7 million or 15.2% from last fis-
cal year end to $126.8 million, principally due to inventory
reduction initiatives implemented by the company, improved
supply chain management, the sale of the company’s sub-
sidiaries in New Zealand, including the BDM Grange distribu-
tion business, and the effect of foreign currency fluctuations.

Net property, plant and equipment increased $28.2 million
during fiscal year 2009 to $249.9 million at September 30,
2009. The increase resulted primarily from expenditures for
the new Jonesboro, Arkansas manufacturing facility and the
implementation of a new worldwide ERP system, partially
offset by depreciation during the fiscal year as well as the
effect of foreign currency fluctuations.

Goodwill and trade names of $314.0 million increased
$79.9 million compared to last fiscal year end primarily due to
the Noxzema acquisition, additional purchase price recorded
related to the Nexxus acquisition and the acquisition of the
remaining 49% minority interest in the company’s subsidiary
in Chile. These increases were partially offset by the sale of
the company’s subsidiaries in New Zealand, including the
BDM Grange distribution business, and the effect of foreign
currency fluctuations.

Retained earnings increased from $702.4 million at
September 30, 2008 to $792.2 million at September 30, 2009
due to net earnings for fiscal year 2009, partially offset by the
payment of $28.5 million of cash dividends.

Accumulated other comprehensive loss was $58.4 mil-
lion at September 30, 2009 compared to $37.0 million at
September 30, 2008. This change was primarily a result of the
strengthening of the U.S. dollar versus the foreign currencies
in which the company does significant business, particularly
the British pound and Mexican peso.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operating activities was $208.1 mil-
lion and $170.9 million for fiscal years 2009 and 2008,
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respectively. The most significant changes in comparing the
2009 operating cash flows to 2008 include lower inventories
as discussed in the “Financial Condition” section of MD&A,
as well as higher earnings from continuing operations and
improved collections of receivables. Additionally, in Novem-
ber 2008 the company paid a tax obligation in Sweden re-
lated to foreign currency gains on U.S. dollar investments,
which resulted in a cash outflow of $14.1 million. Net cash
provided by operating activities increased by $82.1 million in
fiscal year 2008 from $88.8 million in fiscal year 2007 due to
significantly higher cash flows resulting from increased earn-
ings from continuing operations, as well as an improvement
in cash generated from overall working capital. In addition,
cash flows from operating activities in 2007 were affected by
the payment of significant income tax obligations in connec-
tion with the sale of the corporate airplane and higher pay-
ments in connection with the company’s restructuring plans,
primarily related to severance.

Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities

Net cash used by investing activities was $150.9 million and
$188.0 million for fiscal years 2009 and 2007, respectively.
In fiscal year 2008, net cash provided by investing activities
was $360.0 million. Capital expenditures were $65.2 million,
$64.1 million and $53.8 million in fiscal years 2009, 2008
and 2007, respectively. All three fiscal years were also af-
fected by payments for additional purchase price related to
the Nexxus acquisition, which totaled $7.6 million, $7.1 mil-
lion and $6.3 million in fiscal years 2009, 2008 and 2007,
respectively. Net cash used by investing activities in fiscal
year 2009 included $83.6 million of payments related to the
purchase of the Noxzema business and $7.0 million of pay-
ments related to the purchase of the remaining 49% minority
interest in the company’s subsidiary in Chile. In fiscal year
2009, the company received net cash proceeds of $6.2 mil-
lion from the sale of its New Zealand subsidiaries, including
the BDM Grange distribution business, and made payments
of $3.2 million related to the sale of Cederroth. In addition,
during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2009, one ARS invest-
ment matured and the company received the full par value
of $8.5 million. The net cash provided by investing activi-
ties in fiscal year 2008 includes $234.3 million of proceeds
from the sale of Cederroth, net of direct selling costs incurred
and Cederroth’s ending cash balance that was transferred to
CapMan. In fiscal year 2008, the company also generated
cash of $185.8 million from net sales of investments as the
company liquidated a significant portion of its ARS invest-
ments and transferred the cash to institutional money market
funds and other cash equivalents. Proceeds from disposals
of assets in fiscal year 2008 include $10.7 million related to
the sales of the company’s manufacturing facilities in Toronto,
Canada and Dallas, Texas. In fiscal year 2007, proceeds from
disposals of assets includes $27.4 million related to the sales
of the corporate airplane and the company’s 1/8th interest
in a fractional-ownership of NetJets airplane. Also in fiscal
year 2007, the company had net purchases of investments
of $156.1 million.

Cash Provided (Used) by Financing Activities

Net cash used by financing activities was $27.4 million and
$183.4 million for fiscal years 2009 and 2008, respectively. In
fiscal year 2007, net cash provided by financing activities was
$62.4 million. The company paid cash dividends of $28.5 mil-
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lion, $24.8 million and $16.0 million in fiscal years 2009, 2008
and 2007, respectively. Proceeds from the exercise of stock
options were $3.9 million, $60.5 million and $70.9 million in
fiscal years 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively. In addition,
during fiscal years 2009 and 2008 the company purchased
shares of its common stock in the open market for an ag-
gregate purchase price of $1.4 million and $109.5 million,
respectively. In June 2008, the company repaid its $120 mil-
lion of debentures because all the holders exercised their
one-time put option. Net cash provided (used) by financing
activities was also affected by the excess tax benefit from
stock option exercises and changes in the book cash over-
draft balance in each fiscal year.

Cash dividends paid on common stock were $.29 and $.25
per share in fiscal years 2009 and 2008, respectively. In con-
nection with the Separation, the company’s shareholders re-
ceived a $25.00 per share special cash dividend for each
share of common stock owned as of November 16, 2006.
This special cash dividend in 2007 is included in net cash
used by financing activities of discontinued operations. In
addition to the special cash dividend, the company paid cash
dividends on common stock of $.165 per share in fiscal year
2007.

At September 30, 2009, the company has ARS invest-
ments with a total par value of $61.3 million. All of these
investments represent interests in pools of student loans and
have AAA/Aaa credit ratings. In addition, all of these securi-
ties carry an indirect guarantee by the U.S. federal govern-
ment of at least 97% of the par value through the Federal
Family Education Loan Program (FFELP). However, starting
in the second quarter of fiscal year 2008, each of the com-
pany’s remaining ARS investments has experienced multiple
failed auctions. During fiscal year 2009, the company did
not redeem any ARS investments as a result of successful
auctions as all auctions for the company’s remaining ARS in-
vestments continued to fail during the period. In addition, the
company did not recognize any realized gains or losses from
the sale of ARS investments in its statement of earnings.
During the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2009, one security
matured and the company received the full par value of $8.5
million. The company has recorded these remaining invest-
ments on its consolidated balance sheet at an estimated fair
value of $58.4 million and recorded an unrealized loss of $2.9
million in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss),
reflecting the decline in the estimated fair value. All of the
company’s outstanding ARS investments have been classi-
fied as long-term on the September 30, 2009 balance sheet
as the company cannot be certain that they will settle within
the next twelve months. The company’s outstanding ARS in-
vestments have scheduled maturities ranging from 2029 to
2042. It is currently management’s intent to hold these in-
vestments until the company is able to recover the full par
value, either through issuer calls, refinancings or other re-
funding initiatives, the recovery of the auction market or the
emergence of a new secondary market. Management’s as-
sumption used in the current fair value estimates is that this
will occur within the next three years.

The company anticipates that its cash and cash equiv-
alents balance of $469.8 million as of September 30,
2009, along with cash flows from operations and avail-
able credit, will be sufficient to fund operating requirements
in future years. During fiscal year 2010, the company ex-
pects that cash will continue to be used for capital ex-
penditures, new product development, market expansion,
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dividend payments, payments related to restructuring plans
and, if applicable, acquisitions. In addition, in the first quarter
of fiscal year 2010 (through November 23, 2009) the com-
pany has purchased 494,131 shares of common stock in the
open market for an aggregate purchase price of $13.5 million.
The company may continue to purchase additional shares of
its common stock in fiscal year 2010 depending on market
conditions.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2009, the com-
pany purchased 54,339 shares of common stock in the open
market for an aggregate purchase price of $1.4 million. At
September 30, 2009, the company has authorization remain-
ing to purchase a total of 5,779,879 shares. On November
12, 2006, the board of directors authorized the company to
purchase up to 5 million shares of common stock. During the
third and fourth quarters of fiscal year 2008, the company pur-
chased 4,165,782 common shares in the open market under
this authorization for an aggregate purchase price of $109.5
million. On July 24, 2008, the board of directors authorized
the company to purchase an additional 5 million shares of
common stock.

In the past, the company has obtained long-term financ-
ing as needed to fund acquisitions and other growth oppor-
tunities. Funds may be obtained prior to their actual need
in order to take advantage of opportunities in the debt mar-
kets. The company has a $300 million revolving credit facility
which expires November 13, 2011. There were no borrow-
ings outstanding on the revolving credit facility at September
30, 2009 or 2008. The facility may be drawn in U.S. dollars or
certain foreign currencies. Under debt covenants, the com-
pany has sufficient flexibility to incur additional borrowings
as needed. The current facility includes a covenant that lim-
its the company’s ability to purchase its common stock or
pay dividends if the cumulative stock repurchases plus cash
dividends exceeds $250 million plus 50% of “consolidated
net income” (as defined in the credit agreement) commenc-
ing January 1, 2007.

The company is in compliance with the covenants and
other requirements of its revolving credit agreement. Ad-
ditionally, the revolving credit agreement does not include
credit rating triggers or subjective clauses that would accel-
erate maturity dates.

The following table is a summary of contractual cash obli-
gations and commitments outstanding by future payment
dates at September 30, 2009:

Payments Due by Period
Less Than More Than

(In thousands) 1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years 5 Years Total
Long-term debt, including capital lease and

interest obligations $ 214 $ 383 $ 89 $ — $ 686
Operating leases!" 7,361 11,870 3,524 1,065 23,820
Other long-term obligations® 9,997 3,440 1,459 21,665 36,561
Total $17,572 $15,693 $5,072 $22,730 $61,067

M In accordance with GAAP, these obligations are not reflected in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

@

) Other long-term obligations principally represent commitments under various deferred compensation arrangements, as well as commitments

under the company’s restructuring plans. These obligations are included in accrued expenses and other liabilities in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets. The above amounts do not include additional consideration of up to $29.0 million that may be paid over the
next six years based on a percentage of sales of Nexxus branded products in accordance with the Nexxus purchase agreement. The above
amounts also do not include the company’s $11.4 million liability for unrecognized tax benefits, as management is unable to reliably estimate

the timing of the expected payments for these obligations.

Off-Balance Sheet Financing Arrangements

At September 30, 2009 and 2008, the company had no off-
balance sheet financing arrangements other than operating
leases incurred in the ordinary course of business as dis-
closed in note 12 to the consolidated financial statements
and outstanding standby letters of credit primarily related to
various insurance programs which totaled $14.4 million and
$18.9 million, respectively, at September 30, 2009 and 2008.
The company does not have significant other unconditional
purchase obligations or commercial commitments.

Inflation

The company was not significantly affected by inflation dur-
ing the past three years. Management attempts to counteract
the effects of inflation through productivity improvements,
cost reduction programs, price increases and the introduc-
tion of higher margin products within the constraints of the
highly competitive markets in which the company operates.

ATT-SEC 1.14

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

As a multinational corporation that manufactures and mar-
kets products in countries throughout the world, the com-
pany is subject to certain market risks including foreign cur-
rency fluctuations, interest rates and government actions.
The company considers a variety of practices to manage
these market risks, including, when deemed appropriate, the
use of derivative financial instruments. The company uses
derivative financial instruments only for risk management and
does not use them for trading or speculative purposes. The
company only enters into derivative instruments with highly
rated counterparties based in the United States, and does
not believe that it has significant counterparty credit risk with
regard to its current arrangements.

The company is exposed to potential gains or losses
from foreign currency fluctuations affecting net investments
and earnings denominated in foreign currencies. The com-
pany’s primary exposures are to changes in exchange rates
for the U.S. dollar versus the British pound, Canadian dol-
lar, Euro, Australian dollar, Mexican peso, Argentine peso,
Chilean peso and South African rand. The company’s various
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currency exposures at times offset each other providing a
natural hedge against currency risk.

Starting in the second quarter of fiscal year 2009, certain of
the company’s foreign subsidiaries entered into foreign cur-
rency forward contracts in an attempt to minimize the impact
of short-term currency fluctuations on the forecasted sales
and inventory purchases denominated in currencies other
than their functional currencies. These contracts are desig-
nated as cash flow hedging instruments in accordance with
FASB ASC Topic 815, “Derivatives and Hedging.” As a result,
unrealized gains and losses on these contracts are recorded
to accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) until the
underlying hedged items are recognized through operations.
The ineffective portion of a contract’s change in fair value is
immediately recognized through operations. At September
30, 2009, the notional amount of these outstanding foreign
currency forward contracts in U.S. dollars was $30.2 mil-
lion and the contracts settle or mature within the next twelve
months.

In addition, starting in the second quarter of fiscal year
2009, certain of the company’s foreign subsidiaries entered
into a series of foreign currency forward contracts to hedge
their net balance sheet exposure for amounts designated in
currencies other than their functional currencies. These con-
tracts are not designated as hedging instruments and there-
fore do not qualify for hedge accounting treatment under
FASB ASC Topic 815. As a result, gains and losses on these
contracts are recorded directly to the statement of earnings
and serve to offset the related exchange gains or losses on
the underlying exposures. At September 30, 2009, the no-
tional amount of these outstanding foreign currency forward
contracts in U.S. dollars was $43.7 million and the contracts
settle or mature within the next two months.

The foreign currency relationships covered by these foreign
currency forward contracts are principally the British pound
and Euro, the British pound and Swedish krona, the Mexican
peso and U.S. dollar, the Canadian dollar and the U.S. dollar
and the Chilean peso and U.S. dollar.

In May 2008, in connection with entering into an agree-
ment to sell its Cederroth business, the company entered
into a deal contingent forward contract to sell the Euros it
expected to receive in exchange for U.S. dollars. In connec-
tion with the closing of the transaction on July 31, 2008, the
company recognized a pre-tax loss of $5.1 million related to
the settlement of the forward contract which partially offset
the gain on the sale of Cederroth in discontinued operations.

The company considers combinations of fixed rate and
variable rate debt, along with varying maturities, in its man-
agement of interest rate risk. At September 30, 2009, the
company had no long-term debt outstanding other than cap-
ital lease obligations.

The company has occasionally used interest rate swaps
to manage interest rate risk on debt securities. These instru-
ments allow the company to exchange fixed rate debt into
variable rate or variable rate debt into fixed rate. Interest rate
differentials paid or received on these arrangements are rec-
ognized as adjustments to interest expense over the life of
the agreement. At September 30, 2009, the company had no
interest rate swaps outstanding.

The company is exposed to credit risk on certain assets,
primarily cash equivalents, investments and accounts receiv-
able. The credit risk associated with cash equivalents and in-
vestments is mitigated by the company’s policy of investing
in a diversified portfolio of securities with high credit ratings.
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The company’s investments in ARS are discussed further in
the “Overview—Auction Rate Securities” section of MD&A.

The company provides credit to customers in the ordinary
course of business and performs ongoing credit evaluations.
The company’s exposure to concentrations of credit risk with
respect to trade receivables is mitigated by the company’s
broad customer base. The company’s largest customer,
Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. and its affiliated companies, accounted
for approximately 25% of net sales during fiscal year 2009
and 24% during fiscal years 2008 and 2007. The company
believes its allowance for doubtful accounts is sufficient to
cover customer credit risks.

New Accounting Pronouncement

In December, 2007, the FASB issued new accounting guid-
ance on business combinations. The new guidance, which is
included in FASB ASC Topic 805 “Business Combinations,”
significantly changes the accounting for business combina-
tions in a number of areas including the treatment of contin-
gent consideration, preacquisition contingencies and trans-
action costs. In addition, FASB ASC Topic 805 also requires
certain financial statement disclosures to enable users to
evaluate and understand the nature and financial effects
of the business combination. The new provisions of FASB
ASC Topic 805 are effective for fiscal years beginning af-
ter December 15, 2008 and earlier application is prohibited.
Accordingly, the company will apply these new provisions
prospectively to business combinations that are consum-
mated beginning in the first quarter of fiscal year 2010.

Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
GAAP requires management to make estimates and assump-
tions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
revenues and expenses in the financial statements. Actual re-
sults may differ from these estimates. Management believes
these estimates and assumptions are reasonable.

Accounting policies are considered critical when they re-
quire management to make assumptions about matters that
are highly uncertain at the time the accounting estimate is
made and when different estimates that management rea-
sonably could have used have a material impact on the pre-
sentation of the company’s financial condition, changes in
financial condition or results of operations.

The company’s critical accounting policies relate to the
calculation and treatment of sales incentives, allowance for
doubtful accounts, valuation of inventories, income taxes,
stock-based compensation and goodwill impairment.

Sales Incentives

Sales incentives primarily include consumer coupons and
trade promotion activities such as advertising allowances,
off-shelf displays, customer specific coupons, new item dis-
tribution allowances, and temporary price reductions. The
company records accruals for sales incentives based on es-
timates of the ultimate cost of each program. The company
tracks its commitments for sales incentive programs and,
using historical experience, records an accrual at the end of
each period for the estimated incurred, but unpaid costs of
these programs. Actual costs differing from estimated costs
could significantly affect these estimates and the related ac-
cruals. For example, if the company’s estimate of incurred,
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but unpaid costs was to change by 10%, the impact to the
sales incentive accrual as of September 30, 2009 would be
approximately $4.5 million.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The allowance for doubtful accounts requires management
to estimate future collections of trade accounts receiv-
able. Management records allowances for doubtful accounts
based on historical collection statistics and current customer
credit information. These estimates could be significantly af-
fected as a result of actual collections differing from histori-
cal statistics or changes in a customer’s credit status. As of
September 30, 2009, the company’s allowance for doubtful
accounts was $2.0 million.

Valuation of Inventories

When necessary, the company provides allowances to adjust
the carrying value of inventories to the lower of cost or mar-
ket, including costs to sell or dispose. Estimates of the future
demand for the company’s products, anticipated product re-
launches, changes in formulas and packaging and reductions
in stock-keeping units are among the factors used by man-
agement in assessing the net realizable value of inventories.
Actual results differing from these estimates could signifi-
cantly affect the company’s inventories and cost of products
sold. As of September 30, 2009, the company’s inventory
allowances were $8.9 million.

Income Taxes

The company records tax provisions in its consolidated fi-
nancial statements based on an estimation of current income
tax liabilities. The development of these provisions requires
judgments about tax issues, potential outcomes and timing.

The company’s liability for unrecognized tax benefits at
September 30, 2009 was $11.4 million, of which $5.8 million
represented tax benefits that, if recognized, would favorably
impact the effective tax rates for either continuing or discon-
tinued operations.

The company recognizes accrued interest and penalties
related to unrecognized tax benefits as a component of the
income tax provision in the consolidated statements of earn-
ings. At September 30, 2009, the company’s long-term in-
come tax liabilities include accrued interest and penalties of
$1.5 million. The total amount of interest and penalties rec-
ognized in the consolidated statement of earnings for fiscal
year 2009 was $272,000.

The company files a consolidated U.S. federal income tax
return, as well as income tax returns in various states and for-
eign jurisdictions. With some exceptions, the company is no
longer subject to examinations by tax authorities in the United
States for fiscal years ending before 2006 and in its major in-
ternational markets for fiscal years ending before 2002.

In the next twelve months, the company’s effective tax rate
and the amount of unrecognized tax benefits could be af-
fected positively or negatively by the resolution of ongoing
tax audits and the expiration of certain statutes of limitations.
The company is unable to project the potential range of tax
impacts at this time.

Deferred income taxes are recognized for the future tax
consequences attributable to differences between the finan-
cial statement carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and
their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
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are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to
taxable income in the years in which temporary differences
are estimated to be recovered or settled. Management be-
lieves that it is more likely than not that results of future op-
erations will generate sufficient taxable income to realize the
company’s deferred tax assets, net of the valuation allowance
currently recorded. In the future, if the company determines
that certain deferred tax assets will not be realizable, the re-
lated adjustments could significantly affect the company’s
effective tax rate at that time.

Stock-Based Compensation

The company recognizes compensation expense for stock
options on a straight-line basis over the vesting period or
to the date a participant becomes eligible for retirement, if
earlier. The company recorded stock option expense in fiscal
year 2009 of $7.8 million related to continuing operations.
At September 30, 2009, the company had $11.2 million of
unrecognized compensation cost related to stock options
that will be recorded over a weighted average period of 2.3
years. The fair value of each stock option grant was estimated
on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing
model with the following assumptions:

2009
Expected life 3.5-4 years
Expected volatility 30.8%
Risk-free interest rate 1.4%—2.5%
Dividend yield 1.0%

The expected life of stock options represents the period of
time that the stock options granted are expected to be out-
standing. The company estimates the expected life based
on historical exercise trends. The company estimates ex-
pected volatility based primarily on the historical volatility of
the company’s common stock. For stock option grants fol-
lowing the Separation, the company’s estimate of expected
volatility also takes into consideration the company’s implied
volatility and the historical volatility of a group of peer com-
panies. The estimate of the risk-free interest rate is based
on the U.S. Treasury rate for the expected life of the stock
options. The dividend yield represents the company’s an-
ticipated cash dividend over the expected life of the stock
options. The amount of stock option expense recorded is sig-
nificantly affected by these estimates. Changes in the com-
pany’s estimates and assumptions used in the option pric-
ing model would impact the fair value of future stock option
grants but not those previously issued.

The weighted average grant date fair value of stock options
granted to employees in fiscal year 2009 was $6.87. A one
year increase in the expected life assumption would result in
a higher weighted average fair value by approximately 11%
for fiscal year 2009. A 1% increase in the expected volatility
assumption would result in a higher weighted average fair
value by approximately 3% for fiscal year 2009.

In addition, the company records stock option expense
based on an estimate of the total number of stock options
expected to vest, which requires the company to estimate
future forfeitures. The company uses historical forfeiture ex-
perience as a basis for this estimate. Actual forfeitures differ-
ing from these estimates could significantly affect the timing
of the recognition of stock option expense. During fiscal year
2009, the company has not recorded significant adjustments
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to stock option expense as a result of adjustments to esti-
mated forfeiture rates.

Goodwill Impairment

In accordance with FASB ASC Topic 350, “Intangibles—
Goodwill and Other,” the company’s goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if significant events or
changes indicate possible impairment. The company’s policy
is to perform the annual goodwill impairment analysis during
the second quarter of each fiscal year. Goodwill is evaluated
using a two-step impairment test for each of the company’s
reporting units, as defined in FASB ASC Topic 350. The first
step compares the carrying value of a reporting unit, includ-
ing goodwill, with its fair value, which is generally estimated
based on the company’s best estimate of the present value
of expected future cash flows. If the carrying value of a re-
porting unit exceeds its estimated fair value, the company
would be required to complete the second step of the analy-
sis. This step requires management to allocate the estimated
fair value of the reporting unit to all of the assets and liabili-
ties other than goodwill in order to determine an implied fair
value of the reporting unit’s goodwill. The amount of impair-
ment loss to be recorded, if any, would be equal to the excess
of the carrying value of the goodwill over its implied fair value.

The determination of the fair value of the company’s re-
porting units requires management to consider changes in
economic conditions and other factors to make assumptions
regarding estimated future cash flows and long-term growth
rates. These assumptions are highly subjective judgments
based on the company’s experience and knowledge of its
operations, are based on the best available market informa-
tion and are consistent with the company’s internal forecasts
and operating plans. These estimates can be significantly
impacted by many factors including competition, changes
in U.S. or global economic conditions, increasing operat-
ing costs and inflation rates and other factors discussed in
the “Forward—Looking Statements” and “Risk Factors” sec-
tions of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. If the company’s
estimates or underlying assumptions change in the future,
the company may be required to record goodwill impairment
charges.

The company’s annual goodwill impairment analysis com-
pleted in the second quarter of fiscal year 2009 resulted in no
impairment. As of September 30, 2009, the company’s total
goodwill balance was $224.3 million.

Reconciliation of Non-GAAP Financial Measures

A reconciliation of “organic sales growth” to its most di-
rectly comparable financial measure under GAAP for the fis-
cal years ended September 30, 2009 and 2008 is as follows:

2009 2008
Net sales growth (decline), as reported 0.7)% 9.7%
Effect of foreign currency fluctuations 8.1 (1.0)
Effect of acquisition (2.5) —
Effect of divestiture 0.1 —
Organic sales growth 5.0% 8.7%
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Forward-Looking Information Excerpt
1.15
AT&T INC. (DEC)

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Information set forth in this report contains forward-looking
statements that are subject to risks and uncertainties, and ac-
tual results could differ materially. Many of these factors are
discussed in more detail in the “Risk Factors” section. We
claim the protection of the safe harbor for forward-looking
statements provided by the Private Securities Litigation Re-
form Act of 1995.

The following factors could cause our future results to dif-
fer materially from those expressed in the forward-looking
statements:

¢ Adverse economic and/or capital access changesin the
markets served by us or in countries in which we have
significant investments, including the impact on cus-
tomer demand and our ability and our suppliers’ ability
to access financial markets.

e Changes in available technology and the effects of such
changes, including product substitutions and deploy-
ment costs.

e Increases in our benefit plans’ costs, including in-
creases due to adverse changes in the U.S. and foreign
securities markets, resulting in worse-than-assumed in-
vestment returns and discount rates, and adverse med-
ical cost trends and unfavorable health care legislation
and regulations.

e The final outcome of Federal Communications Com-
mission and other federal agency proceedings and re-
openings of such proceedings and judicial review, if any,
of such proceedings, including issues relating to access
charges, broadband deployment, E911 services, com-
petition, net neutrality, unbundled loop and transport
elements, wireless license awards and renewals and
wireless services.

e The final outcome of regulatory proceedings in the
states in which we operate and reopenings of such
proceedings and judicial review, if any, of such proceed-
ings, including proceedings relating to Interconnec-
tion terms, access charges, universal service, unbun-
dled network elements and resale and wholesale rates,
broadband deployment including our U-verse services,
net neutrality, performance measurement plans, service
standards and traffic compensation.

e Enactment of additional state, federal and/or foreign
regulatory and tax laws and regulations pertaining to
our subsidiaries and foreign investments, including
laws and regulations that reduce our incentive to in-
vest in our networks, resulting in lower revenue growth
and/or higher operating costs.

e QOur ability to absorb revenue losses caused by increas-
ing competition, including offerings that use alternative
technologies (e.g., cable, wireless and VoIP) and our
ability to maintain capital expenditures.

e The extent of competition and the resulting pressure on
access line totals and wireline and wireless operating
margins.
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e Qur ability to develop attractive and profitable prod-
uct/service offerings to offset increasing competition in
our wireless and wireline markets.

e The ability of our competitors to offer product/service
offerings at lower prices due to lower cost structures
and regulatory and legislative actions adverse to us,
including state regulatory proceedings relating to un-
bundled network elements and nonregulation of com-
parable alternative technologies (e.g., VoIP).

e The timing, extent and cost of deployment of our U-
verse services; the development of attractive and prof-
itable service offerings; the extent to which regulatory,
franchise fees and build-out requirements apply to this
initiative; and the availability, cost and/or reliability of the
various technologies and/or content required to provide
such offerings.

e Qur continued ability to attract and offer a diverse port-
folio of devices, some on an exclusive basis.

e The availability and cost of additional wireless spectrum
and regulations relating to licensing and technical stan-
dards and deployment and usage, including network
management rules.

e Qur ability to manage growth in wireless data services,
including network quality.

e The outcome of pending or threatened litigation, includ-
ing patent and product safety claims by or against third
parties.

e The impact on our networks and business of ma-
jor equipment failures, our inability to obtain equip-
ment/software or have equipment/software serviced in
a timely and cost-effective manner from suppliers, se-
vere weather conditions, natural disasters, pandemics
or terrorist attacks.

e Qur ability to successfully negotiate new collective bar-
gaining contracts and the terms of those contracts.

e The issuance by the Financial Accounting Standards
Board or other accounting oversight bodies of new ac-
counting standards or changes to existing standards.

e The issuance by the Internal Revenue Service and/or
state tax authorities of new tax regulations or changes
to existing standards and actions by federal, state or
local tax agencies and judicial authorities with respect
to applying applicable tax laws and regulations and the
resolution of disputes with any taxing jurisdictions.

e Our ability to adequately fund our wireless operations,
including payment for additional spectrum; network up-
grades and technological advancements.

e Changes in our corporate strategies, such as chang-
ing network requirements or acquisitions and disposi-
tions, to respond to competition and regulatory, legisla-
tive and technological developments.

Readers are cautioned that other factors discussed in this
report, although not enumerated here, also could materially
affect our future earnings.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources Excerpt
1.16
HESS CORPORATION (DEC)

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The following table sets forth certain relevant measures
of the Corporation’s liquidity and capital resources as of
December 31:

(Millions of dollars) 2009 2008
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,362 $ 908
Current portion of long-term debt $ 148 $ 143
Total debt $ 4,467 $ 3,955
Total equity $13,528 $12,391
Debt to capitalization ratio* 24.8% 24.2%

* Total debt as a percentage of the sum of total debt plus equity.

Cash Flows
The following table sets forth a summary of the Corporation’s
cash flows:

(Millions of dollars) 2009 2008 2007

Net cash provided by (used in):
Operating activities

$3,046 $4688 $3,627

Investing activities (2,924)  (4,444) (3,474)
Financing activities 332 57 71
Net increase in cash and cash

equivalents § 454 § 301 § 224
Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operating activities, including changes
in operating assets and liabilities, was $3,046 million in 2009
compared with $4,688 million in 2008, reflecting lower earn-
ings. Operating cash flow increased to $4,688 million in 2008
from $3,627 million in 2007, primarily reflecting increased
earnings. The Corporation received cash distributions from
HOVENSA of $50 million in 2008 and $300 million in 2007.

Investing Activities

The following table summarizes the Corporation’s capital
expenditures:

(Millions of dollars) 2009 2008 2007
Exploration and production
Exploration $ 611 § 744 § 371
Production and development 1,927 2,523 2,605
Acquisitions (including leaseholds) 262 984 462
2,800 4,251 3,438
Marketing, refining and corporate 118 187 140
Total $2,918  $4,438  $3,578
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Capital expenditures in 2009 include acquisitions of $188
million for unproved leaseholds and $74 million for a 50%
interest in blocks PM301 and PM302 in Malaysia, which are
adjacent to Block A-18 of the JDA. Capital expenditures in
2008 include $600 million for leasehold acquisitions in the
United States and $210 million for the acquisition of the re-
maining 22.5% interest in the Corporation’s Gabonese sub-
sidiary. In 2008, the Corporation also selectively expanded
its energy marketing business by acquiring fuel oil, natural
gas, and electricity customer accounts, and a terminal and
related assets, for an aggregate of approximately $100 mil-
lion. In 2007, capital expenditures include the acquisition of
a 28% interest in the Genghis Khan Field in the deepwater
Gulf of Mexico for $371 million.

In 2007, the Corporation received proceeds of $93 million
for the sale of its interests in the Scott and Telford fields lo-
cated in the United Kingdom.

Financing Activities

During 2009, net proceeds from borrowings were $447 mil-
lion. In February 2009, the Corporation issued $250 million
of 5 year senior unsecured notes with a coupon of 7% and
$1 billion of 10 year senior unsecured notes with a coupon
of 8.125%. The majority of the proceeds were used to repay
debt under the revolving credit facility and outstanding bor-
rowings on other credit facilities. In December 2009, the Cor-
poration issued $750 million of 30 year bonds with a coupon
of 6% and tendered for the $662 million of bonds due in
August 2011. The Corporation completed the repurchase of
$546 million of the 2011 bonds in December 2009. The re-
maining $116 million of 2011 bonds, classified as Current
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maturities of long term debt at December 31, 2009, was re-
deemed in January 2010, resulting in a charge of approx-
imately $11 million ($7 million after income taxes). During
2008, net repayments of debt were $32 million, compared
with net borrowings of $208 million in 2007.

Total common stock dividends paid were $131 million,
$130 million and $127 million in 2009, 2008 and 2007, re-
spectively. The Corporation received net proceeds from the
exercise of stock options, including related income tax ben-
efits, of $18 million, $340 million and $111 million in 2009,
2008 and 2007, respectively.

Future Capital Requirements and Resources

The Corporation anticipates investing a total of approxi-
mately $4.1 billion in capital and exploratory expenditures
during 2010, substantially all of which is targeted for E&P
operations. In the Corporation’s M&R operations, refining
margins are currently weak, which have adversely affected
HOVENSA's liquidity position. The Corporation intends to
provide its share of any necessary financial support for
HOVENSA. The Corporation expects to fund its 2010 op-
erations, including capital expenditures, dividends, pension
contributions and required debt repayments and any nec-
essary financial support for HOVENSA, with existing cash
on-hand, cash flow from operations and its available credit
facilities. Crude oil prices, natural gas prices and refining
margins are volatile and difficult to predict. In addition, un-
planned increases in the Corporation’s capital expenditure
program could occur. If conditions were to change, such as
a significant decrease in commaodity prices or an unexpected
increase in capital expenditures, the Corporation would take
steps to protect its financial flexibility and may pursue other
sources of liquidity, including the issuance of debt securities,
the issuance of equity securities, and/or asset sales.

The table below summarizes the capacity, usage, and
available capacity of the Corporation’s borrowing and letter
of credit facilities at December 31, 2009 (in millions):

Expiration Letters of Available

Date Capacity Borrowings Credit Issued Total Used Capacity

Revolving credit facility May 2012 $3,000 $— $ — $ — $3,000
Asset backed credit facility July 2010®) 4 — 500 500 241
Committed lines Various®© 2,115 — 1,155 1,155 960
Uncommitted lines Various© 1,192 — 1,192 1,192 —
Total $7,048 $— $2,847 $2,847 $4,201

@ $75 million expires in May 2011.

®) Total capacity of $1.0 billion subject to the amount of eligible receivables posted as collateral.
(© Committed and uncommitted lines have expiration dates primarily through 2010.

The Corporation maintains a $3.0 billion syndicated, revolv-
ing credit facility (the facility), of which $2,925 million is com-
mitted through May 2012. The facility can be used for bor-
rowings and letters of credit. At December 31, 2009, available
capacity under the facility was $3.0 billion. The Corporation
has a 364 day asset-backed credit facility securitized by cer-
tain accounts receivable from its M&R operations. At Decem-
ber 31, 2009, under the terms of this financing arrangement,
the Corporation has the ability to borrow or issue letters of
credit of up to $1.0 billion, subject to the availability of suf-
ficient levels of eligible receivables. At December 31, 2009,
outstanding letters of credit under this facility were collat-
eralized by a total of $1,326 million of accounts receivable,
which are held by a wholly owned subsidiary. These receiv-
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ables are only available to pay the general obligations of the
Corporation after satisfaction of the outstanding obligations
under the asset backed facility.

The Corporation also has a shelf registration under which
it may issue additional debt securities, warrants, common
stock or preferred stock.

A loan agreement covenant based on the Corporation’s
debt to capitalization ratio allows the Corporation to borrow
up to an additional $18.1 billion for the construction or ac-
quisition of assets at December 31, 2009. The Corporation
has the ability to borrow up to an additional $3.7 billion of se-
cured debt at December 31, 2009 under the loan agreement
covenants.

ATT-SEC 1.16
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The Corporation’s $2,847 million in letters of credit out-
standing at December 31, 2009 were primarily issued to sat-
isfy margin requirements. See also Note 14, Risk Manage-
ment and Trading Activities.

Credit Ratings

There are three major credit rating agencies that rate the Cor-
poration’s debt. All three agencies have currently assigned an
investment grade rating to the Corporation’s debt. The inter-
est rates and facility fees charged on some of the Corpora-
tion’s credit facilities, as well as margin requirements from
risk management and trading counterparties, are subject to
adjustment if the Corporation’s credit rating changes.

Contractual Obligations and Contingencies

Following is a table showing aggregated information about
certain contractual obligations at December 31, 2009:

Accounting Trends & Techniques

Payments Due by Period
2011 and 2013 and

(Millions of dollars) Total 2010 2012 2014 Thereafter
Long-term debt(" $ 4,467 $ 148 $ 66 $ 370 $3,883
Operating leases 3,282 482 695 677 1,428
Purchase obligations

Supply commitments'? 37,870 13,158 12,546 12,118 48
Capital expenditures 939 745 191 2 1
Operating expenses 937 457 276 70 134
Other long-term liabilities $ 2,095 $ 145 $ 366 $ 199 $1,385

() At December 31, 2009, the Corporation’s debt bears interest at a weighted average rate of 7.3%.
@ The Corporation intends to continue purchasing refined product supply from HOVENSA. Estimated future purchases amount to approximately
$6.0 billion annually using year-end 2009 prices, which have been included in the table through 2014.

In the preceding table, the Corporation’s supply commit-
ments include its estimated purchases of 50% of HOVENSA's
production of refined products, after anticipated sales by
HOVENSA to unaffiliated parties. The value of future supply
commitments will fluctuate based on prevailing market prices
at the time of purchase, the actual output from HOVENSA,
and the level of sales to unaffiliated parties. Also included
are term purchase agreements at market prices for addi-
tional gasoline necessary to supply the Corporation’s retail
marketing system and feedstocks for the Port Reading refin-
ing facility. In addition, the Corporation has commitments to
purchase refined products, natural gas and electricity to sup-
ply contracted customers in its energy marketing business.
These commitments were computed based predominately
on year-end market prices.

The table also reflects future capital expenditures, includ-
ing the portion of the Corporation’s planned $4.1 billion
capital investment program for 2010 that is contractually
committed at December 31, 2009. Obligations for operat-
ing expenses include commitments for transportation, seis-
mic purchases, oil and gas production expenses and other
normal business expenses. Other long-term liabilities reflect
contractually committed obligations on the balance sheet at
December 31, 2009, including asset retirement obligations,
pension plan liabilities and anticipated obligations for uncer-
tain income tax positions.

The Corporation and certain of its subsidiaries lease gaso-
line stations, drilling rigs, tankers, office space and other
assets for varying periods under leases accounted for as
operating leases. The Corporation entered into a lease agree-
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ment for a new drillship and related support services for use
in its global deepwater exploration and development activ-
ities. The total payments under this five year contract are
expected to be approximately $950 million. The Corporation
took delivery of the drillship in the fourth quarter of 2009.

The Corporation has a contingent purchase obligation,
expiring in April 2012, to acquire the remaining interest in
WilcoHess, a retail gasoline station joint venture, for approx-
imately $184 million as of December 31, 2009.

The Corporation guarantees the payment of up to 50%
of HOVENSA'’s crude oil purchases from certain suppliers
other than PDVSA. The amount of the Corporation’s guaran-
tee fluctuates based on the volume of crude oil purchased
and related prices and at December 31, 2009 it amounted
to $121 million. In addition, the Corporation has agreed to
provide funding up to a maximum of $15 million to the ex-
tent HOVENSA does not have funds to meet its senior debt
obligations.

The Corporation is contingently liable under letters of credit
and under guarantees of the debt of other entities directly
related to its business at December 31, 2009 as shown
below:

(Millions of dollars) Total
Letters of credit $100
Guarantees 136

$236
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

The Corporation has leveraged leases not included in its bal-
ance sheet, primarily related to retail gasoline stations that
the Corporation operates. The net present value of these
leases is $412 million at December 31, 2009 compared with
$491 million at December 31, 2008. The Corporation’s De-
cember 31, 2009 debt to capitalization ratio would increase
from 24.8% to 26.5% if these leases were included as debt.

New Accounting Standards Excerpt
1.17
OLIN CORPORATION (DEC)

NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In January 2010, the FASB issued Accounting Standards
Update (ASU) 2010-06 “Improving Disclosures About Fair
Value Measurements” (ASU 2010-06), which amends ASC
820 “Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures” (ASC 820).
This update adds new fair value disclosure requirements
about transfers into and out of Level 1 and 2 and separate dis-
closures about purchases, sales, issuances, and settlements
related to Level 3 measurements. This update expands dis-
closures on valuation techniques and inputs used to measure
fair value. This update is effective for fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 2009, except for the requirement to pro-
vide the Level 3 activity of purchases, sales, issuances, and
settlements, which will be effective for fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 2010. We will adopt the provisions of ASU
2010-06 in 2010, except for the requirement to provide the
additional Level 3 activity, which will be adopted in 2011. This
update will require additional disclosure in our first quarter
2010 condensed financial statements. The adoption of this
update will not have a material effect on our consolidated
financial statements.

In July 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No. 168, “The FASB
Accounting Standards Codification™ and the Hierarchy of
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles,” (the Codifica-
tion), which was incorporated into ASC 105 “Generally Ac-
cepted Accounting Principles” (ASC 105). The Codification
will be the single source of authoritative U.S. generally ac-
cepted accounting principles. The Codification does not
change generally accepted accounting principles, but is in-
tended to make it easier to find and research issues. The
Codification introduces a new structure that takes account-
ing pronouncements and organizes them by approximately
90 accounting topics. The Codification was effective for in-
terim and fiscal years ending after September 15, 2009. We
adopted the Codification on July 1, 2009. The adoption of this
statement did not have a material effect on our consolidated
financial statements but changed our reference to generally
accepted accounting principles beginning in the third quarter
of 2009.

In June 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No. 166, “Account-
ing for Transfers of Financial Assets” (SFAS No. 166), which
was incorporated into ASC 860 “Transfers and Servicing”
(ASC 860) and SFAS No. 167, “Amendments to FASB In-
terpretation No. 46(R)” (SFAS No. 167), which was incorpo-
rated into ASC 810 “Consolidation” (ASC 810). These state-
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ments changed the way entities account for securitizations
and special-purpose entities. The new standards eliminate
existing exceptions, strengthen the standards relating to se-
curitizations and special-purpose entities, and enhance dis-
closure requirements. Both of these statements are effec-
tive for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2009. The
adoption of these statements will not have a material effect
on our consolidated financial statements.

In May 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No. 165, “Subsequent
Events” (SFAS No. 165), which was incorporated into ASC
855 “Subsequent Events” (ASC 855). ASC 855 provides guid-
ance on management’s assessment of subsequent events.
The statement is not expected to significantly change prac-
tice because its guidance is similar to that in American Insti-
tute of Certified Public Accountants Professional Standards
U.S. Auditing Standards Section 560, “Subsequent Events,”
with some modifications. This statement became effective
for us on June 15, 2009. The adoption of this statement
did not have a material effect on our consolidated financial
statements.

In April 2009, the FASB issued three Staff Positions (FSP)
intended to provide additional application guidance and en-
hance disclosures regarding fair value measurements and
impairments of securities. FSP SFAS No. 157-4, “Determin-
ing Fair Value When the Volume and Level of Activity for the
Asset or Liability Have Significantly Decreased and Identi-
fying Transactions That Are Not Orderly” (SFAS No. 157-
4) provided guidelines for making fair value measurements
more consistent with the principles presented in ASC 820.
FSP SFAS No. 107-1 and APB 28-1, “Interim Disclosures
about Fair Value of Financial Instruments” (SFAS No. 107-1
and APB 28-1), which were incorporated into ASC 825 “Fi-
nancial Instruments” (ASC 825), enhanced consistency in fi-
nancial reporting by increasing the frequency of fair value
disclosures. FSP SFAS No. 115-2 and SFAS No. 124-2,
“Recognition and Presentation of Other-Than-Temporary Im-
pairments” (SFAS No. 115-2 and SFAS No. 124-2), which
were incorporated into ASC 320 “Investments—Debt and Eqg-
uity Securities” (ASC 320), provided additional guidance de-
signed to create greater clarity and consistency in accounting
for and presenting impairment losses on securities.

The position updating ASC 820 related to determining fair
values when there is no active market or where the price
inputs being used represent distressed sales. This position
stated that the objective of fair value measurement is to re-
flect how much an asset would be sold for in an orderly trans-
action (as opposed to a distressed or forced transaction) at
the date of the financial statements under current market
conditions.

The position updating ASC 825 related to fair value dis-
closures for any financial instruments that are not currently
reflected on the balance sheet at fair value. Prior to issuing
this position, fair values for these assets and liabilities were
only disclosed once a year. This position required these dis-
closures on a quarterly basis, providing qualitative and quan-
titative information about fair value estimates for all those fi-
nancial instruments not measured on the balance sheet at
fair value.

The position updating ASC 320 on other-than-temporary
impairments is intended to bring greater consistency to the
timing of impairment recognition, and provide greater clarity
to investors about the credit and noncredit components of
impaired debt securities that are not expected to be sold.
The measure of impairment in comprehensive income re-
mains fair value. This position also required increased and
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more timely disclosures sought by investors regarding ex-
pected cash flows, credit losses, and an aging of securities
with unrealized losses.

These positions became effective for interim and fiscal
years ending after June 15, 2009, with early adoption per-
mitted. We adopted these positions as of March 31, 2009.
The adoption of these positions did not have a material ef-
fect on our consolidated financial statements.

In December 2008, the FASB issued FSP SFAS No. 132R-
1, “Employers’ Disclosures about Postretirement Benefit Plan
Assets,” (SFAS No. 132R-1), an amendment of SFAS No.
132 (revised 2003), “Employers’ Disclosures about Pensions
and Other Postretirement Benefits,” (SFAS No. 132R), which
were both incorporated into ASC 715. This position required
more detailed disclosures regarding defined benefit pension
plan assets including investment policies and strategies, ma-
jor categories of plan assets, valuation techniques used to
measure the fair value of plan assets and significant con-
centrations of risk within plan assets. This position became
effective for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2009.
Upon initial application, the provisions of this position were
not required for earlier periods that are presented for compar-
ative purposes. The adoption of this statement did not have
a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161, “Dis-
closures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activ-
ities,” (SFAS No. 161), an amendment to SFAS No. 133,
“Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activi-
ties,” (SFAS No. 133), which were both incorporated into ASC
815 “Derivatives and Hedging” (ASC 815). The statement re-
quired enhanced disclosures that expand the previous dis-
closure requirements about an entity’s derivative instruments
and hedging activities. It required more robust qualitative dis-
closures and expanded quantitative disclosures. This state-
ment became effective for financial statements issued for fis-
cal years and interim periods beginning after November 15,
2008, with early application encouraged. We adopted the
provisions of this statement on January 1, 2009, which re-
quired additional disclosure in our 2009 financial statements.
The adoption of this statement did not have a material impact
on our consolidated financial statements.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141R,
“Business Combinations,” (SFAS No. 141R), which was in-
corporated into ASC 805 “Business Combinations” (ASC
805). This statement required the acquiring entity in a busi-
ness combination to recognize all (and only) the assets ac-
quired and liabilities assumed in the transaction, established
the acquisition-date fair value as the measurement objective
for all assets acquired and liabilities assumed, and required
additional disclosures by the acquirer. Under this statement,
all business combinations are accounted for by applying the
acquisition method. This statement became effective for us
on January 1, 2009. Earlier application was prohibited. The
effect of the adoption of this statement on our consolidated
financial statements will be on adjustments made to pre-
acquisition Pioneer income tax contingencies, which will no
longer be reflected as an adjustment to goodwill but recog-
nized through income tax expense.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, “Non-
controlling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements,”
(SFAS No. 160), which was incorporated into ASC 810. This
statement required noncontrolling interests (previously re-
ferred to as minority interests) to be treated as a separate
component of equity, not as a liability or other item outside
of permanent equity. The statement applied to the account-
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ing for noncontrolling interests and transactions with non-
controlling interest holders in consolidated financial state-
ments. This statement became effective for us on January
1, 2009. Earlier application was prohibited. This statement
was applied prospectively to all noncontrolling interests, in-
cluding any that arose before the effective date except that
comparative period information must be recast to classify
noncontrolling interests in equity, attribute net income and
other comprehensive income to noncontrolling interests, and
provide additional required disclosures. The adoption of this
statement did not have a material effect on our consolidated
financial statements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair
Value Measurements,” (SFAS No. 157), which was incorpo-
rated into ASC 820. This statement did not require any new
fair value measurements, but rather, it provided enhanced
guidance to other pronouncements that require or permit as-
sets or liabilities to be measured at fair value. The changes to
current practice resulting from the application of this state-
ment related to the definition of fair value, the methods used
to estimate fair value, and the requirement for expanded dis-
closures about estimates of fair value. This statement be-
came effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15,
2007, and interim periods within those fiscal years. The ef-
fective date for this statement for all nonfinancial assets and
nonfinancial liabilities, except for items that are recognized or
disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a recur-
ring basis was delayed by one year. Nonfinancial assets and
nonfinancial liabilities that were impacted by this deferral in-
cluded assets and liabilities initially measured at fair value in
a business combination, and intangible assets and goodwill
tested annually for impairment. We adopted the provisions of
this statement related to financial assets and financial liabili-
ties on January 1, 2008, which required additional disclosure
in our financial statements. The partial adoption of this state-
ment did not have a material impact on our consolidated fi-
nancial statements. We adopted the remaining provisions of
this statement related to nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial
liabilities on January 1, 2009. The adoption of the remaining
provisions of this statement did not have a material impact
on our consolidated financial statements.

Market Risk Information Excerpt
1.18
AUTOMATIC DATA PROCESSING, INC. (JUN)

MARKET RISK

Our overall investment portfolio is comprised of corporate
investments (cash and cash equivalents, short-term mar-
ketable securities, and long-term marketable securities) and
client funds assets (funds that have been collected from
clients but not yet remitted to the applicable tax authorities
or client employees).

Our corporate investments are invested in cash equiva-
lents and highly liquid, investment-grade securities. These
assets are available for repurchases of common stock for
treasury and/or acquisitions, as well as other corporate
operating purposes. All of our short-term and long-term
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fixed-income securities are classified as available-for-sale
securities.

Our client funds assets are invested with safety of princi-
pal, liquidity, and diversification as the primary goals. Con-
sistent with those goals, we also seek to maximize interest
income and to minimize the volatility of interestincome. Client
funds assets are invested in highly liquid, investment-grade
marketable securities with a maximum maturity of 10 years
at time of purchase and money market securities and other
cash equivalents. At June 30, 2009, approximately 85% of
the available-for-sale securities categorized as U.S. Treasury
and direct obligations of U.S. government agencies were in-
vested in senior, unsecured, non-callable debt directly issued
by the Federal Home Loan Banks, Fannie Mae and Freddie
Mac.

We utilize a strategy by which we extend the maturities of
our investment portfolio for funds held for clients and employ
short-term financing arrangements to satisfy our short-term
funding requirements related to client funds obligations. Our
client funds investment strategy is structured to allow us to
average our way through an interest rate cycle by laddering
investments out to five years (in the case of the extended
portfolio) and out to ten years (in the case of the long port-
folio). As part of our client funds investment strategy, we
use the daily collection of funds from our clients to satisfy
other unrelated client fund obligations, rather than liquidat-
ing previously-collected client funds that have already been
invested in available-for-sale securities. We minimize the risk
of not having funds collected from a client available at the
time such client’s obligation becomes due by impounding,
in virtually all instances, the client’s funds in advance of the
timing of payment of such client’s obligation. As a result of
this practice, we have consistently maintained the required

level of client fund assets to satisfy all of our client funds
obligations.

There are inherent risks and uncertainties involving our in-
vestment strategy relating to our client fund assets. Such
risks include liquidity risk, including the risk associated with
our ability to liquidate, if necessary, our available-for-sale
securities in a timely manner in order to satisfy our client
funds obligations. However, our investments are made with
the safety of principal, liquidity and diversification as the pri-
mary goals to minimize the risk of not having sufficient funds
to satisfy all of our client funds obligations. We also believe
we have significantly reduced the risk of not having sufficient
funds to satisfy our client funds obligations by consistently
maintaining access to other sources of liquidity, including our
corporate cash balances, available borrowings under our $6
billion commercial paper program (rated A-1+ by Standard &
Poor’s and Prime-1 by Moody’s, the highest possible credit
rating), our ability to execute reverse repurchase transactions
and available borrowings under our $6 billion committed re-
volving credit facilities. However, the availability of financ-
ing during periods of economic turmoil, even to borrowers
with the highest credit ratings, may limit our flexibility to ac-
cess short-term debt markets to meet the liquidity needs of
our business. In addition to liquidity risk, our investments
are subject to interest rate risk and credit risk, as discussed
below.

We have established credit quality, maturity, and exposure
limits for our investments. The minimum allowed credit rat-
ing at time of purchase for corporate bonds is BBB and for
asset-backed and commercial mortgage-backed securities
is AAA. The maximum maturity at time of purchase for BBB
rated securities is 5 years, for single A rated securities is 7
years, and for AA rated and AAA rated securities is 10 years.
Commercial paper must be rated A1/P1 and, for time de-
posits, banks must have a Financial Strength Rating of C or
better.

Details regarding our overall investment portfolio are as
follows:

(Dollars in millions) 2009 2008 2007
Average investment balances at cost:

Corporate investments $ 37447 $ 3,387.0 $ 3,556.8
Funds held for clients 15,162.4 15,654.3 14,682.9
Total $18,907.1 $19,041.3 $18,239.7
Average interest rates earned exclusive of realized gains/(losses) on:

Corporate investments 3.6% 4.4% 4.6%
Funds held for clients 4.0% 4.4% 4.5%
Total 3.9% 4.4% 4.5%
Realized gains on available-for-sale securities $§ 114 $ 101 $ 208
Realized losses on available-for-sale securities (23.8) (11.4) (12.5)
Net realized (losses)/gains on available-for-sale securities $  (124) $ (1.3 $ 8.3
As of June 30:

Net unrealized pre-tax gains/(losses) on available-for-sale securities $ 4366 $ 1421 $ (184.9)
Total available-for-sale securities at fair value $14,730.2 $15,066.4 $13,369.4
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Our laddering strategy exposes us to interest rate risk in rela-
tion to securities that mature, as the proceeds from maturing
securities are reinvested. Factors that influence the earnings
impact of the interest rate changes include, among others,
the amount of invested funds and the overall portfolio mix be-
tween short-term and long-term investments. This mix varies
during the fiscal year and is impacted by daily interest rate
changes. The annualized interest rates earned on our entire
portfolio decreased by 50 basis points, from 4.4% for fis-
cal 2008 to 3.9% for fiscal 2009. A hypothetical change in
both short-term interest rates (e.g., overnight interest rates
or the federal funds rate) and intermediate-term interest rates
of 25 basis points applied to the estimated average invest-
ment balances and any related short-term borrowings would
result in approximately a $6 million impact to earnings before
income taxes over the ensuing twelve-month period ending
June 30, 2010. A hypothetical change in only short-term inter-
est rates of 25 basis points applied to the estimated average
short-term investment balances and any related short-term
borrowings would result in approximately a $3 million impact
to earnings before income taxes over the ensuing twelve-
month period ending June 30, 2010.

We are exposed to credit risk in connection with our
available-for-sale securities through the possible inability of
the borrowers to meet the terms of the securities. We limit
credit risk by investing in investment-grade securities, pri-
marily AAA and AA rated securities, as rated by Moody’s,
Standard & Poor’s, and for Canadian securities, Dominion
Bond Rating Service. At June 30, 2009, approximately 83%
of our available-for-sale securities held an AAA or AA rat-
ing. In addition, we limit amounts that can be invested in any
security other than US and Canadian government or govern-
ment agency securities.

We are exposed to market risk from changes in foreign cur-
rency exchange rates that could impact our financial position,
results of operations and cash flows. We manage our expo-
sure to these market risks through our regular operating and
financing activities and, when deemed appropriate, through
the use of derivative financial instruments. We use derivative
financial instruments as risk management tools and not for
trading purposes. There were no derivative financial instru-
ments outstanding at June 30, 2009 or 2008.

Critical Accounting Policies
and Estimates Excerpt

1.19
FORTUNE BRANDS, INC. (DEC)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND POLICIES

Our significant accounting policies are described in Note 1
of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Item 8 to
this Form 10-K. The Consolidated Financial Statements are
prepared in conformity with U.S. GAAP. Preparation of the fi-
nancial statements requires us to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions that affect the amounts of assets and liabil-
ities in the financial statements and revenues and expenses
during the reporting periods. We believe the following are the
Company’s critical accounting policies due to the more sig-
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nificant, subjective and complex judgments and estimates
used when preparing our consolidated financial statements.
We regularly review our assumptions and estimates.

Allowances for Doubtful Accounts

Trade receivables are recorded at the stated amount, less al-
lowances for discounts, doubtful accounts and returns. The
allowances represent estimated uncollectible receivables as-
sociated with potential customer defaults on contractual obli-
gations (usually due to customers’ potential insolvency), or
discounts related to early payment of accounts receivables
by our customers. The allowances include amounts for cer-
tain customers where a risk of default has been specifically
identified. In addition, the allowances include a provision for
customer defaults on a general formula basis when it is deter-
mined the risk of some default is probable and estimable, but
cannot yet be associated with specific customers. The as-
sessment of the likelihood of customer defaults is based on
various factors, including the length of time the receivables
are past due, historical experience and existing economic
conditions. In accordance with this policy, our allowance for
discounts, doubtful accounts and returns for continuing op-
erations was $72.0 million and $57.5 million as of December
31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Inventories

The first-in, first-out inventory method is our principal in-
ventory method across all segments. In accordance with
generally recognized trade practice, maturing spirits inven-
tories are classified as current assets, although the ma-
jority of these inventories ordinarily will not be sold within
one year due to the duration of aging processes. Inventory
provisions are recorded to reduce inventory to the lower
of cost or market value for obsolete or slow moving in-
ventory based on assumptions about future demand and
marketability of products, the impact of new product intro-
ductions, inventory turns, product spoilage and specific iden-
tification of items, such as product discontinuance or engi-
neering/material changes.

Long-Lived Assets

In accordance with authoritative guidance on property, plant,
and equipment (ASC 360), a long-lived asset (including amor-
tizable identifiable intangible assets) or asset group is tested
for recoverability whenever events or changes in circum-
stances indicate that its carrying amount may not be recov-
erable. When such events occur, the Company compares the
sum of the undiscounted cash flows expected to result from
the use and eventual disposition of the asset or asset group
to the carrying amount of a long-lived asset or asset group.
The cash flows are based on our best estimate of future cash
flows derived from the most recent business projections. If
this comparison indicates that there is an impairment, the
amount of the impairment is calculated based on fair value.
Fair value is estimated primarily using discounted expected
future cash flows on a market participant basis.

Goodwill and Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets

In accordance with authoritative guidance on goodwill and
other intangibles assets (ASC 350), goodwill is tested for im-
pairment at least annually, and written down when impaired.
An interim impairment test is required if an event occurs or
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conditions change that would more likely than not reduce the
fair value of the reporting unit below the carrying value.

We evaluate the recoverability of goodwill by estimating the
future cash flows of the reporting units to which the good-
will relates, and then discount the future cash flows at a
market-participant-derived weighted-average cost of capi-
tal. In determining the estimated future cash flows, we con-
sider current and projected future levels of income based
on management’s plans for that business; business trends,
prospects and market and economic conditions; and market-
participant considerations. A reporting unit is an operating
segment, or in the case of the Home & Security segment,
one level below the operating segment. When the estimated
fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying value, we
measure and recognize the amount of the goodwill impair-
ment loss, if any. Impairment losses, limited to the carrying
value of goodwill, represent the excess of the carrying value
of a reporting unit’s goodwill over the implied fair value of
that goodwill. The implied fair value of a reporting unit is es-
timated based on a hypothetical allocation of each reporting
unit’s fair value to all of its underlying assets and liabilities in
accordance with the requirements of ASC 350.

ASC 350 requires that purchased intangible assets other
than goodwill be amortized over their useful lives unless
those lives are determined to be indefinite. Certain of our
tradenames have been assigned an indefinite life as we cur-
rently anticipate that these tradenames will contribute cash
flows to the Company indefinitely. Indefinite-lived intangible
assets are not amortized, but are evaluated at each reporting
period to determine whether the indefinite useful life is ap-
propriate. We review indefinite-lived intangible assets for im-
pairment annually, and whenever market or business events
indicate there may be a potential impairment of that intan-
gible. Impairment losses are recorded to the extent that the
carrying value of the indefinite-lived intangible asset exceeds
its fair value. We measure fair value using the standard relief-
from-royalty approach which estimates the present value of
royalty income that could hypothetically be earned by licens-
ing the brand name to a third party over the remaining useful
life.

The Company cannot predict the occurrence of certain
events or changes in circumstances that might adversely af-
fect the carrying value of goodwill and indefinite-lived intan-
gible assets. Such events may include, but are not limited to,
the impact of the economic environment; a material negative
change in relationships with significant customers; or strate-
gic decisions made in response to economic and competitive
conditions.

Pension and Postretirement Benefit Plans

We provide a range of benefits to our employees and re-
tired employees, including pension, postretirement, post-
employment and health care benefits. We record amounts
relating to these plans based on calculations specified by
U.S. GAAPR, which include various actuarial assumptions, in-
cluding discount rates, assumed rates of return, compen-
sation increases, turnover rates and health care cost trend
rates. We review our actuarial assumptions on an annual ba-
sis and make modifications to the assumptions based on
current economic conditions and trends. We use a market-
related value method of plan assets to calculate pension
costs, recognizing each year’s asset gains or losses over a
five-year period. Compensation increases reflect expected
future compensation trends. The discount rate used to mea-
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sure obligations is based on a spot-rate yield curve that
matches projected future benefit payments with the appro-
priate interest rate applicable to the timing of the projected
future benefit payments. The expected return on plan assets
is determined based on the nature of the plans’ investments
and our expectations for long-term rates of return. The bond
portfolio used for the selection of the interest rates is from the
top quartile of bonds rated by nationally recognized statistical
rating organizations, and includes only non-callable bonds
and those that are deemed to be sufficiently marketable with
aMoody’s credit rating of Aa or higher. The weighted-average
discount rate for pension and postretirement benefit liabili-
ties as of December 31, 2009 and 2008 was 5.9% and 6.5%,
respectively.

As required by U.S. GAAP, the effects of actuarial devi-
ations from assumptions are generally accumulated and, if
over a specified corridor, amortized over the average remain-
ing service period of the employees. The weighted average
remaining service period for the pension plans at December
31, 2009 was approximately 10.4 years. The cost or benefit
of plan changes, such as increasing or decreasing benefits
for prior employee service (prior service cost), is deferred and
included in expense on a straight-line basis over the average
remaining service period of the related employees. The total
net actuarial losses for all pension and postretirement benefit
plans were $429 million at December 31, 2009, a decrease
of $18 million from December 31, 2008, primarily as a result
of amortization of loss recognition in pension expense ($12
million) and recognition of curtailments and settlements ($15
million), partly offset by net actuarial losses in 2009 ($9 mil-
lion). We believe that the assumptions utilized in recording our
obligations under the Company’s plans are reasonable based
on our experience and on advice from our independent actu-
aries; however, differences in actual experience or changes
in the assumptions may materially affect the Company’s fi-
nancial position or results of operations. For postretirement
benefits, our health care trend rate assumption is based on
historical cost increases and expectations for long-term in-
creases. As of December 31, 2009, for postretirement medi-
cal and prescription drugs, our assumption was an assumed
rate of increase of 7.5% in the next year, declining 50 basis
points a year until reaching an ultimate assumed rate of in-
crease of 5% per year. Our assumption as of December 31,
2008, for postretirement medical, was an assumed rate of
increase of 6.75% in the next year, declining 75 basis points
a year until reaching an ultimate assumed rate of increase of
5% per year, and, for postretirement prescription drugs, an
assumed rate of increase of 9.75% in the next year, declin-
ing 75 basis points a year until reaching an ultimate assumed
rate of increase of 5% per year.

Pension expenses were $48.9 million, $32.5 million, $41.8
million, respectively, for the years ended December 31, 2009,
2008 and 2007, including net curtailment and settlement
losses of $17.6 million, $2.8 million, and zero for the years
ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.
Postretirement expenses were $7.9 million, $8.8 million and
$9.3 million, respectively, for the years ended December 31,
2009, 2008 and 2007, including net curtailment gains of $0.1
million, $2.6 million, and $2.8 million for the years ended De-
cember 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively. A 25 basis
point change in our discount rate assumption would lead to
an increase or decrease in our pension expense and postre-
tirement benefit expense of approximately $4.1 million and
$0.2 million, respectively, for 2009. A 25 basis point change in
the long-term rate of return on plan assets used in accounting
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for the Company’s pension plans would have a $2.4 million
impact on pension expense.

Income Taxes

In accordance with authoritative guidance on income taxes
(ASC 740), we establish deferred tax liabilities or assets for
temporary differences between financial and tax reporting
bases and subsequently adjust them to reflect changes in
tax rates expected to be in effect when the temporary differ-
ences reverse. The Company records a valuation allowance
reducing deferred tax assets when it is more likely than not
that such assets will not be realized.

We do not provide deferred income taxes on undistributed
earnings of foreign subsidiaries that we expect to perma-
nently reinvest or on foreign subsidiary earnings that will be
remitted without incremental taxes.

We record liabilities for uncertain income tax positions
based on a two step process. The first step is recognition,
where we evaluate whether an individual tax position has
a likelihood of greater than 50% of being sustained upon
examination based on the technical merits of the position,
including resolution of any related appeals or litigation pro-
cesses. For tax positions that are currently estimated to have
alessthan 50% likelihood of being sustained, zero tax benefit
is recorded. For tax positions that have met the recognition
threshold in the first step, we perform the second step of
measuring the benefit to be recorded. The actual benefits ul-
timately realized may differ from the Company’s estimates.
In future periods, changes in facts, circumstances, and new
information may require the Company to change the recog-
nition and measurement estimates with regard to individual
tax positions. Changes in recognition and measurement es-
timates are recorded in results of operations and financial
position in the period in which such changes occur. As of
December 31, 2009, the Company has liabilities for unrecog-
nized tax benefits pertaining to uncertain tax positions total-
ing $460.5 million. It is reasonably possible the unrecognized
tax benefits may decrease in the range of $85 to $140 million
in the next 12 months primarily as a result of the conclusion
of U.S. federal, state and foreign income tax proceedings.

Customer Program Costs

Customer programs and incentives are a common practice
in many of our businesses. These businesses incur cus-
tomer program costs to obtain favorable product placement,
to promote sell-through of that business’s products and to
maintain competitive pricing. Customer program costs and
incentives, including rebates and promotion and volume al-
lowances, are generally accounted for in either “net sales”
or the category “advertising, selling, general and administra-
tive expenses” at the time the program is initiated and/or the
revenue is recognized. The costs recognized in “net sales” in-
clude, but are not limited to, general customer program gen-
erated expenses, cooperative advertising programs, volume
allowances and promotional allowances. The costs typically
recognized in “advertising, selling, general and administra-
tive expenses” include point of sale materials and shared
media. These costs are recorded at the latter of the time of
sale or the implementation of the program based on manage-
ment’s best estimates. Estimates are based on historical and
projected experience for each type of program or customer.
Volume allowances are accrued based on management’s es-
timates of customer volume achievement and other factors
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incorporated into customer agreements, such as new prod-
uct purchases, store sell-through, merchandising support,
levels of returns and customer training. Management peri-
odically reviews accruals for these rebates and allowances,
and adjusts accruals when circumstances indicate (typically
as a result of a change in volume expectations).

SEGMENT INFORMATION

1.20 FASB Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 280,
Segment Reporting, requires an entity report information
about a public business enterprise’s operating segments.
Operating segments are components of an enterprise about
which separate financial information is available that is evalu-
ated regularly by the chief operating decision maker in decid-
ing how to allocate resources and in assessing performance.

1.21 FASB ASC 280, Segment Reporting, requires that a
public business enterprise report a measure of segment profit
or loss, certain specific revenue and expense items, and seg-
ment assets. It requires reconciliations of total segment rev-
enues, total segment profit or loss, total segment assets,
and other amounts disclosed for segments to corresponding
amounts in the enterprise’s general-purpose financial state-
ments. It requires that all public business enterprises report
information about the revenues derived from the enterprise’s
products or services (or groups of similar products and ser-
vices), about the countries in which the enterprise earns rev-
enues and holds assets, and about major customers regard-
less of whether that information is used in making operating
decisions. However, this Statement does not require an en-
terprise to report information that is not prepared for internal
use if reporting it would be impracticable. In addition to FASB
ASC 280, FASB ASC 350, Intangibles—Gooadwill and Other,
requires that entities which report segment information shall
provide information about the changes in the carrying amount
of goodwill during the period for each reportable segment.

1.22 Table 1-3 shows the type of segment information most
frequently presented as an integral part of the financial state-
ments of the survey entities. Examples of segment informa-
tion disclosures follow.
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1.23

TABLE 1-3: SEGMENT INFORMATION

Number of Entities
2009 2008 2007 2006

Industry segments
Revenue.........cocvvneineinniins 386 412 474 478
Operating income or loss........ 291 305 341 335
Identifiable assets.................... 312 313 374 383

339 344 398 400
311 316 368 377

Depreciation expense.....
Capital expenditures....

GOOAWll.....oovvreeeieiriries 235 232 268 245
Geographic area
Revenue.........cocvviverneiniins 256 253 309 292
Operating income or loss........ 35 27 42 43
Identifiable assets..........ccc..... 52 54 70 58
Depreciation expense. 24 21 37 29
Capital expenditures........ 24 22 36 B
GOOAWill.....oovvriereieiricris 9 10 17 9
Export sales..........ccoovivinininnne 20 19 27 28
Sales to major customers............ 99 117 142 144

2008-2009 based on 500 entities surveyed; 2006-2007 based on
600 entities surveyed.

1.24
CONVERGYS CORPORATION (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amounts in millions)

6. Gooawill and Other Intangible Assets

The Company tests goodwill for impairment annually as of
October 1 and at other times if events have occurred or cir-
cumstances exist that indicate the carrying value of goodwill
may no longer be recoverable. The impairment test for good-
will involves a two-step process. The first step compares the
fair value of a reporting unit with its carrying amount, includ-
ing the goodwill allocated to each reporting unit. If the carry-

ing amount is in excess of the fair value, the second step re-
quires the comparison of the implied fair value of the reporting
unit goodwill with the carrying amount of the reporting unit
goodwill. Any excess of the carrying value of the reporting
unit goodwill over the implied fair value of the reporting unit
goodwill will be recorded as an impairment loss. Fair value
of the reporting units is determined using a combination of
the market approach and the income approach. Under the
market approach, fair value is based on actual stock price or
transaction prices of comparable companies. Under the in-
come approach, value is dependent on the present value
of net cash flows to be derived from the ownership. Based
on the results of its first-step impairment tests performed as
of October 1, 2009, the Company had no goodwill impair-
ment related to its five reporting units: Information Manage-
ment International, Information Management North America,
Customer Management, HR Management and Relationship
Technology Management.

As more fully described in Note 7 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements, the impairment and implementation-
related charges recorded at HR Management during 2009
and 2008 required a review of goodwill related to the HR Man-
agement segment both in 2009 and 2008. The reviews did not
result in any goodwill impairment during 2009 and resulted in
an impairment loss of $61.1 during 2008. The Company de-
termined that the fair value of the HR Management segment
was less than its carrying value in 2008 and, therefore, the
second step of the test was required. This second step review
resulted in a non-cash goodwill impairment charge of $61.1
recorded in the asset impairment caption in the accompany-
ing Consolidated Statements of Operations. In determining
the amount of the HR Management related goodwill impair-
ment, the Company engaged a third-party appraisal firm to
assist in valuing the significant intangible assets of the re-
porting unit. Key assumptions used by the Company in de-
termining the fair value of the HR Management segment in-
clude revenue increases from existing contracts as services
become operational and an estimate of future cash imple-
mentation costs and revenue. The approximate amount of
the goodwill asset impairment charge that was deductible
for tax purposes was $20. During the year ended December
31, 2008, the Company had no goodwill impairment related
to any of its other reporting units. The Company believes it
makes every reasonable effort to ensure that it accurately es-
timates the fair value of the reporting units. However, future
changes in the assumptions used to make these estimates
could result in impairment losses.

Below is a progression of goodwill for the Company’s seg-
ments for 2009 and 2008:

Customer Information

Management Management HR Management Total
Balance at January 1, 2008 $578.5 $187.8 $129.9 $ 896.2
Acquisitions 2131 7.9 — 221.0
Impairment — — (61.1) (61.1)
Other (15.2) (6.3) 0.3 (21.2)
Balance at December 31, 2008 $776.4 $189.4 $ 69.1 $1,034.9
Acquisitions 0.7) 3.1 — 24
Other 10.2 1.0 0.1 11.3
Balance at December 31, 2009 $785.9 $193.5 $ 69.2 $1,048.6
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The goodwill additions to the Customer Management and
Information Management segments for the years ended
December 31, 2009 and 2008 resulted from the Intervoice
acquisition and a few smaller Information Management ac-
quisitions that are described in Note 5 of the Notes to Consol-
idated Financial Statements. The other changes to goodwiill
in 2009 and 2008 principally reflect foreign currency transla-
tion adjustments. Accumulated goodwill impairment charges
at December 31, 2009 and 2008 were $61.1 and related en-
tirely to HR Management.

The Company’s other intangible assets, primarily acquired
through business combinations, are evaluated periodically if
events or circumstances indicate a possible inability to re-
cover their carrying amounts. The evaluation of intangible
assets during 2009 resulted in recording impairment charges
of $6.8 related to certain acquired intangible assets. As of De-
cember 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company’s other intangible
assets consisted of the following:

Gross Carrying Accumulated

Amount Amortization Net
2009:
Software (classified with Property, Plant & Equipment) $ 922 $ (55.2) $ 37.0
Trademarks 12.0 (5.3) 6.7
Customer relationships and other intangibles 164.0 (120.5) 43.5
Total $268.2 $(181.0) $ 87.2
2008:
Software (classified with Property, Plant & Equipment) $ 922 $ (46.3) $ 459
Trademarks 12.0 (2.7) 9.3
Customer relationships and other intangibles 176.2 (116.7) 59.5
Total $280.4 $(165.7) $114.7

The intangible assets are being amortized using the following
amortizable lives: two to eight years for software, four years
for trademarks and five to twelve years for customer relation-
ships and other. The remaining weighted average amortiza-
tion period for intangible assets is 6.7 years.

Customer relationships, trademarks and other intangibles
amortization expense was $11.7 for the year ended Decem-
ber 31, 2009 and the related estimated expense for the five
subsequent fiscal years is as follows:

For the year ended 12/31/10 $10
For the year ended 12/31/11 $10
For the year ended 12/31/12 $9
For the year ended 12/31/13 $7
For the year ended 12/31/14 $3
Thereafter $11
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18. Industry Segment and Geographic Operations

Industry Segment Information

The Company has three segments, which are identified by
service offerings. Customer Management provides agent-
assisted services, self-service and technology solutions. In-
formation Management provides business support system
solutions for the global communications industry. HR Man-
agement provides global human resource business process
outsourcing solutions. These segments are consistent with
the Company’s management of the business and reflect its
internal financial reporting structure and operating focus.
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The Company does not allocate activities below the oper-
ating income level to its reported segments. The Company’s
business segment information is as follows:

Revenues: 2009 2008 2007
Customer Management $1,986.7 $1,954.8 $1,866.1
Information Management 434.3 5715 723.0
HR Management 406.2 259.5 255.2
$2,827.2 $2,785.8 $2,844.3
Depreciation:
Customer Management § 669 $ 614 $ 559
Information Management 22.6 28.2 324
HR Management 8.6 9.3 8.7
Corporate and other(") 20.8 20.1 18.4
$ 1189 § 1190 §$ 1154
Amortization:
Customer Management $ 73 § 43 § 27
Information Management 3.6 7.0 3.7
HR Management 0.8 2.2 2.6

Restructuring charges:

Customer Management $ 79 §$ 140 § —
Information Management 30.4 9.7 3.4
HR Management 3.7 10.5 —
Corporate and other 5.0 0.2 —

Asset impairments:

Customer Management $8 — % — § 14
Information Management 31 — 1.3
HR Management 110.5 268.6 2.8

$ 1136 § 2686 §$ 55

(™ Includes shared services-related capital expenditures and depre-
ciation.

2009 2008 2007

Operating income (loss):

Customer Management $1339 § 926  $176.7
Information Management 21.9 96.4 130.9
HR Management (246.1) (358.8) (38.3)
Corporate!") (22.5) (21.5) (24.5)
$(112.8)  §(191.3)  $2448
Capital expenditures:
Customer Management $ 445 § 497 § 324
Information Management 10.8 17.9 18.4
HR Management 3.7 8.3 171
Corporate!" 15.9 246 34.4
$ 749 §1005  $1023

™ Includes shared services-related capital expenditures and
depreciation.
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2009 2008

Total assets:
Customer Management $1,503.1 $1,570.4
Information Management 464.6 516.7
HR Management 156.0 385.5
Corporate 489.9 368.8
$2,613.6 $2,841.4

Geographic Operations

The following table presents certain geographic information
regarding the Company’s operations:

2009 2008 2007

Revenues:

North America $2,361.2  $2,336.3 $2,449.8

Rest of world 466.0 449.5 394.5
$2,827.2 $2,785.8 $2,844.3

Long-lived assets:

North America $1,490.8 $1,6145 $1,465.5

Rest of world 161.7 240.5 230.2
$1,652.5 $1,855.0 $1,695.7

Concentrations

The Customer Management and Information Management
segments derive significant revenues from AT&T. Revenues
from AT&T were 19.8%, 18.2% and 16.3% of the Company’s
consolidated revenues for 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.
Related accounts receivable from AT&T totaled $85.8 and
$93.1 at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
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1.25
FORTUNE BRANDS, INC. (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. Goodwill and Other Identifiable Intangible Assets

The change in the net carrying amount of goodwill by seg-
ment was as follows:

Home &
($ in millions) Spirits Security Golf Total Goodwill
Balance at December 31, 2007
Goodwill $2,264.6 $1,920.1 $11.8 $4,196.5
Accumulated impairment losses — — — —
Total goodwill, net $2,264.6 $1,920.1 $11.8 $4,196.5
2008 activity:
Translation adjustments (193.2) (1.6) — (194.8)
Acquisition-related adjustments 26.8 (5.4) — 214
Impairment charges — (451.3) — (451.3)
Balance at December 31, 2008
Goodwill $2,098.2 $1,913.1 $11.8 $4,023.1
Accumulated impairment losses — (451.3) — (451.3)
Total goodwill, net $2,098.2 $1,461.8 $11.8 $3,571.8
2009 activity:
Translation adjustments 443 6.9 — 35.2
Acquisition-related adjustments (30.5) (16.0) — (30.5)
Balance at December 31, 2009
Goodwill $2,112.0 $1,904.0 $11.8 $4,027.8
Accumulated impairment losses — (451.3) — (451.3)
Total goodwill, net $2,112.0 $1,452.7 $11.8 $3,576.5

We also had indefinite-lived intangible assets, principally
tradenames, of $2,623.1 million as of December 31, 2009
compared to $2,682.4 million as of December 31, 2008. The
decrease of $59.3 million was primarily due to impairment
charges related to certain tradenames in the Spirits business
and the reclassification of a tradename from an indefinite-
lived to amortizable intangible asset, partly offset by foreign
currency translation adjustments. Refer to Note 2, “Asset Im-
pairment Charges,” for more information on the impairment
charges in the Spirits business.

Amortizable identifiable intangible assets, principally
tradenames and customer relationships, are subject to amor-
tization over their estimated useful life, 5 to 30 years, based
on the assessment of a number of factors that may impact
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useful life. These factors include historical and tradename
performance with respect to consumer name recognition,
geographic market presence, market share, plans for ongo-
ing tradename support and promotion, financial results and
other relevant factors. The gross carrying value and accu-
mulated amortization of amortizable intangible assets were
$932.1 million and $366.8 million, respectively, as of Decem-
ber 31, 2009, compared to $854.2 million and $325.2 million,
respectively, as of December 31, 2008. The gross carrying
value increase of $77.9 million was primarily due to changes
in foreign currency translation adjustments and the reclassifi-
cation of a tradename from an indefinite-lived to amortizable
intangible asset.
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The gross carrying value and accumulated amortization by
class of intangible assets as of December 31, 2009 and 2008
were as follows:

33

2009 2008
Gross Gross

Carrying Accumulated Net Book Carrying Accumulated Net Book
(In millions) Amounts Amortization Value Amounts Amortization Value
Indefinite-lived intangible assets—tradenames $2,695.1 $ (72.00@  $2,623.1 $2,754.4 $ (72.0)@  $2,682.4
Amortizable intangible assets
Tradenames 572.3 (179.8) 392.5 505.5 (161.2) 344.3
Customer and contractual relationships 274.0 (140.9) 133.1 262.9 (123.1) 139.8
Patents/proprietary technology 40.5 (31.0) 9.5 40.5 (29.0) 1.5
Licenses and other 453 (15.1) 30.2 453 (11.9) 334
Total 9321 (366.8) 565.3 854.2 (325.2) 529.0
Total identifiable intangibles $3,627.2 $(438.8) $3,188.4 $3,608.6 $(397.2) $3.211.4

@ Accumulated amortization prior to the adoption of revised authoritative guidance on goodwill and other intangibles assets (ASC 350).

Intangible amortization was $33.7 million, $49.6 million and
$47.6 million for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008
and 2007, respectively. The Company expects to record in-
tangible amortization of $34 million in 2010, trending down
to $27 million by 2015.

The Company cannot predict the occurrence of certain
events that might adversely affect the carrying value of good-
will and other intangible assets. Such events may include, but
are not limited to, the impact of the economic environment;
a material negative change in relationships with significant
customers; or strategic decisions made in response to eco-
nomic and competitive conditions.

19. Information on Business Segments

We report our operating segments (Spirits, Home & Secu-
rity, and Golf) based on how we have organized our seg-
ments within the Company for making operating decisions
and assessing performance based on the markets served.
The Company’s operating segments and types of products
from which each segment derives revenues are described
below.
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Spirits includes products made, marketed or distributed
by Beam Global Spirits & Wine, Inc. subsidiaries or affiliates.

Home & Security includes: kitchen and bathroom faucets
and accessories manufactured, marketed or distributed by
Moen; kitchen and bath cabinetry manufactured, marketed
and distributed by MasterBrand Cabinets; residential entry
door and patio door systems designed and manufactured by
Therma-Tru; vinyl-framed windows manufactured, marketed
and distributed by Simonton; locks, tool storage and orga-
nization products manufactured, marketed or distributed by
Storage and Security.

Golf includes golf balls, golf clubs, golf shoes and
gloves manufactured, marketed or distributed by Acushnet
Company.
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The Company’s subsidiaries operate principally in the (In millions) 2009 2008 2007
United States, Canada, Europe (primarily in Spain, the United Property, plant and equipment, net:
Kingdom and France), Australia and Mexico. United S’tates ' $ 9502 $10643 $1.144.6
N Spain 189.0 189.9 198.5
(In millions) 2009 2008 2007 Mexico 794 83.0 929
Net sales: Canada 61.8 56.4 71.6
Spirits $ 24696 $ 24809 $ 2,606.8 United Kingdom 54.2 49.2 72.8
Home & Security 3,006.8 3,759.1 4,550.9 France 48.6 49.0 53.7
Golf 1,218.3 1,368.9 1,405.4 Other countries 84.7 62.1 64.1
Net sales $ 66947 $76089 $ 8563.1 Property, plant and equipment, net ~ $1,467.9  $1,553.9  $1,698.2
Operating income (loss): Depreciation expense:
Spirits $ 4847 $ 5437 $ 7667 Spirits . $ 707 § 684 § 643
Home & Security 87.0 (465.6) 503.0 Home & Security 115.0 109.9 115.8
Golf 25.0 125.3 165.5 Golf 31.2 32.9 35.6
Less: Corporate expenses® (91.5) (57.8) (58.9) Corporate 1.4 2.0 1.7
Operating income $ 5052 § 1456 $ 13763 Continuing operations 2183 2132 2174
Net sales by geographic Discontinued operations — — 14.9
region®): Depreciation expense $ 2183 § 2132 § 2323
United States $ 46014 §53122 §6,208.0 Amortization of intangible assets:
Canada 483.7 549.0 523.8 Spirits $ 173 $ 164 $ 137
United Kingdom 239.2 435.6 504.7 Home & Security 16.1 32.9 33.6
Australia 276.8 258.4 280.5 Golf 0.3 0.3 0.3
Spain 178.9 156.5 189.5 . -
Other countries 914.7 897.2 856.6 g;gm:mg e%pggztrlgtrilgns 33'_7 49'_6 432
.II\-let Tales §66947 §76089 § 85631 Amortization of intangible assets $§ 337 § 496 § 481
otal assets: - . )
Spirits $ 74827 $71284 §78556  apialexpenditures:
. Spirits $ 779 § 84 § 113
Home & Security 3,747.9 3,924.1 5,057.5 Home & Securit 432 570 75 1
Golf 813.2 895.0 840.3 Golf y 363 336 63.0
Corporate®© 326.8 144 4 203.5 Corporate 01 03 01
Total assets $123706  $120919 $13956.9  confinuing operations 1575 1763 2495
@ Corporate expenses include salaries, benefits and expenses re- Discontinued operations — — 176
lated to Corporate office employees and functions that bene- Capital expenditures, gross 157.5 176.3 267.1

fit all operating segments. Corporate expenses do not include

expenses directly allocable to the reportable segments. Allocat- Less: proceeds from disposition

ing these indirect expenses to operating segments would require of assets (15.9) (19.2) (69.3)
an imprecise allocation methodology. There are no amounts that Capital expenditures, net $ 1416 § 1570 § 197.8
are the elimination or reversal of transactions between reportable

segments.

G

Based on country of destination.

Corporate assets include cash, certain receivables related to
taxes and insurance claims, and the cash surrender value on
life insurance policies. Corporate assets do not include assets
directly allocable to the reportable segments. Allocating these in-
direct assets to operating segments would require an imprecise
allocation methodology.

g
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1.26
ROCK-TENN COMPANY (SEP)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 (In Part): Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Goodwill and Long-Lived Assets

We review the recorded value of our goodwill annually at the
beginning of the fourth quarter of each fiscal year, or more
often if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may exceed fair value as set forth in ASC
350, “Intangibles—Gooadwill and Other.” We test goodwill for
impairment at the reporting unit level, which is an operating
segment or one level below an operating segment, which is
referred to as a component. A component of an operating
segment is a reporting unit if the component constitutes a
business for which discrete financial information is available
and segment management regularly reviews the operating re-
sults of that component. However, two or more components
of an operating segment are aggregated and deemed a sin-
gle reporting unit if the components have similar economic
characteristics. The amount of goodwill acquired in a busi-
ness combination that is assigned to one or more reporting
units as of the acquisition date is the excess of the purchase
price of the acquired businesses (or portion thereof) included
in the reporting unit, over the fair value assigned to the in-
dividual assets acquired or liabilities assumed. Goodwill is
assigned to the reporting unit(s) expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination even though other assets or li-
abilities of the acquired entity may not be assigned to that
reporting unit. We determine recoverability by comparing the
estimated fair value of the reporting unit to which the good-
will applies to the carrying value, including goodwill, of that
reporting unit using a discounted cash flow model.

The goodwill impairment model is a two-step process. In
step one, we utilize the present value of expected net cash
flows to determine the estimated fair value of our reporting
units. This present value model requires management to es-
timate future net cash flows, the timing of these cash flows,
and a discount rate (based on a weighted average cost of
capital), which represents the time value of money and the
inherent risk and uncertainty of the future cash flows. Fac-
tors that management must estimate when performing this
step in the process include, among other items, sales vol-
ume, prices, inflation, discount rates, exchange rates, tax
rates and capital spending. The assumptions we use to esti-
mate future cash flows are consistent with the assumptions
that the reporting units use for internal planning purposes,
updated to reflect current expectations. If we determine that
the estimated fair value of the reporting unit exceeds its car-
rying amount, goodwill of the reporting unit is not impaired.
If we determine that the carrying amount of the reporting
unit exceeds its estimated fair value, we must complete step
two of the impairment analysis. Step two involves determin-
ing the implied fair value of the reporting unit’s goodwill and
comparing it to the carrying amount of that goodwill. If the
carrying amount of the reporting unit’s goodwill exceeds the
implied fair value of that goodwill, we recognize an impair-
ment loss in an amount equal to that excess. We completed
the annual test of the goodwill associated with each of our re-
porting units during fiscal 2009 and concluded the fair values
were in excess of the carrying values of each of the report-
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ing units. No events have occurred since the latest annual
goodwill impairment assessment that would necessitate an
interim goodwill impairment assessment.

We follow provisions included in ASC 360, “Property, Plant
and Equipment” in determining whether the carrying value
of any of our long-lived assets, including amortizing intan-
gibles other than goodwill, is impaired. The ASC 360 test is
a three-step test for assets that are “held and used” as that
term is defined by ASC 360. First, we determine whether in-
dicators of impairment are present. ASC 360 requires us to
review long-lived assets for impairment only when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
of the long-lived asset might not be recoverable. Accord-
ingly, while we do routinely assess whether impairment in-
dicators are present, we do not routinely perform tests of
recoverability. Second, if we determine that indicators of im-
pairment are present, we determine whether the estimated
undiscounted cash flows for the potentially impaired assets
are less than the carrying value. This requires management
to estimate future net cash flows through operations over the
remaining useful life of the asset and its ultimate disposition.
The assumptions we use to estimate future cash flows are
consistent with the assumptions we use for internal planning
purposes, updated to reflect current expectations. Third, if
such estimated undiscounted cash flows do not exceed the
carrying value, we estimate the fair value of the asset and
record an impairment charge if the carrying value is greater
than the fair value of the asset. We estimate fair value us-
ing discounted cash flows, prices for similar assets, or other
valuation techniques. We record assets classified as “held
for sale” at the lower of their carrying value or estimated fair
value less anticipated cost to sell.

Included in our long-lived assets are certain identifiable in-
tangible assets. These intangible assets are amortized based
on the estimated pattern in which the economic benefits are
realized over their estimated useful lives ranging generally
from 5 to 40 years and have a weighted average life of ap-
proximately 20.4 years.

Our judgments regarding the existence of impairment in-
dicators are based on legal factors, market conditions and
operational performance. Future events could cause us to
conclude that impairment indicators exist and that assets
associated with a particular operation are impaired. Evaluat-
ing impairment also requires us to estimate future operating
results and cash flows, which also require judgment by man-
agement. Any resulting impairment loss could have a mate-
rial adverse impact on our financial condition and results of
operations.

Note 21. Segment Information

We report four business segments. The Consumer Packag-
ing segment consists of facilities that manufacture coated
paperboard products and convert paperboard into folding
cartons. The Corrugated Packaging segment consists of fa-
cilities that manufacture containerboard and produce corru-
gated packaging and sheet stock. The Merchandising Dis-
plays segment consists of facilities that produce displays.
The Specialty Paperboard Products segment consists of fa-
cilities that manufacture specialty paperboard and convert
paperboard into interior packaging, convert specialty paper-
board into laminated paperboard products, and facilities that
collect recovered paper. The Specialty Paperboard Packag-
ing segment consists of two operating segments that are
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below the required quantitative thresholds; we have
aggregated them into one segment which we disclose ag-
gregated in our Specialty Paperboard Packaging segment.
Certain operations included in the segments are located
in Canada, Mexico, Chile and Argentina. The table below re-
flects certain data of our foreign operations for each of the
past three fiscal years (in millions, except percentages):

2009 2008 2007

Foreign segment income $25.8 $207 $123
Foreign long-lived assets $97.3  $1034  $88.2
Foreign operations as a percent of

consolidated operations:

We evaluate performance and allocate resources based,
in part, on profit from operations before income taxes, in-
terest and other items. The accounting policies of the re-
portable segments are the same as those described above
in “Note 1. Description of Business and Summary of Sig-
nificant Accounting Policies.” We account for intersegment
sales at prices that approximate market prices. For seg-
ment reporting purposes, we include our equity in income
of unconsolidated entities, as well as our investments in
unconsolidated entities, in the results of our business seg-
ments. Seven Hills is included in our Specialty Paperboard
Products segment, QPSI and DSA are included in our Mer-
chandising Displays segment, and Pohlig and Greenpine
are included in the results of our Consumer Packaging

Net sales to unaffiliated customers 8.5% 8.6% 8.4% i
Segment income 55%  79%  51% Seg”l‘le” i is certain busi tinformation f h
Identifiable assets 8.9% 82%  11.9% ollowing is certain business segment information for eac
of the past three fiscal years (in millions):

2009 2008 2007
Net sales (aggregate):
Consumer Packaging $1,503.1 $1,551.4 $1,459.6
Corrugated Packaging 752.9 607.5 236.7
Merchandising Displays 320.6 350.8 305.8
Specialty Paperboard Products 306.9 392.9 361.7
Total $2,883.5 $2,902.6 $2,363.8
Less net sales (intersegment):
Consumer Packaging $ 251 $ 181 $ 150
Corrugated Packaging 37.3 31.1 227
Merchandising Displays 04 04 —
Specialty Paperboard Products 8.4 14.1 10.3
Total § 7.2 $ 637 $ 480
Net sales (unaffiliated customers):
Consumer Packaging $1,478.0 $1,533.3 $1,444.6
Corrugated Packaging 715.6 576.4 214.0
Merchandising Displays 320.2 350.4 305.8
Specialty Paperboard Products 298.5 378.8 351.4
Total $2,812.3 $2,838.9 $2,315.8
Segment income:
Consumer Packaging $ 228.3 $ 119.8 $ 1252
Corrugated Packaging 178.9 71.3 18.9
Merchandising Displays 31.9 41.9 38.8
Specialty Paperboard Products 26.5 30.3 28.8
Total 465.6 263.3 2117
Restructuring and other costs, net (13.4) (15.6) 4.7
Non-allocated expenses (33.6) (29.3) (24.1)
Interest expense (96.7) (86.7) (49.8)
Loss on extinguishment of debt and related items (4.4) (1.9) —
Interest income and other income (expense), net — 1.6 (1.3)
Minority interest in consolidated subsidiaries (3.6) (5.3) (4.8)
Income before income taxes $ 3139 $ 126.1 $ 127.0
Identifiable assets:
Consumer Packaging $1,286.2 $1,316.6 $1,362.2
Corrugated Packaging 1,183.3 1,313.5 89.3
Merchandising Displays 158.1 169.3 162.2
Specialty Paperboard Products 147.8 153.7 158.9
Assets held for sale 0.9 0.7 1.8
Corporate 108.1 59.3 26.3
Total $2,884.4 $3,013.1 $1,800.7
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2009 2008 2007
Goodwill:
Consumer Packaging $296.1 $296.4 $299.1
Corrugated Packaging 392.8 383.7 18.5
Merchandising Displays 28.0 28.0 28.0
Specialty Paperboard Products 19.5 18.9 18.9
Total $736.4 $727.0 $364.5
Depreciation and amortization:
Consumer Packaging $ 758 $ 793 $ 784
Corrugated Packaging 494 324 6.3
Merchandising Displays 6.1 6.4 6.6
Specialty Paperboard Products 8.6 8.9 9.3
Corporate 101 6.4 3.1
Total $150.0 $133.4 $103.7
Capital expenditures:
Consumer Packaging $ 419 $ 46.8 $ 60.3
Corrugated Packaging 11.9 18.1 2.7
Merchandising Displays 4.0 6.3 12
Specialty Paperboard Products 8.4 6.6 4.7
Corporate 9.7 6.4 9.1
Total $ 75.9 $ 84.2 $ 78.0
Investment in unconsolidated entities:
Consumer Packaging $ 09 $ 06 —
Merchandising Displays 10.4 1.4 1.1
Specialty Paperboard Products 12.5 17.4 17.8
Total $ 238 $ 294 $ 289
Equity in income of unconsolidated entities:
Consumer Packaging $ 03 $ 01 $ —
Merchandising Displays 0.6 21 0.7
Specialty Paperboard Products (0.8) 0.2 0.4
Total $ 01 $ 24 $ 11
Identifiable assets as of September 30, 2008 reflect a reclas-
sification adjustment to reduce Corrugated Packaging as-
sets and increase Corporate assets by approximately $14.1
million. Depreciation and amortization for the year ended
September 30, 2008 reflects an adjustment to reduce Corpo-
rate by approximately $1.9 million. Both of these reclassifi-
cations adjustments were recorded to conform to the current
year presentation.
The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the
fiscal years ended September 30, 2009, 2008 and 2007 are
as follows (in millions):
Specialty
Consumer Corrugated Merchandising Paperboard
Packaging Packaging Displays Products Total
Balance as of October 1, 2006 $290.9 $ 185 $28.7 $18.5 $356.6
Goodwill acquired 35 — — 04 3.9
Translation and other adjustment 4.7 — (0.7) — 4.0
Balance as of September 30, 2007 $299.1 $ 185 $28.0 $18.9 $364.5
Goodwill acquired 0.1 365.4 — — 365.5
Translation and other adjustment (2.8) (0.2) — — (3.0)
Balance as of September 30, 2008 $296.4 $383.7 $28.0 $18.9 $727.0
Goodwill acquired — — — 0.6 0.6
Purchase price allocation adjustments — 94 — — 94
Translation and other adjustment (0.3) (0.3) — — (0.6)
Balance as of September 30, 2009 $296.1 $392.8 $28.0 $19.5 $736.4
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1.27
TEXAS INDUSTRIES, INC. (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. (In Part): Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Gooawill and Goodwill Impairment

Management tests goodwill for impairment annually by re-
porting unit in the fourth quarter of our fiscal year using a two-
step process. The first step of the impairment test identifies
potential impairment by comparing the face value of a report-
ing unit to its carrying value including goodwill. In applying
a fair-value-based test, estimates are made of the expected
future cash flows to be derived from the reporting unit. Sim-
ilar to the review for impairment of other long-lived assets,
the resulting fair value determination is significantly impacted
by estimates of future prices for our products, capital needs,
economic trends and other factors. If the carrying value of the
reporting unit exceeds its fair value the second step of the
impairment test is performed to measure the amount of im-
pairment loss, if any. The second step of the impairment test
compares the implied fair value of the reporting unit good-
will with the carrying amount of that goodwill. If the carrying
value of the reporting unit goodwill exceeds the implied fair
value of the goodwill, an impairment loss is recognized in
an amount equal to that excess. The implied fair value of
goodwill is determined in the same manner as the amount of
goodwill recognized in a business combination.

Goodwill resulting from the acquisition of Riverside Ce-
ment Company and identified with our California cement op-
erations had a carrying value of $58.4 million at May 31, 2008.
Based on an impairment test performed as of May 31, 2009
there was no implied fair value of the reporting unit goodwill,
and therefore, an impairment charge of $58.4 million was
recognized.

Goodwill resulting from the acquisition of ready-mix opera-
tions in Texas and Louisiana and identified with our consumer
products operations has a carrying value of $1.7 million at
both May 31, 2009 and 2008. Based on an impairment test
performed as of March 31, 2009, the fair value of the report-
ing unit exceeds its carrying value, and therefore, no potential
impairment was identified.

10. Business Segments

We have three business segments: cement, aggregates and
consumer products. Our business segments are managed
separately along product lines. Through the cement segment
we produce and sell gray portland cement as our principal
product, as well as specialty cements. Through the aggre-
gates segment we produce and sell stone, sand and gravel
as our principal products, as well as expanded shale and
clay lightweight aggregates. Through the consumer prod-
ucts segment we produce and sell ready-mix concrete as our
principal product, as well as packaged concrete mix, mor-
tar, sand and related products. We account for intersegment
sales at market prices. Segment operating profit consists of
net sales less operating costs and expenses, including cer-
tain operating overhead and otherincome items not allocated
to a specific segment. Corporate includes those administra-
tive, financial, legal, human resources and real estate activi-
ties which are not allocated to operations and are excluded
from segment operating profit. [dentifiable assets by segment
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are those assets that are used in each segment’s operation.
Corporate assets consist primarily of cash and cash equiva-
lents, real estate and other financial assets not identified with
a business segment. We currently report cement treated ma-
terial operations and transportation overhead activities, both
of which are not significant to operating profit, in our ce-
ment segment. Cement treated material operations were pre-
viously reported in our aggregate segment. Our transporta-
tion overhead activities were previously reported as a part
of unallocated overhead and other income-net. Prior period
information has been reclassified to conform to the current
period presentation.

The following is a summary of operating results and certain
other financial data for our business segments.

(In thousands) 2009 2008 2007
Net sales
Cement

Sales to external customers  $ 332,689 $ 424199  $431,103

Intersegment sales 62,631 80,553 78,924
Aggregates

Sales to external customers 200,623 239,494 233,233

Intersegment sales 36,868 45,836 35,621
Consumer products

Sales to external customers 305,890 365,161 331,914

Intersegment sales 3,531 4,072 3,861
Eliminations (103,030) (130,461)  (118,406)
Total net sales $839,202 $1,028,854  $ 996,250
Segment operating profit (loss)
Cement $ (13,263) $ 103,751 §$ 173,204
Aggregates 34,229 55,623 36,886
Consumer products 8,863 11,583 9,846
Unallocated overhead and

other income—net (11,720) (11,065) (12,164)
Total segment operating profit 18,109 159,892 207,772
Corporate
Selling, general and

administrative expense (17,959) (33,892) (45,194)
Interest (33,286) (2,505) (14,074)
Loss on debt retirements and

spin-off charges (907) — (48)
Other income 3,622 3,864 8,107
Income (loss) from continuing

operations before income

taxes $ (30,421) $ 127,359 § 156,563
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(In thousands) 2009 2008 2007
Identifiable assets

Cement $1,150,210  $1,044,981 § 776,810
Aggregates 236,727 220,474 221,820
Consumer products 95,310 120,063 102,916
Corporate 90,297 146,016 173,824

Total assets
Depreciation, depletion and

$1,572,544  $1,531,534  $1,275,370

amortization
Cement $ 37821 § 25645 $§ 23234
Aggregates 21,919 21,166 16,093
Consumer products 7,434 7,998 6,493
Corporate 1,018 768 536

Total depreciation, depletion
and amortization

Capital expenditures

$ 68192 § 55577 § 46,356

Cement $ 242,355 § 267,118 $ 231,332
Aggregates 41,068 31,849 64,141
Consumer products 4,770 12,190 19,691
Corporate 351 1,368 2,494

Total capital expenditures $ 288,544 § 312525 § 317,658

Net sales by product

Cement $ 301,827 § 388,136 $§ 403,493
Stone, sand and gravel 99,206 127,399 124,491
Ready-mix concrete 247,766 310,170 277,725
Other products 113,006 118,347 111,691
Delivery fees 77,397 84,802 78,850

Total net sales $ 839,202 $1,028,854 $ 996,250

All sales were made in the United States during the periods
presented with no single customer representing more than
10 percent of sales. All of our identifiable assets are located
in the United States.

Cement segment operating profit includes the recognition
as of May 31, 2009 of a goodwill impairment charge of $58.4
million. In addition, operating profit in 2009 includes $2.8 mil-
lion in lease bonus payments received upon the execution of
oil and gas lease agreements on property we own in north
Texas. Operating profit includes $1.7 million in 2009 and $3.9
million in 2008 from sales of emission credits associated with
our California cement operations. Operating profit in 2007 in-
cludes $19.8 million representing distributions which we re-
ceived pursuant to agreements that settled a 16-year dispute
over the U.S. antidumping duty order on cement imports from
Mexico.

Aggregates segment operating profit includes gains of $5.0
million in 2009 and $15.2 million in 2008 from sales of oper-
ating assets and real estate associated with our aggregate
operations in north Texas and south Louisiana.

Cement capital expenditures, including capitalized inter-
est, incurred in connection with the expansion of our Hunter,
Texas cement plant were $222.1 million in 2009, $71.6 million
in 2008 and $6.5 million in 2007. In addition, cement capital
expenditures, including capitalized interest, incurred in con-
nection with the expansion and modernization of our Oro
Grande, California cement plant were $1.3 million in 2009,
$176.0 million in 2008 and $208.4 million in 2007. Other cap-
ital expenditures incurred represent normal replacement and
technological upgrades of existing equipment and acquisi-
tions to sustain existing operations in each segment.
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NATURAL BUSINESS YEAR

1.28 A natural business year is the period of 12 consecu-
tive months which ends when the business activities of an
entity have reached the lowest point in their annual cycle. In
many instances, the natural business year of an entity ends
December 31.

1.29 Table 1-4 summarizes, by the month in which a fiscal
year ends, the fiscal year endings of the survey entities. For
tabulation purposes, if a fiscal year ended in the first week
of a month, the fiscal year was considered to have ended in
the preceding month.

1.30 For 2009, 141 survey entities were on a 52-53 week
fiscal year. During 2009, one survey entity changed the date
of their fiscal year end. Examples of a fiscal year end change
and fiscal year definitions follow.

1.31

TABLE 1-4: MONTH OF FISCAL YEAR END
2009 2008 2007 2006

January ..., 26 27 28 27
7 8 8 8

17 17 17 17

8 9 9 9

16 15 19 17

JUNE...ovece e 33 33 40 42
JUIY s 8 8 9 10
AUGUSL.....ooicirieereeesieeiiae 14 13 14 14
September......cocveveevcciieicne, 37 31 43 47
(0701 (0] =Y T 14 14 17 16
NOVEMDET ... 10 9 13 12
Subtotal.........ovrrennenerrennennens 190 184 217 219
December........coovvevevecreieeeeiennns 310 316 383 381
Total Entities........cccoerrerersererncns 500 500 600 600

2008-2009 based on 500 entities surveyed; 2006-2007 based on
600 entities surveyed.

Change in Date of Fiscal Year End
1.32
ADC TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 (In Part): Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Fiscal Year

On July 22, 2008, our Board of Directors approved a change
in our fiscal year end from October 31st to September 30th
commencing with our fiscal year 2009. This resulted in our fis-
cal year 2009 being shortened from 12 months to 11 months
and ended on September 30th.
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Definition of Fiscal Year
1.33
BELDEN INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 (In Part): Basis Presentation

Reporting Periods

Our fiscal year and fiscal fourth quarter both end on Decem-
ber 31. Typically, our fiscal first, second, and third quarter
each have ended on the last Sunday falling on or before
their respective calendar quarter-end. Beginning in 2010, our
fiscal first quarter will end on the Sunday falling closest to
91 days after December 31. Our fiscal second and third quar-
ter will each have 91 days. Our fiscal fourth quarter will end
on December 31.

1.34
SNAP-ON INCORPORATED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 (In Part): Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Fiscal Year Accounting Period

Snap-on’s fiscal year ends on the Saturday nearest Decem-
ber 31. The 2009 fiscal year ended on January 2, 2010
(“2009”), and contained 52 weeks of operating results. The
2008 fiscal year ended on January 3, 2009 (“2008”), and con-
tained 53 weeks of operating results, with the additional week
occurring in the fourth quarter. The impact of the additional
week of operations on full year 2008 net sales and operat-
ing earnings was not material. The 2007 fiscal year ended
on December 29, 2007 (“2007”) and contained 52 weeks of
operating results.

COMPARATIVE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.35 Rule 14a-3 requires that annual reports to stockhold-
ers should include comparative balance sheets, and state-
ments of income and of cash flows for each of the 3 most
recent fiscal years. All of the survey entities are registered
with the SEC and conformed to the aforementioned require-
ments of Rule 14a-3.

1.36 In their annual reports, the survey entities usually
present an income statement as the first financial statement.
For 2009, 276 survey entities presented an income state-
ment first followed by a balance sheet; 184 survey entities
presented a balance sheet first followed by an income state-
ment; 14 survey entities presented an income statement first
followed by a statement of cash flows; and 16 survey entities
presented an income statement first combined with a state-
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ment of comprehensive income or followed by a separate
statement of comprehensive income.

1.37 The financial statements, with rare exception, were
presented on consecutive pages. Certain survey entities did
not present their financial statements on consecutive pages
but interspersed the Management’s Discussion and Analy-
sis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations among
the financial statements by having comments discussing the
content of a financial statement follow the presentation of a
financial statement. Such interspersed material was not cov-
ered by an auditor’s report and was not presented in lieu
of notes. For 2009, one survey entity did not present their
financial statements on consecutive pages.

ROUNDING OF AMOUNTS

1.38 Table 1-5 shows that most of the survey entities state
financial statement amounts in either thousands or millions
of dollars.

1.39

TABLE 1-5: ROUNDING OF AMOUNTS
2009 2008 2007 2006

To nearest dollar...........ccccoeeee.... 2 3 9 10
To nearest thousand dollars:.......
Omitting 000.........ccoovrevrireines 231 227 308 316
Presenting 000............ 1 1 2 3

To nearest million dollars 266 269 281 271

Total Entities.......ccoverrerererrerenens 500 500 600 600

2008-2009 based on 500 entities surveyed; 2006-2007 based on
600 entities surveyed.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.40 SEC Regulations S-X, Accounting Rules—Form and
Content of Financial Statements, and S-K, and Codification
of Statements on Auditing Standards (AU) section 431, Ad-
equacy of Disclosure in Financial Statements, state the need
for adequate disclosure in financial statements. Normally
the financial statements alone cannot present all informa-
tion necessary for adequate disclosure without considering
appended notes which disclose information of the sort listed
below:

e Changes in accounting principles.
Retroactive adjustments.
Long-term lease agreements.
Assets subject to lien.
Preferred stock data.
Pension and retirement plans.
Restrictions on the availability of retained earnings for
cash dividend purposes.
e Contingencies and commitments.
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Depreciation and depletion policies.
Stock option or stock purchase plans.
Consolidation policies.

Computation of earnings per share.
Subsequent events.

Quarterly data.

Segment information.

Financial instruments.

1.41 Table 1-6 summarizes the manner in which financial
statements refer to notes. Notes on specific topics are illus-
trated in this publication in the sections dealing with such
topics.

1.42
TABLE 1-6: REFERENCING OF NOTES TO FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

2009 2008 2007 2006
General reference only................ 448 445 517 512
General and direct references..... 51 53 82 87
No or direct reference only.......... 1 2 1 1
Total Entities.........comeerieeneersens 500 500 600 600

2008-2009 based on 500 entities surveyed; 2006-2007 based on
600 entities surveyed.

DISCLOSURE OF ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

1.43 FASB ASC 235, Notes to Financial Statements re-
quires that the significant accounting policies of an entity be
presented as an integral part of the financial statements of
the entity. FASB ASC 235 sets forth guidelines as to the con-
tent and format of disclosures of accounting policies. FASB
ASC 235 states that the preferable format is to present a
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies preceding notes
to financial statements or as the initial note. During 2009,
378 survey entities presented the Summary of Significant Ac-
counting Policies as either the first footnote or as a separate
presentation following the last financial statement and pre-
ceding the footnotes. Of the remainder, most survey entities
presented the Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
as the second footnote following a footnote which described
the nature of operations.

1.44 Table 1-7 shows the nature of information frequently
disclosed in summaries of accounting policies and the num-
ber of survey entities disclosing such information. Examples
of summaries of accounting policies follow.
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TABLE 1-7: DISCLOSURE OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Number of Entities

2009 2008 2007 2006
Revenue recognition................... 485 486 587 590
Consolidation policy..........c.ccc..... 477 481 561 570
Use of estimates.........c..coeverenncs 476 469 582 567
Property.......cvenevmereivieeseiniins 475 453 570 572
Cash equivalents.............ccc..c..... 474 475 551 546
Depreciation methods.................. 456 469 513 514

456 451 548 540
449 438 534 508
436 415 517 546

Amortization of intangibles.
Interperiod tax allocation....
Impairment............cccocvvnnes

Financial instruments................... 435 440 502 506
Inventory pricing.........cccceeeeencenes 429 416 506 514
Stock-based compensation......... 414 408 493 507
Translation of foreign currency.... 383 376 445 428
Nature of operations................... 365 363 376 286
Earnings per share calculation.... 297 300 351 368
Accounts receivable..................... 349 333 381 386
Advertising costs......... 244 250 293 288

Employee benefits 229 195 217 185
Research and development

(61015] TR 185 172 228 224
Credit risk concentrations... 181 190 213 211
Fiscal years........c.covuvevunnes 150 145 165 168
Environmental costs............ 129 131 145 144

Capitalization of interest.............. 98 86 102 92

2008-2009 based on 500 entities surveyed; 2006—2007 based on
600 entities surveyed.

1.46
3M COMPANY (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Significant Accounting Policies

Consolidation

3M is a diversified global manufacturer, technology innovator
and marketer of a wide variety of products. All significant
subsidiaries are consolidated. All significant intercompany
transactions are eliminated. As used herein, the term “3M”
or “Company” refers to 3M Company and subsidiaries unless
the context indicates otherwise.

Foreign Currency Translation

Local currencies generally are considered the functional cur-
rencies outside the United States. Assets and liabilities for
operations in local-currency environments are translated at
year-end exchange rates. Income and expense items are
translated at average rates of exchange prevailing during
the year. Cumulative translation adjustments are recorded as
a component of accumulated other comprehensive income
(loss) in shareholders’ equity.
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The Company has a Venezuelan subsidiary with net sales
and operating income representing less than one percent of
3M’s related consolidated financial statement amounts for
2009. Regulations in Venezuela require the purchase and sale
of foreign currency to be made at an official rate of exchange
that is fixed from time to time by the Venezuelan government.
Certain laws in the country, however, provide an exemption
for the purchase and sale of certain securities and have re-
sulted in an indirect “parallel” market through which compa-
nies may obtain foreign currency without having to purchase
it from Venezuela’s Commission for the Administration of For-
eign Exchange (CADIVI). The average rate of exchange in the
parallel market varies and is less favorable than the official
rate. As of December 31, 2009, 3M began use of the parallel
exchange rate for translation of the financial statements of
its Venezuelan subsidiary. This change was based on a num-
ber of factors including 3M’s ability to convert currency in
the parallel market, the limited release of funds from CADIVI
for the payment of dividends by the Venezuelan subsidiary,
and conclusion that 3M will or could use the parallel market
for repatriation of capital or dividends. This change resulted
in a decrease in accumulated other comprehensive income
(cumulative translation adjustment) of approximately $55 mil-
lion with a corresponding decrease in the translated assets
and liabilities of 3M’s Venezuelan subsidiary at December 31,
2009. Additionally, 3M evaluates the highly inflationary sta-
tus of Venezuela’s economy by considering both the Con-
sumer Price Index (which largely is associated with the cities
of Caracas and Maracaibo) and the National Consumer Price
Index (developed commencing in 2008 and covering the en-
tire country of Venezuela). Under Accounting Standards Cod-
ification (ASC) 830, Foreign Currency Matters, the reporting
currency of a foreign entity’s parent is assumed to be that en-
tity’s functional currency when the economic environment of
a foreign entity is highly inflationary. Generally, an economy
is considered highly inflationary when its cumulative inflation
is approximately 100 percent or more for the three years that
precede the beginning of a reporting period. The blended
cumulative inflation rate exceeded 100 percent in November
2009. Accordingly, the financial statements of the Venezue-
lan subsidiary will be remeasured as if its functional currency
were that of its parent beginning January 1, 2010. This re-
measurement will decrease net sales of the Venezuelan sub-
sidiary by approximately two-thirds in 2010 in comparison to
2009 (based on exchange rates as of December 31, 2009),
but will not otherwise have a material impact on operating
income and 3M’s consolidated results of operations.

Reclassifications

Certain amounts in the prior years’ consolidated financial
statements have been reclassified to conform to the current
year presentation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles requires man-
agement to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the finan-
cial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from these estimates.
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Subsequent Events

3M has evaluated subsequent events through the date that
the financial statements were issued, which was February 16,
2010, the date of 3M’s Annual Report on 10-K for the period
ended December 31, 2009.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and temporary
investments with maturities of three months or less when
purchased.

Investments

Investments primarily include equity and cost method invest-
ments and real estate not used in the business. Available-for-
sale investments are recorded at fair value. Unrealized gains
and losses relating to investments classified as available-
for-sale are recorded as a component of accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss) in shareholders’ equity.

Other Assets

Other assets include deferred income taxes, product and
other insurance receivables, the cash surrender value of life
insurance policies, and other long-term assets. Investments
in life insurance are reported at the amount that could be
realized under contract at the balance sheet date, with any
changes in cash surrender value or contract value during the
period accounted for as an adjustment of premiums paid.
Cash outflows and inflows associated with life insurance ac-
tivity are included in “Purchases of marketable securities and
investments” and “Proceeds from sale of marketable securi-
ties and investments,” respectively.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market, with
cost generally determined on a first-in, first-out basis.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including capitalized interest
and internal engineering costs, are recorded at cost. Depreci-
ation of property, plant and equipment generally is computed
using the straight-line method based on the estimated useful
lives of the assets. The estimated useful lives of buildings and
improvements primarily range from 10 to 40 years, with the
majority in the range of 20 to 40 years. The estimated useful
lives of machinery and equipment primarily range from three
to 15 years, with the majority in the range of five to 10 years.
Fully depreciated assets are retained in property and accu-
mulated depreciation accounts until disposal. Upon disposal,
assets and related accumulated depreciation are removed
from the accounts and the net amount, less proceeds from
disposal, is charged or credited to operations. Property, plant
and equipment amounts are reviewed for impairment when-
ever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of an asset (asset group) may not be recov-
erable. An impairment loss would be recognized when the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds the estimated undis-
counted future cash flows expected to result from the use
of the asset and its eventual disposition. The amount of the
impairment loss to be recorded is calculated by the excess
of the asset’s carrying value over its fair value. Fair value is
generally determined using a discounted cash flow analysis.
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Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations

A liability is initially recorded at fair value for an asset retire-
ment obligation associated with the retirement of tangible
long-lived assets in the period in which it is incurred if a rea-
sonable estimate of fair value can be made. Conditional as-
set retirement obligations exist for certain long-term assets of
the Company. The obligation is initially measured at fair value
using expected present value techniques. Over time the lia-
bilities are accreted for the change in their present value and
the initial capitalized costs are depreciated over the remain-
ing useful lives of the related assets. The asset retirement
obligation liability was $64 million and $62 million, respec-
tively, at December 31, 2009 and 2008.

Gooawill

Goodwill is the excess of cost of an acquired entity over
the amounts assigned to assets acquired and liabilities as-
sumed in a business combination. Goodwill is not amortized.
Goodwill is tested for impairment annually, and is tested for
impairment between annual tests if an event occurs or cir-
cumstances change that would indicate the carrying amount
may be impaired. Impairment testing for goodwill is done at
a reporting unit level, with all goodwill assigned to a reporting
unit. Reporting units are one level below the business seg-
ment level, but can be combined when reporting units within
the same segment have similar economic characteristics. An
impairment loss generally would be recognized when the car-
rying amount of the reporting unit’s net assets exceeds the
estimated fair value of the reporting unit. The estimated fair
value of a reporting unit is determined using earnings for the
reporting unit multiplied by a price/earnings ratio for com-
parable industry groups, or by using a discounted cash flow
analysis. The price/earnings ratio is adjusted, if necessary, to
take into consideration the market value of the Company.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets include patents, tradenames and other in-
tangible assets acquired from an independent party. Intangi-
ble assets with an indefinite life, namely certain tradenames,
are not amortized. Intangible assets with a definite life are
amortized on a straight-line basis, with estimated useful lives
ranging from one to 20 years. Indefinite-lived intangible as-
sets are tested for impairment annually, and are tested for
impairment between annual tests if an event occurs or cir-
cumstances change that would indicate that the carrying
amount may be impaired. Intangible assets with a definite
life are tested for impairment whenever events or circum-
stances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset (asset
group) may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is rec-
ognized when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds the
estimated undiscounted cash flows used in determining the
fair value of the asset. The amount of the impairment loss to
be recorded is calculated by the excess of the asset’s carry-
ing value over its fair value. Fair value is generally determined
using a discounted cash flow analysis. Costs related to in-
ternally developed intangible assets, such as patents, are
expensed as incurred, primarily in “Research, development
and related expenses.”

Revenue (Sales) Recognition

The Company sells a wide range of products to a diversi-
fied base of customers around the world and has no mate-
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rial concentration of credit risk. Revenue is recognized when
the risks and rewards of ownership have substantively trans-
ferred to customers. This condition normally is met when the
product has been delivered or upon performance of services.
The Company records estimated reductions to revenue or
records expense for customer and distributor incentives, pri-
marily comprised of rebates and free goods, at the time of
the initial sale. These sales incentives are accounted for in
accordance with ASC 605, Revenue Recognition. The esti-
mated reductions of revenue for rebates are based on the
sales terms, historical experience, trend analysis and pro-
jected market conditions in the various markets served. Since
the Company serves numerous markets, the rebate programs
offered vary across businesses, but the most common in-
centive relates to amounts paid or credited to customers for
achieving defined volume levels or growth objectives. Free
goods are accounted for as an expense and recorded in cost
of sales. Sales, use, value-added and other excise taxes are
not recognized in revenue.

The majority of 3M’s sales agreements are for standard
products and services with customer acceptance occurring
upon delivery of the product or performance of the ser-
vice. 3M also enters into agreements that contain multiple
elements (such as equipment, installation and service) or
non-standard terms and conditions. For multiple-element ar-
rangements, 3M recognizes revenue for delivered elements
when it has stand-alone value to the customer, the fair val-
ues of undelivered elements are known, customer accep-
tance of the delivered elements has occurred, and there are
only customary refund or return rights related to the deliv-
ered elements. In addition to the preceding conditions, equip-
ment revenue is not recorded until the installation has been
completed if equipment acceptance is dependent upon in-
stallation, or if installation is essential to the functionality of
the equipment. Installation revenues are not recorded until
installation has been completed. For prepaid service con-
tracts, sales revenue is recognized on a straight-line basis
over the term of the contract, unless historical evidence in-
dicates the costs are incurred on other than a straight-line
basis. License fee revenue is recognized as earned, and no
revenue is recognized until the inception of the license term.
On occasion, agreements will contain milestones, or 3M will
recognize revenue based on proportional performance. For
these agreements, and depending on the specifics, 3M may
recognize revenue upon completion of a substantive mile-
stone, or in proportion to costs incurred to date compared
with the estimate of total costs to be incurred.

Accounts Receivable and Allowances

Trade accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced
amount and do not bear interest. The Company maintains al-
lowances for bad debts, cash discounts, product returns and
various other items. The allowance for doubtful accounts and
product returns is based on the best estimate of the amount
of probable credit losses in existing accounts receivable and
anticipated sales returns. The Company determines the al-
lowances based on historical write-off experience by indus-
try and regional economic data and historical sales returns.
The Company reviews the allowance for doubtful accounts
monthly. The Company does not have any significant off-
balance-sheet credit exposure related to its customers.
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Advertising and Merchandising

These costs are charged to operations in the year incurred,
and totaled $414 million in 2009, $468 million in 2008 and
$469 million in 2007.

Research, Development and Related Expenses

These costs are charged to operations in the year incurred
and are shown on a separate line of the Consolidated State-
ment of Income. Research, development and related ex-
penses totaled $1.293 billion in 2009, $1.404 billion in 2008
and $1.368 billion in 2007. Research and development ex-
penses, covering basic scientific research and the applica-
tion of scientific advances in the development of new and
improved products and their uses, totaled $838 million in
2009, $851 million in 2008 and $788 million in 2007. Re-
lated expenses primarily include technical support provided
by 3M to customers who are using existing 3M products;
internally developed patent costs, which include costs and
fees incurred to prepare, file, secure and maintain patents;
and amortization of acquired patents.

Internal-Use Software

The Company capitalizes direct costs of materials and ser-
vices used in the development of internal-use software.
Amounts capitalized are amortized on a straight-line basis
over a period of three to seven years and are reported as
a component of machinery and equipment within property,
plant and equipment.

Environmental

Environmental expenditures relating to existing conditions
caused by past operations that do not contribute to current or
future revenues are expensed. Reserves for liabilities for an-
ticipated remediation costs are recorded on an undiscounted
basis when they are probable and reasonably estimable, gen-
erally no later than the completion of feasibility studies or the
Company’s commitment to a plan of action. Environmental
expenditures for capital projects that contribute to current or
future operations generally are capitalized and depreciated
over their estimated useful lives.

Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes is determined using the as-
set and liability approach. Under this approach, deferred in-
come taxes represent the expected future tax consequences
of temporary differences between the carrying amounts and
tax basis of assets and liabilities. The Company records a val-
uation allowance to reduce its deferred tax assets when un-
certainty regarding their realizability exists. As of December
31, 2009, no significant valuation allowances were recorded.
As of January 1, 2007, the Company adopted new standards
related to accounting for uncertainty in income taxes. 3M fol-
lows this guidance to record uncertainties and judgments in
the application of complex tax regulations in a multitude of
jurisdictions (refer to Note 8 for additional information).

Earnings Per Share

The difference in the weighted average 3M shares outstand-
ing for calculating basic and diluted earnings per share at-
tributable to 3M common shareholders is the result of the di-
lution associated with the Company’s stock-based compen-
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sation plans. Certain options outstanding under these stock-
based compensation plans during the years 2009, 2008 and
2007 were not included in the computation of diluted earn-
ings per share attributable to 3M common shareholders be-
cause they would not have had a dilutive effect (54.3 million
average options for 2009, 41.0 million average options for
2008, and 21.6 million average options for 2007). As dis-
cussed in Note 10, the conditions for conversion related to
the Company’s Convertible Notes have never been met. If
the conditions for conversion are met, 3M may choose to
pay in cash and/or common stock; however, if this occurs,
the Company has the intent and ability to settle this debt se-
curity in cash. Accordingly, there was no impact on diluted
earnings per share attributable to 3M common shareholders.
The computations for basic and diluted earnings per share
for the years ended December 31 follow:

Earnings Per Share Computations

(Amounts in millions, except
per share amounts) 2009 2008 2007

Numerator:
Net income attributable to 3M $3,193 $3,460 $4,096

Denominator:
Denominator for weighted

average 3M common shares

outstanding—basic 700.5 699.2 718.3
Dilution associated with the

Company'’s stock-based

compensation plans 6.2 8.0 13.7
Denominator for weighted

average 3M common shares

outstanding—diluted 706.7 707.2 732.0

Earnings per share attributable

to 3M common

shareholders—basic $ 45 $ 49 § 570
Earnings per share attributable

to 3M common

shareholders—diluted $ 452 $§ 489 § 560

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company recognizes compensation expense for both
its General Employees’ Stock Purchase Plan (GESPP) and
the Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP). Under applicable ac-
counting standards, the fair value of share-based compen-
sation is determined at the grant date and the recognition of
the related expense is recorded over the period in which the
share-based compensation vests.

Comprehensive Income

Total comprehensive income and the components of accu-
mulated other comprehensive income (loss) are presented
in the Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity and
Comprehensive Income. Accumulated other comprehensive
income (loss) is composed of foreign currency translation
effects (including hedges of net investments in international
companies), defined benefit pension and postretirement plan
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adjustments, unrealized gains and losses on available-for-
sale debt and equity securities, and unrealized gains and
losses on cash flow hedging instruments.

Derivatives and Hedging Activities

All derivative instruments within the scope of ASC 815,
Derivatives and Hedging, are recorded on the balance sheet
at fair value. The Company uses interest rate swaps, currency
and commodity price swaps, and foreign currency forward
and option contracts to manage risks generally associated
with foreign exchange rate, interest rate and commodity mar-
ket volatility. All hedging instruments that qualify for hedge
accounting are designated and effective as hedges, in ac-
cordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting princi-
ples. If the underlying hedged transaction ceases to exist,
all changes in fair value of the related derivatives that have
not been settled are recognized in current earnings. Instru-
ments that do not qualify for hedge accounting are marked
to market with changes recognized in current earnings. The
Company does not hold or issue derivative financial instru-
ments for trading purposes and is not a party to leveraged
derivatives. However, the Company does have contingently
convertible debt that, if conditions for conversion are met, is
convertible into shares of 3M common stock (refer to Note
10 in this document).

New Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2009, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) issued a standard that established the FASB Account-
ing Standards Codification™ (ASC) and amended the hierar-
chy of generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) such
that the ASC became the single source of authoritative non-
governmental U.S. GAAP. The ASC did not change current
U.S. GAAP, but was intended to simplify user access to all
authoritative U.S. GAAP by providing all the authoritative liter-
ature related to a particular topic in one place. All previously
existing accounting standard documents were superseded
and all other accounting literature not included in the ASC
is considered non-authoritative. New accounting standards
issued subsequent to June 30, 2009 are communicated by
the FASB through Accounting Standards Updates (ASUs).
For 3M, the ASC was effective July 1, 2009. This standard
did not have an impact on 3M’s consolidated results of oper-
ations or financial condition. However, throughout the notes
to the consolidated financial statements references that were
previously made to various former authoritative U.S. GAAP
pronouncements have been changed to coincide with the
appropriate section of the ASC.

In June 2006, the FASB issued an accounting standard
codified in ASC 740, Income Taxes, related to accounting for
uncertainty in income taxes. This standard was adopted by
3M effective January 1, 2007. Refer to Note 8 for additional
information concerning this standard.

In September 2006, the FASB issued an accounting stan-
dard codified in ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Dis-
closures. This standard established a single definition of fair
value and a framework for measuring fair value, set out a fair
value hierarchy to be used to classify the source of informa-
tion used in fair value measurements, and required disclo-
sures of assets and liabilities measured at fair value based
on their level in the hierarchy. This standard applies under
other accounting standards that require or permit fair value
measurements. 3M adopted the standard as amended by
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subsequent FASB standards beginning January 1, 2008 on
a prospective basis. One of the amendments deferred the
effective date for one year relative to nonfinancial assets and
liabilities that are measured at fair value, but are recognized
or disclosed at fair value on a nonrecurring basis. This defer-
ral applied to such items as nonfinancial assets and liabilities
initially measured at fair value in a business combination (but
not measured at fair value in subsequent periods) or nonfi-
nancial long-lived asset groups measured at fair value for an
impairment assessment. These remaining aspects of the fair
value measurement standard were adopted by the Company
prospectively beginning January 1, 2009 and did not have a
material impact on 3M’s consolidated results of operations
or financial condition. Refer to Note 13 for additional disclo-
sures of assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value
on a nonrecurring basis as a result of this adoption.

In February 2007, the FASB issued an accounting stan-
dard codified in ASC 825, Financial Instruments, that permits
an entity to choose, at specified election dates, to measure
eligible financial instruments and certain other items at fair
value that were not currently required to be measured at fair
value. An entity reports unrealized gains and losses on items
for which the fair value option has been elected in earnings
at each subsequent reporting date. Upfront costs and fees
related to items for which the fair value option is elected are
recognized in earnings as incurred and not deferred. This
standard also established presentation and disclosure re-
quirements designed to facilitate comparisons between enti-
ties that choose different measurement attributes for similar
types of assets and liabilities. This standard was effective for
financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after
November 15, 2007 (January 1, 2008 for 3M) and interim pe-
riods within those fiscal years. At the effective date, an entity
could elect the fair value option for eligible items that existed
at that date. The entity was required to report the effect of
the first remeasurement to fair value as a cumulative-effect
adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings. The
Company did not elect the fair value option for eligible items
that existed as of January 1, 2008.

In June 2007, the FASB ratified a standard regarding the
accounting for nonrefundable advance payments for goods
or services to be used in future research and development ac-
tivities that requires nonrefundable advance payments made
by the Company for future R&D activities to be capitalized
and recognized as an expense as the goods or services are
received by the Company. This standard was effective for
3M with respect to new arrangements entered into beginning
January 1, 2008 and did not have a material impact on 3M’s
consolidated results of operations or financial condition.

In December 2007, the FASB issued and, in April 2009,
amended a new business combinations standard codified
within ASC 805, which changed the accounting for busi-
ness acquisitions. Accounting for business combinations un-
der this standard requires the acquiring entity in a business
combination to recognize all (and only) the assets acquired
and liabilities assumed in the transaction and establishes the
acquisition-date fair value as the measurement objective for
all assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business com-
bination. Certain provisions of this standard impact the deter-
mination of acquisition-date fair value of consideration paid
in a business combination (including contingent considera-
tion); exclude transaction costs from acquisition accounting;
and change accounting practices for acquisition-related re-
structuring costs, in-process research and development, in-
demnification assets, and tax benefits. For 3M, this standard
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was effective for business combinations and adjustments to
an acquired entity’s deferred tax asset and liability balances
occurring after December 31, 2008. This standard had no
immediate impact upon adoption by 3M, and was applied
to the business combinations disclosed in Note 2 that were
completed post-2008 and to applicable adjustments to ac-
quired entity deferred tax items occurring after December 31,
2008. In December 2007, the FASB issued a new standard
which established the accounting for and reporting of non-
controlling interests (NClIs) in partially owned consolidated
subsidiaries and the loss of control of subsidiaries. Certain
provisions of this standard indicate, among other things, that
NCls (previously referred to as minority interests) be treated
as a separate component of equity, not as a liability (as was
previously the case); that increases and decreases in the par-
ent’s ownership interest that leave control intact be treated as
equity transactions, rather than as step acquisitions or gains
or losses on purchases or sales; and that losses of a partially
owned consolidated subsidiary be allocated to the NCI even
when such allocation might result in a deficit balance. This
standard also required changes to certain presentation and
disclosure requirements. For 3M, the standard was effective
beginning January 1, 2009. The provisions of the standard
were applied to all NCls prospectively, except for the pre-
sentation and disclosure requirements, which were applied
retrospectively to all periods presented. As a result, upon
adoption, 3M retroactively reclassified the “Minority interest
in subsidiaries” balance previously included in the “Other li-
abilities” section of the consolidated balance sheet to a new
component of equity with respect to NCls in consolidated
subsidiaries. The adoption also impacted certain captions
previously used on the consolidated statement of income,
largely identifying net income including NCI and net income
attributable to 3M. Additional disclosures required by this
standard are also included in Note 6. The adoption of this
standard did not have a material impact on 3M’s consoli-
dated financial position or results of operations.

In December 2007, the FASB ratified a standard related to
accounting for collaborative arrangements which discusses
how parties to a collaborative arrangement (which does not
establish a legal entity within such arrangement) should ac-
count for various activities. The standard indicates that costs
incurred and revenues generated from transactions with third
parties (i.e. parties outside of the collaborative arrangement)
should be reported by the collaborators on the respective line
items in their income statements pursuant to ASC 605-45,
Principle Agent Considerations. Additionally, the guidance
provides that income statement characterization of pay-
ments between the participants in a collaborative arrange-
ment should be based upon existing authoritative standards;
analogy to such standards if not within their scope; or a rea-
sonable, rational, and consistently applied accounting policy
election. This guidance was effective for 3M beginning Jan-
uary 1, 2009 and applied retrospectively to all periods pre-
sented for collaborative arrangements existing as of the date
of adoption. The adoption of this standard did not have a
material impact on 3M’s consolidated results of operations
or financial condition.

In March 2008, the FASB issued an accounting standard
related to disclosures about derivative instruments and hedg-
ing activities, codified in ASC 815, which requires additional
disclosures about an entity’s strategies and objectives for
using derivative instruments; the location and amounts of
derivative instruments in an entity’s financial statements;
how derivative instruments and related hedged items are
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accounted for under ASC 815, and how derivative instru-
ments and related hedged items affect its financial position,
financial performance, and cash flows. Certain disclosures
are also required with respect to derivative features that are
credit-risk-related. The standard was effective for 3M begin-
ning January 1, 2009 on a prospective basis. The additional
disclosures required by this standard are included in Note 12.

In April 2008, the FASB issued an accounting standard
which amended the list of factors an entity should consider
in developing renewal or extension assumptions used in de-
termining the useful life of recognized intangible assets under
ASC 350, Intangibles—Goodwill and Other. This new stan-
dard applies to (1) intangible assets that are acquired individ-
ually or with a group of other assets and (2) intangible assets
acquired in both business combinations and asset acquisi-
tions. Under this standard, entities estimating the useful life of
a recognized intangible asset must consider their historical
experience in renewing or extending similar arrangements
or, in the absence of historical experience, must consider
assumptions that market participants would use about re-
newal or extension. For 3M, this standard required certain
additional disclosures beginning January 1, 2009 (which are
included in Notes 2 and 3) and application to useful life esti-
mates prospectively for intangible assets acquired after De-
cember 31, 2008. The adoption of this standard did not have
a material impact on 3M’s consolidated results of operations
or financial condition.

In May 2008, the FASB issued an accounting standard
which addresses convertible debt securities that, upon con-
version by the holder, may be settled by the issuer fully or
partially in cash (rather than settled fully in shares) and spec-
ifies that issuers of such instruments should separately ac-
count for the liability and equity components in a manner
that reflects the issuer’s nonconvertible debt borrowing rate
when related interest cost is recognized. This standard was
effective for 3M beginning January 1, 2009 with retrospective
application to all periods presented. This standard impacted
the Company’s “Convertible Notes” (refer to Note 10 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements for more detail), and re-
quired that additional interest expense essentially equivalent
to the portion of issuance proceeds be retroactively allocated
to the instrument’s equity component and be recognized over
the period from the Convertible Notes’ issuance on Novem-
ber 15, 2002 through November 15, 2005 (the first date hold-
ers of these Notes had the ability to put them back to 3M).
3M adopted this standard in January 2009. Its retrospective
application had no impact on results of operations for peri-
ods following 2005, but on post-2005 consolidated balance
sheets, it resulted in an increase of approximately $22 million
in previously reported opening additional paid in capital and
a corresponding decrease in previously reported opening re-
tained earnings.

In early October 2008, the FASB issued an accounting
standard codified in ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and
Disclosures, which illustrated key considerations in determin-
ing the fair value of a financial asset in an inactive market.
This standard was effective for 3M beginning with the quar-
ter ended September 30, 2008. Its additional guidance was
incorporated in the measurements of fair value of applicable
financial assets disclosed in Note 13 and did not have a ma-
terial impact on 3M’s consolidated results of operations or
financial condition.

In November 2008, the FASB ratified a standard related
to certain equity method investment accounting consider-
ations. The standard indicates, among other things, that
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transaction costs for an investment should be included in
the cost of the equity-method investment (and not expensed)
and shares subsequently issued by the equity-method in-
vestee that reduce the investor’s ownership percentage
should be accounted for as if the investor had sold a propor-
tionate share of its investment, with gains or losses recorded
through earnings. For 3M, the standard was effective for
transactions occurring after December 31, 2008. The adop-
tion of this standard did not have a material impact on 3M’s
consolidated results of operations or financial condition.

In November 2008, the FASB ratified an accounting stan-
dard related to intangible assets acquired in a business com-
bination or asset acquisition that an entity does not intend
to use or intends to hold to prevent others from obtaining
access (a defensive intangible asset). Under the standard a
defensive intangible asset needs to be accounted for as a
separate unit of accounting and would be assigned a use-
ful life based on the period over which the asset diminishes
in value. For 3M, the standard was effective for transactions
occurring after December 31, 2008. The Company consid-
ered this standard in terms of intangible assets acquired in
business combinations or asset acquisitions that closed after
December 31, 2008.

In December 2008, the FASB issued an accounting stan-
dard regarding a company’s disclosures about postretire-
ment benefit plan assets. This standard requires additional
disclosures about plan assets for sponsors of defined bene-
fit pension and postretirement plans including expanded in-
formation regarding investment strategies, major categories
of plan assets, and concentrations of risk within plan as-
sets. Additionally, this standard requires disclosures similar
to those required for fair value measurements and disclosures
under ASC 820 with respect to the fair value of plan assets
such as the inputs and valuation techniques used to mea-
sure fair value and information with respect to classification
of plan assets in terms of the hierarchy of the source of infor-
mation used to determine their value. For 3M, the disclosures
under this standard are required beginning with the annual
period ended December 31, 2009. The additional disclosures
are included in Note 11.

In April 2009, the FASB issued an accounting standard
which provides guidance on (1) estimating the fair value of
an asset or liability when the volume and level of activity for
the asset or liability have significantly declined and (2) iden-
tifying transactions that are not orderly. The standard also
amended certain disclosure provisions for fair value mea-
surements and disclosures in ASC 820 to require, among
other things, disclosures in interim periods of the inputs and
valuation techniques used to measure fair value as well as
disclosure of the hierarchy of the source of underlying fair
value information on a disaggregated basis by specific major
category of investment. For 3M, this standard was effective
prospectively beginning April 1, 2009. The adoption of this
standard did not have a materialimpact on 3M’s consolidated
results of operations or financial condition.

In April 2009, the FASB issued an accounting standard
which modifies the requirements for recognizing other-than-
temporarily impaired debt securities and changes the exist-
ing impairment model for such securities. The standard also
requires additional disclosures for both annual and interim
periods with respect to both debt and equity securities. Un-
der the standard, impairment of debt securities is consid-
ered other-than-temporary if an entity (1) intends to sell the
security, (2) more likely than not will be required to sell the
security before recovering its cost, or (3) does not expect to
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recover the security’s entire amortized cost basis (even if the
entity does not intend to sell). The standard further indicates
that, depending on which of the above factor(s) causes the
impairment to be considered other-than-temporary, (1) the
entire shortfall of the security’s fair value versus its amortized
cost basis or (2) only the credit loss portion would be recog-
nized in earnings while the remaining shortfall (if any) would
be recorded in other comprehensive income. The standard
requires entities to initially apply its provisions to previously
other-than-temporarily impaired debt securities existing as
of the date of initial adoption by making a cumulative-effect
adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings in the
period of adoption. The cumulative-effect adjustment poten-
tially reclassifies the noncredit portion of a previously other-
than-temporarily impaired debt security held as of the date of
initial adoption from retained earnings to accumulated other
comprehensive income. For 3M, this standard was effective
beginning April 1, 2009. The adoption of this standard did not
have a material impact on 3M’s consolidated results of oper-
ations or financial condition. Additional disclosures required
by this standard are included in Note 9.

In April 2009, the FASB issued an accounting standard
regarding interim disclosures about fair value of financial in-
struments. The standard essentially expands the disclosure
about fair value of financial instruments that were previously
required only annually to also be required for interim period
reporting. In addition, the standard requires certain additional
disclosures regarding the methods and significant assump-
tions used to estimate the fair value of financial instruments.
This standard was effective for 3M beginning April 1, 2009
on a prospective basis. The additional disclosures required
by this standard are included in Note 13.

In May 2009, the FASB issued a new accounting standard
regarding subsequent events. This standard incorporates
into authoritative accounting literature certain guidance that
already existed within generally accepted auditing standards,
with the requirements concerning recognition and disclosure
of subsequent events remaining essentially unchanged. This
guidance addresses events which occur after the balance
sheet date but before the issuance of financial statements.
Under the new standard, as under previous practice, an en-
tity must record the effects of subsequent events that provide
evidence about conditions that existed at the balance sheet
date and must disclose but not record the effects of subse-
quent events which provide evidence about conditions that
did not exist at the balance sheet date. This standard added
an additional required disclosure relative to the date through
which subsequent events have been evaluated and whether
that is the date on which the financial statements were is-
sued. For 3M, this standard was effective beginning April 1,
2009. The additional disclosures required by this standard
are included in Note 1.

In June 2009, the FASB issued a new standard regarding
the accounting for transfers of financial assets amending the
existing guidance on transfers of financial assets to, among
other things, eliminate the qualifying special-purpose entity
concept, include a new unit of account definition that must be
met for transfers of portions of financial assets to be eligible
for sale accounting, clarify and change the derecognition cri-
teria for a transfer to be accounted for as a sale, and require
significant additional disclosure. For 3M, this standard is ef-
fective for new transfers of financial assets beginning January
1, 2010. Because 3M historically does not have significant
transfers of financial assets, the adoption of this standard is
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not expected to have a material impact on 3M’s consolidated
results of operations or financial condition.

In June 2009, the FASB issued a new standard that revises
the consolidation guidance for variable-interest entities. The
modifications include the elimination of the exemption for
qualifying special purpose entities, a new approach for de-
termining who should consolidate a variable-interest entity,
and changes to when it is necessary to reassess who should
consolidate a variable-interest entity. For 3M, this standard is
effective January 1, 2010. The Company does not expect the
adoption of this standard to have a material impact on 3M’s
consolidated results of operations or financial condition.

In August 2009, the FASB issued ASU No. 2009-05, Mea-
suring Liabilities at Fair Value, which provides additional guid-
ance on how companies should measure liabilities at fair
value under ASC 820. The ASU clarifies that the quoted price
for an identical liability should be used. However, if such in-
formation is not available, a entity may use the quoted price
of an identical liability when traded as an asset, quoted prices
for similar liabilities or similar liabilities traded as assets, or
another valuation technique (such as the market or income
approach). The ASU also indicates that the fair value of a
liability is not adjusted to reflect the impact of contractual
restrictions that prevent its transfer and indicates circum-
stances in which quoted prices for an identical liability or
quoted price for an identical liability traded as an asset may
be considered level 1 fair value measurements (see Note 13
for a description of level 1 measurements). For 3M, this ASU
was effective October 1, 2009. The adoption of this ASU did
not have a material impact on 3M’s consolidated results of
operations or financial condition.

In September 2009, the FASB issued ASU No. 2009-12, In-
vestments in Certain Entities That Calculate Net Asset Value
per Share (or Its Equivalent), that amends ASC 820 to pro-
vide guidance on measuring the fair value of certain alterna-
tive investments such as hedge funds, private equity funds
and venture capital funds. The ASU indicates that, under cer-
tain circumstances, the fair value of such investments may
be determined using net asset value (NAV) as a practical ex-
pedient, unless it is probable the investment will be sold at
something other than NAV. In those situations, the practical
expedient cannot be used and disclosure of the remaining
actions necessary to complete the sale is required. The ASU
also requires additional disclosures of the attributes of all in-
vestments within the scope of the new guidance, regardless
of whether an entity used the practical expedient to mea-
sure the fair value of any of its investments. The disclosure
provisions of this ASU are not applicable to an employer’s
disclosures about pension and other postretirement benefit
plan assets. 3M does not have any significant direct invest-
ments within the scope of ASU No. 2009-12, but certain plan
assets of the Company’s benefit plans are valued based on
NAV as indicated in Note 11. For 3M, this ASU was effective
October 1, 2009. The adoption of this ASU did not have a
material impact on 3M’s consolidated results of operations
or financial condition.

In October 2009, the FASB issued ASU No. 2009-13,
Multiple-Deliverable Revenue Arrangements—a consensus
of the FASB Emerging Issues Task Force, that provides
amendments to the criteria for separating consideration
in multiple-deliverable arrangements. As a result of these
amendments, multiple-deliverable revenue arrangements will
be separated in more circumstances than under existing U.S.
GAAP. The ASU does this by establishing a selling price
hierarchy for determining the selling price of a deliverable.
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The selling price used for each deliverable will be based on
vendor-specific objective evidence if available, third-party
evidence if vendor-specific objective evidence is not avail-
able, or estimated selling price if neither vendor-specific ob-
jective evidence nor third-party evidence is available. A ven-
dor will be required to determine its best estimate of selling
price in a manner that is consistent with that used to deter-
mine the price to sell the deliverable on a standalone basis.
This ASU also eliminates the residual method of allocation
and will require that arrangement consideration be allocated
at the inception of the arrangement to all deliverables using
the relative selling price method, which allocates any dis-
count in the overall arrangement proportionally to each de-
liverable based on its relative selling price. Expanded dis-
closures of qualitative and quantitative information regarding
application of the multiple-deliverable revenue arrangement
guidance are also required under the ASU. The ASU does not
apply to arrangements for which industry specific allocation
and measurement guidance exists, such as long-term con-
struction contracts and software transactions. For 3M, ASU
No. 2009-13 is effective beginning January 1, 2011. 3M may
elect to adopt the provisions prospectively to new or mate-
rially modified arrangements beginning on the effective date
or retrospectively for all periods presented. The Company
is currently evaluating the impact of this standard on 3M’s
consolidated results of operations and financial condition.

In October 2009, the FASB issued ASU No. 2009-
14, Certain Revenue Arrangements That Include Software
Elements—a consensus of the FASB Emerging Issues Task
Force, that reduces the types of transactions that fall within
the current scope of software revenue recognition guidance.
Existing software revenue recognition guidance requires that
its provisions be applied to an entire arrangement when the
sale of any products or services containing or utilizing soft-
ware when the software is considered more than inciden-
tal to the product or service. As a result of the amend-
ments included in ASU No. 2009-14, many tangible products
and services that rely on software will be accounted for un-
der the multiple-element arrangements revenue recognition
guidance rather than under the software revenue recognition
guidance. Under the ASU, the following components would
be excluded from the scope of software revenue recognition
guidance: the tangible element of the product, software prod-
ucts bundled with tangible products where the software com-
ponents and non-software components function together to
deliver the product’s essential functionality, and undelivered
components that relate to software that is essential to the
tangible product’s functionality. The ASU also provides guid-
ance on how to allocate transaction consideration when an
arrangement contains both deliverables within the scope of
software revenue guidance (software deliverables) and deliv-
erables not within the scope of that guidance (non-software
deliverables). For 3M, ASU No. 2009-14 is effective begin-
ning January 1, 2011. 3M may elect to adopt the provisions
prospectively to new or materially modified arrangements be-
ginning on the effective date or retrospectively for all peri-
ods presented. However, 3M must elect the same transition
method for this guidance as that chosen for ASU No. 2009-
13. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of this
standard on 3M’s consolidated results of operations and fi-
nancial condition.

In January 2010, the FASB issued ASU No. 2010-6, Im-
proving Disclosures About Fair Value Measurements, that
amends existing disclosure requirements under ASC 820
by adding required disclosures about items transferring into
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and out of levels 1 and 2 in the fair value hierarchy; adding
separate disclosures about purchase, sales, issuances, and
settlements relative to level 3 measurements; and clarifying,
among other things, the existing fair value disclosures about
the level of disaggregation. For 3M this ASU is effective for
the first quarter of 2010, except for the requirement to pro-
vide level 3 activity of purchases, sales, issuances, and set-
tlements on a gross basis, which is effective beginning the
first quarter of 2011. Since this standard impacts disclosure
requirements only, its adoption will not have a material im-
pact on 3M’s consolidated results of operations or financial
condition.

1.47
WHOLE FOODS MARKET, INC. (SEP)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Definition of Fiscal Year

We report our results of operations on a 52- or 53-week fiscal
year ending on the last Sunday in September. Fiscal years
2009 and 2008 were 52-week years and fiscal year 2007 was
a 53-week year.

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles. All significant majority-owned sub-
sidiaries are consolidated on a line-by-line basis, and all sig-
nificant intercompany accounts and transactions are elimi-
nated upon consolidation.

Adoption of the FASB Accounting Standards Codification

In June 2009, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”)
Update No. 2009-01 (“ASU No. 2009-01”), “Topic 105—
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles,” which amends
the ASC for the issuance of Statement of Financial Ac-
counting Standards No. 168 (“SFAS No. 168”), “The FASB
Accounting Standards Codification and the Hierarchy of
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.” ASU No. 2009-
01 includes SFAS No. 168 in its entirety and establishes
the ASC as the source of authoritative accounting princi-
ples recognized by FASB for all nongovernmental entities in
the preparation of financial statements in accordance with
GAAP. For SEC registrants, rules and interpretive releases of
the SEC under federal securities laws are also considered
authoritative sources of GAAP. The guidance is effective for
financial statements issued for interim and annual periods
ending after September 15, 2009. We adopted the FASB ASC
for fiscal year ended September 27, 2009. The adoption had
no impact on our financial statements. All references to au-
thoritative guidance have been updated to cite relevant ASC
Topics, as applicable.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

We consider all highly liquid investments with an original ma-
turity of 90 days or less to be cash equivalents.

Restricted Cash

Restricted cash primarily relates to cash held as collateral to
support a portion of our projected workers’ compensation
obligations.

Inventories

We value our inventories at the lower of cost or market.
Cost was determined using the last-in, first-out (“LIFO”)
method for approximately 93.6% and 94.0% of inventories
in fiscal years 2009 and 2008, respectively. Under the LIFO
method, the cost assigned to items sold is based on the cost
of the most recent items purchased. As a result, the costs of
the first items purchased remain in inventory and are used
to value ending inventory. The excess of estimated current
costs over LIFO carrying value, or LIFO reserve, was approxi-
mately $27.1 million and $32.7 million at September 27, 2009
and September 28, 2008, respectively. Costs for remaining
inventories are determined by the first-in, first-out (“FIFO”)
method.

Cost was determined using the retail method and the item
cost method for inventories in fiscal years 2009 and 2008.
Under the retail method, the valuation of inventories at cost
and the resulting gross margins are determined by count-
ing each item in inventory, then applying a cost-to-retail ra-
tio for various groupings of similar items to the retail value
of inventories. Inherent in the retail inventory method cal-
culations are certain management judgments and estimates
which could impact the ending inventory valuation at cost as
well as the resulting gross margins. The item cost method
involves counting each item in inventory, assigning costs to
each of these items based on the actual purchase costs (net
of vendor allowances) of each item and recording the actual
cost of items sold. The item cost method of accounting en-
ables management to more precisely manage inventory and
purchasing levels when compared to the retail method of ac-
counting. Our largest supplier, United Natural Foods, Inc., ac-
counted for approximately 28%, 32%, and 24% of our total
purchases in fiscal years 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumu-
lated depreciation and amortization. We provide deprecia-
tion of equipment over the estimated useful lives (generally
three to 15 years) using the straight-line method. We pro-
vide amortization of leasehold improvements and real estate
assets under capital lease on the straight-line method over
the shorter of the estimated useful lives of the improvements
or the terms of the related leases. Terms of leases used in
the determination of estimated useful lives may include re-
newal periods at the Company’s option if exercise of the op-
tion is determined to be reasonably assured at the inception
of the lease. We provide depreciation of buildings over the
estimated useful lives (generally 20 to 30 years) using the
straight-line method. Costs related to a projected site deter-
mined to be unsatisfactory and general site selection costs
that cannot be identified with a specific store location are
charged to operations currently. The Company recognizes
a liability for the fair value of a conditional asset retirement
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obligation when the obligation is incurred. Repair and main-
tenance costs are expensed as incurred. Interest costs on
significant projects constructed or developed for the Com-
pany’s own use are capitalized as a separate component of
the asset. Upon retirement or disposal of assets, the cost
and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the
balance sheet and any gain or loss is reflected in earnings.

Operating Leases

The Company leases stores, non-retail facilities and admin-
istrative offices under operating leases. Store lease agree-
ments generally include rent holidays, rent escalation clauses
and contingent rent provisions for percentage of sales in ex-
cess of specified levels. Most of our lease agreements in-
clude renewal periods at the Company’s option. We recog-
nize rent holiday periods and scheduled rent increases on
a straight-line basis over the lease term beginning with the
date the Company takes possession of the leased space for
construction and other purposes. We record tenant improve-
ment allowances and rent holidays as deferred rent liabilities
and amortize the deferred rent over the terms of the lease to
rent. We record rent liabilities for contingent percentage of
sales lease provisions when we determine that it is probable
that the specified levels will be reached as defined by the
lease.

Gooawill

Goodwill consists of the excess of cost of acquired enter-
prises over the sum of the amounts assigned to identifiable
assets acquired less liabilities assumed. Goodwill is reviewed
for impairment annually at the beginning of the Company’s
fourth fiscal quarter, or more frequently if impairment indica-
tors arise, on a reporting unit level. We allocate goodwill to
one reporting unit for goodwill impairment testing. We com-
pare our fair value, which is determined utilizing both a market
value method and discounted projected future cash flows, to
our carrying value for the purpose of identifying impairment.
Our annual impairment review requires extensive use of ac-
counting judgment and financial estimates.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets include acquired leasehold rights, favor-
able lease assets, trade names, brand names, liquor li-
censes, license agreements, non-competition agreements
and debt issuance costs. Indefinite-lived intangible assets
are reviewed for impairment quarterly, or whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount
of an intangible asset may not be recoverable. We amor-
tize definite-lived intangible assets on a straight-line basis
over the life of the related agreement. Currently the weighted
average life of contract-based intangible assets and for
marketing-related and other identifiable intangible assets is
approximately 16 years and 2 years, respectively.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and Long-Lived Assets
to Be Disposed of

We evaluate long-lived assets for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances, such as unplanned neg-
ative cash flow or short lease life, indicate that the carrying
amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability
of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison
of the carrying amount of an asset to future undiscounted
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cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If such
assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be
recognized is measured by the amount by which the carrying
amount of the assets exceeds the fair value of the assets. As-
sets to be disposed of are reported at the lower of the carrying
amount or fair value less costs to sell. When the Company
impairs assets related to an operating location, a charge to
write down the related assets is included in the “Direct store
expenses” line item on the Consolidated Statements of Op-
erations. When the Company commits to relocate, close, or
dispose of a location, a charge to write down the related as-
sets to their estimated recoverable value is included in the
“Relocation, store closure and lease termination costs” line
item on the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company records its financial assets and liabilities at
fair value, in accordance with the framework for measuring
fair value in generally accepted accounting principles. This
framework establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes
the inputs used to measure fair value:

e |evel 1: Observable inputs that reflect unadjusted
quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities traded
in active markets.

e |evel 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, ei-
ther directly or indirectly.

e Level 3: Inputs that are generally unobservable. These
inputs may be used with internally developed method-
ologies that result in management’s best estimate of fair
value.

The provisions of ASC 820, “Fair Value Measurements and
Disclosures,” are effective for the Company’s nonfinancial
assets and liabilities beginning in the first quarter of fiscal
year ended September 26, 2010.

The Company holds money market fund investments
that are classified as either cash equivalents or restricted
cash that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis,
based on quoted prices in active markets for identical as-
sets. We had cash equivalent instruments and restricted
cash investments totaling approximately $439.0 million and
$70.4 million, respectively, at September 27, 2009. The car-
rying amount of the Company’s interest rate swap agree-
ment is measured at fair value on a recurring basis using a
standard valuation model that incorporates inputs other than
quoted prices that are observable. Declines in fair value be-
low the Company’s carrying value deemed to be other than
temporary are charged against net earnings. Details on the
fair value of the Company’s interest rate swap agreement are
included in Note 9 to the consolidated financial statements,
“Derivatives.”

The carrying amounts of trade and other accounts receiv-
able, trade accounts payable, accrued payroll, bonuses and
team member benefits, and other accrued expenses approx-
imate fair value because of the short maturity of those in-
struments. Store closure reserves and estimated workers’
compensation claims are recorded at net present value to
approximate fair value. The carrying amount of our five-year
term loan and revolving line of credit approximates fair value
because each has a variable interest rate which reflects mar-
ket changes to interest rates and contains variable risk pre-
miums based on the Company’s corporate ratings.
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Derivative Instruments

The Company utilizes derivative financial instruments to
hedge its exposure to changes in interest rates. All deriva-
tive financial instruments are recorded on the balance sheet
at their respective fair value. The Company does not use fi-
nancial instruments or derivatives for any trading or other
speculative purposes. Hedge effectiveness is measured by
comparing the change in fair value of the hedged item with
the change in fair value of the derivative instrument. The ef-
fective portion of the gain or loss of the hedge is recorded on
the Consolidated Balance Sheets under the caption “Accu-
mulated other comprehensive income (loss).” Any ineffective
portion of the hedge, as well as amounts not included in
the assessment of effectiveness, is recorded on the Consol-
idated Statements of Operations under the caption “Interest
expense.”

Effective January 19, 2009 the Company adopted amend-
ments to FASB guidance on ASC 815, “Derivatives and
Hedging,” that establishes, among other things, the disclo-
sure requirements for derivative instruments and hedging ac-
tivities. The guidance requires qualitative disclosures about
objectives and strategies for using derivatives, quantitative
disclosures about fair value amounts of gains and losses
on derivative instruments, and disclosures about credit-risk-
related contingent features in derivative agreements.

Insurance and Self-Insurance Reserves

The Company uses a combination of insurance and self-
insurance plans to provide for the potential liabilities for work-
ers’ compensation, general liability, property insurance, di-
rector and officers’ liability insurance, vehicle liability and
employee health care benefits. Liabilities associated with
the risks that are retained by the Company are estimated,
in part, by considering historical claims experience, demo-
graphic factors, severity factors and other actuarial assump-
tions. The Company had insurance payables totaling ap-
proximately $86.9 million and $86.7 million at September 27,
2009 and September 28, 2008, respectively, included in the
“Other current liabilities” line item on the Consolidated Bal-
ance Sheets.

Reserves for Closed Properties

The Company maintains reserves for retail stores and other
properties that are no longer being utilized in current opera-
tions. The Company provides for closed property operating
lease liabilities using a present value of the remaining non-
cancelable lease payments and lease termination fees after
the closing date, net of estimated subtenant income. The
closed property lease liabilities are expected to be paid over
the remaining lease terms, which generally range from one
to 16 years. The Company estimates subtenant income and
future cash flows based on the Company’s experience and
knowledge of the area in which the closed property is located,
the Company’s previous efforts to dispose of similar assets
and existing economic conditions. The reserves for closed
properties include management’s estimates for lease subsi-
dies, lease terminations and future payments on exited real
estate. Adjustments to closed property reserves primarily re-
late to changes in existing economic conditions, subtenant
income or actual exit costs differing from original estimates.
Adjustments are made for changes in estimates in the period
in which the changes become known.
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Capital lease properties that are closed are reduced to their
estimated fair value. Reduction in the carrying values of prop-
erty, equipment and leasehold improvements are recognized
when expected net future cash flows are less than the as-
sets’ carrying value. The Company estimates net future cash
flows based on its experience and knowledge of the area in
which the closed property is located and, when necessary,
utilizes local real estate brokers.

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue for sales of our products at the point
of sale. Discounts provided to customers at the point of sale
are recognized as a reduction in sales as the products are
sold. Sales taxes are not included in revenue.

Cost of Goods Sold and Occupancy Costs

Cost of goods sold includes cost of inventory sold during
the period, net of discounts and allowances, distribution and
food preparation costs, and shipping and handling costs. The
Company receives various rebates from third party vendors
in the form of quantity discounts and payments under coop-
erative advertising agreements. Quantity discounts and co-
operative advertising discounts in excess of identifiable ad-
vertising costs are recognized as a reduction of cost of goods
sold when the related merchandise is sold. Occupancy costs
include store rental costs, property taxes, utility costs, repair
and maintenance, and property insurance.

Vendor Rebates and Allowances

The Company receives various rebates from third party ven-
dors in the form of purchase or sales volume discounts and
payments under cooperative advertising agreements. Pur-
chase volume discounts are calculated based on actual pur-
chase volumes. Volume discounts and cooperative advertis-
ing discounts in excess of identifiable advertising costs are
recognized as a reduction of cost of goods sold when the
related merchandise is sold.

Direct Store Expenses

Direct store expenses consist of store-level expenses such
as salaries and benefits costs, supplies, depreciation, com-
munity marketing and other store-specific costs.

Advertising

Advertising and marketing expense for fiscal years 2009,
2008 and 2007 was approximately $32.9 million, $39.7 mil-
lion, and $33.0 million, respectively. Advertising costs are
charged to expense as incurred and are included in the “Di-
rect store expenses” line item on the Consolidated State-
ments of Operations.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses consist of salaries and
benefits costs, occupancy and other related costs asso-
ciated with corporate and regional administrative support
services.

Pre-Opening Expenses

Pre-opening expenses include rent expense incurred dur-
ing construction of new stores and costs related to new
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store openings, including costs associated with hiring and
training personnel, smallwares, supplies and other miscel-
laneous costs. Rent expense is generally incurred approxi-
mately thirteen months prior to a store’s opening date. Other
pre-opening expenses are incurred primarily in the 30 days
prior to a new store opening. Pre-opening costs are expensed
as incurred.

Relocation, Store Closure and Lease Termination Costs

Relocation costs consist of moving costs, estimated remain-
ing net lease payments, accelerated depreciation costs, re-
lated asset impairment, and other costs associated with re-
placed facilities. Store closure costs consist of estimated
remaining lease payments, accelerated depreciation costs,
related asset impairment, and other costs associated with
closed facilities. Lease termination costs consist of estimated
remaining net lease payments for terminated leases and idle
properties, and associated asset impairments.

Share-Based Payments

The Company maintains several share-based incentive
plans. We grant options to purchase common stock un-
der our Whole Foods Market 2009 Stock Incentive Plan,
which was approved at our annual shareholders’ meeting on
March 16, 2009 and replaces the Whole Foods Market 2007
Stock Incentive Plan. All options outstanding are governed
by the original terms and conditions of the grants. Options
are granted at an option price equal to the market value of the
stock at the grant date and are generally exercisable ratably
over a four-year period beginning one year from grant date
and have a five or seven year term. The grant date is estab-
lished once the Company’s Board of Directors approves the
grant and all key terms have been determined. The exercise
prices of our stock option grants are the closing price on the
grant date. Stock option grant terms and conditions are com-
municated to team members within a relatively short period
of time. Our Company generally approves one primary stock
option grant annually, occurring during a trading window.

Our Company offers a team member stock purchase plan
to all full-time team members with a minimum of 400 hours of
service. Participating team members may purchase our com-
mon stock through payroll deductions. At our 2007 annual
meeting, shareholders approved a new Team Member Stock
Purchase Plan (“TMSPP”) which became effective on April 1,
2007. The TMSPP replaces all previous stock purchase plans
and provides for a 5% discount on the shares purchase date
market value which meets the share-based payment, “Safe
Harbor” provisions, and therefore is non-compensatory. As
a result, no future compensation expense will be recognized
for our employee stock purchase plan. Under the previous
plans, participating team members could elect to purchase
unrestricted shares at 100% of market value or restricted
shares at 85% of market value on the purchase date.

The Company uses the Black-Scholes multiple option pric-
ing model which requires extensive use of accounting judg-
ment and financial estimates, including estimates of the
expected term team members will retain their vested stock
options before exercising them, the estimated volatility of the
Company’s common stock price over the expected term, and
the number of options that will be forfeited prior to the com-
pletion of their vesting requirements. The related share-based
payment expense is recognized on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period. The tax savings resulting from tax deduc-
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tions in excess of expense reflected in the Company’s finan-
cial statements are reflected as a financing cash flow. Appli-
cation of alternative assumptions could produce significantly
different estimates of the fair value of share-based payment
expense and consequently, the related amounts recognized
in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Income Taxes

We recognize deferred income tax assets and liabilities by
applying statutory tax rates in effect at the balance sheet
date to differences between the book basis and the tax ba-
sis of assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to
taxable income in the years in which those temporary dif-
ferences are expected to reverse. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are adjusted to reflect changes in tax laws or rates
in the period that includes the enactment date. Significant
accounting judgment is required in determining the provision
for income taxes and related accruals, deferred tax assets
and liabilities. The Company believes that its tax positions
are consistent with applicable tax, but certain positions may
be challenged by taxing authorities. In the ordinary course of
business, there are transactions and calculations where the
ultimate tax outcome is uncertain. In addition, we are subject
to periodic audits and examinations by the Internal Revenue
Service (“IRS”) and other state and local taxing authorities.
Although we believe that our estimates are reasonable, actual
results could differ from these estimates.

In fiscal year 2008, the Company adopted amendments to
ASC 740, “Income Taxes,” which clarify the accounting for
uncertainty in tax positions recognized in the financial state-
ments. Under these provisions, the Company may recognize
the tax benefit from an uncertain tax position only if it is more
likely than not that the tax position will be sustained on ex-
amination by the taxing authorities based on the technical
merits of the position. The tax benefits recognized in the fi-
nancial statements from such a position should be measured
based on the largest benefit that has a greater than 50% like-
lihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement. The related
amendments also provide guidance on measurement, classi-
fication, interest and penalties associated with tax positions,
and income tax disclosures. See Note 11 to the consolidated
financial statements, “Income Taxes,” for further discussion.

Treasury Stock

The Company maintains a stock repurchase program which
expired subsequent to year end on November 8, 2009. Under
this program, the Company may repurchase shares of the
Company’s common stock on the open market that are held
in treasury at cost. The subsequent retirement of treasury
stock is recorded as a reduction in retained earnings at cost.
The Company’s common stock has no par value.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing net in-
come available to common shareholders by the weighted
average number of common shares outstanding during the
fiscal period. Net income available to common shareholders
in fiscal year 2009 is calculated using the two-class method,
which is an earnings allocation method for computing earn-
ings per share when an entity’s capital structure includes
common stock and participating securities. The two-class
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method determines earnings per share based on dividends
declared on common stock and participating securities (i.e.,
distributed earnings) and participation rights of participating
securities in any undistributed earnings. The application of
the two-class method is required since the Company’s re-
deemable preferred shares contain a participation feature.
See further discussion in Note 12 to the consolidated fi-
nancial statements, “Redeemable Preferred Stock.” Diluted
earnings per share is based on the weighted average number
of common shares outstanding plus, where applicable, the
additional common shares that would have been outstand-
ing as a result of the conversion of convertible debt, dilutive
options, and redeemable preferred stock.

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income consists of net income; unrealized
gains and losses on marketable securities; unrealized gains
and losses on cash flow hedge instruments, including re-
classification adjustments of unrealized losses to net income
related to ongoing interest payments; and foreign currency
translation adjustments, net of income taxes. Comprehen-
sive income is reflected in the Consolidated Statements
of Shareholders’ Equity and Comprehensive Income. At
September 27, 2009, accumulated other comprehensive in-
come consisted of foreign currency translation adjustment
losses of approximately $0.7 million and unrealized losses on
cash flow hedge instruments of approximately $12.6 million.
At September 28, 2008, accumulated other comprehensive
income consisted of foreign currency translation adjustment
gains of approximately $8.0 million and unrealized losses on
cash flow hedge instruments of approximately $7.6 million.

Foreign Currency Translation

The Company’s Canadian and United Kingdom operations
use their local currency as their functional currency. Begin-
ning in fiscal year 2009, foreign currency transaction gains
and losses related to Canadian intercompany operations are
charged to net income in the period incurred. The Company
recognized foreign currency expense totaling approximately
$0.9 million in fiscal year 2009. Intercompany transaction
gains and losses associated with our United Kingdom op-
erations are excluded from the determination of net income
since these transactions are considered long-term invest-
ments in nature. Assets and liabilities are translated at ex-
change rates in effect at the balance sheet date. Income and
expense accounts are translated at the average monthly ex-
change rates during the year. Resulting translation adjust-
ments are recorded as a separate component of accumu-
lated other comprehensive income.
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Segment Information

The Company has one operating segment and a single re-
portable segment, natural and organic foods supermarkets.
We currently have six stores in Canada and five stores in the
United Kingdom. All of our remaining operations are domes-
tic. The following is a summary of annual percentage sales
and net long-lived assets by geographic area:

2009 2008 2007

Sales:

United States 97.2%  96.5%  97.3%
Canada and United Kingdom 2.8% 3.5% 2.7%
Total sales 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Long-lived assets, net:

United States 96.5%  964%  95.1%
Canada and United Kingdom 3.5% 3.6% 4.9%
Total long-lived assets, net 100.0% 100.0%  100.0%

The following is a summary of annual percentage sales by
product category:

2009 2008 2007

Grocery 338%  332%  32.0%
Prepared foods 19.1%  19.3%  19.8%
Other perishables 471%  475%  48.3%
Total sales 100.0% 100.0%  100.0%

Figures may not sum due to rounding.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles requires manage-
ment to make estimates and assumptions that affect the re-
ported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and revenues and expenses during the period
reported. Actual amounts could differ from those estimates.

Reclassifications

Where appropriate, we have reclassified prior years’ financial
statements to conform to current year presentation. Specifi-
cally we have reclassified the effect of the determination to re-
tire treasury shares in fiscal year 2008 totaling approximately
$200.0 million previously classified in “Common stock” to
“Retained earnings” on the consolidated balance sheet as
of September 28, 2008. The Company has determined that
all or a portion of the excess of purchase price over par or
stated value associated with the retirement of treasury shares
is required to be charged to retained earnings in accordance
with ASC 505-30, “Equity-Treasury Stock,” and has elected
to charge the entire excess to retained earnings. The Com-
pany’s common stock has no par value. The Company has
made a corresponding adjustment to its consolidated state-
ments of shareholders’ equity and comprehensive income
to reflect the reclassification. There was no impact on previ-
ously reported statements of operations, earning per share
amounts, statements of cash flows or total shareholders’ eq-
uity as aresult of this reclassification. Additionally, this reclas-
sification does not impact compliance with any applicable
debt covenants in the Company’s credit agreements.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2007, the FASB issued new guidance within
ASC 805, “Business Combinations,” which replaces previ-
ous guidance in this Topic and applies to all transactions or
other events in which an entity obtains control of one or more
businesses, including those sometimes referred to as “true
mergers” or “mergers of equals” and combinations achieved
without the transfer of consideration. The new provisions es-
tablish principles and requirements for how the acquirer rec-
ognizes and measures identifiable assets acquired, liabilities
assumed, any noncontrolling interest and goodwill acquired,
and also provide for disclosures to enable users of the fi-
nancial statements to evaluate the nature and financial ef-
fects of the business combination. Additional amendments
address the recognition and initial measurement, subsequent
measurement, and disclosure of assets and liabilities arising
from contingencies acquired as part of a business combina-
tion. The newly issued guidance is effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2008 and is applied prospec-
tively to business combinations completed on or after that
date. The provisions are effective for the Company’s fiscal
year ending September 26, 2010. We will evaluate the im-
pact, if any, that the adoption of these provisions could have
on our consolidated financial statements.

In December 2007, the FASB issued amendments to ASC
810, “Consolidation.” These provisions establish accounting
and reporting standards for noncontrolling interests (“minor-
ity interests”) in subsidiaries, and clarify that a noncontrolling
interest in a subsidiary should be accounted for as a compo-
nent of equity separate from the parent’s equity. Additionally,
these amendments serve to improve the consistency of guid-
ance in ASC Topics 810 and 805. The amended guidance is
effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fis-
cal years, beginning after December 15, 2008 and is applied
prospectively, except for presentation and disclosure require-
ments, which will apply retrospectively. These provisions are
effective for the Company’s first quarter of fiscal year ending
September 26, 2010. We are currently evaluating the impact,
if any, that the adoption of these provisions will have on our
consolidated financial statements.

In April 2008, the FASB issued amendments to ASC 350,
“Intangibles—Goodwill and Other.” These provisions amend
the factors that should be considered in developing renewal
or extension assumptions used to determine the useful life
of a recognized intangible asset. The intent of the position
is to improve the consistency between the determination of
the useful life of a recognized intangible asset and the period
of expected cash flows used to measure the fair value of
the asset. The amended guidance is effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2008. These provisions are
effective for the Company’s fiscal year ending September 26,
2010. We will evaluate the impact, if any, that the adoption
of these provisions could have on our consolidated financial
statements.

In May 2008, the FASB issued amendments to ASC 470,
“Debt,” which clarify that convertible debt instruments that
may be settled in cash upon conversion (including partial
cash settlement) were not addressed by previously existing
guidance and specifies that such users should separately
account for the liability and equity components in a manner
that will reflect the entity’s nonconvertible debt borrowing
rate when interest cost is recognized in subsequent periods.
The amended guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 2008, and interim periods within those
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fiscal years. These provisions are effective for the Company’s
first quarter of fiscal year ending September 26, 2010. We
are currently evaluating the impact, if any, that the adoption
of these provisions will have on our consolidated financial
statements.

In August 2009, the FASB issued ASU No. 2009-04, “Ac-
counting for Redeemable Equity Instruments—Amendment
to Section 480-10-S99.” The amended guidance represents
technical changes to ASC 480, “Distinguishing Liabilities
from Equity,” to reflect SEC staff pronouncements on EITF
Topic D-98, “Classification and Measurement of Redeemable
Securities.” The guidance provided in ASU No. 2009-04 is ef-
fective for the first reporting period, including interim periods,
beginning afterissuance. ASU No. 2009-04 is effective for the
Company’s first quarter of fiscal year ending September 26,
2010. We are currently evaluating the impact, if any, that the
adoption of ASU No. 2009-04 will have on our consolidated
financial statements.

In August 2009, the FASB issued ASU No. 2009-05, “Mea-
suring Liabilities at Fair Value,” which amends ASC 820, “Fair
Value Measurements and Disclosures.” ASU No. 2009-05
provides clarification for the valuation techniques available
when valuing a liability when a quoted price for an identical li-
ability is not available, and clarifies that no adjustment is nec-
essary related to the existence of restrictions that prevent the
transfer of the liability. The amendments in this update require
the use of valuation techniques that use the quoted price of
an identical liability when traded as an asset, or quoted prices
for similar liabilities or similar liabilities when traded as assets.
The guidance provided in ASU No. 2009-05 is effective for
the first reporting period, including interim periods, beginning
after issuance on August 26, 2009. ASU No. 2009-05 is ef-
fective for the Company’s first quarter of fiscal year ending
September 26, 2010. We are currently evaluating the impact,
if any, that the adoption of ASU No. 2009-05 will have on our
consolidated financial statements.

In September 2009, the FASB issued ASU No. 2009-
08, “Earnings per Share—Amendments to Sections 260-10-
S99.” The amended guidance represents technical changes
to ASC 260, “Earnings per Share,” to reflect SEC staff pro-
nouncements on EITF Topic D-53, “Computation of Earnings
Per Share for a Period that Includes a Redemption or an In-
duced Conversion of a Portion of a Class of Preferred Stock,”
and EITF Topic D-42, “The Effect of the Calculation of Earn-
ings per Share for the Redemption or Induced Conversion of
Preferred Stock.” The update consisted principally of format-
ting changes and removing out-of-date guidance. The provi-
sions of ASU No. 2009-08 are effective for the first reporting
period, including interim periods, beginning after issuance.
ASU No. 2009-08 is effective for the Company’s first quarter
of fiscal year ending September 26, 2010. We are currently
evaluating the impact, if any, that the adoption of ASU No.
2009-08 will have on our consolidated financial statements.
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ACCOUNTING CHANGES

1.48 FASB ASC 250, Accounting Changes and Error Cor-
rections, defines various types of accounting changes, in-
cluding a change in accounting principle, and provided guid-
ance on the manner of reporting each type.

1.49 FASB ASC 250 requires, unless impracticable or oth-
erwise specified by applicable authoritative guidance, ret-
rospective application to prior periods’ financial statements
of a change in accounting principle. Retrospective applica-
tion is the application of a different accounting principle to
prior accounting periods as if that principle had always been
used. More specifically, retrospective application involves the
following:

e The cumulative effect of the change on periods prior
to those presented shall be reflected in the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities as of the beginning of
the first period presented.

¢ An offsetting adjustment, if any, shall be made to the
opening balance of retained earnings (or other appro-
priate component of equity or net assets in the state-
ment of financial position) for that period.

e Financial statements for each individual prior period
presented shall be adjusted to reflect the period-
specific effects of applying the new accounting
principle.

1.50 FASB ASC 250 also requires that a change in depre-
ciation, amortization, or depletion method be accounted for
prospectively as a change in accounting estimate effected
by a change in accounting principle. A change in accounting
estimate is accounted for either in the period of change if the
change affects that period only, or the period of change and
future periods if the change affects both.

1.51 Table 1-8 lists the accounting changes disclosed by
the survey entities. As indicated in Table 1-8, most of the
accounting changes disclosed by the survey entities were
changes made to conform to requirements stated in newly
adopted authoritative pronouncements.

1.52 Examples of accounting change disclosures follow.
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TABLE 1-8: ACCOUNTING CHANGES

Number of Entities
2009 2008 2007 2006

Noncontrolling interests............... 9%  N/C* N/C* N/C*
Fair value measurements............ 51 175 2 —
Business combinations................ 46 N/C* N/C* N/C*
Defined benefit pension and

postretirement plans................. 44 59 138 303
Financial instruments with debt

and equity characteristics......... 20 N/IC* N/C* N/C*
Derivatives and hedging

ACHVIIES ... 18 5 — —
Earnings per share...........c.coc..u... 17 NIC* N/C* N/C*
Income tax uncertainties.............. ® 161 369 1
INVENLONIES......cviveiciceieieia 4 4 3 8
Prior period financial statement

misstatements............ccccoeeeenee. 3 6 10 18
Consolidation of variable interest

ENHLES oo 3 — — —
Impairment or disposal of

long-lived assets.............cococenee 2 1 — 2
Asset retirement obligations........ 2 — — 29
Servicing of financial assets........ 2 — — 4
Stock based compensation......... — — 42 437
Other ..o, 22 24 26 22

* N/C = Not compiled. Line item was not included in the table for
the year shown.

2008-2009 based on 500 entities surveyed; 2006—2007 based on

600 entities surveyed.

Noncontrolling Interests
1.54
EMC CORPORATION (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A (In Part): Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation

These consolidated financial statements include the ac-
counts of EMC, its wholly-owned subsidiaries and VMware,
a company that is majority-owned by EMC. All intercompany
transactions have been eliminated.

As described in Note C, in August 2007, EMC and VMware
completed transactions involving the sale of VMware com-
mon stock which reduced EMC'’s interest in VMware from
100% to approximately 84% and 81% as of December 31,
2008 and 2009, respectively. VMware’s financial results have
been consolidated with that of EMC for all periods presented
as EMC is VMware’s controlling stockholder. The portion of
the results of operations of VMware allocable to its other own-
ers is shown as net income attributable to the non-controlling
interest in VMware, Inc. on EMC’s consolidated income state-
ments. Additionally, the cumulative portion of the results of
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operations of VMware allocable to its other owners, along
with the interest in the net assets of VMware attributable to
those other owners, is shown as non-controlling interest in
VMware, Inc. on EMC’s consolidated balance sheets.

B (In Part): Adoption of New Authoritative Guidance and
Revised Financial Statements

Effective January 1, 2009, we adopted new authoritative
guidance for non-controlling interests in Consolidated Fi-
nancial Statements. The guidance requires that (a) the own-
ership interest in subsidiaries be clearly identified, labeled
and presented in the consolidated statement of financial po-
sition within equity, but separate from the parent’s equity,
(b) the amount of consolidated net income attributable to the
parent and to the non-controlling interest be clearly identi-
fied and presented on the face of the consolidated income
statement, and (c) changes in a parent’s ownership interest
while the parent retains its controlling financial interest in its
subsidiary be accounted for consistently within equity. A par-
ent’s ownership interest in a subsidiary changes if the parent
purchases additional ownership interest in its subsidiary, the
parent sells some of its ownership interest or the subsidiary
issues additional ownership interests. Upon adoption of the
guidance, previously reported financial statements were re-
vised and we reclassified the previously reported Minority in-
terest in VMware to a component of shareholders’ equity as
non-controlling interest in VMware, Inc. Previously reported
Minority interest was renamed Net income attributable to the
non-controlling interest in VMware, Inc. See Note C.

C. Non-controlling Interest in VMware, Inc.

In the third quarter of 2007, VMware completed an initial pub-
lic offering (“IPO”) of its Class A common stock. Prior to the
IPO, EMC amended VMware’s certificate of incorporation to
authorize shares of Class A and Class B common stock.
After a conversion of existing common stock into Class A
and Class B common stock, EMC held 32.5 million shares of
Class A common stock and 300.0 million shares of Class B
common stock. The ownership rights of Class A and Class B
common stock are the same, except with respect to voting,
conversion, certain actions that require the consent of hold-
ers of Class B common stock and other protective provisions.
Each share of Class B common stock has ten votes, while
each share of Class A common stock has one vote for all
matters to be voted on by stockholders. In the IPO, VMware
sold 37.95 million shares of its Class A common stock
at $29.00 per share, resulting in net proceeds of approxi-
mately $1,035.2 million. The gain of $551.1 million, net of
taxes, of $330.7 million from this transaction was recorded
as an increase to additional paid-in capital which reflects the
amount of EMC’s share of VMware’s net assets (after non-
controlling interest) in excess of EMC’s carrying value prior
to the IPO.

In October 2008, we purchased 500,000 shares of
VMware’s Class A common stock from Intel Capital Corpo-
ration for $13.3 million.

The non-controlling interests’ share of equity in VMware
is reflected as Non-controlling interest in VMware, Inc. in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets and was $510.6
million and $327.5 million as of December 31, 2009 and 2008,
respectively. At December 31, 2009, EMC held approximately
98% of the combined voting power of VMware’s outstand-
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ing common stock and approximately 81% of the economic
interest in VMware.

The effects of changes in our ownership interest in VMware
on our equity were as follows (table in thousands):

2009 2008
$1,088,077  $1,275,104

Net income attributable to EMC Corporation

Transfers (to) from the non-controlling

interest in VMware, Inc.:
Increase in EMC Corporation’s additional

paid-in-capital for VMware’s equity

issuances 85,226 81,029
Decrease in EMC Corporation’s additional

paid-in-capital for VMware’s other equity

activity (59,657) (54,179)

Net transfers from non-controlling interest 25,569 26,850

Change from net income attributable to
EMC Corporation and transfers from the
non-controlling interest in VMware, Inc.

$1,113,646  $1,301,954

1.55
KIMBERLY-CLARK CORPORATION (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 (In Part): Accounting Policies

New Accounting Standards (In Part)

Also, effective January 1, 2009, as required:

e The Corporation adopted new FASB guidance with re-
spect to the classification of noncontrolling interests
(formerly minority interests) in its consolidated financial
statements. See Note 11 for additional detsail.

e The Corporation expanded disclosures about derivative
instruments and hedging activities.

e (Certain share-based payment awards entitled to non-
forfeitable dividends or dividend equivalents were de-
termined to be participating securities, which are in-
cluded in the computation of basic and diluted earn-
ings per share under the two-class method. Under the
two-class method, earnings per share are computed
by allocating net income between shares of common
stock and participating securities.

Note 11 (In Part): Stockholders’ Equity

Effective January 1, 2009, as required, the following changes
were made with respect to the classification of noncontrolling
interests (formerly minority owners’ interest in subsidiaries).
In addition, prior year amounts in the Consolidated Finan-
cial Statements have been recast to conform to the new
requirements.

e Noncontrolling interests, which are not redeemable at
the option of the noncontrolling interests, were reclas-
sified from the mezzanine to equity, separate from the
parent’s stockholders’ equity, in the Consolidated Bal-
ance Sheet. Common securities, redeemable at the op-
tion of the noncontrolling interest and carried at re-
demption values of approximately $41 million and $35
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million as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively,
are classified in a line item combined with redeemable
preferred securities of subsidiary in the Consolidated
Balance Sheet.
e Consolidated net income was recast to include net in-
come attributable to both the Corporation and noncon-
trolling interests.
Set forth below are reconciliations for each of the three years
ending December 31, 2009 of the carrying amount of to-
tal stockholders’ equity from the beginning of the period to
the end of the period and an allocation of this equity to the
stockholders of the Corporation and Noncontrolling Inter-
ests. In addition, because a portion of netincome is allocable
to redeemable securities of subsidiaries, which is classified
outside of stockholders’ equity, each of the reconciliations
displays the amount of net income allocable to redeemable
securities of subsidiaries.
Stockholders’ Equity Attributable to Redeemable
Comprehensive Noncontrolling Securities of
(Millions of dollars) Income The Corporation Interests Subsidiaries
Balance at December 31, 2006 $6,098 $404 $ 812
Comprehensive income:
Net income $1,951 1,823 85 43
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:
Unrealized translation 377 365 12 —
Employee postretirement benefits 266 266 — —
Other 10 10 — —
Total comprehensive income $2,604
Stock-based awards 345 — —
Income tax benefits on stock-based compensation 32 — —
Shares repurchased (2,811) — —
Recognition of stock-based compensation 63 — —
Dividends declared (933) (30) —
Additional investment in subsidiary and other — (5) 171
Return on noncontrolling interests — (3) —
Adoption of uncertain tax positions accounting standard (34) — —
Balance at December 31, 2007 $5,224 $463 $1,026
Comprehensive income:
Net income $1,829 1,690 82 57
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:
Unrealized translation (982) (900) (81) (1)
Employee postretirement benefits (689) (687) 2) —
Other (8) (8) — —
Total comprehensive income $ 150
Stock-based awards 105 — —
Income tax benefits on stock-based compensation 10 — —
Shares repurchased (636) — —
Recognition of stock-based compensation 47 — —
Dividends declared (966) (51) (1
Additional investment in subsidiary and other (1) (25) (2)
Return on redeemable preferred securities and noncontrolling
interests — (3) (47)
Balance at December 31, 2008 $ 3,878 $383 $1,032
(continued)
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Stockholders’ Equity Attributable to

Redeemable
Comprehensive Noncontrolling Securities of
(Millions of dollars) Income The Corporation Interests Subsidiaries
Balance at December 31, 2008 $3,878 $383 $1,032
Comprehensive income:
Net income $1,994 1,884 54 56
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:
Unrealized translation 625 619 6 —
Employee postretirement benefits (34) (32) 2) —
Other 3 3 — —
Total comprehensive income $2,588
Stock-based awards 150 — —
Income tax benefits on stock-based compensation 7 — —
Shares repurchased (7) — —
Recognition of stock-based compensation 86 — —
Dividends declared (996) (45) (1
Additional investment in subsidiary and other (186) (111) 18
Return on redeemable preferred securities and noncontrolling
interests — (1) (93)
Balance at December 31, 2009 $5,406 $ 284 $1,052

GAAP requires that the purchase of additional ownership in
an already controlled subsidiary be treated as an equity trans-
action with no gain or loss recognized in consolidated net
income or comprehensive income. GAAP also requires the
presentation of the below schedule displaying the effect of a
change in ownership interest between the Corporation and a
noncontrolling interest.

(Millions of dollars)

Net Income attributable to Kimberly-Clark Corporation $1,884
Decrease in Kimberly-Clark Corporation’s additional
paid-in capital for purchase of remaining shares in its

Andean subsidiary® (133)
Change from net income attributable to Kimberly-Clark
Corporation and transfers to noncontrolling interests $1,751

@ During the first quarter of 2009, the Corporation acquired the re-
maining approximate 31 percent interest in its Andean region sub-
sidiary, Colombiana Kimberly Colpapel S.A., for $289 million. The
acquisition was recorded as an equity transaction that reduced
noncontrolling interests, AOCI and additional paid-in capital by
approximately $278 million and increased investments in equity
companies by approximately $11 million.

Fair Value Measurements
1.56
CHIQUITA BRANDS INTERNATIONAL, INC. (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 (In Part): Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Goodwill, Trademarks and Intangible Assets

Impairment reviews are highly judgmental and involve the use
of significant estimates and assumptions, which have a sig-
nificant impact on whether there is potential impairment and
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the amount of any impairment charge recorded. Fair value as-
sessments involve estimates of discounted cash flows that
are dependent upon discount rates and long-term assump-
tions regarding future sales and margin trends, market con-
ditions and cash flow, from which actual results may differ.
Fair value measurements used in the impairment reviews of
goodwill and intangible assets are Level 3 measurements,
as described in Note 12. See further information about the
company’s policy for fair value measurements below under
“Fair Value Measurements” and in Note 12.

Gooawill

Goodwill is reviewed for impairment each fourth quarter,
or more frequently if circumstances indicate the possibility
of impairment. Goodwill primarily relates to the company’s
salad operations, Fresh Express. The 2009 and 2007 reviews
did not indicate impairment; however, as a result of the 2008
review, the company recorded a $375 million ($374 million
after-tax) goodwill impairment charge in the fourth quarter of
2008. During the second half of 2008 and particularly in the
fourth quarter, Fresh Express performed below prior periods
and management expectations. Fresh Express’ lower 2008
operating performance, along with slower growth expecta-
tions, negative category volume trends and a decline in mar-
ket values resulting from weakness in the general economy
as well as the financial markets, led to the 2008 goodwill
impairment charge. These impairment indicators coincided
with the company’s annual impairment testing in the fourth
quarter of 2008.

The first step of the impairment review compares the fair
value of the reporting unit, Fresh Express, to the carrying
value. Consistent with prior impairment reviews, the com-
pany estimated the fair value of the reporting unit using
a combination of a market approach based on multiples
of revenue and earnings before interest, taxes, deprecia-
tion and amortization (“EBITDA”) from recent comparable
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transactions and an income approach based on expected
future cash flows discounted at 9.4% in 2009 and 9.5% in
2008. The market approach and the income approach were
weighted equally based on judgment of the comparability of
the recent transactions and the risks inherent in estimating
future cash flows in a difficult economic environment. Man-
agement considered recent economic and industry trends
in estimating Fresh Express’ expected future cash flows in
the income approach. In 2009, the first step did not indi-
cate potential impairment because the estimated fair value
of Fresh Express was substantially greater than its carrying
value; therefore, the second step was not required. In 2008,
however, the first step indicated potential impairment, so the
company performed the second step of the impairment re-
view, which calculated the implied value of goodwill by sub-
tracting the fair value of Fresh Express’ assets and liabilities,
including intangible assets, from the previously estimated fair
value of Fresh Express as a whole. Impairment was measured
as the difference between the implied value and the carrying
value of goodwiill.

Reasonably possible fluctuations in the discount rate, cash
flows or market multiples in the 2009 analysis did not indi-
cate impairment. In the 2008 impairment review, an increase
in the discount rate of 0.5% would have increased the im-
pairment charge by approximately $20 million and a 5.0%
per year decrease in the expected future cash flows would
have increased the impairment charge by $15 million.

Trademarks

Trademarks are indefinite-lived intangible assets that are not
amortized and are also reviewed each fourth quarter or more
frequently if circumstances indicate the possibility of impair-
ment. The review compares the estimated fair values of the
trademarks to the carrying values. The 2009, 2008 and 2007
reviews did not indicate impairment because the estimated
fair values were greater than the carrying values. Consistent
with prior reviews, the company estimated the fair values
of the trademarks using the relief-from-royalty method. The
relief-from-royalty method estimates the royalty expense that
could be avoided in the operating business as a result of
owning the respective trademarks. The royalty savings are
measured by applying a royalty rate to projected sales, tax-
effected and then converted to present value with a discount
rate that considers the risk associated with owning the trade-
marks. In the 2009 review, the company assumed a 3.0% roy-
alty rate, a 13.0% discount rate and a 38% tax rate for both
Chiquita and Fresh Express trademarks. In the 2008 review,
the company assumed a 3.0% royalty rate for Chiquita trade-
marks, a 1.0% royalty rate for Fresh Express trademarks, and
a 12% discount rate and 38% tax rate for both Chiquita and
Fresh Express trademarks. In 2009, the company changed
the royalty rate assumed for the Fresh Express trademarks
to more closely align it with market data for similar royalty
agreements. The fair value estimate is most sensitive to the
royalty rate but reasonably possible fluctuations in the roy-
alty rates for both the Chiquita and Fresh Express trademarks
also did not indicate impairment. The fair value estimate is
less sensitive to the discount rate and reasonably possible
changes to the discount rate would not indicate impairment
for either trademark.
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Other Intangible Assets

The company’s intangible assets with a definite life consist
of customer relationships and patented technology related to
Fresh Express. These assets are amortized on a straight-line
basis (which approximates the attrition method) over their
estimated remaining lives. The weighted average remain-
ing lives of the Fresh Express customer relationships and
patented technology are 14 years and 12 years, respectively.
As amortizable intangible assets, the company reviews the
carrying value only when impairment indicators are present,
by comparing (i) estimates of undiscounted future cash flows,
before interest charges, included in the company’s operat-
ing plans versus (ii) the carrying values of the related assets.
Tests are performed over asset groups at the lowest level of
identifiable cash flows. No impairment indicators existed in
2009. The goodwill impairment charge recorded in the fourth
quarter of 2008 was an impairment indicator; however, no
impairment resulted from testing these assets.

Fair Value Measurements

Effective January 1, 2008, the company adopted new ac-
counting standards for fair value measurements of financial
assets and financial liabilities. In February 2008, the effective
date of these standards related to nonfinancial assets and
nonfinancial liabilities was postponed until fiscal years be-
ginning after November 15, 2008 and, accordingly, the com-
pany adopted these standards effective January 1, 2009. Fair
value measurements of nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial
liabilities are primarily used in goodwill and other intangible
asset impairment reviews and in the valuation of assets held
for sale.

The standards provide a framework for measuring fair
value, which prioritizes the use of observable inputs in mea-
suring fair value. Fair value is the price to hypothetically sell
an asset or transfer a liability in an orderly manner in the prin-
cipal market for that asset or liability. The standards address
valuation techniques used to measure fair value including
the market approach, the income approach and the cost ap-
proach. The market approach uses prices or relevant infor-
mation generated by market transactions involving identical
or comparable assets or liabilities. The income approach in-
volves converting future cash flows to a single present value,
with the fair value measurement based on current market ex-
pectations about those future cash flows. The cost approach
is based on the amount that currently would be required to
replace the service capacity of the asset.

See further information related to fair value measurements
above under “Goodwill, Trademarks and Intangible Assets”
and in Notes 12 and 14.
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Note 12. Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is the price to hypothetically sell an asset or transfer
a liability in an orderly manner in the principal market for that
asset or liability. Accounting standards prioritize the use of
observable inputs in measuring fair value. The level of a fair
value measurement is determined entirely by the lowest level
input that is significant to the measurement. The three levels
are (from highest to lowest):

e |evel 1—observable prices in active markets for iden-
tical assets and liabilities;

e |evel 2—observable inputs other than quoted market
prices in active markets for identical assets and liabil-
ities, which include quoted prices for similar assets or
liabilities in an active market and market-corroborated
inputs; and

e Level 3—unobservable inputs.

At December 31, 2009, the company carried the following
financial assets and liabilities at fair value:

Fair Value Measurements Using

Quoted Prices in

Active Markets for Significant Other Unobservable
Identical Assets ~ Observable Inputs Inputs
(In thousands) 2009 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Purchased euro put options $ 6,527 $§ — $ 6,527 $—
Bunker fuel forward contracts 6,257 — 6,257 —
Available-for-sale investment 3,034 3,034 — —
$15,818 $3,034 $12,784 $—

At December 31, 2008, the company carried the following

financial assets and liabilities at fair value:
Fair Value Measurements Using
Quoted Prices in

Active Markets for Significant Other Unobservable
Identical Assets Observable Inputs Inputs
(In thousands) 2008 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Purchased euro put options $ 47,239 $ — $47,239 $ —
Bunker fuel forward contracts (79,002) — — (79,002)
30-day euro forward contracts 1,832 — 1,832 —
Available-for-sale investment 3,199 3,199 — —
$(26,732) $3,199 $49,071 $(79,002)

The company values fuel hedging positions by applying
an observable discount rate to the current forward prices
of identical hedge positions. The company values cur-
rency hedging positions by utilizing observable or market-
corroborated inputs such as exchange rates, volatility and
forward yield curves. The company trades only with counter-
parties that meet certain liquidity and creditworthiness stan-
dards, and does not anticipate non-performance by any of
these counterparties. The company does not require collat-
eral from its counterparties, nor is it obliged to provide collat-
eral when contracts are in a liability position. However, con-
sideration of non-performance risk is required when valuing
derivative instruments, and the company includes an adjust-
ment for non-performance risk in the fair value measure of
derivative instruments to reflect the full credit default spread
(“CDS”) applied to the net exposure by counterparty. When
there is a net asset position, the company uses the counter-
party’s CDS, which is generally an observable input; when
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there is a net liability position, the company uses its own
estimated CDS, which is an unobservable input. CDS is gen-
erally not a significant input in measuring fair value; however,
at December 31, 2008 the company’s own unobservable
estimated CDS was significant to the fair value measure-
ment of bunker fuel forward contracts, and accordingly, they
were classified as Level 3 measurements. At December 31,
2009, the company’s adjustment for non-performance risk
was not significant for either the purchased euro put options
or the bunker fuel forward contracts. At December 31, 2008,
the company’s adjustment for non-performance risk reduced
the company’s derivative assets for purchased euro put op-
tions by approximately $1 million, and reduced the derivative
liabilities for bunker fuel forward contracts by approximately
$8 million. CDS is not significant to the fair value measure-
ment of 30-day euro forward contracts. See further discus-
sion and tabular disclosure of hedging activity in Note 11.
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The company has not elected to carry its debt at fair value.
The carrying values of the company’s debt represent amor-
tized cost and are summarized below with estimated fair
values:

General 61

2009 2008

Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated
(In thousands) Value Fair Value Value Fair Value
Financial instruments not carried at fair value:
Parent company debt:
7%% senior notes $167,083 $168,000 $195,328 $133,000
874% senior notes 179,185 182,000 188,445 126,000
4.25% convertible senior notes(" 127,138 215,000 120,385 154,000
Subsidiary debt:
Term loan (credit facility) 182,500 175,000 192,500 150,000
Other 163 100 653 600

() The principal amount of the Convertible Notes is $200 million. The carrying amount of the Convertible Notes is less than the principal amount
due to the adoption of new accounting standards for Convertible Notes as described in Note 10.

The fair value of the parent company debt is based on quoted
market prices (Level 1). The term loan may be traded on the
secondary loan market, and the fair value of the term loan is
based on either the last available trading price, if recent, or
trading prices of comparable debt (Level 3). Level 3 fair value
measurements described in Note 1 are used in the impair-
ment reviews of goodwill and intangible assets. Fair value
measurements of benefit plan assets included in net benefit
plan liabilities are discussed in Note 14. The carrying amounts
of cash and equivalents, accounts receivable and accounts
payable approximate fair value.

Note 14 (In Part): Pension and Severance Benefits

Mutual funds, domestic common stock, corporate debt se-
curities and mortgage-backed pass through securities held in
the plans are publicly traded in active markets and are valued
using the net asset value, or closing price of the investment at
the measurement date. There have been no changes in the
methodologies used at December 31, 2009 and 2008. The
methods described above may produce a fair value calcula-
tion that may not be indicative of net realizable value or re-
flective of future fair values. Furthermore, while the company
believes its valuation methods are appropriate and consistent
with other market participants, the use of different method-
ologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain
financial instruments could result in a different fair value mea-
surement at the reporting date.

At December 31, 2009, the fair values of assets of the com-
pany’s pension plans were as follows:

Fair Value Measurements Using

Quoted Prices in

Active Markets for Significant Other
Identical Assets ~ Observable Inputs Unobservable

(In thousands) 2009 (Level 1) (Level 2) Inputs (Level 3)
Domestic pension plans:
Money market accounts 236 $ 236 $ — $—
Mutual funds:

Domestic 6,606 6,606 — —

International 2,023 2,023 — —
Domestic large-cap common stock 4,929 4,929 — —
Fixed income securities:

Corporate bonds 2,352 — 2,352 —

Mortgage-backed pass-throughs 1,549 — 1,549 —

Other 678 — 678 —
Total assets of domestic pension plans 18,373 13,794 4,579 —
Foreign pension and severance plans:
Cash and equivalents 3,508 3,508 — —
Fixed income securities 1,481 — 1,481 —
Total assets of foreign pension and severance plans 4,989 3,508 1,481 —
Total assets of pension and severance plans $23,362 $17,302 $6,060 $—
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1.57
VARIAN MEDICAL SYSTEMS, INC. (SEP)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. Fair Value

Effective September 27, 2008, the Company adopted the
provisions of ASC 820, which defines fair value as the ex-
change price that would be received for an asset or paid to
transfer a liability (an exit price) in the principal or most advan-
tageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transac-
tion between market participants at the measurement date.
ASC 820-10 establishes a three-level fair value hierarchy that
prioritizes the inputs used to measure fair value. This hierar-
chy requires entities to maximize the use of observable inputs
and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The three levels
of inputs used to measure fair value are as follows:

e |evel 1—Quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities.

e |evel 2—Observable inputs other than quoted prices
included in Level 1, such as quoted prices for similar
assets and liabilities in active markets; quoted prices
for identical or similar assets and liabilities in markets
that are not active; or other inputs that are observable
or can be corroborated by observable market data.

e |evel 3—Unobservable inputs that are supported by
little or no market activity and that are significant to the
fair value of the assets or liabilities.

The Company’s financial assets and liabilities are valued us-
ing Level 1 and Level 2 inputs. Level 1 instrument valuations
are obtained from quotes for transactions in active exchange

markets involving identical assets. Level 2 instruments in-
clude valuations obtained from quoted prices for identical as-
sets in markets that are not active. In addition, the Company
has elected to use the income approach to value its derivative
instruments using standard valuation techniques and Level
2 inputs, such as currency spot rates, forward points and
credit default swap spreads. The Company’s derivative in-
struments are short-term in nature, typically one month to
twelve months in duration. As of October 2, 2009, the Com-
pany did not have any financial assets or liabilities without
observable market values that would require a high level of
judgment to determine fair value (Level 3 instruments).

The Company’s adoption of the provisions of ASC 820-10
did not have a material impact on its consolidated financial
statements. The Company has segregated all financial assets
and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring
basis (at least annually) into the most appropriate level within
the fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used to determine
the fair value at the measurement date in the table below.
The Company is not required to apply the provisions of ASC
820-10 for nonfinancial assets and liabilities until the first
quarter of fiscal year 2010, except those that are recognized
or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a re-
curring basis.

Effective September 27, 2008, the Company adopted the
provisions of ASC 825-10-25, which provides entities the op-
tion to measure many financial instruments and certain other
items at fair value. The Company has currently chosen not
to elect the fair value option for any items that are not al-
ready required to be measured at fair value in accordance
with GAAP.

Assets/Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a
Recurring Basis

The following tables present the Company’s financial assets
as of October 2, 2009 that are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis. There were no financial liabilities that were
measured at fair value as of October 2, 2009.

Fair Value Measurement Using

Quoted Prices in Active Significant Other Significant
Markets for Identical Observable Inputs Unobservable Inputs
(In millions) Instruments (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total Balance
Type of instruments
Assets:
Money market funds $85.0 $— $— $85.0
Total assets measured at fair value $85.0 $— $— $85.0
Fair Value Measurement Using
Quoted Prices in Active Significant Other Significant
Markets for Identical Observable Inputs Unobservable Inputs
(In millions) Instruments (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total Balance
Line item in condensed consolidated balance
sheet
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $84.0 $— $— $84.0
Other assets 1.0 — — 1.0
Total assets measured at fair value $85.0 $— $— $85.0
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Business Combinations
1.58
ABBOTT LABORATORIES (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 11. Business Combinations, Technology Acquisitions
and Related Transactions

On January 1, 2009, Abbott adopted the provisions of SFAS
No. 141 (revised 2007), “Business Combinations,” as codified
in FASB ASC No. 805, “Business Combinations.” Under ASC
No. 805, acquired in-process research and development is
accounted for as an indefinite-lived intangible asset until ap-
proval or discontinuation rather than as expense, acquisition
costs in connection with an acquisition are expensed rather
than added to the cost of an acquisition and the fair value
of contingent consideration at the date of an acquisition is
added to the cost of the acquisition.

In February 2009, Abbott acquired the outstanding shares
of Advanced Medical Optics, Inc. (AMO) for approximately
$1.4 billion in cash, net of cash held by AMO. Prior to the
acquisition, Abbott held a small investment in AMO. Abbott
acquired AMO to take advantage of increasing demand for
vision care technologies due to population growth and demo-
graphic shifts and AMO’s premier position in its field. Abbott
acquired control of this business on February 25, 2009 and
the financial results of the acquired operations are included
in these financial statements beginning on that date. The ac-
quisition was financed with long-term debt. The allocation of
the fair value of the acquisition is shown in the table below:

(Dollars in billions)

Goodwill, non-deductible $17
Acquired intangible assets, non-deductible 0.9
Acquired in-process research and development,

non-deductible 0.2
Acquired net tangible assets 0.4
Acquired debt (1.5)
Deferred income taxes recorded at acquisition (0.3)
Total allocation of fair value $14

Acquired intangible assets consist of established customer
relationships, developed technology and trade names and
will be amortized over 2 to 30 years (average of 15 years).
Acquired in-process research and development will be ac-
counted for as an indefinite-lived intangible asset until reg-
ulatory approval or discontinuation. The net tangible assets
acquired consist primarily of trade accounts receivable, in-
ventory, property and equipment and other assets, net of as-
sumed liabilities, primarily trade accounts payable, accrued
compensation and other liabilities. Abbott incurred approx-
imately $89 million of acquisition-related expenses in 2009
which are classified as Selling, general and administrative
expense. In addition, subsequent to the acquisition, Abbott
repaid substantially all of the acquired debt of AMO.

In October 2009, Abbott acquired 100 percent of Visiogen,
Inc. for $400 million, in cash, providing Abbott with a next-
generation accommodating intraocular lens (IOL) technology
to address presbyopia for cataract patients. The preliminary
allocation of the fair value of the acquisition resulted in non-
deductible acquired in-process research and development
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of approximately $195 million which will be accounted for as
an indefinite-lived intangible asset until regulatory approval or
discontinuation, non-deductible definite-lived intangible as-
sets of approximately $33 million, goodwill of approximately
$260 million and deferred income taxes of approximately
$89 million. Acquired intangible assets consist of developed
technology and will be amortized over 12 years. The alloca-
tion of the fair value of the acquisition will be finalized when
the valuation is completed.

In October 2009, Abbott acquired Evalve, Inc. for $320
million, in cash, plus an additional payment of $90 million to
be made upon completion of certain regulatory milestones.
Abbott acquired Evalve to obtain a presence in the growing
area of non-surgical treatment for structural heart disease. In-
cluding a previous investment in Evalve, Abbott has acquired
100 percent of the outstanding shares of Evalve. In connec-
tion with the acquisition, the carrying amount of this invest-
ment was revalued to fair value resulting in recording $28 mil-
lion of income, which is reported as Other (income) expense,
net. The preliminary allocation of the fair value of the acqui-
sition resulted in non-deductible definite-lived intangible as-
sets of approximately $145 million, non-deductible acquired
in-process research and development of approximately
$228 million which will be accounted for as an indefinite-lived
intangible asset until regulatory approval or discontinuation,
goodwill of approximately $158 million and deferred income
taxes of approximately $136 million. Acquired intangible as-
sets consist of developed technology and will be amortized
over 12 years. The allocation of the fair value of the acquisi-
tion will be finalized when the valuation is completed.

In January 2009, Abbott acquired Ibis Biosciences, Inc.
(Ibis) for $175 million, in cash, to expand Abbott’s position
in molecular diagnostics for infectious disease. Including a
$40 million investment in Ibis in 2008, Abbott has acquired
100 percent of the outstanding shares of Ibis. A substantial
portion of the fair value of the acquisition has been allocated
to goodwill and amortizable intangible assets, and acquired
in-process research and development that will be accounted
for as an indefinite-lived intangible asset until regulatory ap-
proval or discontinuation. The investment in Ibis in 2008 re-
sulted in a charge to acquired in-process research and de-
velopment. In connection with the acquisition, the carrying
amount of this investment was revalued to fair value result-
ing in recording $33 million of income, which is reported as
Other (income) expense, net.

Had the above acquisitions taken place on January 1 of
the previous year, consolidated net sales and income would
not have been significantly different from reported amounts.

In December 2009, Abbott acquired the global rights to
a novel biologic for the treatment of chronic pain for $170
million, in cash, resulting in a charge to acquired in-process
research and development.

In September 2009, Abbott announced an agreement to
acquire Solvay’s pharmaceuticals business for EUR 4.5 bil-
lion (approximately $6.2 billion), in cash, plus additional pay-
ments of up to EUR 300 million if certain sales milestones
are met. This acquisition will provide Abbott with a large and
complementary portfolio of pharmaceutical products and a
significant presence in key global emerging markets and will
add approximately $500 million to Abbott’s research and de-
velopment spending. The transaction closed on February 15,
2010. Sales for the acquired business are forecast to be ap-
proximately $2.9 billion in 2010. The allocation of the fair
value of the acquisition will be finalized when the valuation is
completed.
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1.59
BAXTER INTERNATIONAL INC. (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 (In Part): Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Changes in Accounting Standards (In Part)

Business Combinations

On January 1, 2009, the company adopted a new accounting
standard which changes the accounting for business combi-
nations in a number of significant respects. The key changes
include the expansion of transactions that qualify as business
combinations, the capitalization of IPR&D as an indefinite-
lived asset, the recognition of certain acquired contingent
assets and liabilities at fair value, the expensing of acquisition
costs, the expensing of costs associated with restructuring
the acquired company, the recognition of contingent consid-
eration at fair value on the acquisition date, the recognition
of post-acquisition date changes in deferred tax asset valua-
tion allowances and acquired income tax uncertainties as in-
come tax expense or benefit, and the expansion of disclosure
requirements. This standard was applicable for acquisitions
made by the company on or after January 1, 2009, including
the April 2009 consolidation of Sigma International General
Medical Apparatus, LLC (SIGMA) and the August 2009 acqui-
sition of certain assets of Edwards Lifesciences Corporation
(Edwards CRRT) related to the hemofiltration business, also
known as Continuous Renal Replacement Therapy (CRRT).
Refer to Note 4 for further information regarding SIGMA and
Edwards CRRT.

Note 4 (In Part): Acquisitions of and Investments in
Businesses and Technologies

In 2009, 2008 and 2007, cash outflows related to the acqui-
sitions of and investments in businesses and technologies
totaled $156 million, $99 million and $112 million, respec-
tively. The following are the more significant acquisitions and
investments, including licensing agreements that require sig-
nificant contingent milestone payments, entered into in 2009,
2008 and 2007.

2009

SIGMA

In April 2009, the company entered into an exclusive three-
year distribution agreement with SIGMA covering the United
States and international markets. The agreement, which en-
ables Baxter to immediately provide SIGMA’s SPECTRUM
large volume infusion pumps to customers, as well as fu-
ture products under development, complements Baxter’s in-
fusion systems portfolio and next generation technologies.
The arrangement also included a 40% equity stake in SIGMA,
and an option to purchase the remaining equity of SIGMA,
exercisable at any time over a three-year term. The arrange-
ment included a $100 million up-front payment and additional
payments of up to $130 million for the exercise of the pur-
chase option as well as for SIGMA’s achievement of specified
regulatory and commercial milestones.

Because Baxter’s option to purchase the remaining eq-
uity of SIGMA limits the ability of the existing equity hold-
ers to participate significantly in SIGMA’s profits and losses,
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and because the existing equity holders have the ability to
make decisions about SIGMA’s activities that have a signif-
icant effect on SIGMA’s success, the company concluded
that SIGMA is a VIE. Baxter is the primary beneficiary of
the VIE due to its exposure to the majority of SIGMA’s ex-
pected losses or expected residual returns and the relation-
ship between Baxter and SIGMA created by the exclusive
distribution agreement, and the significance of that agree-
ment. Accordingly, the company consolidated the financial
statements of SIGMA beginning in April 2009 (the acquisition
date), with the fair value of the equity owned by the existing
SIGMA equity holders reported as noncontrolling interests.
The creditors of SIGMA do not have recourse to the general
credit of Baxter.

The following table summarizes the preliminary allocation
of fair value related to the arrangement at the acquisition
date.

(In millions)

Assets

Goodwill $ 87
IPR&D 24
Other intangible assets 94
Purchase option (other long-term assets) 111
Other assets 30
Liabilities

Contingent payments 62
Other liabilities 25
Noncontrolling interests 159

The amount allocated to IPR&D is being accounted for as an
indefinite-lived intangible asset until regulatory approval or
discontinuation. The other intangible assets primarily relate to
developed technology and are being amortized on a straight-
line basis over an estimated average useful life of eight years.
The fair value of the purchase option was estimated using the
Black-Scholes model, and the fair value of the noncontrolling
interests was estimated using a discounted cash flow model.
The contingent payments of up to $70 million associated with
SIGMA’s achievement of specified regulatory and commer-
cial milestones were recorded at their estimated fair value
of $62 million. As of December 31, 2009, the estimated fair
value of the contingent payments was $59 million, with the
change in the estimated fair value since inception principally
due to Baxter’s payment of $5 million for the achievement of
a commercial milestone in 2009. Other changes in the esti-
mated fair value of the contingent payments are being rec-
ognized immediately in earnings. The results of operations
and assets and liabilities of SIGMA are included in the Medi-
cation Delivery segment, and the goodwill is included in this
reporting unit. The goodwill is deductible for tax purposes.
The pro forma impact of the arrangement with SIGMA was
not significant to the results of operations of the company.

Edwards CRRT

In August 2009, the company acquired Edwards CRRT. CRRT
provides a method of continuous yet adjustable fluid removal
that can gradually remove excess fluid and waste products
that build up with the acute impairment of kidney function,
and is usually administered in an intensive care setting in
the hospital. The acquisition expands Baxter’s existing CRRT
business into new markets. The purchase price of $56 million
was primarily allocated to other intangible assets and good-
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will. The identified intangible assets of $28 million consisted
of customer relationships and developed technology and are
being amortized on a straight-line basis over an estimated av-
erage useful life of eight years. The goodwill of $28 million is
deductible for tax purposes. Baxter will pay Edwards up to
an additional $9 million in purchase price based on revenue
objectives which are expected to be achieved over the next
two years, and such contingent purchase price was recorded
at its estimated fair value on the acquisition date. The results
of operations and assets and liabilities of Edwards CRRT are
included in the Renal segment, and the goodwill is included
in this reporting unit. The pro forma impact of the Edwards
CRRT acquisition was not significant to the results of opera-
tions of the company.

Defined Benefit Pension and
Postretirement Plans

1.60
CLIFFS NATURAL RESOURCES INC. (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 (In Part): Business Summary and Significant
Accounting Policies

Recent Accounting Pronouncements (In Part)

In December 2008, the FASB issued an update to ASC 715 re-
garding employers’ disclosures about postretirement benefit
plan assets. The amended guidance requires disclosure of
additional information about investment allocation, fair val-
ues of major categories of assets, the development of fair
value measurements, and concentrations of risk. The amend-
ment is effective for fiscal years ending after December 15,
2009; however, earlier application is permitted. We adopted
the amendment upon its effective date and have reported
the required disclosures for our fiscal year ending Decem-
ber 31, 2009. Refer to NOTE 12—PENSIONS AND OTHER
POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS for further information.

Pension Assets

Note 12 (In Part): Pensions and Other
Postretirement Benefits

Plan Assets

The Company’s financial objectives with respect to our pen-
sion and VEBA plan assets are to fully fund the actuarial ac-
crued liability for each of the plans, to maximize investment
returns within reasonable and prudent levels of risk, and to
maintain sufficient liquidity to meet benefit obligations on a
timely basis.

Our investment objective is to outperform the expected
Return on Asset (“ROA”) assumption used in the plans’ ac-
tuarial reports over a full market cycle, which is considered
a period during which the U.S. economy experiences the
effects of both an upturn and a downturn in the level of
economic activity. In general, these periods tend to last be-
tween three and five years. The expected ROA takes into
account historical returns and estimated future long-term re-
turns based on capital market assumptions applied to the
asset allocation strategy.

The asset allocation strategy is determined through a de-
tailed analysis of assets and liabilities by plan which defines
the overall risk that is acceptable with regard to the expected
level and variability of portfolio returns, surplus (assets com-
pared to liabilities), contributions, and pension expense.

The asset allocation process involves simulating the effect
of financial market performance for various asset allocation
scenarios and factoring in the current funded status and likely
future funded status levels by taking into account expected
growth or decline in the contributions over time. The mod-
eling is then adjusted by simulating unexpected changes in
inflation and interest rates. The process also includes quan-
tifying the effect of investment performance and simulated
changes to future levels of contributions, determining the
appropriate asset mix with the highest likelihood of meeting
financial objectives, and regularly reviewing our asset alloca-
tion strategy.

The asset allocation strategy varies by plan. The follow-
ing table reflects the actual asset allocations for pension and
VEBA plan assets as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, as
well as the 2010 weighted average target asset allocations
as of December 31, 2009. Equity investments include securi-
ties in large-cap, mid-cap and small-cap companies located
in the U.S. and worldwide. Fixed income investments primar-
ily include corporate bonds and government debt securities.
Alternative investments include hedge funds, private equity,
structured credit and real estate.

VEBA Assets

Percentage of Percentage of
Target Plan Assets at Target Plan Assets at
Allocation December 31 Allocation December 31
2010 2009 2008 2010 2009 2008
Asset category
Equity securities 37.0% 37.5% 35.8% 42.0% 46.4% 41.8%
Fixed income 30.0 29.9 32.8 35.0 38.3 36.6
Hedge funds 15.0 14.8 15.2 15.0 10.7 14.8
Private equity 9.0 6.6 74 8.0 4.4 6.6
Structured credit 5.0 8.1 35 — — —
Real estate 4.0 3.0 5.2 — — —
Cash — 0.1 0.1 — 0.2 0.2
Total 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
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Pension

Accounting Trends & Techniques

The fair values of our pension plan assets at December 31,

2009 by asset category are as follows:

2009
Quoted Prices in Active
Markets for Identical Significant Other Significant
Assets/Liabilities Observable Inputs Unobservable Inputs
(In millions) (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
Asset category
Equity securities:
U.S. large-cap $ 88.1 $— $ — $ 88.1
U.S. small/mid-cap 35.1 — — 35.1
International 57.8 — — 57.8
Fixed income 144.8 — — 144.8
Hedge funds — — 714 714
Private equity 13.6 18.2 31.8
Structured credit — — 39.1 39.1
Real estate — — 14.4 14.4
Cash 0.9 — — 0.9
Total $340.3 $— $143.1 $483.4

Following is a description of the inputs and valuation method-
ologies used to measure the fair value of our plan assets.

Equity Securities

Equity securities classified as Level 1 investments include
U.S. large, small and mid-cap investments and international
equity. These investments are comprised of securities listed
on an exchange, market or automated quotation system for
which quotations are readily available. The valuation of these
securities is determined using a market approach, and is
based upon unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets
in active markets.

Fixed Income

Fixed income securities classified as Level 1 investments in-
clude bonds and government debt securities. These invest-
ments are comprised of securities listed on an exchange,
market or automated quotation system for which quotations
are readily available. The valuation of these securities is de-
termined using a market approach, and is based upon unad-
justed quoted prices for identical assets in active markets.

Hedge Funds

Hedge funds are alternative investments comprised of di-
rect or indirect investment in offshore hedge funds of funds
with an investment objective to achieve an attractive risk-
adjusted return with moderate volatility and moderate direc-
tional market exposure over a full market cycle. The valuation
techniques used to measure fair value attempt to maximize
the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of un-
observable inputs. Considerable judgment is required to in-
terpret the factors used to develop estimates of fair value.
Valuations of the underlying investment funds are obtained
and reviewed. The securities that are valued by the funds
are interests in the investment funds and not the underlying
holdings of such investment funds. Thus, the inputs used to
value the investments in each of the underlying funds may
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differ from the inputs used to value the underlying holdings
of such funds.

In determining the fair value of a security, the fund man-
agers may consider any information that is deemed relevant,
which may include one or more of the following factors re-
garding the portfolio security, if appropriate: type of secu-
rity or asset; cost at the date of purchase; size of holding;
last trade price; most recent valuation; fundamental analyti-
cal data relating to the investment in the security; nature and
duration of any restriction on the disposition of the security;
evaluation of the factors that influence the market in which
the security is purchased or sold; financial statements of the
issuer; discount from market value of unrestricted securities
of the same class at the time of purchase; special reports
prepared by analysts; information as to any transactions or
offers with respect to the security; existence of merger pro-
posals or tender offers affecting the security; price and extent
of public trading in similar securities of the issuer or compat-
ible companies and other relevant matters; changes in inter-
est rates; observations from financial institutions; domestic
or foreign government actions or pronouncements; other re-
cent events; existence of shelf registration for restricted se-
curities; existence of any undertaking to register the security;
and other acceptable methods of valuing portfolio securities.

Hedge fund investments are valued monthly and recorded
on a one-month lag. For alternative investment values re-
ported on a lag, current market information is reviewed for
any material changes in values at the reporting date. Share
repurchases are available quarterly with notice of 65 business
days.

Private Equity Funds

The private equity fund is an alternative investment that rep-
resents direct or indirect investments in partnerships, venture
funds or a diversified pool of private investment vehicles (fund
of funds).

Investment commitments are made in private equity funds
of funds based on an asset allocation strategy, and cap-
ital calls are made over the life of the funds to fund the
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commitments. Until commitments are funded, the commit-
ted amount is reserved and invested in a selection of public
equity mutual funds, including U.S. large, small and mid-cap
investments and international equity, designed to approxi-
mate overall equity market returns. As of December 31, 2009,
remaining commitments total $23.4 million, of which $16.5
million is reserved. Refer to the valuation methodologies for
equity securities above for further information.

The valuation of investments in private equity funds of
funds is initially performed by the underlying fund managers.
In determining the fair value, the fund managers may con-
sider any information that is deemed relevant, which may in-
clude: type of security or asset; cost at the date of purchase;
size of holding; last trade price; most recent valuation; funda-
mental analytical data relating to the investment in the secu-
rity; nature and duration of any restriction on the disposition
of the security; evaluation of the factors that influence the
market in which the security is purchased or sold; financial
statements of the issuer; discount from market value of unre-
stricted securities of the same class at the time of purchase;
special reports prepared by analysts; information as to any
transactions or offers with respect to the security; existence
of merger proposals or tender offers affecting the security;
price and extent of public trading in similar securities of the
issuer or compatible companies and other relevant matters;
changes in interest rates; observations from financial institu-
tions; domestic or foreign government actions or pronounce-
ments; other recent events; existence of shelf registration for
restricted securities; existence of any undertaking to register
the security; and other acceptable methods of valuing port-
folio securities.

The valuations are obtained from the underlying fund man-
agers, and the valuation methodology and process is re-
viewed for consistent application and adherence to policies.
Considerable judgment is required to interpret the factors
used to develop estimates of fair value.

Private equity investments are valued quarterly and
recorded on a one-quarter lag. For alternative investment
values reported on a lag, current market information is re-
viewed for any material changes in values at the reporting
date. Capital distributions for the funds do not occur on a
regular frequency. Liquidation of these investments would
require sale of the partnership interest.

Structured Credit

Structured credit investments are alternative investments
comprised of collateralized debt obligations and other struc-
tured credit investments that are priced based on valuations
provided by independent, third-party pricing agents, if avail-
able. Such values generally reflect the last reported sales
price if the security is actively traded. The third-party pric-
ing agents may also value structured credit investments at
an evaluated bid price by employing methodologies that uti-
lize actual market transactions, broker-supplied valuations,
or other methodologies designed to identify the market value
of such securities. Such methodologies generally consider
such factors as security prices, yields, maturities, call fea-
tures, ratings and developments relating to specific securi-
ties in arriving at valuations. Securities listed on a securities
exchange, market or automated quotation system for which
quotations are readily available are valued at the last quoted
sale price on the primary exchange or market on which they
are traded. Debt obligations with remaining maturities of
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60 days or less may be valued at amortized cost, which ap-
proximates fair value.

Structured credit investments are valued monthly and
recorded on a one-month lag. For alternative investment
values reported on a lag, current market information is re-
viewed for any material changes in values at the reporting
date. Redemption requests are considered quarterly subject
to notice of 90 days; however, share repurchases are not
permitted for a two-year lock-up period following each in-
vestment, which will expire in September 2010 for the plans’
initial investments.

Real Estate

The real estate portfolio is an alternative investment com-
prised of three funds with strategic categories of real es-
tate investments. All real estate holdings are externally ap-
praised at least annually, and appraisals are conducted by
reputable, independent appraisal firms that are members of
the Appraisal Institute. All external appraisals are performed
in accordance with the Uniform Standards of Professional
Appraisal Practices. The property valuations and assump-
tions of each property are reviewed quarterly by the invest-
ment advisor and values are adjusted if there has been a
significant change in circumstances relating to the property
since the last external appraisal. The valuation methodology
utilized in determining the fair value is consistent with the best
practices prevailing within the real estate appraisal and real
estate investment management industries, including the Real
Estate Information Standards, and standards promulgated by
the National Council of Real Estate Investment Fiduciaries,
the National Association of Real Estate Investment Fiducia-
ries, and the National Association of Real Estate Managers.
In addition, the investment advisor may cause additional ap-
praisals to be performed. Two of the funds’ fair values are
updated monthly, and there is no lag in reported values. Re-
demption requests for these two funds are considered on a
quarterly basis, subject to notice of 45 days.

Effective October 1, 2009, one of the real estate funds be-
gan an orderly wind-down over the next three to four years.
The decision to wind down the fund was driven primarily by
real estate market factors that adversely affected the avail-
ability of new investor capital. Third-party appraisals of this
fund’s assets will be eliminated; however, internal valuation
updates for all assets and liabilities of the fund will be pre-
pared quarterly. The fund’s asset values are recorded on a
one-quarter lag, and current market information is reviewed
for any material changes in values at the reporting date. Dis-
tributions from sales of properties will be made on a pro-rata
basis. Repurchase requests will not be honored during the
wind-down period.
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The following represents the effect of fair value measure-
ments using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) on
changes in plan assets for the year ended December 31,
2009:

2009
Hedge Private Structured
(In millions) Funds Equity Funds Credit Fund Real Estate Total
Beginning balance—January 1, 2009 $69.3 $21.0 $15.9 $23.5 $129.7
Actual return on plan assets:
Relating to assets still held at the reporting date 21 (5.6) 232 (9.5) 10.2
Relating to assets sold during the period — (0.5) — 0.6 0.1
Purchases, sales and settlements — 3.3 — 0.2) 3.1
Transfers in (out) of Level 3 — — — — —
Ending balance—December 31, 2009 $71.4 $18.2 $39.1 $14.4 $143.1
The pension plan assets and asset allocation at Decem-
ber 31, 2008 were as follows:
Percentage of
Assets at Plan Assets at
December 31, December 31,
($ in millions) 2008 2008
Asset category!!
Equity securities $163.3 35.8%
Fixed income 149.6 32.8
Hedge funds 69.2 15.2
Private equity 33.9 74
Structured credit 15.8 3.5
Real estate 235 52
Cash 0.7 0.1
Total $456.0 100.0%

() The 2008 presentation has been conformed in accordance with the asset categories presented for 2009.

The expected return on plan assets takes into account the
weighted average of expected returns for each asset cate-
gory. Expected returns are determined based on historical
performance, adjusted for current trends. The expected re-
turn is net of investment expenses.

VEBA

Assets for other benefits include VEBA trusts pursuant to
bargaining agreements that are available to fund retired em-
ployees’ life insurance obligations and medical benefits. The
fair values of our other benefit plan assets at December 31,
2009 by asset category are as follows:

2009
Quoted Prices in Active Significant
Markets for Identical Significant Other Unobservable
Assets/Liabilities Observable Inputs Inputs
(In millions) (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
Asset category
Equity securities:
U.S. large-cap $ 328 $— $ — $ 328
U.S. small/mid-cap 12.6 — — 12.6
International 18.1 — — 18.1
Fixed income 52.4 — — 52.4
Hedge funds — — 14.6 14.6
Private equity 29 — 3.1 6.0
Cash 0.2 — — 0.2
Total $119.0 $— $17.7 $136.7
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Refer to the pension asset discussion above for further in-
formation regarding the inputs and valuation methodologies
used to measure the fair value of each respective category
of plan assets.

The following represents the effect of fair value measure-
ments using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) on
changes in plan assets for the year ended December 31,
2009:

2009

Private

Hedge Equity
(In millions) Funds Funds Total
Beginning balance—January 1, 2009 $13.6 $3.0 $16.6

Actual return on plan assets:

Relating to assets still held at the reporting date 0.5 (0.9 (0.4)
Relating to assets sold during the period — — —
Purchases, sales and settlements 0.5 1.0 1.5
Transfers in (out) of Level 3 — — —
Ending balance—December 31, 2009 $14.6 $3.1 $17.7

The other benefit plan assets and weighted average asset
allocation at December 31, 2008 were as follows:

Percentage of

Assets at Plan Assets at
($ in millions) December 31, 2008 December 31, 2008
Asset category!!
Equity securities $38.3 41.8%
Fixed income 33.5 36.6
Hedge funds 13.6 14.8
Private equity 6.0 6.0
Cash 0.2 0.2
Total $91.6 100.0%

() The 2008 presentation has been conformed in accordance with
the asset categories presented for 2009.

The expected return on plan assets takes into account the
weighted average of expected returns for each asset cate-
gory. Expected returns are determined based on historical
performance, adjusted for current trends. The expected re-
turn is net of investment expenses.

1.61
THE WASHINGTON POST COMPANY (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B (In Part): Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Recently Adopted and Issued Accounting

Pronouncements (In Part)

In December 2008, the FASB issued new guidance on an
employer’s disclosures about plan assets of a defined ben-
efit pension or other postretirement plan. The additional dis-
closure requirements under this guidance include expanded
disclosures about an entity’s investment policies and strate-
gies, the categories of plan assets, concentrations of credit
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risk and fair value measurements of plan assets. This new
guidance is effective for fiscal years ending after December
15, 2009, and does not require comparative information for
earlier periods presented. See Note L for additional disclo-
sures following the implementation of this new guidance.

L (In Part): Pensions and Other Postretirement Plans

Defined Benefit Plan Assets

The Company’s defined benefit pension obligations are
funded by a portfolio made up of a relatively small number
of stocks and high-quality fixed-income securities that are
held by a third-party trustee. As of December 31, 2009 and
December 31, 2008, the assets of the Company’s pension
plans were allocated as follows:

Pension Plan
Asset Allocations
2009 2008
U.S. equities 4% 73%
U.S. fixed income 18% 22%
International equities 8% 5%
Total 100% 100%

Essentially all of the assets are actively managed by two in-
vestment companies. The goal of the investment managers
is to produce moderate long-term growth in the value of
these assets, while protecting them against large decreases
in value. Both of these managers may invest in a combi-
nation of equity and fixed-income securities and cash. The
managers are not permitted to invest in securities of the Com-
pany or in alternative investments. The investment managers
cannot invest more than 20% of the assets at the time of pur-
chase in the stock of Berkshire Hathaway or more than 10%
of the assets in the securities of any other single issuer, ex-
cept for obligations of the U.S. Government, without receiv-
ing prior approval by the Plan administrator. As of Decem-
ber 31, 2009, up to 13% of the assets could be invested
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in international stocks, and no less than 9% of the assets
could be invested in fixed-income securities. None of the as-
sets is managed internally by the Company.

In determining the expected rate of return on plan assets,
the Company considers the relative weighting of plan assets,
the historical performance of total plan assets and individual
asset classes and economic and other indicators of future
performance. In addition, the Company may consult with and
consider the input of financial and other professionals in de-
veloping appropriate return benchmarks.

The Company evaluated its defined benefit pension plans’
asset portfolios for the existence of significant concentra-
tions (defined as greater than 10% of plan assets) of credit
risk as of January 3, 2010. Types of concentrations that were

evaluated include, but are not limited to, investment concen-
trations in a single entity, type of industry, foreign country
and individual fund. Included in the assets are $274.3 mil-
lion and $267.2 million of Berkshire Hathaway Class A and
Class B common stock at December 31, 2009 and Decem-
ber 31, 2008, respectively. Approximately 41% of the
Berkshire Hathaway common stock was subsequently sold
in February 2010.

The following table presents the Company’s pension plan
assets using the fair value hierarchy as of January 3, 2010.
The fair value hierarchy has three levels based on the relia-
bility of the inputs used to determine fair value. Level 1 refers
to fair values determined based on quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets. Level 2 refers to fair values esti-
mated using significant other observable inputs, and Level 3
includes fair values estimated using significant unobservable
inputs.

(In thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Cash equivalents and other short-term investments $ 189,986 $42,419 $— $ 232,405
Equity securities

U.S. equities 1,061,957 — — 1,061,957
International equities 115,153 — — 115,153
Fixed-income securities

Federal agency mortgage-backed securities — 4122 — 4122
Corporate debt securities — 17,270 — 17,270
Other fixed income — 7,987 — 7,987
Total investments $1,367,096 $71,798 $— 1,438,894
Cash 247
Receivables 1,675
Total $1,440,816

Cash Equivalents and Other Short-Term Investments

These investments are primarily held in U.S Treasury securi-
ties and registered money market funds. These investments
are valued using a market approach based on the quoted
market prices of the security, or inputs that include quoted
market prices for similar instruments, and are classified as
either Level 1 or Level 2 in the valuation hierarchy.

U.S. Equities

These investments are held in common and preferred stock
of U.S. and non-U.S. corporations traded on U.S. exchanges.
Common and preferred shares are traded actively on ex-
changes, and price quotes for these shares are readily avail-
able. These investments are classified as Level 1 in the valu-
ation hierarchy.

International Equities

These investments are held in common and preferred stock
issued by non-U.S. corporations. Common and preferred
shares are traded actively on exchanges, and price quotes
for these shares are readily available. These investments are
classified as Level 1 in the valuation hierarchy.

Federal Agency Mortgage-Backed Securities

These investments consist of fixed-income securities issued
by Federal Agencies and are valued using a bid evalua-
tion process, with bid data provided by independent pricing
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sources. These investments are classified as Level 2 in the
valuation hierarchy.

Corporate Debt Securities

These investments consist of fixed-income securities issued
by U.S. corporations and are valued using a bid evalua-
tion process, with bid data provided by independent pricing
sources. These investments are classified as Level 2 in the
valuation hierarchy.

Other Fixed Income

These investments consist of fixed-income securities issued
in private placements and are valued using a bid evalua-
tion process, with bid data provided by independent pricing
sources. These investments are classified as Level 2 in the
valuation hierarchy.



Section 1: General 71

Financial Instruments With Debt and
Equity Characteristics

1.62
INTEL CORPORATION (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 3 (In Part): Accounting Changes

2009

In the first quarter of 2009, we adopted new standards
that changed the accounting for convertible debt instru-
ments with cash settlement features. As of adoption, these
new standards applied to our junior subordinated convert-
ible debentures issued in 2005 (the 2005 debentures). Under
the previous standards, our 2005 debentures were recog-
nized entirely as a liability at historical value. In accordance
with adopting these new standards, we retrospectively rec-
ognized both a liability and an equity component of the 2005
debentures at fair value. The liability component is recog-
nized as the fair value of a similar instrument that does not
have a conversion feature at issuance. The equity compo-
nent, which is the value of the conversion feature at issuance,
is recognized as the difference between the proceeds from
the issuance of the 2005 debentures and the fair value of the
liability component, after adjusting for the deferred tax im-
pact. The 2005 debentures were issued at a coupon rate of
2.95%, which was below that of a similar instrument that did
not have a conversion feature (6.45%). Therefore, the valu-
ation of the debt component, using the income approach,
resulted in a debt discount. The debt discount is reduced
over the expected life of the debt, which is also the stated
life of the debt. These new standards are also applicable in
accounting for our convertible debt issued during 2009. See
“Note 20: Borrowings” for further discussion.

As aresult of applying these new standards retrospectively
to all periods presented, we recognized the following incre-
mental effects on individual line items on the consolidated
balance sheets:

2008
Before After
(In millions) Adoption  Adjustments  Adoption
Property, plant and
equipment, net $17,544 $ 30 $17,574
Other long-term assets(") $ 6,092 $(273) $ 5,819
Long-term debt $ 1,886 $(701) $ 1,185
Common stock and capital in
excess of par value $12,944 $ 458 $13,402

(™ Primarily related to the adjustment made to the net deferred tax
asset.

The adoption of these new standards did not result in a
change to our prior-period consolidated statements of op-
erations, as the interest associated with our debt issuances
is capitalized and added to the cost of qualified assets. The
adoption of these new standards did not result in a significant
change to depreciation expense or earnings per common
share for 2009.
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Note 20 (In Part): Borrowings

Long-Term Debt (In Part)

Our long-term debt as of December 26, 2009 and Decem-
ber 27, 2008 was as follows:

(In millions) 2009 2008("
2009 junior subordinated convertible

debentures due 2039 at 3.25% $1,030 $ —
2005 junior subordinated convertible

debentures due 2035 at 2.95% 896 886
2005 Arizona bonds due 2035 at 4.375% 157 158
2007 Arizona bonds due 2037 at 5.3% 123 122
Other debt — 21

2,206 1,187

Less: current portion of long-term debt (157) (2)
Total long-term debt $2,049 $1,185

(M As adjusted due to changes to the accounting for convertible debt
instruments. See “Note 3: Accounting Changes.”

Convertible Debentures

In 2005, we issued $1.6 billion of junior subordinated con-
vertible debentures (the 2005 debentures) due in 2035. In
2009, we issued $2.0 billion of junior subordinated convert-
ible debentures (the 2009 debentures) due in 2039. Both the
2005 and 2009 debentures pay a fixed rate of interest semi-
annually. We capitalized all interest associated with these
debentures during the periods presented.

2005 2009

Debentures ~ Debentures

Coupon interest rate 2.95% 3.25%

Effective interest rate(" 6.45% 7.20%
Maximum amount of contingent interest

that will accrue per year®? 0.40% 0.50%

() The effective rate is based on the rate for a similar instrument that
does not have a conversion feature.

Both the 2005 and 2009 debentures have a contingent interest
component that will require us to pay interest based on certain
thresholds and for certain events commencing on December 15,
2010 and August 1, 2019, for the 2005 and 2009 debentures, re-
spectively, as outlined in the indentures governing the 2005 and
2009 debentures. The fair value of the related embedded deriva-
tive was $24 million and $15 million as of December 26, 2009
for the 2005 and 2009 debentures, respectively ($36 million as of
December 27, 2008 for the 2005 debentures).

@

Both the 2005 and 2009 debentures are convertible, sub-
ject to certain conditions, into shares of our common stock.
Holders can surrender the 2005 debentures for conversion
at any time. Holders can surrender the 2009 debentures for
conversion if the closing price of Intel common stock has
been at least 130% of the conversion price then in effect
for at least 20 trading days during the 30 trading-day period
ending on the last trading day of the preceding fiscal quar-
ter. We can settle any conversion or repurchase of the 2005
debentures in cash or stock at our option. However, we will
settle any conversion or repurchase of the 2009 debentures
in cash up to the face value, and any amount in excess of
face value will be settled in cash or stock at our option. On
or after December 15, 2012, we can redeem, for cash, all or
part of the 2005 debentures for the principal amount, plus
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any accrued and unpaid interest, if the closing price of Intel
common stock has been at least 130% of the conversion
price then in effect for at least 20 trading days during any 30
consecutive trading-day period prior to the date on which we
provide notice of redemption. On or after August 5, 2019, we
can redeem, for cash, all or part of the 2009 debentures for
the principal amount, plus any accrued and unpaid interest,
if the closing price of Intel common stock has been at least
150% of the conversion price then in effect for at least 20
trading days during any 30 consecutive trading-day period
prior to the date on which we provide notice of redemption.
If certain events occur in the future, the indentures governing
the 2005 and 2009 debentures provide that each holder of
the debentures can, for a pre-defined period of time, require
us to repurchase the holder’s debentures for the principal
amount plus any accrued and unpaid interest. Both the 2005
and 2009 debentures are subordinated in right of payment to
our existing and future senior debt and to the other liabilities
of our subsidiaries. We have concluded that both the 2005
and 2009 debentures are not conventional convertible debt
instruments and that the embedded stock conversion op-
tions qualify as derivatives. In addition, we have concluded
that the embedded conversion options would be classified
in stockholders’ equity if they were freestanding derivative
instruments. As such, the embedded conversion options are
not accounted for separately as derivatives.

2009
2005 Debentures Debentures
(In millions, except per
share amounts) 2009 2008 2009
Outstanding principal $1,600 $1,600 $2,000
Equity component carrying
amount $ 466 $ 466 $ 613
Unamortized discount(") $ 691 $ 701 $ 953
Net debt carrying amount $ 896 $ 886 $1,030
Conversion rate (shares of
common stock per $1,000
principal amount of
debentures)® 32.12 31.72 44.09
Effective conversion price
(per share of common
stock) $31.14 $31.53 $22.68

(" The remaining amortization periods for the 2005 and 2009 deben-
tures are approximately 26 and 30 years, respectively, as of De-
cember 26, 2009.

@ The conversion rate adjusts for certain events outlined in the
indentures governing the 2005 and 2009 debentures, such as
quarterly dividend distributions in excess of $0.10 and $0.14 per
share, for the 2005 and 2009 debentures, respectively, but does
not adjust for accrued interest. In addition, the conversion rate
will increase for a holder of either the 2005 or 2009 debentures
who elects to convert the debentures in connection with cer-
tain share exchanges, mergers, or consolidations involving In-
tel, as described in the indentures governing the 2005 and 2009
debentures.
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As of December 26, 2009, our aggregate debt maturities
based on outstanding principal were as follows (in millions):

Year Payable

2010 $ 157
2011 —
2012 —
2013 —
2014 —
2015 and thereafter 3,725

Total $3,882

Substantially all of the difference between the total aggre-
gate debt maturities above and the total carrying amount of
our debt is due to the equity component of our convertible
debentures.

Derivatives
1.63
HORMEL FOODS CORPORATION (OCT)

Note A (In Part): Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Accounting Changes and Recent Accounting
Pronouncements (In Part)

In March 2008, the FASB issued an update to ASC 815,
Derivatives and Hedging (ASC 815). The update amends and
expands the disclosure requirements previously required for
derivative instruments and hedging activities. ASC 815 re-
quires qualitative disclosures about objectives and strategies
for using derivatives, quantitative disclosures about fair value
amounts of gains and losses on derivative instruments, and
disclosures about credit-risk-related contingent features in
derivative agreements. The updated guidance was effective
for financial statements issued for fiscal years and interim
periods beginning after November 15, 2008. The Company
adopted the updated provisions of ASC 815 in the second
quarter of fiscal 2009, and the required disclosures are pro-
vided in Note J—Derivatives and Hedging. Adoption did not
impact consolidated net earnings, cash flows, or financial
position.

Note J. Derivatives and Hedging

The Company uses hedging programs to manage price risk
associated with commodity purchases. These programs uti-
lize futures contracts and swaps to manage the Company’s
exposure to price fluctuations in the commodities markets.
The Company has determined its hedge programs to be
highly effective in offsetting the changes in fair value or cash
flows generated by the items hedged.

Cash Flow Hedges

The Company utilizes corn and soybean meal futures to off-
set the price fluctuation in the Company’s future direct grain
purchases, and has entered into various swaps to hedge the
purchases of grain and natural gas at certain plant locations.
The financial instruments are designated and accounted for
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as cash flow hedges, and the Company measures the ef-
fectiveness of the hedges on a regular basis. Effective gains
or losses related to these cash flow hedges are reported in
accumulated other comprehensive loss and reclassified into
earnings, through cost of products sold, in the period or pe-
riods in which the hedged transactions affect earnings. Any
gains or losses related to hedge ineffectiveness are recog-
nized in the current period cost of products sold. The Com-
pany typically does not hedge its grain exposure beyond
24 months and its natural gas exposure beyond 36 months.
As of October 25, 2009, the Company had the following out-
standing commodity futures contracts and swaps that were
entered into to hedge forecasted purchases:

Commodity Volume
Corn 20.3 million bushels

Soybean meal 148,100 tons

Natural gas 4.6 million MMBTU’s

As of October 25, 2009, the Company has included in ac-
cumulated other comprehensive loss, hedging losses of
$19.2 million (before tax) relating to its positions. The Com-
pany expects to recognize the majority of these losses over
the next 12 months.

Fair Value Hedges

The Company utilizes futures to minimize the price risk as-
sumed when forward priced contracts are offered to the
Company’s commodity suppliers. The intent of the program
is to make the forward priced commodities cost nearly the
same as cash market purchases at the date of delivery.
The futures contracts are designated and accounted for as
fair value hedges, and the Company measures the effec-
tiveness of the hedges on a regular basis. Changes in the
fair value of the futures contracts, along with the gain or
loss on the hedged purchase commitment, are marked-to-
market through earnings and are recorded on the Consoli-
dated Statement of Financial Position as a current asset and
liability, respectively. Effective gains or losses related to these
fair value hedges are recognized through cost of products
sold in the period or periods in which the hedged transac-
tions affect earnings. Any gains or losses related to hedge
ineffectiveness are recognized in the current period cost of
products sold. As of October 25, 2009, the Company had
the following outstanding commaodity futures contracts des-
ignated as fair value hedges:

Commodity Volume
Corn 12.0 million bushels
Soybean meal 6,200 tons

Lean hogs 1.3 million cwt
Other Derivatives

During fiscal 2009, the Company has held certain futures
contract positions as part of a merchandising program and
to manage the Company’s exposure to fluctuations in foreign
currencies. The Company has not applied hedge account-
ing to these positions. All foreign exchange contracts were
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closed as of the end of the third quarter. As of October 25,
2009, the Company had the following outstanding commod-
ity futures contracts related to its merchandising program:

Volume
14,800 cwt

Commaodity
Pork bellies

Fair Values

The fair values of the Company’s derivative instruments (in
thousands) as of October 25, 2009, were as follows:

2009
Location on Consolidated
Statement of Financial Fair
Position Value!"
Asset derivatives:
Derivatives designated as
hedges:
Commodity contracts Other current assets $25,159
Derivatives not designated
as hedges:
Commaodity contracts Other current assets (3,702)
Total asset derivatives $21,457
Liability derivatives:
Derivatives designated as
hedges:
Commodity contracts Accounts payable $17,563
Total liability derivatives $17,563

(" Amounts represent the gross fair value of derivative assets and
liabilities. The Company nets its derivative assets and liabilities,
including cash collateral, when a master netting arrangement ex-
ists between the Company and the counterparty to the derivative
contract.
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Derivative Gains and Losses

Gains or losses (before tax, in thousands) related to the Com-
pany’s derivative instruments for the fiscal year ended Octo-
ber 25, 2009, were as follows:

Gain/(Loss)
Recognized in Gain/(Loss)
Accumulated Other Location on Gain/(Loss) Recognized in
Comprehensive Consolidated Reclassified From Earnings
Loss (AOCL) Statement AOCL into Earnings (Ineffective
Cash Flow Hedges (Effective Portion)") of Operations (Effective Portion)!") Portion)@®
Commodity contracts $(8,323) Cost of products sold $(55,053) $2,082
Gain/(Loss)
Location on Gain/(Loss) Recognized in
Consolidated Recognized in Earnings
Statement Earnings (Ineffective
Fair Value Hedges of Operations (Effective Portion)® Portion)@/®)
Commodity contracts Cost of products sold $55,879 $(2,901)
Location on
Consolidated Gain/(Loss)
Statement Recognized
Derivatives Not Designated as Hedges of Operations in Earnings
Commodity contracts Cost of products sold $ 414
Foreign exchange contracts Interest and investment
income (loss) $(141)

() Amounts represent gains or losses in AOCL before tax.

@ There were no gains or losses excluded from the assessment of hedge effectiveness during the fiscal year.
@ Gains on commodity contracts designated as fair value hedges were offset by a corresponding loss on the underlying hedged purchase

commitment.

@ There were no gains or losses resulting from the discontinuance of cash flow hedges during the fiscal year.
®) There were no gains or losses recognized as a result of a hedged firm commitment no longer qualifying as a fair value hedge during the

fiscal year.

Earnings Per Share Calculation
1.64
RAYTHEON COMPANY (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 2 (In Part): Accounting Standards

In 2009, we adopted required new accounting standards re-
lated to the following:

e The accounting and disclosure of noncontrolling inter-
ests as discussed in Note 7;

e The disclosure of derivative instruments and hedging
activities as discussed in Note 8;

e The accounting and disclosure of certain nonfinancial
assets and liabilities not recognized or disclosed at fair
value on a recurring basis, as discussed in Note 9;

e The earnings per share (EPS) impact of instruments
granted in share-based payment transactions as dis-
cussed in Note 12;

e The disclosure of postretirement benefit plan assets as
discussed in Note 14; and

ATT-SEC 1.64

e The accounting for business combinations, which we
have applied prospectively to business combinations
with acquisition dates after January 1, 2009.

Note 12 (In Part): Stockholders’ Equity

Earnings Per Share (EPS)

We compute Basic EPS attributable to Raytheon Com-
pany common stockholders by dividing income from con-
tinuing operations attributable to Raytheon Company com-
mon stockholders, income from discontinued operations
attributable to Raytheon Company common stockholders
and net income attributable to Raytheon Company, by the
weighted-average common shares outstanding, including
participating securities outstanding as discussed below, dur-
ing the period. Diluted EPS reflects the potential dilution
beyond shares for basic EPS that could occur if securities
or other contracts to issue common stock were exercised,
converted into common stock or resulted in the issuance
of common stock that would have shared in our earnings.
We compute basic and diluted EPS using income from con-
tinuing operations attributable to Raytheon Company com-
mon stockholders, income from discontinued operations at-
tributable to Raytheon Company common stockholders, net
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income attributable to Raytheon Company, and the actual
weighted-average shares and participating securities out-
standing rather than the numbers presented within our con-
solidated statements of operations, which are rounded to the
nearest million. As a result, it may not be possible to recal-
culate EPS as presented in our consolidated statements of
operations. Furthermore, it may not be possible to recalcu-
late EPS attributable to Raytheon Company stockholders by
adjusting EPS from continuing operations by EPS from dis-
continued operations.

In 2009, we adopted the required new accounting standard
related to whether instruments granted in share-based pay-
ment transactions are participating securities. This account-
ing standard requires us to include all unvested stock awards
which contain non-forfeitable rights to dividends or dividend
equivalents, whether paid or unpaid, in the number of shares
outstanding in our basic and diluted EPS calculations. As a
result, we have included all of our outstanding unvested re-
stricted stock and the LTPP awards that meet the retirement
eligible criteria in our calculation of basic and diluted EPS for
current and prior periods. Additionally, the accounting stan-
dard requires disclosure of EPS for common stock and un-
vested share-based payment awards, separately disclosing
distributed and undistributed earnings. Distributed earnings
represent common stock dividends and dividends earned
on unvested share-based payment awards of retirement eli-
gible employees. Undistributed earnings represent earnings
that were available for distribution but were not distributed.
Common stock and unvested share-based payment awards
earn dividends equally as shown in the table below.

EPS from continuing operations attributable to Raytheon
Company common stockholders and unvested share-based
payment awards was as follows:

2009 2008 2007

Basic EPS attributable to Raytheon
Company common stockholders:

Distributed earnings $1.23 $1.11 $1.01
Undistributed earnings 3.73 2.90 2.85
Total $4.96 $4.01 $3.86

Diluted EPS attributable to Raytheon
Company common stockholders:

Distributed earnings $1.21 $1.09 $0.99
Undistributed earnings 3.68 2.84 2.79
Total $4.89 $3.93 $3.78

EPS from discontinued operations attributable to Raytheon
Company common stockholders and unvested share-based
payment awards was as follows:

2009 2008 2007

Basic EPS attributable to Raytheon
Company common stockholders:

Distributed earnings — & — 5 —
Undistributed earnings (loss) — (0.01) 2.02
Total $—  $(0.01) $2.02
Diluted EPS attributable to Raytheon
Company common stockholders:

Distributed earnings — & — § —
Undistributed earnings (loss) — (0.01) 1.97
Total $— $0.01) $197
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EPS attributable to Raytheon Company common stock-
holders and unvested share-based payment awards was as
follows:

2009 2008 2007

Basic EPS attributable to Raytheon
Company common stockholders:

Distributed earnings $1.23 $1.11 $1.01
Undistributed earnings 3.73 2.90 4.87
Total $4.96 $4.01 $5.88

Diluted EPS attributable to Raytheon

Company common stockholders:
Distributed earnings $1.21 $1.09  $0.99
Undistributed earnings 3.68 2.83 4.76

Total $4.89 $3.92 $5.75

The amount of income from continuing operations at-
tributable to participating securities was $29 million, $23 mil-
lion and $22 million for 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.
The amount of (loss) income from discontinued operations
attributable to participating securities was a loss of less than
$1 million for 2009 and 2008 and income of $11 million for
2007. The amount of net income attributable to participat-
ing securities was $29 million, $23 million and $33 million for
2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

The weighted-average shares outstanding for basic and
diluted EPS were as follows:

(In millions) 2009 2008 2007

Shares for basic EPS (including 5.9, 5.7
and 5.6 participating securities for

2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively) 3904 417.2 438.6
Dilutive effect of stock options and LTPP 3.1 5.1 5.7
Dilutive effect of warrants 2.2 4.2 41
Shares for diluted EPS 395.7 426.5 4484

Stock options to purchase the following number of shares of
common stock had exercise prices that were less than the
average market price of our common stock during the appli-
cable year and were included in our calculations of diluted
EPS:

(In millions) 2009 2008 2007
Stock options 8.7 10.1 14.0

Stock options to purchase the following number of shares
of common stock were not included in our calculations of
diluted EPS, as the effect of including them would be anti-
dilutive:

(In millions) 2009 2008 2007
Stock options — 24 3.1

Our Board of Directors is authorized to issue up to 200 mil-
lion shares of preferred stock, $0.01 par value per share, in
multiple series with terms as determined by our Board of Di-
rectors. There were no shares of preferred stock outstanding
at December 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008.

In June 2006, we issued 12.0 million warrants to purchase
our common stock, of which 12.0 million were outstanding at
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December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007. These warrants, expir-
ing in 2011, were issued with an exercise price of $37.50 per
share and have been included in the calculation of diluted
EPS.

Inventories
1.65
SILGAN HOLDINGS INC. (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 (In Part): Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Change in Accounting Method

In the fourth quarter of 2009, we changed our method of
valuing the inventory of the U.S. plastic container business
from the last in, first out, or LIFO, method to the first in, first
out, or FIFO, method. We believe the FIFO method of inven-
tory valuation is preferable for our plastic container business
because FIFO provides a better matching of revenues to ex-
penses due to a lag in the pass through of changes in resin
costs to customers and enhances the comparability of re-
sults to our peers. As a result of this change, all prior period
amounts have been retrospectively adjusted as of the begin-
ning of the earliest period presented. See Note 4 for further
information.

Note 4. Inventories

The components of inventories at December 31 are as
follows:

(Dollars in thousands) 2009 2008
Raw materials $100,578 $110,480
Work-in-process 82,402 72,078
Finished goods 268,804 238,515
Other 14,334 14,057
466,118 435,130

Adjustment to value domestic inventory at
cost on the LIFO method (78,904) (57,412)
$387,214 $377,718

Inventories include $68.6 million and $71.6 million recorded
on the FIFO method at December 31, 2009 and 2008, re-
spectively, and $65.1 million and $65.2 million recorded on
the average cost method at December 31, 2009 and 2008,
respectively.

Historically, the inventory value for our U.S. plastic con-
tainer business was determined using the LIFO method of
accounting. During the fourth quarter of 2009, we determined
that the FIFO method of accounting was preferable for our
plastic container business because FIFO provides a better
matching of revenues to expenses due to a lag in the pass
through of changes in resin costs to our customers and en-
hances the comparability of results to our peers. As a result,
we changed the accounting method to value inventory of
our U.S. plastic container business to the FIFO method. We
have retrospectively adjusted all prior amounts as of the be-
ginning of the earliest period presented. As a result of this ret-
rospective adjustment, retained earnings at January 1, 2007
increased $3.1 million.

We have summarized the effects of this retrospective ad-
justment on our consolidated financial statements below
(dollars in thousands, except per share amounts):

2008 2007
As Reported As Adjusted As Reported As Adjusted

Consolidated statements of income for the years ended

December 31:
Cost of goods sold $2,683,466 $2,694,441 $2,509,336 $2,502,712
Provision for income taxes 72,922 68,582 70,422 73,042
Net income 131,627 124,992 122,779 126,783
Basic net income per share $ 3.47 $ 3.30 $ 3.26 $ 3.37
Diluted net income per share $ 344 $ 3.26 $ 3.22 $ 3.32
Consolidated balance sheets as of December 31:
Inventories $ 376,986 $ 377,718 $ 412,458 $ 424,165
Accrued liabilities 41,046 41,333 34,028 38,655
Retained earnings 497,732 498,177 392,108 399,188
Consolidated statements of cash flows for the years ended

December 31:
Change in inventories $ 37,923 $ 48,898 $ 11,451 $ 4827
Change in accrued liabilities (3,458) (7,798) (10,079) (7,459)
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Had we not made this change in accounting method, cost of
goods sold for the year ended December 31, 2009 would
have been $2.3 million higher, provision for income taxes
would have been $0.9 million lower and net income would
have been $1.4 million lower than reported in our Consoli-
dated Statements of Income. In addition, basic net income
per share would have been $0.04 lower and diluted net in-
come per share would have been $0.03 lower.

Revenue Recognition
1.66
HEWLETT-PACKARD COMPANY (OCT)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 (In Part): Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Revenue Recognition

Net revenue is derived primarily from the sale of products and
services. The following revenue recognition policies define
the manner in which HP accounts for sales transactions.

HP recognizes revenue when persuasive evidence of a
sales arrangement exists, delivery has occurred or ser-
vices are rendered, the sales price or fee is fixed or deter-
minable and collectibility is reasonably assured. Additionally,
HP recognizes hardware revenue on sales to channel part-
ners, including resellers, distributors or value-added solution
providers at the time of sale and when the channel partners
have economic substance apart from HP and HP has com-
pleted its obligations related to the sale.

In October 2009, the FASB issued Accounting Standards
Update (“ASU”) No. 2009-13, “Multiple-Deliverable Revenue
Arrangements” (“ASU 2009-13"). The new standard changes
the requirements for establishing separate units of account-
ing in a multiple element arrangement and requires the allo-
cation of arrangement consideration to each deliverable to
be based on the relative selling price. Concurrently to issu-
ing ASU 2009-13, the FASB also issued ASU No. 2009-14,
“Certain Revenue Arrangements That Include Software El-
ements” (“ASU 2009-14"). ASU 2009-14 excludes software
that is contained on a tangible product from the scope of
software revenue guidance if the software is essential to the
tangible product’s functionality.

HP early adopted these standards as of the beginning of
fiscal 2009 for new and materially modified deals originating
after November 1, 2008; therefore, the previously reported
quarterly results have been restated to reflect the impact of
adoption. As aresult of the adoption, fiscal 2009 net revenues
and net earnings were higher by $255 million and $55 million,
respectively. The impact was due to the recognition of rev-
enue previously deferred for certain deliverables bundled in
multiple element arrangements where the arrangements also
included services for which HP was unable to demonstrate
fair value pursuant to the previous standards. The new stan-
dards allow for deliverables for which revenue was previously
deferred to be separated and recognized as delivered, rather
than over the longest service delivery period as a single unit
with other elements in the arrangement. HP is not able to
reasonably estimate the effect of adopting these standards
on future financial periods as the impact will vary based on
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the nature and volume of new or materially modified deals in
any given period.

For fiscal 2009 and future periods, pursuant to the guid-
ance of ASU 2009-13, when a sales arrangement contains
multiple elements, such as hardware and software products,
licenses and/or services, HP allocates revenue to each el-
ement based on a selling price hierarchy. The selling price
for a deliverable is based on its vendor specific objective
evidence (“VSOE”) if available, third party evidence (“TPE”)
if VSOE is not available, or estimated selling price (“ESP”)
if neither VSOE nor TPE is available. In multiple element
arrangements where more-than-incidental software deliver-
ables are included, revenue is allocated to each separate
unit of accounting for each of the non-software deliverables
and to the software deliverables as a group using the relative
selling prices of each of the deliverables in the arrangement
based on the aforementioned selling price hierarchy. If the ar-
rangement contains more than one software deliverable, the
arrangement consideration allocated to the software deliver-
ables as a group is then allocated to each software deliver-
able using the guidance for recognizing software revenue, as
amended.

HP limits the amount of revenue recognition for delivered
elements to the amount that is not contingent on the future
delivery of products or services, future performance obli-
gations or subject to customer-specified return or refund
privileges.

HP evaluates each deliverable in an arrangement to deter-
mine whether they represent separate units of accounting. A
deliverable constitutes a separate unit of accounting when it
has standalone value and there are no customer-negotiated
refund or return rights for the delivered elements. If the ar-
rangement includes a customer-negotiated refund or return
right relative to the delivered item and the delivery and per-
formance of the undelivered item is considered probable and
substantially in HP’s control, the delivered element consti-
tutes a separate unit of accounting. In instances when the
aforementioned criteria are not met, the deliverable is com-
bined with the undelivered elements and the allocation of the
arrangement consideration and revenue recognition is deter-
mined for the combined unit as a single unit. Allocation of the
consideration is determined at arrangement inception on the
basis of each unit’s relative selling price.

HP establishes VSOE of selling price using the price
charged for a deliverable when sold separately and, in rare
instances, using the price established by management hav-
ing the relevant authority. TPE of selling price is established
by evaluating largely similar and interchangeable competitor
products or services in standalone sales to similarly situated
customers. The best estimate of selling price is established
considering internal factors such as margin objectives, pric-
ing practices and controls, customer segment pricing strate-
gies and the product lifecycle. Consideration is also given to
market conditions such as competitor pricing strategies and
industry technology lifecycles.

For fiscal 2008 and fiscal 2007, pursuant to the previ-
ous guidance of revenue arrangements with multiple deliv-
erables, for a sales arrangement with multiple elements, HP
allocated revenue to each element based on its relative fair
value, or for software, based on VSOE of fair value. In the
absence of fair value for a delivered element, HP first allo-
cated revenue to the fair value of the undelivered elements
and the residual revenue to the delivered elements. Where
the fair value for an undelivered element could not be de-
termined, HP deferred revenue for the delivered elements
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until the undelivered elements were delivered or the fair value
was determinable for the remaining undelivered elements.
If the revenue for a delivered item was not recognized be-
cause it was not separable from the undelivered item, then
HP also deferred the cost of the delivered item. HP limited
the amount of revenue recognition for delivered elements to
the amount that was not contingent on the future delivery of
products or services, future performance obligations or sub-
ject to customer-specified return or refund privileges. For the
purposes of income statement classification of products and
services revenue, when HP could not determine fair value for
all of the elements in an arrangement and the transaction
was accounted for as a single unit of accounting, HP allo-
cated revenue to products and services based on a rational
and consistent methodology. This methodology utilized ex-
ternal and internal pricing inputs to derive HP’s best estimate
of fair value for the elements in the arrangement.

In instances when revenue is derived from sales of third-
party vendor services, revenue is recorded at gross when
HP is a principal to the transaction and net of costs when HP
is acting as an agent between the customer and the vendor.
Several factors are considered to determine whether HP is an
agent or principal, most notably whether HP is the primary
obligator to the customer, has established its own pricing,
and has inventory and credit risks.

HP reports revenue net of any required taxes collected from
customers and remitted to government authorities, with the
collected taxes recorded as current liabilities until remitted to
the relevant government authority.

Depreciation Method
1.67
VULCAN MATERIALS COMPANY (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 (In Part): Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Depreciation, Depletion, Accretion and Amortization (In Part)

Depreciation is generally computed by the straight-line
method at rates based on the estimated service lives of
the various classes of assets, which include machinery and
equipment (3 to 30 years), buildings (10 to 20 years) and land
improvements (7 to 20 years).

Effective September 1, 2009, we changed our method of
depreciation for our Newberry, Florida cement production fa-
cilities from straight-line to unit-of-production. We consider
the change of depreciation method a change in accounting
estimate effected by a change in accounting principle to be
accounted for prospectively. The unit-of-production depre-
ciation method is grounded on the assumption that depre-
ciation of these assets is primarily a function of usage. The
change to a unit-of-production method was based on infor-
mation obtained by continued observation of the pattern of
benefits derived from the cement plant assets and is prefer-
able to a straight-line method as it results in depreciation that
is more reflective of consumption of the assets. The effects
of the partial year change in depreciation method increased
2009 earnings from continuing operations and net income
by approximately $1,026,000, or $0.01 per basic and diluted
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share when compared to the results using the straight-line
method.

Estimated Useful Lives
1.68
KIMBALL INTERNATIONAL, INC. (JUN)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 (In Part): Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets (In Part)

During fiscal year 2009, the Company performed an assess-
ment of the useful lives of Enterprise Resource Planning
(ERP) software. In evaluating useful lives, the Company con-
sidered how long assets would remain functionally efficient
and effective, given levels of technology, competitive factors,
and the economic environment as of fiscal year 2009. This
assessment indicated that the assets will continue to be used
for a longer period than previously anticipated. As a result,
effective October 1, 2008, the Company revised the useful
lives of ERP software from 7 years to 10 years. Changes
in estimates are accounted for on a prospective basis, by
amortizing assets’ current carrying values over their revised
remaining useful lives. The effect of this change in estimate,
compared to the original amortization, for fiscal year 2009
was a pre-tax reduction in amortization expense of, in thou-
sands, $1,402. The pre-tax (decrease) increase to amorti-
zation expense in future periods is expected to be, in thou-
sands, ($1,227), ($299), $451, $911, and $664 in the five years
ending June 30, 2014, and $902 thereafter.

Internal-use software is stated at cost less accumulated
amortization and is amortized using the straight-line method.
During the software application development stage, capital-
ized costs include external consulting costs, cost of soft-
ware licenses, and internal payroll and payroll-related costs
for employees who are directly associated with a software
project. Upgrades and enhancements are capitalized if they
result in added functionality which enable the software to per-
form tasks it was previously incapable of performing. Soft-
ware maintenance, training, data conversion, and business
process reengineering costs are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred.
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CONSOLIDATION POLICIES

1.69 FASB ASC 810, Consolidation, states in part:

1. The purpose of consolidated financial statements
is to present, primarily for the benefit of the owners and
creditors of the parent, the results of operations and the
financial position of a parent and all its subsidiaries as
if the consolidated group were a single economic en-
tity. There is a presumption that consolidated financial
statements are more meaningful than separate finan-
cial statements and that they are usually necessary for
a fair presentation when one of the entities in the con-
solidated group directly or indirectly has a controlling
financial interest in the other entities.

2. Consolidated financial statements shall disclose
the consolidation policy that is being followed. In most
cases, this can be made apparent by the headings
or other information in the financial statements, but in
other cases a footnote is required.

1.70 FASB ASC 810, Consolidation, requires the consol-
idation of subsidiaries having nonhomogenous operations.
Consequently, with rare exception, the survey entities con-
solidate nonhomogenous operations. Table 1-9 shows the
nature of nonhomogenous operations consolidated by the
survey entities.

1.71 FASB ASC 810, Consolidation, clarifies the applica-
tion of the general subsections of FASB ASC 810 to cer-
tain entities in which equity investors do not have the char-
acteristics of a controlling financial interest or do not have
sufficient equity at risk for the entity to finance its activities
without additional subordinated financial support. FASB ASC
810 requires that consolidated financial statements include
subsidiaries in which the reporting enterprise has a control-
ling financial interest, i.e., a majority voting interest. Appli-
cation of the majority voting interest requirement to certain
types of entities may not identify the party with a control-
ling financial interest because that interest may be achieved
through other arrangements. Under FASB ASC 810, a re-
porting enterprise shall consolidate a variable interest entity
if that reporting enterprise has a variable interest that will
absorb a majority of the entity’s expected losses, receive a
majority of the entity’s expected residual returns, or both. In
determining whether it is a primary beneficiary of a variable
interest entity, a reporting enterprise shall treat variable in-
terests in that same entity held by the reporting enterprise’s
related parties as its own interest. FASB Accounting Stan-
dards Update (ASU) No. 2009-17, Improvements to Financial
Reporting by Enterprises Involved with Variable Interest En-
tities, replaces the quantitative-based risks and rewards cal-
culations for determining which reporting entity, if any, has a
controlling financial interest in a variable interest entity with
an approach focused on identifying which reporting entity
has the power to direct the activities of a variable interest
entity that most significantly impact the entity’s economic
performance and either has the obligation to absorb losses
of the entity or the right to receive benefits from the entity.
This approach that is expected to be primarily qualitative will
be more effective for identifying which reporting entity has a
controlling financial interest in a variable interest entity. FASB
ASU No. 2009-17 also requires additional disclosures about
a reporting entity’s involvement in variable interest entities,
which will enhance the information provided to users of fi-
nancial statements. FASB ASU No. 2009-17 is effective for
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fiscal years beginning on or after November 15, 2009. Addi-
tionally, FASB ASU No. 2009-16, Accounting for Transfers of
Financial Assets, eliminates from consolidation guidance the
exception from consolidation of qualifying special purpose
entities. FASB ASU No. 2009-16 is effective for fiscal years
beginning on or after November 15, 2009.

1.72 FASB ASC 810, Consolidation, establishes account-
ing and reporting standards for the noncontrolling interest in
a subsidiary and for the deconsolidation of a subsidiary. It
clarifies that a noncontrolling interest in a subsidiary is an
ownership interest in the consolidated entity that should be
reported as equity in the consolidated financial statements. In
addition, it changes the way the consolidated income state-
ment is presented. The statement requires consolidated net
income to be reported at amounts that include the amounts
attributable to both the parent and the noncontrolling inter-
est. It also requires disclosure, on the face of the consoli-
dated statement of income, of the amounts of consolidated
net income attributable to the parent and to the noncontrol-
ling interest. Further, FASB ASC 810 requires that a change in
a parent’s ownership interest while the parent retains its con-
trolling financial interest in its subsidiary shall be accounted
for as equity transactions (investments by owners and distri-
butions to owners acting in their capacity as owners). There-
fore, no gain or loss shall be recognized in consolidated net
income or comprehensive income. The carrying amount of
the noncontrolling interest shall be adjusted to reflect the
change in its ownership interest in the subsidiary. Any dif-
ference between the fair value of the consideration received
or paid and the amount by which the noncontrolling inter-
est is adjusted shall be recognized in equity attributable to
the parent. When a change in a parent’s ownership interest
results in a deconsolidation of the subsidiary, the statement
requires that a parent recognize a gain or loss in net income. If
a parent retains a noncontrolling equity investment in the for-
mer subsidiary, that investment is measured at its fair value.
The gain or loss on the deconsolidation of the subsidiary is
measured using the fair value of the noncontrolling equity
investment. Finally, FASB ASC 810 requires expanded dis-
closures in the consolidated financial statements that clearly
identify and distinguish between the interests of the parent’s
owners and the interests of the noncontrolling owners of a
subsidiary. Those expanded disclosures include a reconcil-
iation of the beginning and ending balances of the equity
attributable to the parent and the noncontrolling owners and
a schedule showing the effects of changes in a parent’s own-
ership interest in a subsidiary on the equity attributable to the
parent.

1.73 Examples of consolidation practice disclosures follow.

1.74
TABLE 1-9: NONHOMOGENOUS OPERATIONS—
CONSOLIDATED
Number of Entities
2009 2008 2007 2006
Credit/Financing............c..c.... 36 31 53 66
Leasing......ccoeureeneireieieiniens 8 9 11 8
Insurance...... 6 7 10 15
Real estate 5 5 8 7

2008-2009 based on 500 entities surveyed; 2006—2007 based on
600 entities surveyed.
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1.75
BRISTOL-MYERS SQUIBB COMPANY (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 (In Part): Accounting Policies

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements, prepared in con-
formity with United States (U.S.) generally accepted ac-
counting principles (GAAP), include the accounts of Bristol-
Myers Squibb Company (which may be referred to as
Bristol-Myers Squibb, BMS, or the Company) and all of its
controlled majority-owned subsidiaries. All intercompany
balances and transactions have been eliminated. Material
subsequent events are evaluated and disclosed through the
report issuance date, February 19, 2010.

Codevelopment, cocommercialization and license ar-
rangements are entered into with other parties for various
therapeutic areas, with terms including upfront licensing and
contingent payments. These arrangements are assessed to
determine whether the terms give economic or other control
over the entity, which may require consolidation of the entity.
Entities that are consolidated because they are controlled by
means other than a majority voting interest are referred to as
variable interest entities. Arrangements with material variable
interest entities, including those associated with these code-
velopment, cocommercialization and license arrangements,
were determined not to exist.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards (In Part)

ASC 810-10-65-1, Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated
Financial Statements—an amendment of ARB No. 51 (for-
merly SFAS No. 160, Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated
Financial Statements—an amendment of ARB No. 51) was
adopted on January 1, 2009. As a result of adoption, the
noncontrolling interest balance of $33 million, previously pre-
sented as $66 million of receivables and $33 million of non-
current other liabilities, was presented as part of equity at
December 31, 2008. Also, noncontrolling interest has been
presented as a reconciling item in the consolidated state-
ments of earnings, the consolidated statements of compre-
hensive income and retained earnings and the consolidated
statements of cash flows.

Note 18 (In Part): Equity

The reconciliation of noncontrolling interest was as follows:

(Dollars in millions) 2009 2008 2007

Balance at January 1 $ (33) § (270 § 50
Mead Johnson IPO (160) — —
Adjustments to the Mead Johnson net

asset transfer 7 — —
Mead Johnson split-off 105 — —
Net earnings attributable to

noncontrolling interest 1,808 1,468 1,132
Other comprehensive income

attributable to noncontrolling interest 10 — —
Distributions (1,795)  (1,474)  (1,209)

Balance at December 31 $ (58 $ (33) $ (27)
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Noncontrolling interest is primarily related to the partnerships
with sanofi for the territory covering the Americas for net sales
of PLAVIX. Net earnings attributable to noncontrolling inter-
est are presented net of taxes of $589 million in 2009, $472
million in 2008 and $369 million in 2007, in the consolidated
statements of earnings with a corresponding increase to the
provision for income taxes. Distribution of the partnership
profits to sanofi and sanofi’s funding of ongoing partnership
operations occur on a routine basis and are included within
operating activities in the consolidated statements of cash
flows. The above activity includes the pre-tax income and
distributions related to these partnerships. Net earnings from
noncontrolling interest included in discontinued operations
was $69 million in 2009, and $7 million in 2008 and 2007.

1.76
THE DOW CHEMICAL COMPANY (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note A (In Part): Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation and Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of The
Dow Chemical Company and its subsidiaries (“Dow” or the
“Company”) were prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(“U.S. GAAP”) and include the assets, liabilities, revenues
and expenses of all majority-owned subsidiaries over which
the Company exercises control and, when applicable, enti-
ties for which the Company has a controlling financial inter-
est or is the primary beneficiary. Intercompany transactions
and balances are eliminated in consolidation. Investments in
nonconsolidated affiliates (20-50 percent owned companies,
joint ventures and partnerships) are accounted for using the
equity method.

Note R (In Part): Variable Interest Entities

Consolidated Variable Interest Entities

The Company holds a variable interest in two joint ventures
for which the Company is the primary beneficiary. One joint
venture is in the early stages of constructing a manufac-
turing facility to produce propylene oxide in Thailand. The
Company’s variable interest in this joint venture relates to
a cost-plus arrangement between the joint venture and the
Company that involves a majority of the output and ensures
a guaranteed return to the joint venture.

The other joint venture was acquired through the acquisi-
tion of Rohm and Haas on April 1, 2009. This joint venture
manufactures products in Japan for the semiconductor in-
dustry. Each joint venture partner holds several equivalent
variable interests, with the exception of a royalty agreement
held exclusively between the joint venture and the Company.
In addition, the entire output of the joint venture is sold to the
Company for resale to third-party customers.

As the primary beneficiary of these two VIEs, the joint
ventures’ assets, liabilities and results of operations are
included in the Company’s consolidated financial state-
ments. The other joint venture partners’ interest in results of
operations is reflected in “Net income attributable to
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noncontrolling interests” in the consolidated statements of
income. The other joint venture partners’ interest in the joint
ventures’ assets and liabilities is reflected in “Noncontrolling
interests” in the consolidated balance sheet. The following
table summarizes the carrying amount of the two joint ven-
tures’ assets and liabilities included in the Company’s con-
solidated balance sheet, before intercompany eliminations,
at December 31, 2009:

(In millions) 2009
Current assets $102
Property 455
Other noncurrent assets 81
Total assets $638
Current liabilities $183
Long-term debt 125
Other noncurrent liabilities 43
Total liabilities $351

In September 2001, Hobbes Capital S.A. (“Hobbes”), a for-
mer consolidated foreign subsidiary of the Company, issued
$500 million of preferred securities in the form of equity certifi-
cates. The certificates provided a floating rate of return (which
could be reinvested) based on LIBOR. Under the accounting
guidance for consolidation, Hobbes was a VIE and the Com-
pany was the primary beneficiary. During the third quarter of
2008, the other partner of Hobbes redeemed its $674 million
ownership in Hobbes. Prior to redemption, the equity certifi-
cates were classified as “Preferred Securities of Subsidiaries”
and the reinvested preferred returns were included in “Non-
controlling interests” in the consolidated balance sheets. The
preferred return was included in “Net income attributable to
noncontrolling interests” in the consolidated statements of
income.

1.77
SNAP-ON INCORPORATED (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 (In Part): Summary of Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation and Presentation

The Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts
of Snap-on Incorporated (“Snap-on” or “the company”), and
its wholly-owned and majority-owned subsidiaries, including
the accounts of Snap-on Credit LLC (“SOC”), the company’s
financial services operation in the United States. Prior to July
16, 2009, and since 2004, SOC was a consolidated financial
services joint venture with CIT Group Inc. (“CIT”), as Snap-on
was the primary beneficiary of the joint venture arrangement.
On July 16, 2009, pursuant to the terms of the joint venture
agreement, Snap-on terminated the joint venture agreement
with CIT and subsequently purchased CIT’s 50%-ownership
interest in SOC for $8.1 million.

Investments in affiliates over which the company has a
greater than 20% but less than 50% ownership interest are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting. Invest-
ments in unconsolidated affiliates of $37.7 million at 2009
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year end and $35.2 million at 2008 year end are included
in “Other assets” on the accompanying Consolidated Bal-
ance Sheets. The Consolidated Financial Statements do not
include the accounts of the company’s independent fran-
chisees. Snap-on’s Consolidated Financial Statements are
prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”).
All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have
been eliminated. The company has evaluated all subsequent
events that occurred up to the time of the company’s is-
suance of its financial statements on February 18, 2010.

Certain prior year amounts were reclassified on the Consol-
idated Financial Statements to reflect the company’s adop-
tion of accounting principles related to the presentation of
noncontrolling interests in consolidated financial statements,
which became effective for Snap-on at the beginning of its
2009 fiscal year. For all periods presented, noncontrolling in-
terests in partially owned consolidated subsidiaries are clas-
sified in the Consolidated Balance Sheets as either a sepa-
rate component of shareholders’ equity or, for redeemable
noncontrolling interests, as other long-term liabilities. The
net earnings attributable to the controlling and noncontrol-
ling interests are included on the face of the Consolidated
Statements of Earnings. Distributions to noncontrolling inter-
ests are included in financing activities on the Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows for all years presented; previously,
such distributions were included in net cash provided (used)
by operating activities.

Certain prior year amounts were also reclassified on
the Consolidated Financial Statements related to the com-
pany’s Financial Services’ operations. Following the July 16,
2009 acquisition of CIT’s 50%-ownership interest in SOC,
Snap-on began providing financing for the majority of new
loans originated by SOC; previously, substantially all of the
loans originated by SOC were sold to CIT. Depending on the
type of loan, the new contracts originated by SOC, as well
as the contracts originated by Snap-on’s wholly owned inter-
national finance subsidiaries, are reflected as either contract
or finance receivables on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.
“Trade and other accounts receivable—net,” and the cur-
rent and long-term portions of net contract and finance re-
ceivables are also disclosed on the Consolidated Balance
Sheets; previously, all current (payment terms of one year
or less) accounts receivable were included in “Accounts re-
ceivable - net of allowances” and long-term (payment terms
greater than one year) accounts receivable were included in
“Other assets.”

The Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows reflect the
“Provision for losses on finance receivables” originated by
(i) SOC after July 16, 2009, and (ii) Snap-on’s wholly owned
international finance subsidiaries, as part of “Net cash pro-
vided by operating activities.” Beginning in the third quarter
of 2009, following the acquisition of CIT’s ownership interest
in SOC, “Additions to finance receivables” and “Collections
of finance receivables” are presented as part of “Net cash
used by investing activities.” For financial statement periods
prior to October 3, 2009, the provision for losses on finance
receivables and the net additions and collections of finance
receivables, primarily related to the company’s wholly owned
international finance subsidiaries, are included in “(Increase)
decrease in contract receivables” as part of “Net cash pro-
vided by operating activities;” prior period amounts were not
restated as the amounts were not significant, individually or
in the aggregate, to Snap-on’s Consolidated Statements of
Cash Flows.
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Financial Services Revenue

Financial services revenue consists of installment contract
revenue and finance loan receivable revenue and, prior to
July 16, 2009, revenue from SOC'’s sales of originated loans
to CIT; financial services revenue also includes service fee
income received from CIT.

Snap-on generates financial services revenue from various
financing programs that include (i) loans and vehicle leases
to franchisees; (ii) loans to franchisees’ customers; and (jii)
loans to Snap-on’s industrial and other customers for the
purchase of tools, equipment and diagnostics products on
an extended-term payment plan. These financing programs
are offered through SOC and Snap-on’s wholly owned inter-
national finance subsidiaries. Prior to the company’s July 16,
2009 acquisition of CIT's 50%-ownership interest in SOC,
financial services revenue in the United States was primarily
generated from SOC’s sales of originated contracts to CIT.

Financing revenue from originated loans retained by Snap-
on’s finance subsidiaries, including SOC, is recognized over
the life of the contract, with interest computed on the average
daily balances of the underlying contracts using the effective
interest method. Financing revenue from sales of contracts
to CIT was recognized on the date such contracts were sold.
For contracts originated by SOC and subsequently sold to
CIT, SOC continues to service the contracts for an estimated
servicing fee and such revenue is recognized over the con-
tractual term of the loan, with a portion of the servicing fee
recognized at the time of sale since the contractual servicing
fee provided SOC with more than adequate compensation
for the level of services provided.

The decision to finance through Snap-on or another financ-
ing entity is solely at the election of the customer. When as-
sessing customers for potential financing, Snap-on consid-
ers various factors regarding ability to pay including financial
condition, collateral, debt-servicing ability, past payment ex-
perience and credit bureau information.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

1.78 FASB ASC 805, Business Combinations, requires that
the acquisition method be used for all business combina-
tions. FASB ASC 805 requires an acquirer to recognize the
assets acquired, the liabilities assumed, and any noncontrol-
ling interest in the acquiree at the acquisition date, measured
at their fair values as of that date. This replaces the cost-
allocation process, which required the cost of an acquisition
to be allocated to the individual assets acquired and liabilities
assumed based on their estimated fair values. Additionally,
FASB ASC 805 requires costs incurred to affect the acquisi-
tion to be recognized separately from the acquisition rather
than included in the cost allocated to the assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. FASB ASC 805 also requires the acquirer
in a step acquisition to recognize the identifiable assets and li-
abilities, as well as the noncontrolling interest in the acquiree,
at the full amounts of their fair values. The guidance requires
the acquirer to recognize goodwill as of the acquisition date,
measured as a residual, which in most types of business
combinations will result in measuring goodwill as the excess
of the consideration transferred plus the fair value of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree at the acquisition date over
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the fair values of the identifiable net assets acquired. “Neg-
ative goodwill” resulting from a bargain purchase business
combination in which the total acquisition-date fair value of
the identifiable net assets acquired exceeds the fair value of
the consideration transferred plus any noncontrolling interest
in the acquiree, is to be recognized in earnings as a gain.

1.79 During 2009, 225 survey entities used the acquisition
method to account for a business combination.

1.80 The nature of information commonly disclosed for
business combinations is listed in Table 1-10. Examples of
disclosures made by survey entities for business combina-
tions accounted for by the acquisition method and for the
formation of jointly owned entities follow.

1.81

TABLE 1-10: BUSINESS COMBINATION DISCLOSURES
2009 2008 2007 2006

Method of payment:
Cash only......ccooeveereiveineiieirireene 147 194 261 251
Cash and stock.. 13 20 20 33
Stock only.............. 8 5 8 9

Other—described
Intangible assets not subject to

5 10 1 6

amortization ...........c.cveveererneenienenns 156 202 240 250
Intangible assets subject to

amortization ...........c.veveerverneenieneens 114 176 211 200
Preliminary allocation of acquisition

(60 O 81 118 162 159
Supplemental pro forma information.... 33 63 89 76
Contingent payments...........cccocvceneenee 26 42 48 48
Purchased research and development

COSES v 25 25 37 39
Fair value of noncontrolling interest..... 4 N/C* NIC* N/IC*
Bargain purchase gain (negative

GOOAWIll)....vocvevricrceicciseeeierias 2 NIC* N/C* N/C*

* N/C = Not compiled. Line item was not included in the table for
the year shown.

2008-2009 based on 500 entities surveyed; 2006—-2007 based on
600 entities surveyed.

Acquisition Method
1.82

FIDELITY NATIONAL INFORMATION SERVICES,
INC. (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 (In Part): Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

u (In Part): Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2007, the Financial Accounting Standards
Board (FASB) issued new guidance requiring an acquirer in
a business combination to recognize the assets acquired,
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the liabilities assumed, and any noncontrolling interest in the
acquiree at their fair values at the acquisition date, with lim-
ited exceptions. The costs of the acquisition and any related
restructuring costs are to be recognized separately. When the
fair value of assets acquired exceeds the fair value of con-
sideration transferred plus any noncontrolling interest in the
acquiree, the excess will be recognized as a gain. All business
combinations will be accounted for prospectively by apply-
ing the acquisition method, including combinations among
mutual entities and combinations by contract alone. In April
2009, the FASB amended and clarified the initial recogni-
tion and measurement, subsequent measurement and ac-
counting, and related disclosures arising from contingencies
in a business combination. Assets and liabilities arising from
contingencies in a business combination are to be recog-
nized at their fair value on the acquisition date if fair value
can be determined during the measurement period. If fair
value cannot be determined, the existing guidance for contin-
gencies and other authoritative literature should be followed.
This new guidance is effective for periods beginning on or
after December 15, 2008, and applies to business combi-
nations occurring after the effective date. The Company has
applied the provisions to the Metavante combination, and
will apply the provisions prospectively for any future busi-
ness combinations.

6 (In Part): Acquisitions and Dispositions

The results of operations and financial position of the entities
acquired during the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008,
and 2007 are included in the Consolidated Financial State-
ments from and after the date of acquisition. There were no
significant acquisitions in 2008.

2009 Significant Acquisition

Metavante

On October 1, 2009, we completed the acquisition of Meta-
vante (the “Metavante Acquisition”). Metavante expands the
scale of FIS core processing and payment capabilities, adds
trust and wealth management services and includes the
NYCE Network, a leading national EFT network. In addition,
Metavante adds significant scale to treasury and cash man-
agement offerings and provides an entry into the emerging
markets of healthcare and government payments. Pursuant
to the Agreement and Plan of Merger (the “Metavante Merger
Agreement”) dated as of March 31, 2009, Metavante became
a wholly-owned subsidiary of FIS. Each issued and outstand-
ing share of Metavante common stock, par value $0.01 per
share, was converted into 1.35 shares of FIS common stock.
In addition, outstanding Metavante stock options and other
stock-based awards converted into comparable FIS stock
options and other stock-based awards at the same conver-
sion ratio.
The total purchase price was as follows (in millions):

Value of Metavante common stock $4,066.4
Value of Metavante stock awards 121.4

Total purchase price $4,187.8

We have recorded a preliminary allocation of the purchase
price to Metavante tangible and identifiable intangible assets
acquired and liabilities assumed based on their fair values as
of October 1, 2009. Goodwill has been recorded based on

AICPA Accounting Trends & Techniques

the amount by which the purchase price exceeds the fair
value of the net assets acquired. The preliminary purchase
price allocation is as follows (in millions):

Cash $ 4397
Trade and other receivables 237.9
Land, buildings, and equipment 119.8
Other assets 144.4
Computer software 287.7
Intangible assets 1,572.0
Goodwill 4,083.1
Liabilities assumed (2,673.4)
Noncontrolling interest (23.4)

Total purchase price $4,187.8

The preliminary allocation of the purchase price to intangible
assets, including computer software and customer relation-
ships, is based on valuations performed to determine the fair
value of such assets as of the merger date. The Company is
still assessing the economic characteristics of certain soft-
ware projects and customer relationships. The Company ex-
pects to substantially complete this assessment during the
first quarter of 2010 and may adjust the amounts recorded
as of December 31, 2009 to reflect any revised evaluations.
Land and building valuations are based upon appraisals per-
formed by certified property appraisers.

The following table summarizes the liabilities assumed in
the Metavante Acquisition (in millions):

Long-term debt including current portion $1,720.1
Deferred income taxes 544 4
Other liabilities 408.9

$2,673.4

In connection with the Metavante Acquisition, we also ac-
quired Metavante stock option plans and registered approx-
imately 12.2 million options and 0.6 million restricted stock
units in replacement of similar outstanding awards held by
Metavante employees. The amounts attributable to vested
options are included as an adjustment to the purchase price,
and the amounts attributable to unvested options and re-
stricted stock units will be expensed over the remaining vest-
ing period based on a valuation as of the date of closing.
As of the acquisition date, WPM, L.P., a Delaware lim-
ited partnership affiliated with Warburg Pincus Private
Equity IX, L.P. (collectively “Warburg Pincus”) owned 25%
of the outstanding shares of Metavante common stock, and
was a party to a purchase right agreement with Metavante
which granted Warburg Pincus the right to purchase ad-
ditional shares of Metavante common stock under certain
conditions in order to maintain its interest. The Company
and Warburg Pincus entered into a replacement stock pur-
chase right agreement effective upon consummation of the
merger, granting Warburg Pincus the right to purchase com-
parable FIS shares in lieu of Metavante shares. The purchase
right agreement relates to Metavante employee stock op-
tions that were outstanding as of the date of Warburg Pin-
cus’ initial investment in Metavante. The stock purchase right
may be exercised quarterly for the difference between one-
third of the number of said employee stock options exercised
during the preceding quarter and the quotient of one-third
of the aggregate exercise prices of such options exercised
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divided by the quoted closing price of acommon share on the
day immediately before exercise of the purchase right. As of
October 1, 2009, approximately 7.0 million options remained
outstanding that were subject to this purchase right, and ap-
proximately 0.5 million were exercised during the fourth quar-
ter of 2009.

Pro Forma Results

Metavante’s revenues of $404.1 million for the fourth quar-
ter of 2009 are included in the Consolidated Statements of
Earnings. Disclosure of the earnings of Metavante since the
acquisition date is not practicable as it is not being operated
as a standalone subsidiary.

Selected unaudited pro forma results of operations for the
years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, assuming the
Metavante Acquisition had occurred as of January 1 of each
respective year, are presented for comparative purposes be-
low (in millions, except per share amounts):

2009 2008

Total revenues $4,983.1 $5,020.8
Net earnings from continuing operations

attributable to FIS common stockholders $ 155.1 $ 131.6
Pro forma earnings per share—basic from

continuing operations attributable to FIS

common stockholders $ 041 $ 036
Pro forma earnings per share—diluted from

continuing operations attributable to FIS

common stockholders $ 040 $ 035

Pro forma results include impairment charges of $136.9 mil-
lion and Metavante merger and integration related costs of
approximately $143.2 million, on a pre-tax basis. Excluding
the impact of deferred revenue adjustments, total pro forma
revenues would be $5,051.9 million and $5,092.0 million for
2009 and 2008, respectively.

1.83
PALL CORPORATION (JUL)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands)

Note 2. Acquisitions

On September 2, 2008 (the “Closing Date”), the Company
acquired 100% of the share capital and voting rights, on a
fully diluted basis, of GeneSystems, SA (“GeneSystems”), a
privately held French biotechnology company that has devel-
oped a patented approach to rapid microbiological detection
equipment and disposables. On the Closing Date, the Com-
pany paid a cash purchase price of 25,000 Euros ($36,265
U.S. dollar equivalent at the foreign exchange rate on the
Closing Date), subject to a post closing working capital ad-
justment. In the second quarter of fiscal year 2009, the Com-
pany paid the working capital adjustment of 289 Euros ($382
equivalent).

In the event that French regulations relating to the moni-
toring of possible contamination of hot water systems and/or
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water cooling towers by Legionella are amended by the sec-
ond anniversary of the Closing Date, with effect within 12
months of such amendment, to either (i) make the use of
Polymerase Chain Reaction technology mandatory for such
monitoring in France or (ii) validate its use as the only or pre-
ferred method for such monitoring in France (the “Legionella
Regulation”), a post closing payment equal to 11,500 Euros
(less any indemnity related payments of up to 2,000 Euros)
will also be paid. If the Legionella Regulation is published af-
ter the second anniversary of the Closing Date, but prior to
the third anniversary of the Closing Date, and becomes effec-
tive within 12 months of publication, the sellers will be paid
5,000 Euros (less any indemnity related payments of up to
2,000 Euros). None of the aforementioned events that would
require any post closing payments occurred through July 31,
2009. Accordingly, no liabilities for such payments have been
recorded as of July 31, 2009.

The acquisition was accounted for using the purchase
method of accounting in accordance with SFAS No. 141.
SFAS No. 141 requires that the total cost of an acquisition
be allocated to the tangible and intangible assets acquired
and liabilities assumed based upon their respective fair val-
ues at the date of acquisition.

The following table summarizes the final allocation of the
purchase price to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed
at the date of the acquisition:

Purchase price $36,647
Transaction costs 698
Total purchase price 37,345
Cash acquired 96
Total purchase price, net of cash acquired 37,249
Accounts receivable 909
Inventories 1,883
Other current assets 683
Property, plant and equipment 491
In-process research and development 1,743
Intangible assets 16,618
Total assets and in-process research and development

acquired 22,327
Accounts payable and other current liabilities 2,260
Other non-current liabilities 4,785
Total liabilities assumed 7,045
Goodwill $21,967

Based upon the valuation of in-process research and de-
velopment, the Company recorded a charge to earnings of
approximately $1,743, which has been included in Restruc-
turing and other charges, net (see Note 3, Restructuring and
Other Charges, Net) for the year ended July 31, 2009.

The amount of in-process research and development was
determined by identifying research projects for which tech-
nological feasibility had not been established and for which
no alternative future uses existed. As of the acquisition date,
there was one project that met the above criteria. The project
identified is targeted for the BioPharmaceuticals market. The
value of the research project identified to be in-process
was determined by estimating the future cash flows from
the project once commercially feasible and discounting the
net cash flows back to their present value. The key as-
sumptions specifically underlying the valuation for purchased
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in-process research and development consist of an expected
completion date for the in-process project, estimated costs
to complete the project, revenue and expense projections,
and discount rates based on the risks associated with the de-
velopment life cycle of the in-process technology acquired.
The weighted average discount rate used was approximately
40%. The project is expected to be completed by the end of
calendar year 2010.

Based upon the markets GeneSystems serves, the good-
will was assigned to the Company’s Life Sciences segment.
The goodwill is not tax deductible. Pro forma financial infor-
mation has not been provided as it would not be materially
different from the financial information that was previously
reported. The results of GeneSystems have been included in
the results of operations of the Company since the date of
acquisition.

Formation of Jointly Owned Entities
1.84
HASBRO, INC. (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Thousands of dollars)

1 (In Part): Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Equity Method Investments

For the Company’s equity method investments, only the
Company’s investment in and amounts due to and from the
equity method investments are included on the consolidated
balance sheet and only the Company’s share of the equity
method investments’ earnings (losses) is included on the
consolidated statement of operations. Dividends, cash distri-
butions, loans or other cash received from the equity method
investments, additional cash investments, loan repayments
or other cash paid to the investee are included in the consol-
idated statement of cash flows.

The Company reviews its investments in equity method in-
vestments for impairment on a periodic basis. If it has been
determined that the equity investment is less than its related
fair value and that this decline is other-than-temporary, the
carrying value of the investment is adjusted downward to
reflect these declines in value. The Company has one eg-
uity method investment that is material to the consolidated
financial statements, its 50% interest in a joint venture with
Discovery Communications, Inc. See note 5 for additional
information.

5. Equity Method Investment

During 2009, the Company entered into an agreement to form
a joint venture with Discovery Communications, Inc. (“Dis-
covery”) to create a television network in the United States
dedicated to high-quality children’s and family entertainment
and educational programming. The transaction closed in May
2009 with the Company’s purchase of a 50% interest in the
joint venture, DHJV Company LLC (“DHJV”), which owns the
DISCOVERY KIDS network in the United States. The Com-
pany purchased its 50% share in DHJV for a payment of
$300,000 and certain future payments based on the value
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of certain tax benefits expected to be received by the Com-
pany. The present value of the expected future payments at
the acquisition date totaled approximately $67,900 and was
recorded as a component of the Company’s investment in
the joint venture. The balance of the associated liability, in-
cluding imputed interest, was $71,234 at December 27, 2009
and is included as a component of other liabilities in the ac-
companying balance sheet.

Voting control of the joint venture is shared 50/50 between
the Company and Discovery. However, the Company be-
lieves that the joint venture qualifies as a variable interest
entity pursuant to current accounting standards, and that it
qualifies as the primary beneficiary, which would result in the
Company consolidating the joint venture. In June 2009, the
FASB revised the accounting guidance related to variable
interest entity consolidation. The revised guidance is effec-
tive for the Company at the beginning of fiscal 2010. Under
the revised guidance, the Company has determined that it
does not meet the control requirements to consolidate the
joint venture, and would be required to deconsolidate DHJV
and utilize the equity method to account for its investment
at the adoption date. The Company has elected to use the
equity method in 2009 for financial statement presentation of
the joint venture as it has determined that the difference be-
tween using consolidation and the equity method in 2009 is
not material to the overall presentation of the financial state-
ments. Additionally, there is no impact on net earnings or
earnings per share. The Company’s share in the earnings of
the joint venture for the year ended December 27, 2009 to-
taled $3,856 of income and is included as a component of
other (income) expense in the accompanying consolidated
statements of operations.

The Company has entered into a license agreement with
the joint venture that will require the payment of royalties by
the Company to the joint venture based on a percentage of
revenue derived from products related to television shows
broadcast by the joint venture. The license agreement in-
cludes a minimum royalty guarantee of $125,000, payable
in 5 annual installments of $25,000 per year, commencing
in 2009, which can be earned out over approximately a 10-
year period. During 2009, the Company paid the first annual
installment of $25,000, which is included in other assets on
the consolidated balance sheet at December 27, 2009. The
Company and the joint venture are also parties to an agree-
ment under which the Company will provide the joint venture
with an exclusive first look in the U.S. to license certain types
of programming developed by the Company based on its in-
tellectual property. In the event the joint venture licenses the
programming from the Company to air on the network, the
joint venture is required to pay the Company a license fee.

The assets of the joint venture at inception consisted of
goodwill and intangibles which were measured at fair value at
inception. Intangible assets are primarily comprised of cable
affiliate relationships, which are being amortized on a straight
line basis over 30 years, and programming costs, which are
being amortized primarily over 4 years on an accelerated ba-
sis. Hasbro’s share of the assets underlying its investment at
inception totaled $142,577 of goodwill, $211,850 of cable
affiliate relationships, $12,400 of programming costs, and
$1,100 of other intangibles. Amortization of the intangible
assets is recorded in the results of the joint venture and, ac-
cordingly, the Company’s share is included in its share of the
joint venture earnings which is a component of other (income)
expense. As of December 27, 2009, the Company’s interest

ATT-SEC 1.84



86 Accounting Trends & Techniques

in the joint venture totaled $371,783 and is a component of
other assets.

As of December 27, 2009, DHJV had current assets of
$51,674, non-current assets of $696,842 and current liabili-
ties of $27,209. Net income of the joint venture for the period
from inception to December 27, 2009 was $7,711.

CONTINGENCIES

1.85 FASB ASC 450, Contingencies, defines a contingency
as “an existing condition, situation or set of circumstances
involving uncertainty as to possible gain or loss to an en-
terprise that will ultimately be resolved when one or more
future events occur or fail to occur.” FASB ASC 450-20, Loss
Contingencies, sets forth standards of financial accounting
and reporting for loss contingencies. FASB ASC 450-30, Gain
Contingencies, states the accounting and reporting stan-
dards for gain contingencies. During 2009, 330 survey en-
tities presented a caption for contingencies in the balance
sheet. Table 1-11 lists the loss and gain contingencies dis-
closed in the annual reports of the survey entities.

1.86 Examples of contingency disclosures, except for tax
carryforwards, follow. Examples of operating loss carryfor-
wards are presented in Section 3.

1.87

TABLE 1-11: CONTINGENCIES

Number of Entities
2009 2008 2007 2006
Loss Contingencies

Litigation.........c.eeeeeeneinirrcceeene 379 404 489 476
Environmental..........cccocvvereiicicriennnn. 203 225 266 263
Possible tax assessments.. 145 166 185 117
Insurance.........ccoeveeererierennnns 132 160 176 152
Government investigations.................. 95 122 153 138
Other—described........ccoovvvercrrrrennne. 63 66 45 70
Gain Contingencies
Operating loss carryforward................. 429 423 499 496
Tax credits and other tax credit

CarTyfOrwards............ocevevvereererieennes 273 255 278 265
Capital loss carryforward..................... 69 65 83 85
Alternative minimum tax

carryforward. ... 44 40 51 57
Plaintiff Litigation 42 55 40 40
Asset sale receivable.............cccceuinnee 8 8 10 11
Investment credit carryforward............ 7 11 9 6
Potential tax refund...........c.cocovvviunienee 7 4 12 5
Charitable contribution carryforward.... 4 5 7 6
Other—described............ccocvevriiniinrenee 6 3 6 5

2008-2009 based on 500 entities surveyed; 2006-2007 based on
600 entities surveyed.
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LOSS CONTINGENCIES

Litigation
1.88
BJ SERVICES COMPANY (SEP)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11 (In Part): Commitments and Contingencies

Litigation

Through performance of our service operations, we are
sometimes named as a defendant in litigation, usually re-
lating to claims for personal injury or property damage (in-
cluding claims for well or reservoir damage, and damage to
pipelines or process facilities). We maintain insurance cov-
erage against such claims to the extent deemed prudent
by management. Further, through a series of acquisitions,
we assumed responsibility for certain claims and proceed-
ings made against the Western Company of North America,
Nowsco Well Service Ltd., OSCA and other companies
whose stock we acquired in connection with their busi-
nesses. Some, but not all, of such claims and proceed-
ings will continue to be covered under insurance policies
of our predecessors that were in place at the time of the
acquisitions.

Although the outcome of the claims and proceedings
against us cannot be predicted with certainty, management
believes that there are no existing claims or proceedings that
are likely to have a material adverse effect on our financial
position, results of operations or cash flows.

Stockholder Lawsuits regarding Baker Hughes Merger

In connection with the pending Baker Hughes Merger, various
lawsuits have been filed in the Court of Chancery of the State
of Delaware (the “Delaware Lawsuits”) on behalf of the public
stockholders of the Company, naming the Company, current
members of the Company’s Board of Directors, and Baker
Hughes as defendants. In the Delaware Lawsuits, the plain-
tiffs allege, among other things, that the Company’s Board
of Directors violated various fiduciary duties in approving
the Merger Agreement and that the Company and/or Baker
Hughes aided and abetted such alleged violations. Among
other remedies, the plaintiffs seek to enjoin the Merger.

On September 25, 2009, the Delaware Chancery Court
entered an order consolidating the Delaware Lawsuits into
one class action, In re: BJ Services Company Sharehold-
ers Litigation, C.A. No. 4851-VCN. On October 6, 2009, the
Delaware Chancery Court entered an order designating the
law firm of Faruqi & Faruqi, LLP of New York, New York as lead
counsel and Rosenthal, Monhait & Goddess, P.A. of Wilming-
ton, Delaware as liaison counsel. On October 16, 2009, lead
counsel for the plaintiffs filed an amended complaint in the
Delaware Chancery Court which, among other things, adds
Jeffrey E. Smith, the Company’s Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer, as a defendant, contains new fac-
tual allegations about the merger negotiations, and alleges
the preliminary joint proxy/prospectus filed on October 14,
2009, with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission
(the “SEC”) omits and misrepresents material information.

Various lawsuits have also been filed in the District Courts
of Harris County, Texas (the “Texas Lawsuits”). The Texas
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Lawsuits make substantially the same allegations as were ini-
tially asserted in the Delaware Lawsuits, and seek the same
relief. On October 9, 2009, the Harris County Court consoli-
dated the Texas Lawsuits into one class action, Garden City
Employees’ Retirement System, et al. v. BJ Services Com-
pany, et al., Cause No. 2009-57320, 80 th Judicial District
of Harris County, Texas. On October 20, 2009, the Court of
Appeals for the First District of Texas at Houston granted
the defendants’ emergency motion to stay the Texas Law-
suits pending its decision on the defendants’ petition seek-
ing a stay of the Texas Lawsuits pending adjudication of the
Delaware Lawsuits, which were filed first.

The Company believes that the Delaware Lawsuits and the
Texas Lawsuits are without merit, and it intends to vigorously
defend itself against them. The outcome of this litigation is
uncertain, however, and we cannot currently predict the man-
ner and timing of the resolution of the suits, the likelihood of
the issuance of an injunction preventing the consummation
of the Merger, or an estimate of a range of possible losses or
any minimum loss that could result in the event of an adverse
verdict in these suits. These suits could prevent or delay the
completion of the Merger and result in substantial costs to the
Company and Baker Hughes. We have recorded an amount
for estimated legal defense costs under our applicable insur-
ance policies. However, there can be no assurance as to the
ultimate outcome of these lawsuits or whether our applicable
insurance policies will provide sufficient coverage for these
claims.

Asbestos Litigation

In August 2004, certain predecessors of ours, along with nu-
merous other defendants were named in four lawsuits filed
in the Circuit Courts of Jones and Smith Counties in Missis-
sippi. These four lawsuits included 118 individual plaintiffs
alleging that they suffer various illnesses from exposure to
asbestos and seeking damages. The lawsuits assert claims
of unseaworthiness, negligence, and strict liability, all based
upon the status of our predecessors as Jones Act employers.
The plaintiffs were required to complete data sheets specify-
ing the companies they were employed by and the asbestos-
containing products to which they were allegedly exposed.
Through this process, approximately 25 plaintiffs have iden-
tified us or our predecessors as their employer. Amended
lawsuits were filed by four individuals against us and the
remainder of the original claims (114) were dismissed. Of
these four lawsuits, three failed to name us as an employer
or manufacturer of asbestos-containing products so we were
thereby dismissed. Subsequently an individual from one of
these lawsuits brought his own action against us. As a result,
we are currently named as a Jones Act employer in two of the
Mississippi lawsuits. It is possible that as many as 21 other
claimants who identified us or our predecessors as their em-
ployer could file suit against us, but they have not done so
at this time. Only minimal medical information regarding the
alleged asbestos-related disease suffered by the plaintiffs in
the two lawsuits has been provided. Accordingly, we are un-
able to estimate our potential exposure to these lawsuits. We
and our predecessors in the past maintained insurance which
may be available to respond to these claims. In addition to
the Jones Act cases, we have been named in a small number
of additional asbestos cases. The allegations in these cases
vary, but generally include claims that we provided some un-
specified product or service which contained or utilized as-
bestos or that an employee was exposed to asbestos at one
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of our facilities or customer job sites. Some of the allegations
involve claims that we are the successor to the Byron Jack-
son Company. To date, we have been successful in obtaining
dismissals of such successor cases without any payment in
settlements or judgments, although some remain pending at
the present time. We intend to defend ourselves vigorously
in all of these cases based on the information available to us
at this time. We do not expect the outcome of these lawsuits,
individually or collectively, to have a material adverse effect
on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows;
however, there can be no assurance as to the ultimate out-
come of these lawsuits or additional similar lawsuits, if any,
that may be filed.

Halliburton—Python Litigation

On December 21, 2007, Halliburton Energy Services, Inc.
re-filed a prior suit against us and another oilfield services
company for patent infringement in connection with drillable
bridge plug tools. These tools are used to isolate portions of a
well for stimulation work, after which the plugs are milled out
using coiled tubing or a workover rig. Halliburton claims that
our tools (offered under the trade name “Python”) and tools
offered by the other company infringe various patents for a
tool constructed of composite material. The lawsuit was filed
in the United States District Court for the Northern District of
Texas (Dallas). This lawsuit arises from litigation filed in 2003
by Halliburton regarding the patents at issue. The earlier case
was dismissed without prejudice when Halliburton sought a
re-examination of the patents by the United States Patent
and Trademark Office on July 6, 2004. The parties have filed
briefs with the Court arguing their positions on the construc-
tion of the coverage of Halliburton’s patent. We expect that
the Court will either issue a ruling or schedule a hearing
on these issues within the next few months. We do not ex-
pect the outcome of this matter to have a material adverse
effect on our financial position, results of operations or cash
flows; however, there can be no assurance as to the ultimate
outcome of this matter or future lawsuits, if any, that may be
filed.

Halliburton—OptiFrac Litigation

In December 2008, Halliburton filed a lawsuit against us in
the Eastern District of Texas (Marshall) and another lawsuit
in Toronto, Canada against us and another oilfield services
company for patent infringement. In both suits, Halliburton
claims that our coiled tubing perforating system (“OptiFrac”)
infringes various patents for a coiled tubing fracturing system
marketed by Halliburton. We are in the process of analyzing
the methods, claims and causes of action alleged by Hal-
liburton in the suits. We do not expect the outcome of these
matters to have a material adverse effect on our financial po-
sition, results of operations or cash flows; however, there can
be no assurance as to the ultimate outcome of these matters
or future lawsuits, if any, that may be filed.
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1.89
VERISIGN, INC. (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 15 (In Part): Commitments and Contingencies

Legal Proceedings

On July 6, 2006, a stockholder derivative complaint (Parnes
v. Bidzos, et al., and VeriSign) was filed against VeriSign in
the U.S. District Court for the Northern District of California,
as a nominal defendant, and certain of its current and former
directors and executive officers related to certain historical
stock option grants. The complaint seeks unspecified dam-
ages on behalf of VeriSign, constructive trust and other eqg-
uitable relief. Two other derivative actions were filed, one in
the U.S. District Court for the Northern District of California
(Port Authority v. Bidzos, et al., and VeriSign), and one in the
Superior Court of the State of California, Santa Clara County
(Port Authority v. Bidzos, et al., and VeriSign) on August 14,
2006. The state court derivative action is stayed pending res-
olution of the federal actions. The current directors and offi-
cers named in this state action are D. James Bidzos, William
L. Chenevich, Roger H. Moore and Louis A. Simpson. The
Company is named as a nominal defendant in these ac-
tions. The federal actions have been consolidated and plain-
tiffs filed a consolidated complaint on November 20, 2006
(“Federal Action”). The current directors and officers named
in this consolidated Federal Action are D. James Bidzos,
William L. Chenevich, Roger H. Moore, Louis A. Simpson
and Timothy Tomlinson. Motions to dismiss the consolidated
federal court complaint were heard on May 23, 2007. Those
motions were granted on September 14, 2007. On November
16, 2007, a second amended shareholder derivative com-
plaint was filed in the Federal Action wherein the Company
was again named as a nominal defendant. By stipulation and
Court order, defendants’ obligation to respond to the second
amended shareholder derivative complaint has been contin-
ued pending informal efforts by the parties to resolve the
Federal Action. The parties have reached an agreement to
resolve the option grant related matters. The Federal Action
is subject to approval of the U.S. District Court for the North-
ern District of California. A motion for preliminary approval
was filed on January 27, 2010 and the motion is scheduled
to be heard on March 3, 2010. The parties have agreed that
upon final approval of the settlement and dismissal of the
Federal Action the parallel state court proceedings will be
dismissed.

On May 15, 2007, a putative class action (Mykityshyn v.
Bidzos, et al., and VeriSign) was filed in Superior Court for the
State of California, Santa Clara County, naming the Company
and certain current and former officers and directors, alleg-
ing false representations and disclosure failures regarding
certain historical stock option grants. The plaintiff purports
to represent all individuals who owned the Company’s com-
mon stock between April 3, 2002, and August 9, 2006. The
complaint seeks rescission of amendments to the 1998 and
2006 Option Plans and the cancellation of shares added to
the 1998 Option Plan. The complaint also seeks to enjoin the
Company from granting any stock options and from allow-
ing the exercise of any currently outstanding options granted
under the 1998 and 2006 Option Plans. The complaint seeks
an unspecified amount of compensatory damages, costs and
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attorneys fees. The identical case was filed in the Superior
Court for the State of California, Santa Clara County un-
der a separate name (Pace v. Bidzos, et al., and VeriSign)
on June 19, 2007, and on October 3, 2007 (Mehdian v.
Bidzos, et al.). On December 3, 2007, a consolidated com-
plaint was filed in Superior Court for the State of Califor-
nia, Santa Clara County. The current directors and officers
named in this consolidated class action are D. James Bidzos,
William L. Chenevich, Roger H. Moore and Louis A. Simpson.
VeriSign and the individual defendants dispute all of these
claims. Defendants’ collective pleading challenges to the pu-
tative consolidated class action complaint were granted with
leave to amend in August 2008. By stipulation and Court
order, plaintiff’s obligation to file an amended consolidated
class action complaint has been continued pending informal
efforts by the parties to resolve the action. The parties have
reached an agreement to resolve all of the option grant re-
lated matters. The Federal Action is subject to approval of
the U.S. District Court for the Northern District of California.
A motion for preliminary approval was filed on January 27,
2010 in that court and the motion is scheduled to be heard on
March 3, 2010. The parties have agreed that upon final ap-
proval of the settlement and dismissal of the Federal Action
the parallel state court proceedings will be dismissed.

On November 7, 2006, a judgment was entered against
VeriSign by a ftrial court in Terni, ltaly, in the matter of
Penco v. VeriSign, Inc. in the amount of Euro 5.8 million plus
fees arising from a lawsuit brought by a former consultant
who claimed to be owed commissions. The Company was
granted a stay on execution of the judgment and the Com-
pany filed an appeal. On July 9, 2008, the appellate court
rejected all of plaintiff’s claims. On or about April 2, 2009,
plaintiff filed an appeal in the Supreme Court of Cassation,
Rome, ltaly. VeriSign filed a Writ of Reply on May 5, 2009.

On May 31, 2007, plaintiffs Karen Herbert, et al., on be-
half of themselves and a nationwide class of consumers
(“Herbert”), filed a complaint against VeriSign, m-Qube, Inc.,
and other defendants alleging that defendants collectively
operate an illegal lottery under the laws of multiple states
by allowing viewers of the NBC television show “Deal or No
Deal” to incur premium text message charges in order to par-
ticipate in an interactive television promotion called “Lucky
Case Game.” The lawsuit is pending in the U.S. District Court
for the Central District of California, Western Division. On
June 5, 2007, plaintiffs Cheryl Bentley, et al., on behalf of
themselves and a nationwide class of consumers (“Bentley”),
filed a complaint against VeriSign, m-Qube, Inc., and other
defendants alleging that defendants collectively operate an
illegal lottery under the laws of multiple states by allowing
viewers of the NBC television show “The Apprentice” to in-
cur premium text message charges in order to participate
in an interactive television promotion called “Get Rich With
Trump.” The Bentley matter is currently stayed. A motion to
dismiss the ruling in Herbert is on appeal in the U.S. Court of
Appeals for the Ninth Circuit.

On September 12, 2008, Leon Stambler filed a declaratory
judgment complaint against VeriSign in the U.S. District Court
for the Eastern District of Texas. The complaint seeks an or-
der permitting Stambler to proceed with patent infringement
actions against VeriSign SSL certificate customers in actions
in which VeriSign is not a party in view of Stambler’s prior
unsuccessful action in 2003 against VeriSign on the same
patents in which a verdict was returned against Stambler and
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a judgment was entered thereon. VeriSign has received re-
quests to indemnify certain SSL certificate customers in the
patent infringement actions brought by Stambler. VeriSign
and Stambler entered into a confidential settlement agree-
ment on June 1, 2009. Certain indemnity requests from cus-
tomers are still pending. The declaratory judgment complaint
against VeriSign was dismissed on June 8, 2009.

On June 5, 2009, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Ninth
Circuit reversed and remanded a district court order dismiss-
ing a second amended complaint filed by plaintiff Coalition
for ICANN Transparency, Inc. (“CFIT”). CFIT filed its initial
complaint and an application for a temporary restraining or-
der against VeriSign and Internet Corporation for Assigned
Names and Numbers (“ICANN”) in the U.S. District Court for
the Northern District of California on November 28, 2005,
asserting claims under Sections 1 and 2 of the Sherman
Antitrust Act (the “Sherman Act”), the Cartwright Act, and Cal.
Bus. & Prof. Code 3 17200. The district court denied CFIT’s
application for a temporary restraining order on November
30, 2005. Shortly after the action was initiated and CFIT’s ap-
plication was denied, the district court granted defendants’
Motion for Judgment on the Pleadings on February 28, 2006,
with leave to amend. CFIT filed a First Amended Complaint
on March 14, 2006. The Court granted defendants’ Motion to
Dismiss the First Amended Complaint, with leave to amend,
on December 8, 2006. CFIT filed a Second Amended Com-
plaint on December 28, 2006; ICANN was not included as a
defendant in the Second Amended Complaint. The Second
Amended Complaint, which VeriSign has not yet answered,
asserted claims, among others, under Sections 1 and 2 of the
Sherman Act against VeriSign, challenging in part VeriSign’s
conduct in entering into, and the pricing, renewal and certain
other terms of, the .com and .net registry agreements with
ICANN. The same renewal and pricing terms in the .com reg-
istry agreement are incorporated by reference in the Cooper-
ative Agreement between VeriSign and the U.S. Department
of Commerce, which approved the .com Registry Agreement
as in the public interest. The Court granted VeriSign’s Motion
to Dismiss the Second Amended Complaint on May 14,2007,
without leave to amend, and entered judgment for VeriSign.
CFIT filed a Notice of Appeal to the U.S. Court of Appeals
for the Ninth Circuit on June 13, 2007. After briefing, the ap-
peal was argued on December 8, 2008. The Ninth Circuit
filed its Opinion reversing and remanding the dismissal of
the Second Amended Complaint on June 5, 2009. VeriSign
filed a motion for rehearing in the Ninth Circuit on July 2,
2009.

VeriSign is involved in various other investigations, claims
and lawsuits arising in the normal conduct of its business,
none of which, in its opinion will have a material effect on its
business. The Company cannot assure you that it will prevail
in any litigation. Regardless of the outcome, any litigation
may require the Company to incur significant litigation ex-
pense and may result in significant diversion of management
attention.
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Environmental Matters
1.90
CRANE CO. (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 11 (In Part): Commitments and Contingencies

Other Contingencies

For environmental matters, the Company records a liability
for estimated remediation costs when it is probable that the
Company will be responsible for such costs and they can be
reasonably estimated. Generally, third party specialists assist
in the estimation of remediation costs. The environmental
remediation liability at December 31, 2009 is substantially all
for the former manufacturing site in Goodyear, Arizona (the
“Goodyear Site”) discussed below.

Estimates of the Company’s environmental liabilities at the
Goodyear Site are based on currently available facts, present
laws and regulations and current technology available for
remediation, and are recorded on an undiscounted basis.
These estimates consider the Company’s prior experience
in the Goodyear Site investigation and remediation, as well
as available data from, and in consultation with, the Com-
pany’s environmental specialists. Estimates at the Goodyear
Site are subject to significant uncertainties caused primar-
ily by the dynamic nature of the Goodyear Site conditions,
the range of remediation alternatives available, together with
the corresponding estimates of cleanup methodology and
costs, as well as ongoing, required regulatory approvals, pri-
marily from the EPA. Accordingly, it is likely that adjustments
to the Company’s liability estimate will be necessary as fur-
ther information and circumstances regarding the Goodyear
Site characterization develop. While actual remediation cost
therefore may be more than amounts accrued, the Company
believes it has established adequate reserves for all probable
and reasonably estimable costs.

The Goodyear Site was operated by UniDynamics/
Phoenix, Inc. (“UPI”), which became an indirect subsidiary of
the Company in 1985 when the Company acquired UPI’s par-
ent company, UniDynamics Corporation. UPI manufactured
explosive and pyrotechnic compounds, including compo-
nents for critical military programs, for the U.S. government
at the Goodyear Site from 1962 to 1993, under contracts with
the Department of Defense and other government agencies
and certain of their prime contractors. No manufacturing op-
erations have been conducted at the Goodyear Site since
1994. The Goodyear Site was placed on the National Priori-
ties Listin 1983, and is now part of the Phoenix-Goodyear Air-
port North Superfund Goodyear Site. In 1990, the EPA issued
administrative orders requiring UPI to design and carry out
certain remedial actions, which UPI has done. Groundwater
extraction and treatment systems have been in operation at
the Goodyear Site since 1994. A soil vapor extraction system
was in operation from 1994 to 1998, was restarted in 2004,
and is currently in operation. On July 26, 2006, the Company
entered into a consent decree with the EPA with respect to
the Goodyear Site providing for, among other things, a work
plan for further investigation and remediation activities at the
Goodyear Site. The Company recorded a liability in 2004
for estimated costs through 2014 after reaching substantial
agreement on the scope of work with the EPA. At the end
of September 2007, the liability totaled $15.4 million. During
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the fourth quarter of 2007, the Company and its technical
advisors determined that changing groundwater flow rates
and contaminant plume direction at the Goodyear Site re-
quired additional extraction systems as well as modifications
and upgrades of the existing systems. In consultation with
its technical advisors, the Company prepared a forecast of
the expenditures required for these new and upgraded sys-
tems as well as the costs of operation over the forecast pe-
riod through 2014. Taking these additional costs into con-
sideration, the Company estimated its liability for the costs
of such activities through 2014 to be $41.5 million as of
December 31, 2007. During the fourth quarter of 2008, based
on further consultation with our advisors and the EPA and
in response to groundwater monitoring results that reflected
a continuing migration in contaminant plume direction dur-
ing the year, the Company revised its forecast of remedial
activities to increase the level of extraction systems and the
number of monitoring wells in and around the Goodyear Site,
among other things. As of December 31, 2008, the revised
liability estimate was $65.2 million which resulted in an ad-
ditional charge of $24.3 million during the fourth quarter of
2008. The total estimated gross liability was $53.8 million
as of December 31, 2009, as described below; a portion is
reimbursable by the U.S. Government. The current portion
was approximately $12.8 million and represents the Com-
pany’s best estimate, in consultation with its technical advi-
sors, of total remediation costs expected to be paid during
the twelve-month period.

It is not possible at this point to reasonably estimate the
amount of any obligation in excess of the Company’s cur-
rent accruals through the 2014 forecast period because of
the aforementioned uncertainties, in particular, the continued
significant changes in the Goodyear Site conditions experi-
enced in recent years.

On July 31, 2006, the Company entered into a consent
decree with the U.S. Department of Justice on behalf of the
Department of Defense and the Department of Energy pur-
suant to which, among other things, the U.S. Government
reimburses the Company for 21 percent of qualifying costs
of investigation and remediation activities at the Goodyear
Site. As of December 31, 2009 the Company has recorded a
receivable of $11.3 million for the expected reimbursements
from the U.S. Government in respect of the aggregate liabil-
ity as at that date. In the first quarter of 2009, the Company
issued a $35 million letter of credit to support requirements
of the consent decree for the Goodyear Site.

The Company has been identified as a potentially respon-
sible party (“PRP”) with respect to environmental contamina-
tion at the Crab Orchard National Wildlife Refuge Superfund
Site (the “Crab Orchard Site”). The Crab Orchard Site is lo-
cated about five miles west of Marion, lllinois, and consists
of approximately 55,000 acres. Beginning in 1941, the United
States used the Crab Orchard Site for the production of ord-
nance and other related products for use in World War Il. In
1947, the Crab Orchard Site was transferred to the United
States Fish and Wildlife Service, and about 30,000 acres of
the Crab Orchard Site were leased to a variety of industrial
tenants whose activities (which continue to this day) included
manufacturing ordnance and explosives. A predecessor to
the Company formerly leased portions of the Crab Orchard
Site, and conducted manufacturing operations at the Crab
Orchard Site from 1952 until 1964. General Dynamics Ord-
nance and Tactical Systems, Inc. (“GD-OTS”) is in the pro-
cess of conducting the remedial investigation and feasibility
study at the Crab Orchard Site, pursuant to an Administrative

ATT-SEC 1.91

Order on Consent between GD-OTS and the U.S. Fish and
Wildlife Service, the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
(“EPA™) and the lllinois Environmental Protection Agency. The
Company is not a party to that agreement, and has not been
asked by any agency of the United States Government to
participate in any activity relative to the Crab Orchard Site.
The Company is informed that GD-OTS completed a Phase |
remedial investigation in 2008, that GD-OTS is performing a
Phase Il remedial investigation scheduled for completion in
2010, and that the feasibility study is projected to be com-
plete in mid to late 2012. GD-OTS has asked the Company
to participate in a voluntary cost allocation exercise, but the
Company, along with a number of other PRPs that were con-
tacted, declined citing the absence of certain necessary par-
ties as well as an undeveloped environmental record. The
Company does not believe that it is likely that any discus-
sion about the allocable share of the various PRPs, including
the U.S. Government, will take place before the end of 2010.
Although a loss is probable, it is not possible at this time to
reasonably estimate the amount of any obligation for reme-
diation of the Crab Orchard Site because the extent of the
environmental impact, allocation among PRPs, remediation
alternatives, and concurrence of regulatory authorities have
not yet advanced to the stage where a reasonable estimate
can be made. The Company has notified its insurers of this
potential liability and will seek coverage under its insurance
policies.

1.91
THOMAS & BETTS CORPORATION (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19 (In Part): Contingencies

Environmental Matters

Under the requirements of the Comprehensive Environmen-
tal Response Compensation and Liability Act of 1980, as
amended, (the “Superfund Act”) and certain other laws, the
Corporation is potentially liable for the cost of clean-up at
various contaminated sites identified by the United States
Environmental Protection Agency and other agencies. The
Corporation has been notified that it is named a potentially
responsible party (“PRP”) at various sites for study and clean-
up costs. In some cases there are several named PRPs and
in others there are hundreds. The Corporation generally par-
ticipates in the investigation or clean-up of potentially con-
taminated sites through cost-sharing agreements with terms
which vary from site to site. Costs are typically allocated
based upon the volume and nature of the materials sent to
the site. However, under the Superfund Act and certain other
laws, as a PRP, the Corporation can be held jointly and sev-
erally liable for all environmental costs associated with the
site.

In conjunction with the acquisition of Lamson & Ses-
sions Co., Joslyn Hi-Voltage, Power Solutions, Drilling Tech-
nical Supply SA, The Homac Manufacturing Company and
Boreal Braidings Inc., the Corporation assumed responsibil-
ity for environmental matters for those entities. Related to
the acquisition of Lamson & Sessions Co., the Corporation
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assumed responsibility for environmental liabilities involving
a site in Ohio.

When the Corporation becomes aware of a potential lia-
bility at a particular site, it conducts studies to estimate the
amount of the liability. If determinable, the Corporation ac-
crues what it considers to be the most accurate estimate of
its liability at that site, taking into account the other partici-
pants involved in the site and their ability to pay. The Corpo-
ration has acquired facilities subject to environmental liability
where, in one case, the seller has committed to indemnify the
Corporation for those liabilities, and, in another, subject to an
asset purchase agreement, the seller assumed responsibil-
ity for paying its proportionate share of the environmental
clean-up costs.

The Corporation’s accrual for probable environmental
costs was approximately $11 million and $14 million as of
December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. The Corporation
is not able to predict the extent of its ultimate liability with
respect to all of its pending or future environmental matters,
and liabilities arising from potential environmental obligations
that have not been reserved at this time may be material to
the operating results of any single quarter or year in the future.
The operation of manufacturing plants involves a high level of
susceptibility in these areas, and there is no assurance that
the Corporation will not incur material environmental or oc-
cupational health and safety liabilities in the future. Moreover,
expectations of remediation expenses could be affected by,
and potentially significant expenditures could be required to
comply with, environmental regulations and health and safety
laws that may be adopted or imposed in the future. Future
remediation technology advances could adversely impact
expectations of remediation expenses.

Possible Tax Assessments
1.92
AIR PRODUCTS AND CHEMICALS, INC. (SEP)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20 (In Part): Income Taxes

The Company is currently under examination in a number
of tax jurisdictions, some of which may be resolved in the
next twelve months. As a result, it is reasonably possible
that a change in the unrecognized tax benefits may occur
during the next twelve months. However, quantification of an
estimated range cannot be made at this time. A reconciliation
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of the beginning and ending amount of the unrecognized tax
benefits is as follows:

2009 2008
Unrecognized tax benefits
Balance, beginning of year $184.1 $116.5
Additions for tax positions of the current year 25.6 58.3
Additions for tax positions of prior years 39.0 20.1
Reductions for tax positions of prior years (45.2) (5.2)
Settlements (5.4) (4.6)
Statute of limitations expiration (5.4) (3.4)
Foreign currency translation 2.2 2.4
Balance, end of year $1949  $184.1

The Company remains subject to examination in the following
major tax jurisdictions for the years indicated below.

Open Tax Fiscal Years

Major tax jurisdiction

North America

United States 2007-2009
Canada 2006-2009
Europe

United Kingdom 2006-2009
Germany 2006-2009
Netherlands 2005-2009
Poland 2003-2009
Spain 2005-2009
Asia

Taiwan 2004-2009
Korea 2004-2009
1.93

GOODRICH CORPORATION (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 15 (In Part): Income Taxes

The Company or one of its subsidiaries files income tax re-
turns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction, various U.S. state juris-
dictions and foreign jurisdictions. The Company is no longer
subject to U.S. federal examination for years before 2006 and
with few exceptions, state and local examinations for years
before 2000 and non-U.S. income tax examinations for years
before 2002. In late 2009, the U.S. Internal Revenue Service
(IRS) began examination of the tax years 2007 and 2008. For
a discussion of uncertainties related to tax matters see Note
17, “Contingencies.”

Note 17 (In Part): Contingencies

Tax

The Company is continuously undergoing examination by the
IRS as well as various state and foreign jurisdictions. The IRS
and other taxing authorities routinely challenge certain de-
ductions and credits reported by the Company on its income
tax returns. See Note 15 “Income Taxes,” for additional detail.
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Tax Years 2005 and 2006

During 2009, the IRS issued a Revenue Agent’s Report for
the tax years 2005 and 2006. In July 2009, the Company
submitted a protest to the Appeals Division of the IRS with
respect to certain unresolved issues which involve the proper
timing of deductions. Although it is reasonably possible that
these matters could be resolved during the next 12 months,
the timing or ultimate outcome is uncertain.

Tax Years 2000 to 2004

During 2007, the IRS and the Company reached agreement
on substantially all of the issues raised with respect to the
examination of taxable years 2000 to 2004. The Company
submitted a protest to the Appeals Division of the IRS with
respect to the remaining unresolved issues which involve the
proper timing of certain deductions. The Company and the
IRS were unable to reach agreement on the remaining issues
and in December 2009, the Company filed a petition to the
U.S. Tax Court. The Company believes the amount of the es-
timated tax liability if the IRS were to prevail is fully reserved.
The Company cannot predict the timing or ultimate outcome
of a final resolution of the remaining unresolved issues.

Tax Years Prior to 2000

The previous examination cycle included the consolidated
income tax groups for the audit periods identified below:

Coltec Industries Inc. and December, 1997-July, 1999

Subsidiaries (through date of acquisition)
Goodrich Corporation and ~ 1998-1999 (including Rohr,
Subsidiaries Inc. (Rohr) and Coltec)

The IRS and the Company previously reached final set-
tlement on all but one of the issues raised in this exam-
ination cycle. The Company received statutory notices of
deficiency dated June 14, 2007 related to the remaining un-
resolved issue which involves the proper timing of certain
deductions. The Company filed a petition with the U.S. Tax
Court in September 2007 to contest the notices of deficiency.
The Company believes the amount of the estimated tax lia-
bility if the IRS were to prevail is fully reserved. Although it is
reasonably possible that this matter could be resolved dur-
ing the next 12 months, the timing or ultimate outcome is
uncertain.

Rohr was examined by the State of California for the tax
years ended July 31, 1985, 1986 and 1987. The State of
California disallowed certain expenses incurred by one of
Rohr’s subsidiaries in connection with the lease of certain
tangible property. California’s Franchise Tax Board held that
the deductions associated with the leased equipment were
non-business deductions. The additional tax associated with
the Franchise Tax Board’s position is $4.5 million. The amount
of accrued interest associated with the additional tax is ap-
proximately $29 million at December 31, 2009. In addition,
the State of California enacted an amnesty provision that im-
poses nondeductible penalty interest equal to 50% of the
unpaid interest amounts relating to taxable years ended be-
fore 2003. The penalty interest is approximately $14.5 million
at December 31, 2009. The tax and interest amounts con-
tinue to be contested by Rohr. No payment has been made
for the $29 million of interest or $14.5 million of penalty in-
terest. In April 2009, the Superior Court of California issued
a ruling granting the Company’s motion for summary judg-
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ment. In August 2009 the State of California appealed the
ruling. Once the State’s appeals have been exhausted and if
the Superior Court’s decision is not overturned, the Company
will be entitled to a refund of the $4.5 million of tax, together
with interest from the date of payment.

Following settlement of the U.S. Tax Court for Rohr’s
tax years 1986 to 1997, California audited the Company’s
amended tax returns and issued an assessment based on
numerous issues including proper timing of deductions and
allowance of tax credits. The Company submitted a protest
of the assessment to the California Franchise Tax Board in
November 2008. The Company believes that it is adequately
reserved for this contingency. Although it is reasonably pos-
sible that this matter could be resolved during the next 12
months, the timing or ultimate outcome is uncertain.

Insurance Coverage/Self-Insurance
1.94
ROCK-TENN COMPANY (SEP)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 20 (In Part): Commitments and Contingencies

Insurance Placed With Kemper

During fiscal 1985 through 2002, Kemper Insurance Com-
panies/Lumbermens Mutual provided us with workers’ com-
pensation insurance, auto liability insurance and general li-
ability insurance. Kemper has made public statements that
they are uncertain that they will be able to pay all of their
claims liabilities in the future. At present, based on public
comments made by Kemper, we believe it is reasonably pos-
sible they will not be able to pay some or all of the future liabili-
ties associated with our open and reopened claims. However,
we cannot reasonably estimate the amount that Kemper may
be unable to pay. Additionally, we cannot reasonably estimate
the impact of state guarantee funds and any facultative and
treaty reinsurance that may be available to pay such liabili-
ties. If Kemper is ultimately unable to pay such liabilities, we
believe the range of our liability is between approximately
$0 and $2 million, and we are unable to estimate the liability
more specifically because of the factors described above.

Governmental Investigations
1.95
BOSTON SCIENTIFIC CORPORATION (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note L (In Part): Commitments and Contingencies

Governmental Proceedings—BSC

In December 2007, we were informed by the DOJ that
it was conducting an investigation of allegations that we
and other suppliers improperly promoted biliary stents for



Section 1: General 93

off-label uses. The allegations were brought as part of a qui
tam complaint that remained under confidential seal. On De-
cember 11, 2009, the Federal government filed a notice of
non-intervention with the U.S. District Court for the Northern
District of Texas and, subsequently, on January 11, 2010, the
qui tam complaint was unsealed by the Court. On June 26,
2008, the Department of Justice issued a subpoena to us
under the Health Insurance Portability & Accountability Act
of 1996 requiring the production of documents to the U.S.
Attorney’s Office in the District of Massachusetts. We are
cooperating with the investigation.

On June 27, 2008, the Republic of Iraq filed a complaint
against our wholly-owned subsidiary, BSSA France, and
ninety-two other defendants in the U.S. District Court of the
Southern District of New York. The complaint alleges that the
defendants acted improperly in connection with the sale of
products under the United Nations Oil for Food Program. The
complaint alleges Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organi-
zations Act (RICO) violations, conspiracy to commit fraud and
the making of false statements and improper payments, and
seeks monetary and punitive damages. We intend to vigor-
ously defend against its allegations. On May 6, 2009, BSSA
France was served the complaint. On July 31, 2009, the plain-
tiff fled an amended complaint. On January 15, 2010, defen-
dant’s filed a motion to dismiss the amended complaint.

On July 14, 2008, we received a subpoena from the State
of New Hampshire, Office of the Attorney General request-
ing information in connection with our refusal to sell medical
devices or equipment intended to be used in the adminis-
tration of spinal cord stimulation trials to practitioners other
than practicing medical doctors. We have responded to the
Attorney General’s request.

Governmental Proceedings—Guidant

On November 2, 2005, the Attorney General of the State of
New York filed a civil complaint against Guidant pursuant to
the New York’s Consumer Protection Law. In the complaint,
the Attorney General alleges that Guidant concealed from
physicians and patients a design flaw in its VENTAK PRIZM®
2 1861 defibrillator from approximately February of 2002 un-
til May 23, 2005. The complaint further alleges that due to
Guidant’s concealment of this information, Guidant has en-
gaged in repeated and persistent fraudulent conduct in vio-
lation of the law. The Attorney General is seeking permanent
injunctive relief, restitution for patients in whom a VENTAK
PRIZM® 2 1861 defibrillator manufactured before April 2002
was implanted, disgorgement of profits, and all other proper
relief. This case is currently pending in the MDL in the U.S.
District Court for the District of Minnesota.

In October 2005, Guidant received an administrative sub-
poena from the DOJ U.S. Attorney’s office in Boston, is-
sued under the Health Insurance Portability & Accountability
Act of 1996. The subpoena requests documents concern-
ing certain marketing practices for pacemakers, implantable
cardioverter defibrillators, leads and related products aris-
ing prior to our acquisition of Guidant in 2006. In December
2009, Guidant settled this matter for $22 million and agreed
to enter into a Corporate Integrity Agreement.

In October 2005, Guidant received an administrative sub-
poena from the DOJ U.S. Attorney’s office in Minneapolis,
issued under the Health Insurance Portability & Accountabil-
ity Act of 1996. The subpoena requests documents relat-
ing to alleged violations of the Food, Drug, and Cosmetic
Act occurring prior to our acquisition of Guidant involving
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Guidant’s VENTAK PRIZM® 2 and CONTAK RENEWAL® and
CONTAK RENEWAL 2 devices. Guidant is cooperating with
the request, including producing a significant volume of doc-
uments and providing witnesses for grand jury proceedings.
On November 3, 2009, Guidant and the DOJ reached an
agreement in principle to resolve the matters raised in the
Minneapolis subpoena. Under the terms of the agreement,
Guidant will plead to two misdemeanor charges related to
failure to include information in reports to the FDA and Boston
Scientific will pay approximately $296 million in fines and for-
feitures on behalf of Guidant. We recorded a charge of $294
million in the third quarter of 2009 as a result of the agree-
ment in principle, which represents the $296 million charge
associated with the agreement, net of a $2 million reversal of
arelated accrual. On February 24, 2010, Guidant entered into
a plea agreement and sentencing stipulations with the U.S.
Attorney for the District of Minnesota and the Office of Con-
sumer Litigation of the DOJ documenting the agreement in
principle. We expect to satisfy the obligation during the sec-
ond quarter of 2010. The DOJ is also investigating whether
there were civil violations under the False Claims Act related
to these products.

In January 2006, Guidant was served with a civil False
Claims Act qui tam lawsuit filed in the U.S. District Court
for the Middle District of Tennessee in September 2003 by
Robert Fry, a former employee alleged to have worked for
Guidant from 1981 to 1997. The lawsuit claims that Guidant
violated federal law and the laws of the States of Tennessee,
Florida and California, by allegedly concealing limited war-
ranty and other credits for upgraded or replacement medi-
cal devices, thereby allegedly causing hospitals to file reim-
bursement claims with federal and state healthcare programs
for amounts that did not reflect the providers’ true costs for
the devices. On October 16, 2006, the United States filed a
motion to intervene in this action, which was approved by
the Court on November 2, 2006. Fact discovery has been
ongoing and mediation is scheduled for late Q1 2010.

On July 1, 2008, Guidant Sales Corporation received a
subpoena from the Maryland office of the U.S. Department
of Health and Human Services, Office of Inspector General.
This subpoena seeks information concerning payments to
physicians, primarily related to the training of sales repre-
sentatives. We are cooperating with this request.

On October 17, 2008, we received a subpoena from the
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Office of
the Inspector General, requesting information related to the
alleged use of a skin adhesive in certain of our CRM products.
We are cooperating with the request.

On October 24, 2008, we received a letter from the DOJ
informing us of an investigation relating to alleged off-label
promotion of surgical cardiac ablation system devices to treat
atrial fibrillation. We have divested the surgical cardiac abla-
tion business and the devices at issue are no longer sold by
us. We are cooperating with the government’s investigation.
On July 13, 2009, we became aware that a judge in Texas
partially unsealed a qui tam whistleblower complaint which
is the basis for the DOJ investigation. In August 2009, the
government, which has the right to intervene and take over
the conduct of the qui tam case, filed a notice indicating that
it has elected not to intervene in this matter at this time.

Following the unsealing of the whistleblower complaint,
we received in August 2009 shareholder letters demanding
that our Board of Directors take action against certain direc-
tors and executive officers as a result of the alleged off-label
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promotion of surgical cardiac ablation system devices to treat
atrial fibrillation. The matter was referred to a special com-
mittee of the Board to investigate and then to make a rec-
ommendation to the full Board.

On November 7, 2008, Guidant/Boston Scientific received
a request from the U.S. Department of Defense (DOD),
Defense Criminal Investigative Service and the Department of
the Army, Criminal Investigation Command seeking informa-
tion concerning sales and marketing interactions with physi-
cians at Madigan Army Medical Center in Tacoma, Wash-
ington. Since that date, we have been cooperating with the
DOD and the DOJ to review CRM'’s financial interactions with
military personnel.

On September 25, 2009, we received a subpoena from the
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Office of
Inspector General, requesting certain information relating to
contributions made by us to charities with ties to physicians
or their families. We are currently working with the govern-
ment to understand the scope of the subpoena.

Multi-Employer Plan Contributions
1.96
SARA LEE CORPORATION (JUN)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 16 (In Part): Contingencies and Commitments

Multi-Employer Pension Plans

The corporation participates in various multi-employer
pension plans that provide retirement benefits to certain
employees covered by collective bargaining agreements
(MEPP). MEPPs are managed by trustee boards comprised
of participating employer and labor union representatives,
and participating employers are jointly responsible for any
plan underfunding. The corporation’s MEPP contributions are
established by the applicable collective bargaining agree-
ments; however, our required contributions may increase
based on the funded status of the plan and the provisions
of the Pension Protection Act, which requires substantially
underfunded MEPPs to implement rehabilitation plans to im-
prove funded status. Factors that could impact funded status
of a MEPP include investment performance, changes in the
participant demographics, financial stability of contributing
employers and changes in actuarial assumptions. In addition
to regular scheduled contributions, the corporation could be
obligated to make additional contributions (known as a com-
plete or partial withdrawal liability) if a MEPP has unfunded
vested benefits. These complete or partial withdrawal liabil-
ities would be triggered if the corporation ceases to make
contributions to that MEPP, either completely or with respect
to only one or more collective bargaining units. The with-
drawal liability would equal the corporation’s proportionate
share of the unfunded vested benefits, based on the year
in which the withdrawal liability is triggered. The corporation
believes that certain of the MEPPs in which we participate
have unfunded vested benefits. Due to uncertainty regarding
future factors that could trigger withdrawal liability, such as
the corporation’s decision to close a plant or the dissolution
of a collective bargaining unit, we are unable to determine
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the amount and timing of the corporation’s future withdrawal
liability, if any, or whether the corporation’s participation in
these MEPPs could have any material adverse impact on its
financial condition, results of operations or liquidity. The cor-
poration’s regular scheduled contributions to MEPPs totaled
$49in 2009, $48in 2008 and $47 in 2007. The corporation has
incurred withdrawal liabilities of approximately $31 in 2009,
and immaterial amounts in 2008 and 2007.

GAIN CONTINGENCIES

Plaintiff Litigation
1.97
ELI LILLY AND COMPANY (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 14 (In Part): Contingencies

Patent Litigation

We are engaged in the following patent litigation matters
brought pursuant to procedures set out in the Hatch-Waxman
Act (the Drug Price Competition and Patent Term Restoration
Act of 1984):

e Cymbalta: Sixteen generic drug manufacturers have
submitted Abbreviated New Drug Applications (ANDAs)
seeking permission to market generic versions of Cym-
balta prior to the expiration of our relevant U.S. patents
(the earliest of which expires in 2013). Of these chal-
lengers, all allege non-infringement of the patent claims
directed to the commercial formulation, and nine allege
invalidity of the patent claims directed to the active in-
gredient duloxetine. Of the nine challengers to the com-
pound patent claims, one further alleges invalidity of the
claims directed to the use of Cymbalta for treating fi-
bromyalgia, and one alleges the patent having claims
directed to the active ingredient is unenforceable. In
November 2008 we filed lawsuits in U.S. District Court
for the Southern District of Indiana against Actavis
Elizabeth LLC; Aurobindo Pharma Ltd.; Cobalt Labo-
ratories, Inc.; Impax Laboratories, Inc.; Lupin Limited;
Sandoz Inc.; and Wockhardt Limited, seeking rulings
that the patents are valid, infringed, and enforceable.
We filed similar lawsuits in the same court against Sun
Pharma Global, Inc. in December 2008 and against
Anchen Pharmaceuticals, Inc. in August 2009. The
cases have been consolidated and actions against all
but Wockhardt Limited have been stayed pursuant to
stipulations by the defendants to be bound by the out-
come of the litigation through appeal.

e Gemzar: Mayne Pharma (USA) Inc., now Hospira,
Inc. (Hospira); Fresenius Kabi Oncology Plc (Frese-
nius); Sicor Pharmaceuticals, Inc., now Teva Parenteral
Medicines, Inc. (Teva); and Sun Pharmaceutical Indus-
tries Inc. (Sun) each submitted an ANDA seeking per-
mission to market generic versions of Gemzar prior to
the expiration of our relevant U.S. patents (compound
patent expiring in 2010 and method-of-use patent ex-
piring in 2013), and alleging that these patents are
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invalid. Sandoz Inc. (Sandoz) and APP Pharmaceuti-
cals, LLC (APP) have similarly challenged our method-
of-use patent. We filed lawsuits in the U.S. District
Court for the Southern District of Indiana against Teva
(February 2006), Hospira (October 2006 and January
2008), Sandoz (October 2009), APP (December 2009),
and Fresenius (February 2010), seeking rulings that our
patents are valid and are being infringed. Sandoz with-
drew its ANDA and the suit against it was dismissed
in February 2010. The trial against Teva was held in
September 2009 and we are waiting for a ruling. Teva’s
ANDAs have been approved by the FDA; however, Teva
must provide 90 days notice prior to marketing generic
Gemzar to allow time for us to seek a preliminary in-
junction. Both suits against Hospira have been admin-
istratively closed, and the parties have agreed to be
bound by the results of the Teva suit. In November 2007,
Sun filed a declaratory judgment action in the United
States District Court for the Eastern District of Michi-
gan, seeking rulings that our method-of-use and com-
pound patents are invalid or unenforceable, or would
not be infringed by the sale of Sun’s generic product.
In August 2009, the District Court granted a motion
by Sun for partial summary judgment, invalidating our
method-of-use patent. We have appealed this decision.
This ruling has no bearing on the compound patent.
The trial originally scheduled for December 2009 has
been postponed while the court considers Sun’s sec-
ond summary judgment motion, related to the validity
of our compound patent. Sun and APP have received
tentative approval for their products from the FDA, but
are prohibited from entering the market by 30-month
stays, which expire in June 2010 for Sun and May 2012
for APP.

e Alimta: Teva Parenteral Medicines, Inc. (Teva), APP, and
Barr Laboratories, Inc. (Barr) each submitted ANDAs
seeking approval to market generic versions of Alimta
prior to the expiration of the relevant U.S. patent (li-
censed from the Trustees of Princeton University and
expiring in 2016), and alleging the patent is invalid. We,
along with Princeton, filed lawsuits in the U.S. District
Court for the District of Delaware against Teva, APP, and
Barr seeking rulings that the compound patent is valid
and infringed. Trial is scheduled for November 2010
against Teva and APP.

e Evista: In 2006, Teva Pharmaceuticals USA, Inc. (Teva)
submitted an ANDA seeking permission to market a
generic version of Evista prior to the expiration of our
relevant U.S. patents (expiring in 2012-2017) and alleg-
ing that these patents are invalid, not enforceable, or
not infringed. In June 2006, we filed a lawsuit against
Teva in the U.S. District Court for the Southern Dis-
trict of Indiana, seeking a ruling that these patents are
valid, enforceable, and being infringed by Teva. The trial
against Teva was completed in March 2009. In Septem-
ber 2009, the court upheld our method-of-use patents
(the last expires in 2014). Teva has appealed that ruling.
In addition, the court held that our particle-size patent
(expiring 2017) is invalid. We have appealed that ruling.

e Strattera: Actavis Elizabeth LLC (Actavis), Apotex Inc.
(Apotex), Aurobindo Pharma Ltd. (Aurobindo), Mylan
Pharmaceuticals Inc. (Mylan), Sandoz Inc. (Sandoz),
Sun Pharmaceutical Industries Limited (Sun), and Teva
Pharmaceuticals USA, Inc. (Teva) each submitted an
ANDA seeking permission to market generic versions
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of Strattera prior to the expiration of our relevant U.S.
patent (expiring in 2017), and alleging that this patent is
invalid. In 2007, we brought a lawsuit against Actavis,
Apotex, Aurobindo, Mylan, Sandoz, Sun, and Teva in
the United States District Court for the District of New
Jersey. The court has ruled on all pending summary
judgment motions, and granted our infringement mo-
tion. The remaining invalidity defenses will be decided
at trial, which could take place as early as the third quar-
ter of 2010. Several companies have received tentative
approval to market generic atomoxetine, but are pro-
hibited from entering the market by a 30-month stay
which expires in November 2010.
We believe each of these Hatch-Waxman challenges is with-
out merit and expect to prevail in this litigation. However, it
is not possible to determine the outcome of this litigation,
and accordingly, we can provide no assurance that we will
prevail. An unfavorable outcome in any of these cases could
have a material adverse impact on our future consolidated
results of operations, liquidity, and financial position.

1.98
TUTOR PERINI CORPORATION (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

9 (In Part): Contingencies and Commitments

The Company and certain of its subsidiaries are involved in
litigation and are contingently liable for commitments and
performance guarantees arising in the ordinary course of
business. The Company and certain of its clients have made
claims arising from the performance under its contracts. The
Company recognizes certain significant claims for recovery
of incurred cost when it is probable that the claim will result in
additional contract revenue and when the amount of the claim
can be reliably estimated. As of December 31, 2009, several
matters were in the litigation and dispute resol